

Section I

Notices of Development of Proposed Rules and Negotiated Rulemaking

DEPARTMENT OF STATE

Division of Library and Information Services

RULE TITLE: Library Grant Programs **RULE NO.:** 1B-2.011

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The proposed amendment revises the guidelines and forms for the State Aid to Libraries, Library Services and Technology Act, and Florida Library Literacy grant programs.

SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: State Aid to Libraries Grant: The proposed amendment revises the Annual Statistical Report Form for Public Libraries (Form # DLIS/SA07) and removes the requirement for submission of a financial audit as part of the application documents.

Library Services and Technology Act Grant: The proposed amendment revises the forms and guidelines to streamline and clarify the requirement for grant application and reporting.

Florida Library Literacy Grant: The proposed amendment revises the Guidelines and Application to reflect an emphasis on the adult learner.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 257.14, 257.191, 257.24, 257.41(2) FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 257.12, 257.15, 257.16, 257.17, 257.171, 257.172, 257.18, 257.19, 257.191, 257.192, 257.195, 257.21, 257.22, 257.23, 257.24, 257.25 FS.

IF REQUESTED IN WRITING AND NOT DEEMED UNNECESSARY BY THE AGENCY HEAD, A RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP WILL BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATE AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

TIME AND DATE: 10:00 a.m., March 5, 2001

PLACE: Board Room, State Library of Florida, R. A. Gray Building, 500 South Bronough Street, Tallahassee, FL

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS: Barratt Wilkins, Director, Division of Library and Information Services, R. A. Gray Building, 500 South Bronough Street, Tallahassee, FL 32399-0250, (850)487-2651, Suncom 277-2651

THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS NOT AVAILABLE.

LAND AND WATER ADJUDICATORY COMMISSION

Lakewood Ranch Community Development District 2

RULE TITLE: Boundary **RULE NO.:** 42W-1.002

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose of this proposed rule amendment is to amend the boundaries of the Lakewood Ranch Community Development District 2 ("District"), a

community development district (CDD) established in 1995 pursuant to Chapter 190, F.S. The petition to amend the boundaries submitted by the Lakewood Ranch CDD 2 requests that the Florida Land and Water Adjudicatory Commission (the "Commission") amend Florida Administrative Code Chapter 42W-1 by deleting approximately 706 acres (the contraction parcel) from the existing boundaries. After contraction, the proposed amended District will consist of approximately 1,374 acres located in Manatee County, Florida. (The contraction parcel is proposed for inclusion in the boundaries of the proposed Lakewood Ranch CDD 5. The Lakewood Ranch CDD 5 establishment petition is currently pending before the Commission.) The general location of the contraction parcel is depicted in Comp. Ex. A, Att. 2, that was submitted into evidence during the administrative hearing (revises Exhibit 2 originally filed with the petition). As a result of the proposed contraction, 573 fewer single family units will be included within the District. The filing of the petition for contraction by the District Board of Supervisors constitutes consent of the landowners within the District, other than the landowners whose land is proposed to be removed from the District. Additionally, the District has written consent to amend the District from the owners of 100% of the real property to be deleted from the District.

SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: Contraction of the boundaries of the Lakewood Ranch Community Development District 2.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 190.005 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 190.004, 190.005(1)(f)1. FS.

IF REQUESTED AND NOT DEEMED UNNECESSARY BY THE AGENCY HEAD, A RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP WILL BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATE AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

TIME AND DATE: 10:00 a.m. – 12:00 Noon, Monday, March 19, 2001

PLACE: Room 2106, The Capitol, Tallahassee, Florida

Any person requiring a special accommodation to participate in the workshop because of a disability should contact Barbara Leighty, (850)488-7793, at least 5 business days in advance to make appropriate arrangements.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT AND A COPY OF THE PRELIMINARY DRAFT, IF AVAILABLE, IS: Erin McCormick Larrinaga, Fowler, White, Gillen, Boggs, Villareal and Banker, P.A., Post Office Box 1438, Tampa, Florida 33601, telephone (813)228-7411 or Barbara Leighty, Senior Governmental Analyst, Florida Land and Water Adjudicatory Commission, The Capitol, Room 2105, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0001, telephone (850)488-7793.

THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS NOT AVAILABLE.

LAND AND WATER ADJUDICATORY COMMISSION

Lakewood Ranch Community Development District 5

RULE TITLES:	RULE NOS.:
Creation	42EE-1.001
Boundary	42EE-1.002
Supervisors	42EE-1.003

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose of this proposed rule is to establish a community development district (CDD), the Lakewood Ranch Community Development District 5 ("District"), pursuant to Chapter 190, F.S. The petition to establish the District, filed by SMR Communities Joint Venture, (Petitioner), requests that the Florida Land and Water Adjudicatory Commission establish by rule the Lakewood Ranch CDD 5. The land area proposed to be served by the District will consist of approximately 1,173 acres. Upon establishment, the proposed Lakewood Ranch CDD 5 will encompass land proposed to be contracted from the Lakewood Ranch CDD 2 and additional land. (The Lakewood Ranch CDD 2 contraction petition is currently pending before the Commission for approval to amend the boundaries to delete 706.62 acres.) All proposed lands in the District are within unincorporated Manatee County and are generally depicted on Exhibit 1 of the petition. There are no parcels located within the external boundaries of the proposed District to be excluded from the District. The proposed development within the District contemplates the construction of 908 single-family residential units, 208 condominium units, a golf course and country club facility, and a sports/fitness complex. The Petitioner has obtained written consent to establish the District from the owners of 100% of the real property located within the proposed District. The District, if established, intends to participate in the construction of certain facilities and services such as roadways, lighting, utilities, drainage, landscaping/lakes/irrigation, security, fire, and parks and recreation on the lands within the District.

SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: Establishment of the Lakewood Ranch Community Development District 5.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 190.005 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 190.004, 190.005 FS.

IF REQUESTED AND NOT DEEMED UNNECESSARY BY THE AGENCY HEAD, A RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP WILL BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATE AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

TIME AND DATE: 10:00 a.m. – 12:00 Noon, Monday, March 19, 2001

PLACE: Room 2106, The Capitol, Tallahassee, Florida

Any person requiring a special accommodation to participate in the workshop because of a disability should contact Barbara Leighty, (850)488-7793 at least 5 business days in advance to make appropriate arrangements.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT AND A COPY OF THE PRELIMINARY DRAFT, IF AVAILABLE, IS: Erin

McCormick Larrinaga, Fowler, White, Gillen, Boggs, Villareal and Banker, P.A., Post Office Box 1438, Tampa, Florida 33601, telephone (813)228-7411 or Barbara Leighty, Senior Governmental Analyst, Florida Land and Water Adjudicatory Commission, The Capitol, Room 2105, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0001, telephone (850)488-7793.

THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS NOT AVAILABLE.

REGIONAL UTILITY AUTHORITIES

Tampa Bay Water – A Regional Water Supply Authority

RULE TITLE:	RULE NO.:
Agency Description	49B-1.007

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose of this proposed amendment is to accurately reflect the membership of Tampa Bay Water, pursuant to its Amended and Restated Interlocal Agreement, as well as its statutory authorization. The City of New Port Richey is a party to that Agreement, and should be included as a party in the existing rule.

SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: The identification of the member governments and statutory authorization of Tampa Bay Water, A Regional Water Supply Authority.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 163.01(5)(h), 373.1962, 373.1963 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 373.1962, 373.1963 FS.

IF REQUESTED IN WRITING AND NOT DEEMED UNNECESSARY BY THE AGENCY HEAD, A RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP WILL BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATE AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

TIME AND DATE: 9:00 a.m., March 12, 2001

PLACE: Tampa Bay Water, 2535 Landmark Drive, Suite 211, Clearwater, FL 33761-3930

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS: Donald D. Conn, General Counsel, Tampa Bay Water, 2535 Landmark Drive, Suite 211, Clearwater, FL 33761-3930

THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS:

49B-1.007 Agency Description.

(1) Tampa Bay Water, A Regional Water Supply Authority, is a public body authorized by Sections 373.1962 and 373.1963, Florida Statutes. It was created by Interlocal Agreement pursuant to Section 163.01, Florida Statutes. The Counties of Hillsborough, Pasco and Pinellas, and the municipalities of Tampa, ~~and~~ St. Petersburg, and New Port Richey are the parties to that Agreement.

(2) through (4) No change.

Specific Authority 163.01(5)(h), 363.1962, 363.1963 FS. Law Implemented 363.1962, 363.1963 FS. History—New 1-11-81, Formerly 16M-1.07, 16M-1.007, Amended 7-29-97, _____.

REGIONAL UTILITY AUTHORITIES

Tampa Bay Water – A Regional Water Supply Authority

RULE TITLE: Well Mitigation Policy
 RULE NO.: 49B-3.005

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: Consistent with its responsibilities and Water Use Permit requirements, Tampa Bay Water mitigates complaints regarding domestic wells located within specified areas in the vicinity of its wellfields. Due to extreme drought conditions in the Tampa Bay Water area, the volume of complaints regarding domestic wells located within prescribed mitigation areas has substantially increased. This increase in complaints has resulted in unavoidable delays between receipt of a complaint and actual mitigation under the terms of the current rule. The purposes and effects of the proposed amendment to Rule 49B-3.005 (Well Mitigation Policy) are to prioritize the mitigation of wells for existing legal users, to establish standards and criteria for wells that are to be mitigated for non-existing legal users, to define domestic wells eligible for mitigation, and to enable Tampa Bay Water to comply with the requirements of its Water Use Permits.

SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: The mitigation of domestic wells located within the mitigation area of wellfields owned and operated by Tampa Bay Water.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 163.01, 373.1962, 373.1963 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 163.01, 373.223(1)(b), 373.196, 373.1963 FS.

IF REQUESTED IN WRITING AND NOT DEEMED UNNECESSARY BY THE AGENCY HEAD, A RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP WILL BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATE AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

TIME AND DATE: 9:00 a.m., March 12, 2001

PLACE: Tampa Bay Water, 2535 Landmark Drive, Suite 211, Clearwater, FL 33761-3930

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS: Donald D. Conn, General Counsel, Tampa Bay Water, 2535 Landmark Drive, Suite 211, Clearwater, FL 33761-3930

THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS:

(Substantial rewording of Rule 49B-3.005 follows. See Florida Administrative Code for present text.)

49B-3.005 Well Mitigation Policy.

Tampa Bay Water shall mitigate all eligible water level complaints regarding domestic wells for existing legal users, as well as other eligible domestic wells constructed with a minimum of 147 feet (210 feet in the case of the South Central Hillsborough Regional Wellfield) of 4-inch galvanized steel or 5-inch PVC casing and a minimum well capacity of 2.5 gallons per minute per foot of drawdown, except in those instances of well failure due to an Act of God (i.e. lightning strikes, power failure, and flooding); said mitigation shall be without a

determination of the cause of the well failure; provided, this procedure shall be consistent with the Southwest Florida Water Management District's rules and the applicable water use permit. To be eligible for mitigation, a domestic well must be located within the mitigation area established for each wellfield in the current water use permit. In those cases where the current water use permit does not prescribe a mitigation area, the boundary of the mitigation area shall be the five (5) foot drawdown contour in the Floridan Aquifer caused by permitted peak month withdrawals from the wellfield, or a circle(s) whose radius extends two (2) miles from each active production well, whichever is greater.

Specific Authority 163.01, 373.1962, 373.1963 FS. Law Implemented 163.01, 373.223(1)(b), 373.196, 373.1963 FS. History—New 5-24-93, Amended 4-16-95, Formerly 16M-3.005, Amended _____.

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

DOCKET NO.: 01-12R

RULE CHAPTER TITLE: Stationary Sources –
 RULE CHAPTER NO.: 62-210

General Requirements	62-210
RULE TITLES:	RULE NOS.:
Definitions	62-210.200
Permits Required	62-210.300
Reports	62-210.370
Forms and Instructions	62-210.900
Notification Forms for Air General Permits	62-210.920

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The Department is proposing to amend the non-Title V air general permit notification forms to incorporate general procedures and conditions added to Rule 62-210.300(4), F.A.C., in a recent rule amendment, add a new categorical exemption from air permitting for relocatable screening operations and consider other categorical exemptions from previous guidance, add a new non-Title V air general permit for nonmetallic mineral processing plants, consider miscellaneous changes to other non-Title V air general permits, and consider changes to the Notification of Intent to Relocate Air Pollutant Emitting Facility (DEP Form No. 62-210.900(6)) and associated rule language.

SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: The proposed amendments would affect categorical exemptions from air permitting, air general permits, and relocatable facilities.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 403.061 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 403.031, 403.061, 403.087 FS.

A RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP WILL BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATE AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

TIME AND DATE: 9:00 a.m., Thursday, March 15, 2001

PLACE: Twin Towers Building, Sixth Floor, Room 609, 2600 Blair Stone Road, Tallahassee, Florida

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT AND A COPY OF THE PRELIMINARY DRAFT, IF AVAILABLE, IS: Ms. Wendy Alexander, Department of Environmental Protection,

Division of Air Resources Management, 2600 Blair Stone Road, Mail Station 5500, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2400, (850)921-9559.

If accommodation for a disability is needed to participate in this activity, please notify the Personnel Services Specialist in the Bureau of Personnel, (850)487-1855 or 1(800)955-8771 (TDD), at least seven days before the meeting.

THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS NOT AVAILABLE.

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

Division of Environmental Health and Statewide Programs

RULE TITLES:	RULE NOS.:
Definitions	64E-5.101
Special Requirements for a Specific License to Manufacture, Assemble, Repair or Distribute Commodities, Products or Devices Which Contain Radioactive Material	64E-5.210
License Required	64E-5.601
Notification	64E-5.603
Radiation Safety Committee	64E-5.606
Use of Radiopharmaceuticals for Uptake, Dilution, or Excretion Studies	64E-5.626
Use of Radiopharmaceuticals, Generators, and Reagent Kits for Imaging and Localization Studies	64E-5.627
Use of Radiopharmaceuticals for Therapy	64E-5.630

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose of the proposed rule amendments is to maintain compatibility with the requirements of the U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission regarding the use of radiopharmaceuticals. The effect is to eliminate the requirement that only radiopharmaceuticals for which the U.S. Food and Drug Administration has accepted an Investigational New Drug Application or approved a New Drug Application can be used. The proposed amendment will allow authorized nuclear pharmacists to compound drugs containing radioactive material.

SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: The use of radiopharmaceuticals prepared by authorized nuclear pharmacists.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 404.022, 404.042, 404.051, 404.061, 404.071, 404.081, 404.141 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 404.022, 404.051, 404.061(2), (3), 404.071(1), 404.081, 404.141 FS.

IF REQUESTED IN WRITING AND NOT DEEMED UNNECESSARY BY THE AGENCY HEAD, A RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP WILL BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATE AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

TIME AND DATE: 9:00 a.m., March 19, 2001
PLACE: 4042 Bald Cypress Way, Room 210J, Tallahassee, FL 32311

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT AND A COPY OF THE PRELIMINARY DRAFT, IF AVAILABLE, IS William A. Passeti, Chief, Bureau of Radiation Control, (850)245-4266

THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS AVAILABLE AT NO CHARGE FROM THE CONTACT PERSON LISTED ABOVE.

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

Florida Biomedical Research Program

RULE TITLE:	RULE NO.:
Forms	64H-1.001

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: This rule is necessary to incorporate the required forms to apply for research grants under the Florida Biomedical Research Program.

SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: Florida Biomedical Research Program.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 215.5602 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 215.5602(9) FS.

IF REQUESTED IN WRITING AND NOT DEEMED UNNECESSARY BY THE AGENCY HEAD, A RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP WILL BE SCHEDULED AND ANNOUNCED IN THE FAW.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS: Catherine Hughes, Division of Disease Control, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin A12, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1753.

THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS NOT AVAILABLE.

DEPARTMENT OF CHILDREN AND FAMILY SERVICES

Mental Health Program

RULE CHAPTER TITLE:	RULE CHAPTER NO.:
Licensure of Residential Treatment Centers	65E-9
RULE TITLES:	RULE NOS.:
Applicability	65E-9.001
Definitions	65E-9.002
Licensure	65E-9.003
Staffing	65E-9.004
Admission	65E-9.005
Treatment Planning	65E-9.006
Length of Stay	65E-9.007
Discharge and Discharge Planning	65E-9.008
Rights of Children	65E-9.009
Restraint, Seclusion, and Time Out	65E-9.010
Use of Psychotropic Medication	65E-9.011
Program Standards	65E-9.012
Operating Standards	65E-9.013

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose and effect of this chapter is to implement the provisions of s. 394.875(10), F.S., with respect to residential treatment centers for children and adolescents which specify licensure standards for admission; length of stay; program and staffing; discharge and discharge planning; treatment planning; seclusion, restraint and time out; rights of patients; use of psychotropic medications; and standards for operation of such centers.

SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: The subject area to be addressed is Section 394.875(10), Florida Statutes. The department, in consultation with the agency, must adopt rules governing a residential treatment center for children and adolescents which specify licensure standards for: admission; length of stay; program and staffing; discharge and discharge planning; treatment planning; seclusion, restraints, and time-out; rights of patients under s. 394.459; use of psychotropic medications; and standards for the operation of such centers.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 394.875(10) FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 394.875 FS.

IF REQUESTED AND NOT DEEMED UNNECESSARY BY THE AGENCY HEAD, A RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP WILL BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATE AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

TIME AND DATE: 9:00 a.m. – 5:00 p.m., March 9, 2001

PLACE: Department of Children and Families, 1317 Winewood Blvd., Bldg. 6, Conference Room A, Tallahassee, FL

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED WITH REGARD TO THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS: Jim Poindexter, Operations and Management Consultant II, Department of Children and Family Services, Children’s Mental Health Program Office, 1317 Winewood Blvd., Bldg. 6, Room 262, Tallahassee, FL 32399-0700, whose telephone number is (850)410-3036 or Suncom 210-3036 and whose Fax number is (850)413-6886 or Suncom 293-6886

THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS NOT AVAILABLE.

SUMMARY: The Anti-Fraud Reward Program is established to pay rewards of up to \$25,000 to persons responsible for providing information leading to the arrest and conviction of persons committing complex and organized crime investigated by the Division of Insurance Fraud.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COSTS: No statement of estimated regulatory costs has been prepared.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated regulatory costs, or to provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative, must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 626.9892(1) FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 626.9892 FS.

IF REQUESTED WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATE, AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW (IF NOT REQUESTED, THIS HEARING WILL NOT BE HELD):

TIME AND DATE: 9:00 p.m., March 20, 2001

PLACE: Room 143, Larson Building, 200 East Gaines Street, Tallahassee, Florida

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULES IS: L. Dave Dempsey, Division of Insurance Fraud, Department of Insurance

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this program, please advise the Department at least 5 calendar days before the program by contacting Yvonne White, (850)922-3100, Ext. 4214.

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

4K-1.001 Purpose and Scope.

The purpose of this rule chapter is to implement the provisions of Section 626.9892, F.S., to establish an Anti-Fraud Reward Program.

Specific Authority 624.308, 626.9892 FS. Law Implemented 624.307, 626.9892 FS. History–New

4K-1.002 Application Process.

(1) Intake Documentation. The “Anti-Fraud Reward Applicant” is a person who calls or writes the Division of Insurance Fraud with information related to an alleged crime involving insurance fraud. Department of Insurance employees, licensed insurance companies, insurance agents and other entities licensed under the Florida Insurance Code and their employees are not eligible to participate in the Anti-Fraud Reward Program.

(a) A Division of Insurance Fraud hotline operator answering calls from the Anti-Fraud Reward Applicant will fill out a “Hotline Anti-Fraud Reward Sheet” which details the information provided by the Anti-Fraud Reward Applicant. The hotline operator will allow the Anti-Fraud Reward

**Section II
Proposed Rules**

DEPARTMENT OF INSURANCE

Division of Insurance Fraud

RULE TITLES:	RULE NOS.:
Purpose and Scope	4K-1.001
Application Process	4K-1.002
Review Process and Reward Criteria	4K-1.003
Reward Disbursement	4K-1.004

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The proposed rule establishes the Anti-Fraud Program including an application, approval, and disbursement process.

Applicant to give their information anonymously if requested. The written information will be processed in the same manner as information received by a telephone call.

(b) The Division of Insurance Fraud intake operator will assign a "Control Number" which is automatically generated by the entry of the data into a special Fraud Busters database. A control number will be assigned to every reward program call.

(c) If the Anti-Fraud Reward Applicant has not disclosed his or her name or other identifying information and has requested to remain anonymous, the Hotline supervisor or designee will give the Anti-Fraud Reward Applicant instructions and a control number or code regarding a "Call back schedule", which simply tells the Anti-Fraud Reward Applicant what date, in monthly increments to call the supervisor back. This procedure will ensure that the anonymous caller can be notified when the case has reached a disposition.

(d) Information received in any Division of Fraud office located in the State can be nominated for the reward program, by notifying the hotline supervisor to generate the control number.

(2) Case Evaluation and Tracking.

(a) A Division of Insurance Fraud field Lieutenant will review the information and determine if the opening of a criminal case is warranted.

(b) Information resulting in an open case will be evaluated by the Lieutenant for the purpose of determining if the case fits the criteria for Major Case/Complex Case or Organized Crime as described in Rule 4K-1.003, F.A.C. The Lieutenant will document the results of the evaluation in the case-opening document for use in determining reward value. In the event no case is opened, the hotline supervisor will be notified by the field supervisor for documentation in the Reward Program's database.

(3) Case Disposition. A case originating from information received from an Anti-Fraud Reward Program Applicant will be assigned by the Lieutenant to an investigator. Investigations which are declined will not be considered for reward. Investigations which are accepted will be considered for reward provided they are selected for prosecution.

Specific Authority 624.308, 626.9892 FS. Law Implemented 119.07, 624.305, 624.307, 626.989, 626.9892 FS. History--New _____.

4K-1.003 Review Process and Reward Criteria.

(1) All fraud program information resulting in arrest and prosecution will be treated as an "Application for Reward".

(2) Applications will be reviewed by a seven person "Review Committee", consisting of each of the three chapter presidents of the Florida Association of Special Investigation Units or their designee, three Division of Insurance Fraud Regional Captains, and the Division of Insurance Fraud Director or designee.

(3) The review committee will meet quarterly, or as needed to review the applications for reward, to recommend to the Insurance Commissioner if a reward should be given, and to determine the amount of the reward.

(4) Rewards of up to \$25,000 may be awarded regardless of the number of persons arrested and convicted in connection with the investigation.

(5) A single reward amount will be granted per investigation, although this amount can be split between multiple Anti-Fraud Reward Applicants.

(6) The criteria for evaluating the application is based on information submitted to the Division of Insurance Fraud after October 1, 1999, leading to the arrest and conviction of persons committing a complex or organized crime investigated by the Division of Insurance Fraud, arising out of a violation of Sections 440.105, 624.15, 626.9541, 626.989, or 817.234, F.S.

(7) Conviction as used in this rule means a judicial finding of guilt; a judicial finding of guilt in which adjudication is withheld; judicial acceptance of a negotiated plea; or judicial acceptance of a nolo contendere plea.

(8) "Complex Crime" as used in this rule means those cases meeting the Division of Insurance Fraud's "Major Case" definition, which involves one or more of the following characteristics:

(a) Multiple defendants is defined as five or more defendants.

(b) Criminal activity occurring in more than one jurisdiction, whether or not the case is accepted by the Statewide Prosecutor or U.S. Attorney.

(c) A case involving an aggregate value of loss over \$250,000.

(d) A case involving detailed records which require substantial analysis.

(e) Multiple victims or witnesses which includes cases where investigators other than the lead investigator may take witness statements.

(f) Specialized undercover investigations which may operate for more than one month.

(g) Task force operations involving agencies in addition to the Division of Insurance Fraud.

(h) Cases which are prosecuted in federal court.

(i) Insolvency investigations.

(j) Unauthorized entity investigations resulting in an arrest.

(9) Organized Crime means a systematic or on going course of activity involving at least two incidents of criminal conduct, involving violations of the listed offenses in 4K-1.003(8), F.A.C.

(10) Rewards shall be paid pursuant to the following schedule:

(a) A reward of up to \$25,000 may be granted for theft or fraud valued at \$1,000,000 or more.

(b) A reward of up to \$10,000 may be granted for theft or fraud valued at \$100,000 but less than \$1,000,000.

(c) A reward of up to \$5,000 may be granted for theft or fraud valued at \$20,000 but less than \$100,000.

(d) A reward of up to \$1,000 may be granted for theft or fraud valued less than \$20,000 but at least \$5,000.

(11) Actual monetary loss is not required for the information to result in a reward, however verification of the appraised value of the property involved will be a determining factor.

(12) Determination of the value of the property involved can be calculated from the value of the loss prevented or avoided; the value of the loss claimed or reported; or the value of the loss obtained or endeavored to be obtained.

Specific Authority 624.308, 626.9892 FS. Law Implemented 624.307, 626.9892 FS. History—New _____.

4K-1.004 Reward Disbursement.

(1) When a determination has been made by the Insurance Commissioner that a reward should be issued, the Anti-Fraud Reward Applicant will receive a check from the Department of Insurance and Treasurer Revolving Travel Reimbursement Trust Fund. The reward will be presented by a supervisor and at least one investigator as a witness from the Division of Insurance Fraud. At the time the Anti-Fraud Reward Applicant is given the reward he or she will be given a written notice explaining his or her responsibility to report this reward to the Internal Revenue Service.

(2) In the event the Anti-Fraud Reward Applicant wishes to remain anonymous, a supervisor and an investigator within the Division of Insurance Fraud will receive the check from the Department of Insurance and Treasurer Revolving Travel Reimbursement Fund and will negotiate the check for cash which will in turn be paid to the anonymous Anti-Fraud Reward Applicant. At the time the anonymous Anti-Fraud Reward Applicant is given the reward he or she will be given a written notice explaining his or her responsibility to report this reward to the Internal Revenue Service.

Specific Authority 624.308, 626.9892 FS. Law Implemented 624.307, 626.9892 FS. History—New _____.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE:
Linda Sills, Insurance Fraud, Department of Insurance

NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Ron Poindexter, Division Director, Insurance Frauds, Department of Insurance

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: May 24, 2000

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: July 30, 2000

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

State Board of Education

RULE TITLE: Definition of Qualified Instructional Personnel

RULE NO.: 6A-1.0503

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose of this amendment is to revise the rule to reflect statutory changes enacted in Chapter 2000-301, Laws of Florida, that expands the options by which a teacher is designated as “infield,” meaning qualified for teaching the course. The effect is a rule that reflects the new provisions in law.

SUMMARY: Legislative changes enacted in Chapter 2000-301, Laws of Florida, added the options of a teacher having a minor in the subject field for which instruction is provided, or the teacher having demonstrated sufficient subject area expertise in the subject area in which instruction is provided as two additional means by which the teacher is not to be designated and reported as “out-of-field.” The rule is amended to incorporate these additional options for teachers being considered qualified instructional personnel.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST: None.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated regulatory costs, or to provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of the notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 229.053(1), 231.095, 231.15(1), 231.17 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 229.053, 231.095, 231.145, 231.15, 231.17 FS.

A HEARING WILL BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATE AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

TIME AND DATE: 9:00 a.m., March 29, 2001

PLACE: Room LL03, The Capitol, Tallahassee, Florida

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: David Ashburn, Director, Division of Professional Educators, Department of Education, 325 West Gaines Street, Room 203, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0400, (850)487-3663

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

6A-1.0503 Definition of Qualified Instructional Personnel. A qualified instructional person is defined as an instructional staff member who meets one (1) of the following conditions:

(1) Holds a valid Florida educator's certificate with the appropriate coverage as provided for in the Course Code Directory as adopted by reference in Rule 6A-1.09441, FAC., or

(2) Holds a valid educator’s certificate and has a minor field of study in the subject matter in which instruction is provided, with the exception of a minor in the area of English to Speakers of Other Languages, or

(3) Holds a valid educator's certificate and has demonstrated sufficient subject area expertise in the subject area in which instruction is provided, with the exception of instruction in the primary English or language arts to students with limited English proficiency, or

~~(4)(2) Is a selected noncertificated person employed under the provisions of Rule 6A-1.0502, FAC., or~~

(5)(3) Holds a valid educator's certificate and does not qualify under the provisions of Subsection (1), (2), or (3) of this rule and has been approved for an out-of-field assignment by the school board after determination that a teacher who meets the requirements of Subsection (1), (2), or (3) of this rule is not available, and is approved for an out-of-field assignment by the school board only under one (1) of the following conditions: Holds a valid Florida educator's certificate with coverage other than that deemed appropriate by subsection (1) and has been approved by the school board to teach out-of-field after determination that a teacher with appropriate certification coverage is not available. All evidence of such qualifications and approval must be reflected in the individual's official personnel record; provided, however, that such approval may be granted by the school board only under one (1) of the following conditions:

(a) The individual is in the first year of employment in the out-of-field assignment and has not been granted, during any preceding year in the district, approval by either the school board or the Department to be employed out-of-field in an area for which specific certification is otherwise required, or

(b) The individual has earned the following college credit or inservice training in an approved district add-on program:

1. Out-of-field assignment other than ESOL (English to Speakers of Other Languages). A teacher out of field in a subject other than ESOL shall complete at least six (6) semester hours of college credit or the equivalent toward the appropriate certification required in subsection (1) of this rule within one (1) calendar year from date of initial appointment to the out-of-field assignment and each calendar year thereafter until all course requirements are completed for the appropriate certification;

2. Out-of-field assignment in only ESOL. A teacher out of field in only ESOL shall complete at least three (3) semester hours of college credit or the equivalent toward the ESOL requirements within the first two (2) calendar years from date of initial assignment to a class with limited English proficient (LEP) students and three (3) semester hours or the equivalent during each calendar year thereafter until all course requirements for certification in ESOL are completed; or

3. Out-of-field assignment in ESOL and another subject. A teacher out of field in ESOL and another subject shall complete at least six (6) semester hours of college credit or the equivalent toward the appropriate certification required by subsection (1) of this rule within one (1) calendar year from date of initial appointment to the out-of-field assignment and

each calendar year thereafter until all course requirements are completed for the appropriate certification. The training shall be completed in the following manner: During the first two years, at least three (3) of the required twelve (12) semester hours or the equivalent shall be completed in ESOL strategies. Beginning with the third year and each year thereafter, at least three (3) semester hours or the equivalent shall be completed in ESOL strategies and at least three (3) semester hours in the other out-of-field subject requirements. When either all ESOL or all other out-of-field subject requirements are completed, a teacher shall comply with the schedule specified in subparagraph (5)(b)1. or 2. ~~(3)(b)1. or 2.~~ of this rule as appropriate until all requirements are completed for both ESOL and the other out-of-field subject.

4. Waivers of college credit or inservice training in an approved district add-on program may be obtained by one of the following provisions:

a. In lieu of college credit or the equivalent specified in subparagraph (5)(b)1., 2., or 3. ~~(3)(b)1., 2., or 3.~~ of this rule, an individual shall provide a doctor's statement certifying to medical inability to earn such credit during the prescribed time;

b. In lieu of college credit or the equivalent specified in subparagraph (5)(b)1. ~~(3)(b)1.~~ of this rule, the district superintendent shall provide a statement certifying to extenuating circumstances beyond the control of the teacher to earn such credit during the prescribed time; or

c. In lieu of college credit or the equivalent specified in subparagraph (5)(b)1. ~~(3)(b)1.~~ or the criteria in paragraph (5)(3)(a) of this rule, the Commissioner of Education may grant to the district or individual school sites a waiver of the requirements for a period of one (1) year on a one-time basis. The district superintendent shall, pursuant to school board approval for such waiver, show extenuating circumstances that create a hardship for the district or teachers in meeting the specified requirements, or

~~(6)(4) Is a nondegreed teacher of vocational education employed under the provisions of Section 231.1725, Florida Statutes. The requirements in Section 231.1725(1)(c)2.a. and b., Florida Statutes, must be satisfied prior to initial appointment to the position.~~

(7) All evidence of such qualifications and approval for subsections (1) through (6) of this rule shall be reflected in the individual's official personnel record.

Specific Authority 229.053(1), ~~231.095,~~ 231.15(1), 231.17(4) FS. Law Implemented 229.053, ~~231.095,~~ 231.145, 231.15, 231.17 FS. History--New 4-19-74, Repromulgated 12-5-74, Amended 9-8-76, Formerly 6A-1.503, Amended 10-30-90, 10-3-91, 2-18-93, _____.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE: Betty Cox, Deputy Commissioner for Educational Programs, Department of Education

NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Charlie Crist, Commissioner of Education

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: February 8, 2001
DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: December 22, 2000

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

State Board of Education

RULE TITLE: Course Requirements – Grades 6-12 Basic and Adult Secondary Programs
RULE NO.: 6A-1.09412

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose of this amendment is to present to the State Board of Education for approval the course requirements to be used in grades 6-12. The course requirements are presented to be adopted by reference in the publication entitled "Florida Course Descriptions for Grades 6-12 Basic Programs, 2000-2001." The effect of this amendment is to ensure instructional consistency in courses taught in these grades.

SUMMARY: The proposed amendment incorporates by reference the publication "Florida Course Descriptions for Grades 6-12 Basic Programs, 2000-2001."

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST: None.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated regulatory costs, or to provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of the notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 229.565 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 229.565, 229.592, 230.23(7), 233.165 FS.

A HEARING WILL BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATE AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

TIME AND DATE: 9:00 a.m., March 29, 2001

PLACE: Room LL03, The Capitol, Tallahassee, Florida

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: John Wiegman, Deputy Director, Division of Public Schools and Community Education, 325 West Gaines Street, Room 514, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0400, (805)488-2601

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

6A-1.09412 Course Requirements – Grades 6-12 Basic and Adult Secondary Programs.

A course description directs district personnel by providing the essential content and course requirements for each course in grades 6-12 contained in the "Florida Course Directory and Instructional Personnel Assignments" adopted by Rule 6A-1.09441, FAC. Course requirements approved by the State Board of Education are contained in the publication "Course

Descriptions for Grades 6-12 Basic and Adult Secondary Programs ~~2000-2001~~ ~~1999-2000~~" which is hereby incorporated by reference and made a part of this rule ~~to become effective with the 1999-2000 school year.~~ "Course Descriptions for Grades 6-12 Basic and Adult Secondary Programs 1998" shall remain in effect until that time. District school boards of education are authorized, through local rules, to approve a variance of up to ten (10) percent of the course requirements of each course description. Copies of approved course descriptions may be obtained from the Division of Public Schools and Community Education, Department of Education, Turlington Building, Tallahassee, Florida 32399.

~~(1) District school board variance authority. District school boards of education are authorized, through local rules, to approve a variance of up to ten (10) percent of the course requirements of each course description.~~

~~(2) Districts may elect to offer special topics courses in various subject areas as specified in the publication "Course Code Directory and Instructional Personnel Assignments." For each special topics course that is offered, districts are required to:~~

~~(a) create course titles;~~

~~(b) write course descriptions;~~

~~(c) adopt district course student performance standards that incorporate the Sunshine State Standards; and~~

~~(d) receive approval from their district school board.~~

~~(3) Commissioner of Education waiver authority. The Commissioner of Education may approve a school's waiver request submitted by a district school board to allow the school to substitute locally approved course requirements provided that locally approved course requirements specified for the state approved course adequately address the Sunshine State Standards and benchmarks contained in the course description and the waiver request fulfills the provisions of and as submitted in accordance with procedures specified in Section 229.592, Florida Statutes.~~

Specific Authority 229.565 FS. Law Implemented 229.565, 229.592, 230.23(7), 233.165 FS. History—New 2-21-85, Formerly 6A-1.9412, Amended 1-29-86, 1-1-87, 9-6-88, 12-13-88, 12-11-89, 1-15-91, 2-20-92, 6-6-93, 10-18-94, 8-28-95, 5-14-96, 9-15-97, 10-13-98, 5-3-99, _____.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE: Betty Coxe, Deputy Commissioner for Educational Programs, Department of Education

NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Charlie Crist, Commissioner of Education

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: February 8, 2001

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: November 22, 2000

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

State Board of Education

RULE TITLE:

RULE NO.:

Requirements for Programs and Courses Which are Funded Through the Florida Education Finance Program and for Which the Student May Earn Credit Toward High School Graduation

6A-1.09441

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose of this amendment is to update the document "Course Code Directory and Instructional Personnel Assignments" as incorporated by reference in the rule. This document provides public school personnel with an updated listing of all courses offered in the public elementary, secondary, vocational-technical, and adults schools of Florida including related teacher certification coverages.

SUMMARY: The proposed amendment incorporates an updated "Course Code Directory and Instructional Personnel Assignments" which lists by number, abbreviation, and title each approved course or program that may be taught in the public schools and the related teacher certification coverages.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST: None.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated regulatory costs, or to provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of the notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 229.053(1), 236.081 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 229.592, 232.246, 236.081, 240.40202 FS.

A HEARING WILL BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATE AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

TIME AND DATE: 9:00 a.m., March 29, 2001

PLACE: Room LL03, The Capitol, Tallahassee, Florida

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: John Wiegman, Deputy Director, Division of Public Schools and Community Education, 325 West Gaines Street, Room 514, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0400, (805)488-2601

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

6A-1.09441 Requirements for Programs and Courses Which Are Funded Through the Florida Education Finance Program and for Which the Student May Earn Credit Toward High School Graduation.

For student membership in a program or course to generate funding through the Florida Education Finance Program and for the student to receive elective or required credit toward high school graduation for such a program or course, the following conditions shall be met:

(1) The program in which the student is in membership shall be one of the programs listed in Section 236.081(1)(c), Florida Statutes.

(2) The course or program in which the student is in membership shall be an educational activity which constitutes a part of the instructional program approved by the district school board.

(3) The student shall be under the supervision of an instructional staff member as defined in Rule 6A-1.0501, FAC.

(4) The course or program shall be listed in the "Course Code Directory and Instructional Personnel Assignments 1999-2000" for the year in which the student is in membership; except as provided in subsection (5) of this rule.

(5) Each district school board may approve special topics courses using course numbers provided in the Course Code Directory. Each special topic course must include as part of its requirements the appropriate Sunshine State Standards.

(5)(6) The "Course Code Directory and Instructional Personnel Assignments 2000-2001 1999-2000" is hereby incorporated by reference and made a part of this rule to become effective with the 1999-2000 school year. The "1998-1999 Course Code Directory and Instructional Personnel Assignments" shall remain in effect until that time. The Commissioner may publish the document in appropriate and useful formats such as printed copy, electronic database access, or electronic disc. The directory may be obtained from the Division of Public Schools and Community Education, Department of Education, Turlington Building, Tallahassee, Florida 32399. The Commissioner of Education may approve additional courses for which funding could be generated through the Florida Education Finance Program. Such additional course listings will be made available as approved.

Specific Authority 229.053(1), 236.081 FS. Law Implemented 229.592, 232.246, 236.081, 240.40202 FS. History-New 12-20-83, Formerly 6A-1.9441, Amended 2-6-86, 12-28-86, 4-4-88, 12-13-88, 12-11-89, 1-15-91, 2-20-92, 7-13-93, 10-18-94, 8-28-95, 4-19-96, 7-17-97, 8-12-98, 5-3-99, _____.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE: Betty Cox, Deputy Commissioner for Educational Programs, Department of Education

NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Charlie Crist, Commissioner of Education

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: February 8, 2001

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: November 22, 2000

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

State Board of Education

RULE TITLE: Instruction and Awards in Community Colleges RULE NO.: 6A-14.030

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose is to amend Rule 6A-14.030(2),(3), Florida Administrative Code, reflect changes made to associate in science and associate in applied science degree titles; to delete programs no longer in existence or merged with other degree programs; to add new programs approved in 1999/2000; and to update program lengths approved by the Articulation Coordinating Committee. The effect is to bring Rule 6A-14.030 up-to-date.

SUMMARY: During the process of creating Occupational Completion Points (OCPs) for the associate in science and associate in applied science degrees, changes were made by the Program Length and Articulation Committee of the Articulating Coordinating Committee. Some degrees were merged or deleted and, in a few cases, standard program lengths changed slightly. The Articulation Coordinating Committee approved these changes in January 1999. In addition, some new degree programs were added during the 1999/2000 academic year. This proposed rule amendment brings Rule 6A-14.030 up-to-date.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST: None.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated regulatory costs, or to provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 240.325 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 229.551(1), 239.205, 239.213, 239.301, 240.325 FS.

A HEARING WILL BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATE AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

TIME AND DATE: 9:00 a.m., March 29, 2001

PLACE: Room LL-03, The Capitol, Tallahassee, Florida

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS: Sydney H. McKenzie III, General Counsel, State Board of Community Colleges, Division of Community Colleges, 325 West Gaines St., Tallahassee, FL 32399-0400

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

6A-14.030 Instruction and Awards in Community Colleges.

Community colleges are authorized to provide instruction and to confer degrees, certificates, and diplomas only as prescribed herein. Any degree program, certificate, or diploma program offered at a community college shall be offered at the established standard credit hour length. Revisions to the

standard credit hour lengths and the lengths of new programs added to the Statewide Program Inventory list must be approved by the State Board of Community Colleges.

(1) No change.

(2) Associate in science degree. Each community college is authorized to provide programs of instruction consisting of college-level courses to prepare for entry into employment. The courses shall be based in theory and of sufficient complexity, rigor, and theory to be college level. The courses shall be classified in the Community College Management Information System as advanced and professional courses or postsecondary vocational courses. The programs shall not include courses classified as postsecondary adult vocational courses. Satisfactory completion of courses within the programs shall be recognized by the award of units of measure called college credit. Effective with the Fall Term 2000, the associate in science degree shall be awarded upon satisfactory completion of a planned program of study comprised of the standard credit hour length established, including demonstration of the attainment of predetermined and specified performance requirements, and subject to law and rule. Courses not accepted in the State University System shall not be included in the general education core required for the degree. Associate in science degrees that articulate with baccalaureate degrees under the provisions of 6A-10.024(6)(c), F.A.C., shall meet the specific provisions contained therein. The standard credit hour length is:

Program Name	Required Standard
Business, Marketing and Hospitality Discipline	
Accounting Technology	64
<u>Customer Service Technology</u>	<u>62</u>
Business Administration & Management	64
Financial Services	64
Insurance Management	64
International Business Management	64
Fashion Marketing Management	63
Fashion Design	64
Marketing Management	64
Real Estate Management	64
Travel & <u>Tourism</u> Industry Management	64
Restaurant Management	64
Hospitality & <u>Tourism</u> Management	64
Culinary Management	64
Postal Service Management	60
<u>Diving Business & Technology</u>	<u>62</u>
Agricultural & Natural Resources Technologies Discipline	
Agribusiness Agricultural Business Technology	60
Agricultural Production Technology	<u>60</u> 64
<u>Aquaculture Management</u>	<u>63</u>

Citrus Production Technology	62	<u>Database Technology</u>	63
Forest Technology	62 63	Computer Information <u>Technology Systems Analysis</u>	63
Forest Management	75	Computer Programming & <u>Analysis Applications</u>	63
<u>Irrigation Management</u>	68	<u>Internet Services Technology</u>	63
Landscape Technology	68	<u>Networking Services Technology</u>	63
<u>Marine Environmental Technology</u>	60	Human Service Technologies Discipline	
<u>Environmental Ornamental Horticulture Technology</u>	60	<u>Early Childhood Child-Care-Center Management</u>	63
Pest Control Technology	62	Child Development & Education	63
Golf Course Operations	69	Human Services – Generic Program	65
<u>Turf Equipment Management</u>	67	Human Services – Addiction Counseling Specialty	73
Zoo Animal Technology	66	Instructional Services Technology	63
Construction Technologies Discipline		<u>Sign Language Interpretation Interpreter Training</u>	
Air Conditioning, Refrigeration & Heating		<u>Program for Hearing Impaired</u>	72 64
Systems Technology	64	Recreation Technology	64
Architectural Design & Construction Technology	66	Social Services Technology	62
Building Construction Technology	64	Public Service Technologies Discipline	
Interior Design Technology	70	<u>Criminal Justice Officer Administration</u>	64
Drafting & Design Technology	62	Criminal Justice Technology	64
Civil Engineering Technology	63	Crime Scene Technology	60
Land Surveying	64	Fire Science Technology	60
Aviation Technologies Discipline		Emergency Public Administration & Management	
Professional Pilot Technology	64	<u>Technology</u>	60 64
Aviation Administration	64	Environmental Technologies Discipline	
Aviation Maintenance Management	83	Environmental Science Technology	64
Engineering (Electronic & Electrical)		Water & Wastewater Technology	64
Technologies Discipline		Safety Engineering Technology	64
Computer Engineering Technology	68	Chemical Instrumentation Technology	64
Electrical Power Technology	68	Chemical Technology	64
Electronics Engineering Technology	68	Office Systems, Secretarial, Court Reporting	
Instrumentation Engineering Technology	64	Discipline Court Reporting Technology	
Biomedical Equipment Engineering Technology	68	(Non-Accredited)	67
<u>Biomedical Laboratory Technician</u>	61	Court Reporting Technology (Accredited)	73
Laser Electro-Optic Engineering Technology	64	Legal Secretarial Technology	63
Telecommunications Engineering Technology	64	Medical Secretarial Technology	63
Engineering (Manufacturing) Technologies Discipline		Office Management Technology	64
Computer Integrated Manufacturing Technology	64	Office Systems Technology	63
<u>Plastics Engineering Technology</u>	64	Word Processing Technology	63
Manufacturing Technology	64	Records Management	63
Quality Assurance Technology	64	Communications and Entertainment Technologies	
Industrial Management Technology	60	Discipline	
<u>Micro Electronics Manufacturing Technology</u>	68	Film Production Technology	64
Space Engineering Technology	64	<u>Music Production Technology</u>	63
Logistics Systems Technology	64	Radio & Television Broadcast Programming	64
Mechanical Technologies Discipline		Theater & Entertainment Technology	64
Automotive Service Management Technology	68	Graphic Arts Technology	64
<u>Dealer Specific Automotive Technology</u>	74	Photographic Technology	64
Marine <u>Engineering Management & Seamanship</u>		Graphic Design Technology	64
Propulsion Technology	66 67	Multimedia Technology	64
Welding Technology	64	<u>Technical Writing – Publications Technology</u>	65
Computer Technologies Discipline		Imaging Technologies Discipline	

Diagnostic Medical Sonography Technology	72	College Management Information System as advanced and professional courses or postsecondary vocational courses. The programs shall not include courses classified as postsecondary adult vocational courses. Satisfactory completion of courses within the programs shall be recognized by the award of units of measure called college credit. Effective with the Fall Term 2000, the associate in applied science degree shall be awarded upon satisfactory completion of a planned program of study comprised of the standard credit hour length established, including demonstration of the attainment of predetermined and specified performance requirements, and subject to law and rule. The standard credit hour length is:
Nuclear Medicine Technology	75	
Radiation Therapy	77	
Radiography	77	
Dental Technologies Discipline		Program Name
Dental Hygiene	88	Required Standard
Dental Laboratory Technology and Management	68	Business, Marketing and Hospitality
Health Information and Health Management		Discipline Accounting Technology
Discipline Health Services Management	62	<u>Customer Service Technology</u>
Health Information Management	67	Business Administration & Management
Occupational and Physical Therapy Discipline		Financial Services
Occupational Therapy Assistant	70	Insurance Management
Physical Therapist Assistant	74	International Business Management
Vision Care Technologies Discipline		Fashion Marketing Management
Ophthalmic Technology Dispensing	72	Fashion Design
<u>Optical Management</u>	<u>60</u>	Marketing Management
Vision Care Technology/Opticianry	72	Real Estate Management
Emergency Medical Services Discipline		Travel & Tourism Industry Management
Emergency Medical Services	73	Restaurant Management
Medical and Histologic Technology Discipline		Hospitality & Tourism Management
Histologic Technology	76	Culinary Management
Medical Laboratory Technology	76	Postal Service Management
Medical Clinical Dosimetry and Radiation		<u>Diving Business & Technology</u>
Protection Discipline		Agricultural & Natural Resources Technologies
Medical Clinical Dosimetry Management	64	Discipline Agribusiness <u>Agricultural Business</u>
Radiation Protection Technology	65	Technology
Nursing and Midwifery Discipline		Agricultural Production Technology
Nursing (Associate Degree) R.N.	72	<u>Aquaculture Management</u>
Midwifery	90	Citrus Production Technology
Respiratory Therapy Discipline		Forest Technology
Respiratory Care	76	Forest Management
Veterinary Technology Discipline		<u>Irrigation Management</u>
Veterinary Technology	73	Landscape Technology
Funeral Services Discipline		<u>Marine Environmental Technology</u>
Funeral Services	72	Environmental Ornamental Horticulture Technology
Dietetic Technician Discipline		Pest Control Technology
Dietetic Technician	64	Golf Course Operations
Legal Assistant Discipline		<u>Turf Equipment Management</u>
Legal Assisting	64	Zoo Animal Technology
Legal Assisting (ABA Accredited)	68	Construction Technologies Discipline
Cardiopulmonary (Cardiovascular) Technology		Air Conditioning, Refrigeration & Heating
Discipline		Systems Technology
Cardiovascular Technology	77	Architectural Design & Construction Technology
Cardiopulmonary Technology	83	Building Construction Technology

(3) Associate in Applied Science Degree. Each community college is authorized to provide programs of instruction consisting of college-level courses to prepare for entry into employment. The courses shall be based in theory and be of sufficient complexity, rigor, and theory to be college level. The courses shall be classified in the Community

Interior Design Technology	70	<u>Criminal Justice Officer Administration</u>	64
Drafting & Design Technology	62	Criminal Justice Technology	64
Civil Engineering Technology	63	Crime Scene Technology	60
Land Surveying	64	Fire Science Technology	60
Aviation Technologies Discipline		<u>Emergency Public Administration & Management</u>	
Professional Pilot Technology	64	Technology	60 64
Aviation Administration	64	<u>Environmental Technologies Discipline</u>	
Aviation Maintenance Management	83	Environmental Science Technology	64
Engineering (Electronic & Electrical) Technologies Discipline		Water & Wastewater Technology	64
Computer Engineering Technology	68	Safety Engineering Technology	64
Electrical Power Technology	68	Chemical Instrumentation Technology	64
Electronics Engineering Technology	68	Chemical Technology	64
Instrumentation Engineering Technology	64	Office Systems, Secretarial, Court Reporting Discipline	
Biomedical Equipment Engineering Technology	68	Court Reporting Technology (Non-Accredited)	67
<u>Biomedical Laboratory Technician</u>	<u>61</u>	Court Reporting Technology (Accredited)	73
Laser Electro-Optic Engineering Technology	64	Legal Secretarial Technology	63
Telecommunications Engineering Technology	64	Medical Secretarial Technology	63
Engineering (Manufacturing) Technologies Discipline		Office Management Technology	64
Computer Integrated Manufacturing Technology	64	Office Systems Technology	63
<u>Plastics Engineering Technology</u>	<u>64</u>	Word Processing Technology	63
Manufacturing Technology	64	Records Management	63
Quality Assurance Technology	64	Communications and Entertainment Technologies Discipline	
Industrial Management Technology	60	Film Production Technology	64
<u>Micro Electronics Manufacturing Technology</u>	<u>68</u>	<u>Music Production Technology</u>	<u>63</u>
Space Engineering Technology	64	Radio & Television Broadcast Programming	64
Logistics Systems Technology	64	Theater & Entertainment Technology	64
Mechanical Technologies Discipline		Graphic Arts Technology	64
Automotive Service Management Technology	68	Photographic Technology	64
<u>Dealer Specific Automotive Technology</u>	<u>74</u>	Graphic Design Technology	64
Marine <u>Engineering Management & Seamanship</u>		Multimedia Technology	64
Propulsion Technology	66 67	<u>Technical Writing – Publications Technology</u>	<u>65</u>
Welding Technology	64	Imaging Technologies Discipline	
Computer Technologies Discipline		Diagnostic Medical Sonography Technology	72
<u>Database Technology</u>	<u>63</u>	Nuclear Medicine Technology	75
Computer Information Technology Systems Analysis	63	Radiation Therapy	77
Computer Programming & <u>Analysis Applications</u>	63	Radiography	77
<u>Internet Services Technology</u>	<u>63</u>	Dental Technologies Discipline	
<u>Networking Services Technology</u>	<u>63</u>	Dental Hygiene	88
Human Service Technologies Discipline		Dental Laboratory Technology and Management	68
<u>Early Childhood Child Care Center Management</u>	63	Health Information and Health Management Discipline	
Child Development & Education	63	Health Services Management	62
Human Services – Generic Program	65	Health Information Management	67
Human Services – Addiction Counseling Specialty	73	Occupational and Physical Therapy Discipline	
Instructional Services Technology	63	Occupational Therapy Assistant	70
<u>Sign Language Interpretation Interpreter Training</u>		Physical Therapist Assistant	74
Program for Hearing Impaired	72 64	Vision Care Technologies Discipline	
Recreation Technology	64	Ophthalmic Technology Dispensing	72
Social Services Technology	62	<u>Optical Management</u>	<u>60</u>
Public Service Technologies Discipline			

Vision Care Technology/Opticianry 72
 Emergency Medical Services Discipline
 Emergency Medical Services 73
 Medical and Histologic Technology Discipline
 Histologic Technology 76
 Medical Laboratory Technology 76
~~Medical Clinical Dosimetry and Radiation~~
~~Protection Discipline~~ ~~Medical Clinical~~
~~Dosimetry Management~~ 64
 Radiation Protection Technology 65
 Nursing and Midwifery Discipline
 Nursing (Associate Degree) R.N. 72
 Midwifery 90
 Respiratory Therapy Discipline
 Respiratory Care 76
 Veterinary Technology Discipline
 Veterinary Technology 73
 Funeral Services Discipline
 Funeral Services 72
 Dietetic Technician Discipline
 Dietetic Technician 64
 Legal Assistant Discipline
 Legal Assisting 64
 Legal Assisting (ABA Accredited) 68
 Cardiopulmonary (Cardiovascular) Technology
 Discipline
 Cardiovascular Technology 77
 Cardiopulmonary Technology 83

Specific Authority ~~229.053(4), 240.325 FS. Law Implemented 228.041(1),(21), 229.551(1), 239.105, 239.117(5), 239.205, 239.213, 239.301, 240.116(2)(a), 240.117(2), 240.301, 240.325 FS. History—Formerly 6A-8.50, Repromulgated 12-19-74, Amended 8-27-84, 8-29-85, Formerly 6A-14.30, Amended 5-14-91, 11-10-92, 5-2-95, 2-13-96, 12-30-99, _____.~~

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE:
 Sydney H. McKenzie III, General Counsel, State Board of
 Community Colleges

NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED
 THE PROPOSED RULE: J. David Armstrong Jr., Executive
 Director

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY
 HEAD: January 19, 2001

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT
 PUBLISHED IN FAW: January 19, 2001

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

State Board of Education

RULE TITLE: Critical Teacher Shortage Tuition
 Reimbursement Program
 RULE NO.: 6A-20.012

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose of this amendment is
 to revise the rule to align with changes enacted during the 2000
 legislative session relating to the designation of out-of-field

teachers and to align the application process and program
 timelines with the fiscal year. The effect will be a rule that is in
 alignment with legislative changes, and that reflects the
 timelines and procedures of the current implementation
 process.

SUMMARY: This rule is revised in order to implement
 changes in Section 231.095, Florida Statutes, enacted during
 the 2000 session that alter the definition of out-of-field
 teachers. These changes in turn necessitate a revision in the
 name of the application form. In addition, changes are made in
 the application cycle to align to the fiscal year.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED
 REGULATORY COST: None.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the
 statement of estimated regulatory costs, or to provide a
 proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in
 writing within 21 days of the notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 240.4064(2) FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 240.4064 FS.

A HEARING WILL BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATE AND
 PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

TIME AND DATE: 9:00 a.m., March 29, 2001

PLACE: Room LL03, The Capitol, Tallahassee, Florida

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE
 PROPOSED RULE IS: Jeanine Blomberg, Director, Division
 of Support Services, Department of Education, 325 West
 Gaines Street, Room 824, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0400,
 (850)488-6023

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

6A-20.012 Critical Teacher Shortage Tuition
 Reimbursement Program.

(1) To receive aid, teachers shall meet the provisions of
 Section 240.4064, Florida Statutes, and Rule 6A-20.001,
 FAC., and:

(a) Submit, ~~each term~~ by the date established by the
 Department, Form TR-1, Tuition Reimbursement Application,
 Critical Teacher Shortage Tuition Reimbursement Program
 and Exceptional Student Education Training Grant Program
 for ~~Out-of-Field~~ Teachers, which is hereby incorporated by
 reference and made a part of this rule to become effective April
~~2001 March, 1994~~. A copy of Form TR-1 may be obtained
 from the Bureau Office of Student Financial Assistance,
 Department of Education, The Florida Education Center,
 Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0400.

(b) Have as a minimum a valid temporary Florida teacher's
 certificate.

(c) Intend to gain or renew certification, or to earn a
 graduate degree, in a designated critical teacher shortage area.

(d) Not receive reimbursement for tuition and registration
 fees for a course(s) from other sources.

(e) Not owe a repayment of a grant received under the Pell Grant, Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grant, or any state scholarship or grant program.

(f) Not be in default on a National Defense Loan, National Direct Loan, Guaranteed Student Loan, Federally Insured Student Loan, Parent Loans for Undergraduate Students, Auxiliary Loans to Assist Students, or any state loan program, unless satisfactory arrangements to repay the loan have been made.

(2) By ~~November~~ August 15 of each year, the Department shall distribute to Florida public school district superintendents applications and a description of the application process and the program.

(3) Publicly funded schools shall be responsible for providing teachers with information regarding the Tuition Reimbursement Program and the necessary forms.

(4) ~~The Department shall make awards each academic term; however, an An~~ applicant may receive aid for a maximum of nine (9) credit hours during a period beginning with the fall ~~summer~~ term and ending with the close of the summer term second semester, or equivalent.

(5) The Department shall make awards after the application deadline. In the event that available appropriations are not sufficient to award all eligible applicants, the Department shall prorate the amount of each recipient's award on a first come, first served basis.

(6) The Department shall notify applicants of their award eligibility and shall provide for the delivery of funds to eligible applicants on a funds available basis.

Specific Authority 240.4064(2) FS. Law Implemented 240.4064 FS. History--New 5-24-84, Formerly 6A-7.163, 6A-7.0163, Amended 12-25-86, 3-22-89, 3-6-94, _____.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE: Wayne V. Pierson, Deputy Commissioner for Planning, Budgeting and Management, Department of Education

NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Charlie Crist, Commissioner of Education

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: February 8, 2001

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: December 22, 2000

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

State Board of Education

RULE TITLE: RULE NO.:

Critical Teacher Shortages 6A-20.0131

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose of this rule amendment is to revise the rule to reflect statutory changes enacted in Chapter 2000-301, Laws of Florida, expanding the definition of "out-of-field" teacher; thereby, necessitating a

change in this rule governing procedures for recommending critical teacher shortage areas. The effect is a rule that reflects the new provisions in law.

SUMMARY: Legislative changes enacted in Chapter 2000-301, Laws of Florida, added the options of a teacher having a minor in the subject field for which instruction is provided, or the teacher having demonstrated sufficient subject area expertise in the subject area in which instruction is provided as two additional means by which the teacher shall not be designated and reported as "out-of-field." The rule is amended to address the number of teachers who do not hold certification in the field they are teaching as a measure of shortage and need to establish critical teacher shortage areas rather than the out-of-field designation.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST: None.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated regulatory costs, or to provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of the notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 229.053(1), 231.62(1) FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 231.62, 231.621, 240.4064 FS.

A HEARING WILL BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATE AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

TIME AND DATE: 9:00 a.m., March 29, 2001

PLACE: Room LL03, The Capitol, Tallahassee, Florida

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: Wayne V. Pierson, Deputy Commissioner for Planning, Budgeting and Management, Department of Education, 400 South Monroe Street, Room 1702, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0400, (850)488-6539

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

6A-20.0131 Critical Teacher Shortages.

(1) On or before ~~December 1~~ September 1 of each year, the Commissioner shall recommend to the State Board for approval the specific teaching areas and high priority locations in which critical teacher shortages are projected for the public schools during the year following the academic year in which approval is made.

(2) In accordance with procedures approved by the Commissioner, a list of critical teacher shortage areas shall be prepared based on consideration of current supply and demand information related to Florida public school instructional personnel including but not limited to:

(a) The number and percentage of vacant positions in each teaching discipline;

(b) The number and percentage of positions in each discipline filled by out-of-field teachers not certified in the appropriate field in each discipline;

(c) The projected annual supply of graduates of state approved Florida teacher education programs for each discipline; and

~~(d) The projected annual supply of teachers from out of state in each discipline; and~~

~~(d)(e)~~ Critical teacher shortage areas which may be identified pursuant to rules adopted by district school boards. Such areas shall be identified based on consideration of at least the information specified in Paragraphs (2)(a) and (b) of this rule and shall be submitted to the Department no later than June 1 of each year.

(3) Based on data submitted annually by each school district, the Commissioner shall rank all public schools in accordance with the criteria provided in Section 231.62, Florida Statutes, and shall select from this ranked list those schools to be identified as high priority locations.

(4) Based on the recommendations of the Commissioner, the State Board shall adopt a list of approved critical teacher shortage areas and high priority locations to be used in conjunction with the programs described in Rules 6A-20.012, and 6A-20.013, FAC.

Specific Authority 229.053(1), 231.62(1) FS. Law Implemented 231.62, 231.621, 240.4064 FS. History—New 5-24-84, Formerly 6A-7.16, Formerly 6A-7.016, Amended 10-18-94, _____.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE:
Wayne V. Pierson, Deputy Commissioner for Planning, Budgeting and Management, Department of Education

NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Charlie Crist, Commissioner of Education

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: February 8, 2001

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: December 22, 2000

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

State Board of Education

RULE TITLE: _____ RULE NO.: _____

Grants for Teachers for Special Training in Exceptional Student Education 6A-20.025

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose of this rule amendment is to align the rule with changes enacted during the 2000 legislative session relating to the designation of out-of-field teachers, to delete a requirement for selective service registration that is no longer required, and to align the application process and program timelines with the fiscal year. The effect will be a rule that is in alignment with legislative changes and that reflects the timelines and procedures of the current implementation process.

SUMMARY: The rule is revised in order to implement changes in Section 231.095, Florida Statutes, enacted during the 2000 session that alter the definition of out-of-field teacher.

These changes in turn necessitate a revision in the name of the application form. In addition, changes are proposed in the application cycle to align to the fiscal year.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST: None.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated regulatory costs, or to provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of the notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 120.55(1)(a)4., 229.053(1), 240.405(5) FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 240.405 FS.

A HEARING WILL BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATE AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

TIME AND DATE: 9:00 a.m., March 29, 2001

PLACE: Room LL03, The Capitol, Tallahassee, Florida

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: Jeanine Blomberg, Director, Division of Support Services, Department of Education, 325 West Gaines Street, Room 824, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0400, (850)488-6023

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

6A-20.025 Grants for Teachers for Special Training in Exceptional Student Education.

(1) Eligibility criteria. To be eligible to receive a tuition reimbursement grant for special training in exceptional student education, the applicant shall:

(a) Hold a full-time contract to teach in a district school system, a state operated or a state supported program, or an agency or organization under contract with the Department.

(b) Hold a valid Florida educator's certificate that does not reflect an exceptional student education coverage or endorsement which is appropriate for the assignment.

(c) Complete specialization course(s) needed for certification in the area in which he or she is assigned to teach with a minimum grade of 3.0 on a 4.0 scale.

~~(d) Comply with the Selective Service System registration requirements.~~

~~(d)(e)~~ Submit for each institution, and by the established deadline ~~for each term~~, a completed Form TR-1, Tuition Reimbursement Application, Critical Teacher Shortage Tuition Reimbursement Program and Exceptional Student Education Training Grant Program for ~~Out-of-Field~~ Teachers, which is hereby incorporated by reference and made a part of this rule to become effective ~~April, 2001~~ ~~March, 1994~~. This form may be obtained from the Bureau of Student Financial Assistance, Teacher Training Grant Program, Bureau of Education for Exceptional Students, Department of Education, The Florida Education Center, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0400.

(2) Review agency. Pending review of the application by the Department of Education, the applicant shall receive notification of award eligibility.

(3) Reimbursement. Eligible applicants may receive tuition reimbursement not to exceed nine (9) semester hours, or the equivalent quarter hours, per term. Reimbursement shall be at a rate consistent with that established for programs authorized by Section 240.4064, Florida Statutes. No special fees charged by the universities or colleges shall be included in the payment to a recipient nor shall payments be made if tuition has been waived or assumed, in full or in part, through other public sources. ~~For each fiscal year, grants are awarded on a first come, first served basis to the extent of funds appropriated for this program.~~

~~(4) The Department shall make awards after the application deadline. In the event that available appropriations are not sufficient to award all eligible applicants, the Department shall prorate the amount of each recipient's award. Certification agency. The Bureau of Education for Exceptional Students shall certify to the Office of Student Financial Assistance, Department of Education, eligible applicants with specified amounts to be disbursed to each.~~

(5) Fiscal agency. The Bureau Office of Student Financial Assistance, Department of Education, upon receipt of eligible applicants, shall provide for payment of eligible applicants to the extent of funds appropriated for the program.

Specific Authority 120.55(1)(a)4., 229.053(1), 240.405(5) FS. Law Implemented 240.405 FS. History—New 4-13-87, Amended 3-6-94,_____.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE: Wayne V. Pierson, Deputy Commissioner for Planning, Budgeting and Management, Department of Education

NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Charlie Crist, Commissioner of Education

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: February 8, 2001

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: December 22, 2000

WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICTS

Southwest Florida Water Management District

RULE TITLE: Publications Incorporated by Reference RULE NO.: 40D-2.091

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose of the proposed rule amendment is to modify the circumstances under which the form entitled "Well Verification for All Non-Domestic Wells Located in the Most Impacted Area of the Eastern Tampa Bay Water Use Caution Area", Form No. 42.10-005 (10/95) must be submitted to the District. The effect of the proposed amendment will be to create an exemption from the requirement to submit the form for irrigation wells constructed on residential properties of one acre or less.

SUMMARY: The proposed amendments address Section 7.2 of the District's Basis of Review for Water Use Permit Applications regarding the Eastern Tampa Bay Water Use Caution Area. Specifically, the amendment will create an exemption from the requirement to submit District Form No. 42.10-005 (10/95) for irrigation wells constructed on single family residential lots of one acre or less.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST: A Statement of Estimated Regulatory Cost is not being prepared based on the District's determination that the proposed revisions to Rule 40D-4.051, F.A.C., will not result in a substantial increase in the costs to affected parties and there will not be significant adverse effects on competition, employment, investment or productivity.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated regulatory costs, or to provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 373.044, 373.113, 373.118, 373.171 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 373.036, 373.0361, 373.042, 373.0421, 373.0831, 373.116, 373.117, 373.118, 373.171, 373.1963, 373.216, 373.219, 373.223, 373.229, 373.239, 373.243 FS.

IF REQUESTED WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE SCHEDULED AND ANNOUNCED IN THE FAW.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: Karen E. West, Deputy General Counsel, Office of General Counsel, Southwest Florida Water Management District, 2379 Broad Street, Brooksville, FL 34604-6899, (352)796-7211, Extension 4651

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

40D-2.091 Publications Incorporated by Reference. The "Basis of Review for Water Use Permit Applications" _____ ~~September 3, 2000~~, is hereby incorporated by reference into this Chapter and is available from the District upon request.

Specific Authority 373.044, 373.113, 373.118, 373.171 FS. Law Implemented 373.036, 373.0361, 373.042, 373.0421, 373.0831, 373.116, 373.117, 373.118, 373.171, 373.1963, 373.216, 373.219, 373.223, 373.229, 373.239, 373.243 FS. History—New 10-1-89, Amended 11-15-90, 2-10-93, 3-30-93, 7-29-93, 4-11-94, 7-15-98, 7-28-98, 7-22-99, 12-2-99, 8-3-00, 9-3-00,_____.

Basis of Review

Within the Basis of Review for Water Use Permit Applications as incorporated by reference in Rule 40D-2.091, the following change is made to Chapter 7.0:

Section 7.0 Water Use Caution Areas

7.2 EASTERN TAMPA BAY WATER USE CAUTION AREA

- 1. through 7. No change.
- 8. Limitation of Quantity Permitted

A. through E. No change.

F. Applicants for new non-domestic water well construction in the MIA must submit the form titled "Well Verification for All Non-Domestic Wells Located in the Most Impacted Area of the Eastern Tampa Bay Water Use Caution Area", Form No. 42.10-005 (10/95), adopted by reference in Rule 40D-1.659, F.A.C., with a Well Construction Permit Application. Irrigation wells constructed on single family residential lots of one acre or less are exempt from this requirement.

~~G.F.~~ No change.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE:
Karen E. West, Deputy General Counsel, Office of General Counsel, Southwest Florida Water Management District, 2379 Broad Street, Brooksville, FL 34604-6899, (352)796-7211, Extension 4651

NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Governing Board of the Southwest Florida Water Management District

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: December 19, 2000

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: February 16, 2001

WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICTS

Southwest Florida Water Management District

RULE TITLE: Exemptions

RULE NO.: 40D-4.051

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose of the proposed amendments is to remove several exemptions from environmental resource permitting from the District's rules. Specifically, subsections 40D-4.051(3),(4),(5) and (6), F.A.C., which provide permitting exemptions for projects which had received some form of regulatory or governmental approval prior to October 1, 1984. The effect of the proposed amendments will be that projects that may have been exempt from permitting under these rules will be required to obtain environmental resource permits.

SUMMARY: The proposed amendments will repeal subsections (3), (4), (5) and (6) of Rule 40D-4.051, F.A.C. which provide exemptions for certain projects from environmental resource permitting.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST: A Statement of Estimated Regulatory Cost is not being prepared based on the District's determination that the proposed revisions to Rule 40D-4.051, F.A.C., will not result in a substantial increase in the costs to affected parties and there will not be significant adverse effects on competition, employment, investment or productivity.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated regulatory costs, or to provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 373.044, 373.113, 373.149, 373.171, 373.414(9) FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 373.406, 373.413, 373.414(9) FS.

IF REQUESTED WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE SCHEDULED AND ANNOUNCED IN THE FAW.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: Karen E. West, Deputy General Counsel, Office of General Counsel, Southwest Florida Water Management District, 2379 Broad Street, Brooksville, FL 34604-6899, (352)796-7211, Extension 4651

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

40D-4.051 Exemptions.

The following activities are exempt from permitting under this chapter:

(1) through (2) No change.

~~(3) Any project, work or activity which has received all governmental approvals necessary to begin construction and is under construction prior to October 1, 1984.~~

~~(4) Any project, work or activity which received a surface water management permit from the District prior to October 1, 1984.~~

~~(5) Any project, work or activity which did not require a surface water management permit from the District and had received all other necessary governmental approvals to begin construction or operation prior to October 1, 1984.~~

~~(6) Any phased or long term build out project, including a development of regional impact, planned unit development, development with a master plan or master site plan, or similar project, which has received local or regional approval prior to October 1, 1984, if:~~

~~(a) The approval process requires a specific site plan and provides for a master drainage plan approved prior to the issuance of a building permit, and~~

~~(b) The developer has notified the District of its intention to rely upon this exemption on or before April 1, 1985.~~

~~Projects exempt under this subsection shall continue to be subject to the District's surface water management rules in effect prior to October 1, 1984.~~

(7) through (16) renumbered (3) through (12) No change.

Specific Authority 373.044, 373.113, 373.149, 373.171, 373.414(9) FS. Law Implemented 373.406, 373.413, 373.414(9) FS. History-Readopted 10-5-74, Formerly 16J-4.05, Amended 10-1-84, 10-1-86, 3-1-88, 1-24-90, 10-3-95,

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE:
Karen E. West, Deputy General Counsel, Office of General Counsel, Southwest Florida Water Management District, 2379 Broad Street, Brooksville, FL 34604-6899, (352)796-7211, Extension 4651

NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Governing Board of the Southwest Florida Water Management District

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: January 30, 2001

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: February 16, 2001

WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICTS

Southwest Florida Water Management District

RULE TITLE: Exemptions RULE NO.: 40D-4.051

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose of the proposed amendments is to repeal or amend District rules which were listed by the District as unauthorized in whole or in part pursuant to Section 120.536, F.S. The effect will be to clarify the provisions of subsections 40D-4.051(12)(i) and (n), F.A.C. which are exemptions from environmental resource permitting for certain seawall construction or restoration activities. The amendments also repeal an exemption for the use of rotenone by the Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission.

SUMMARY: The proposed amendment of subsection 40D-4.051(12)(i), F.A.C. will delete language that required restoration of a seawall or riprap to be performed in accordance with the criteria set forth in Section 373.414(5), F.S. This language was listed by the District as unauthorized and no authorizing legislation was passed by the 2000 Legislature. The amendment will also add language clarifying the activities covered by the exemption. The proposed amendment to subsection 40D-4.051(12)(n), F.A.C. will delete redundant language, add the construction of riprap as an activity covered by the exemption, and provide that the construction of vertical seawalls in estuaries and lagoons is limited to the circumstances and purposes stated in subsection 373.414(5)(b)1.-4., F.S. The repeal of subsection 40D-4.051(13)(d) will remove an exemption for the use of rotenone by the Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST: A Statement of Estimated Regulatory Cost is not being prepared based on the District's determination that the proposed revisions to Rule 40D-4.051, F.A.C., will not result in a substantial increase in the costs to affected parties and there will not be significant adverse effects on competition, employment, investment or productivity.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated regulatory costs, or to provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 373.044, 373.113, 373.149, 373.171, 373.414(9) FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 373.406, 373.413, 373.414(9) FS.

IF REQUESTED WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE SCHEDULED AND ANNOUNCED IN THE FAW.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: Karen E. West, Deputy General Counsel, Office of General Counsel, Southwest Florida Water Management District, 2379 Broad Street, Brooksville, FL 34604-6899, (352)796-7211, Extension 4651

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

40D-4.051 Exemptions.

The following activities are exempt from permitting under this chapter:

(1) through (12)(h) No change.

(i) The restoration of a seawall or riprap at its previous location, upland of its previous location, or within 18 inches ~~one foot~~ waterward of its previous location, as measured from the face of the existing seawall slab to the face of restored seawall slab or from the front slope of the existing riprap to the front slope of the restored riprap. No filling can be performed except in the actual restoration of the seawall or riprap. No construction shall be undertaken without necessary title or leasehold interest, especially where private and public ownership boundaries have changed as a result of natural occurrences such as accretion, reliction and natural erosion. ~~Restoration and repair shall be performed using the criteria set forth in Section 373.414(5), Florida Statutes.~~ This exemption shall be limited to functioning seawalls or riprap. This exemption shall not affect the permitting requirements of Chapter 161, Florida Statutes.

(j) through (m) No change.

(n) The construction of ~~private vertical~~ seawalls or riprap in wetlands or other surface waters, ~~other than in an estuary or lagoon, and the construction of riprap revetments,~~ where such construction is between and adjoins at both ends existing seawalls or riprap, follows a continuous and uniform construction line with the existing seawalls or riprap, is no more than 150 feet in length, and does not violate existing water quality standards, impede navigation adversely or affect flood control. However, this shall not affect the permitting requirements of Chapter 161, Florida Statutes. In estuaries and lagoons cConstruction of vertical seawalls is limited to the circumstances and purposes stated in ~~shall be in accordance with~~ subsection 373.414(5)(b)1.-4., Florida Statutes.

(o) No change.

(13)(a) through (c) No change.

~~(d) The use of rotenone, by the Florida Game and Fresh Water Fish Commission, in conducting tests related to its responsibility regarding fish management. The chemical selected shall be used at no more than the strength approved by the EPA label, or a lesser strength than the EPA approved label.~~

In addition, the chemical shall be used only under the direct on-site supervision of a staff member of the Florida Game and Fresh Water Fish Commission.

- (e) through (h) renumbered (d) through (g) No change.
- (14) through (16) No change.

Specific Authority 373.044, 373.113, 373.149, 373.171, 373.414(9) FS. Law Implemented 373.406, 373.413, 373.414(9) FS. History—Readopted 10-5-74, Formerly 16J-4.05, Amended 10-1-84, 10-1-86, 3-1-88, 1-24-90, 10-3-95,

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE:
 Karen E. West, Deputy General Counsel, Office of General Counsel, Southwest Florida Water Management District, 2379 Broad Street, Brooksville, FL 34604-6899, (352)796-7211, Extension 4651

NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Governing Board of the Southwest Florida Water Management District

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: January 30, 2001

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: February 16, 2001

INTERLOCAL AGENCIES

Lake Apopka Natural Gas District

RULE TITLE: Tariff

RULE NO.: 54C-1.001

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose of the proposed rule is to amend existing Rule No. 54C-1.001, the tariff of Lake Apopka Natural Gas District (District), by modifying the tariff rate schedules for sale of firm gas supply, the tariff rate schedule for labor and materials and the section of the tariff dealing with initiation of service and to otherwise re-adopt the existing tariff. The effect of the proposed rule with respect to the rate schedules for sale of firm gas supply is to remove from the stated base rates (i.e. – the price of gas before application of the purchased gas adjustment) certain taxes, assessments and fees, the cost of which is embedded in the stated base rates. These taxes, assessments and fees, which do not apply to all customers equally, can then be stated separately on the customer’s bill as the tariff provides without significant change in the overall cost of gas to the District’s customers; except that individual customers will experience slight increases or decreases in the cost of gas depending upon the applicability of the tax, assessment or fee to such customer. The effect of the proposed rule with respect to the rate schedule for labor and materials is to lower the rate with respect to re-connections after disconnection of service and to increase the rate for all other labor. The effect of the proposed rule with respect to the section of the tariff dealing with initiation of service is to eliminate a charge for re-connection of service after disconnection for nonpayment and to make some technical corrections.

SUMMARY: With respect to the amendments to the rate schedules for firm gas sales service, the proposed changes remove from the stated base rate amounts for all firm gas sales services offered by the District in the existing tariff certain taxes, assessments and fees, which will then be stated separately on the customer’s bill, according to a calculation that is designed to be revenue neutral as to the District. This calculation reduces the base rate by \$0.03 per therm in the case of residential service and by \$0.031 cents per therm in the case of residential air conditioning service and commercial service. The proposed amendments to the rate schedule for labor furnished by the District lower the rate with respect to re-connections after disconnection of service for any reason by \$5.00 and increase the rate for all other labor by \$5.00 per hour. The proposed amendments to the section of the tariff dealing with initiation of service eliminate a \$5.00 fee for re-connection after disconnection for nonpayment and make mandatory, rather than discretionary, discontinuance of service in the case of unauthorized sub-metering, sale, or disposition of gas by a customer. Otherwise, the tariff will remain as it currently exists.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COSTS: No increase or decrease in regulatory costs is anticipated.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated regulatory costs, or to provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative, must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: Section (12), Chapter 99-454, Laws of Florida, 1999.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: Chapter 99-454, Laws of Florida, 1999.

A HEARING WILL BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATE AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

TIME AND DATE: 10:00 a.m., March 26, 2001

PLACE: Lake Apopka Natural Gas District, 1320 S. Vineland Road (CR 535), Winter Garden, Florida 34787

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: George F. Crabtree, General Manager, Lake Apopka Natural Gas District, 1320 South Vineland Road (CR 535), Winter Garden, Florida 34787, Telephone (407)656-2734, Facsimile (407)656-9371.

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

54C-1.001 Tariff.

The full text of the proposed rule is set forth in Resolution number ~~01-01 98-05~~ adopted by the Board of Commissioners of Lake Apopka Natural Gas District on January 22, 2001 ~~September 28, 1998~~, which is hereby incorporated herein in its entirety by reference.

Specific Authority 292.05(3) FS. Law Implemented 20.37 FS. History—New 7-5-89, Amended _____.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE: The Board of Commissioners of Lake Apopka Natural Gas District
NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: The Board of Commissioners of Lake Apopka Natural Gas District
DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: January 22, 2001
DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: January 5, 2001

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION

Construction Industry Licensing Board

RULE TITLE: Exemption from Renewal Requirements for Spouses of Members of the Armed Forces of the United States
RULE NO.: 61G4-12.019

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: 455.02(2), F.S., mandates that the Board promulgate a rule exempting the spouses of members of the Armed Forces of the United States from licensure renewal provisions while they are out of the state because of the spouse's military duties.

SUMMARY: Procedures to provide an exemption of the spouses of members of the Armed Forces of the United States from any certification or registration renewal requirements for so long as they are out of state because of their spouses' duties with the Armed Forces.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST: No Statement of Estimated Regulatory Cost was prepared.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated costs, or to provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 455.02(2) FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 455.02(2) FS.

IF REQUESTED WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATE AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW (IF NOT REQUESTED, THIS HEARING WILL NOT BE HELD):

TIME AND DATE: 10:00 a.m., March 12, 2001

PLACE: Room 324, Collins Building, 107 W. Gaines Street, Tallahassee, Florida

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: Cathleen O'Dowd, Executive Director, Construction Industry Licensing Board, 7960 Arlington Expressway, Suite 300, Jacksonville, Florida 32211-7467

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

61G4-12.019 Exemption from Renewal Requirements for Spouses of Members of the Armed Forces of the United States. Spouses of members of the Armed Forces of the United States are exempt from licensure renewal provisions, but only in cases of absence from the state because of their spouses' duties with the Armed Forces. Copies of the military orders requiring the change in duty station must be sent to the Board office within 30 days of receipt of the orders in order to qualify for the exemption. Failure to do so shall result in the spouse's license not being renewed and the licensee shall be subject to disciplinary action. Upon receipt of the military orders submitted in the required timeframe, the spouse's license will be placed on inactive status with no fee required. Reactivation of the inactive license will not require payment of the fee set forth in Rule 61G4-12.009(6), FAC. The license will remain in inactive status for up to two renewal cycles at which time the licensee must either renew this exemption, before expiration, by submitting a current set of orders or reactivate the license. The licensee may reactivate the license by submitting an application for change of status from inactive to active and will not be required to pay the fee set forth in Rule 61G4-12.009(12)(a), FAC. If a license is not reactivated nor the exemption renewed by the expiration date, the license shall become delinquent. Reactivation of a delinquent license will require payment of any delinquent fees set forth in Rule 61G4-12.009, FAC.

Specific Authority 455.02(2) FS. Law Implemented 455.02(2) FS. History--New

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE: Construction Industry Licensing Board

NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Construction Industry Licensing Board

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: January 12, 2001

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: February 2, 2001

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION

Construction Industry Licensing Board

RULE TITLE: Citations
RULE NO.: 61G4-19.001

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: Due to new statutory requirements in Chapter 455, Florida Statutes, The Department of Business and Professional Regulation has been directed to monitor all

licensees' compliance with applicable continuing education requirements by use of a computer database generated compliance monitoring system. This rule is being amended to implement changes required in these new laws and to conform the Board's Continuing Education rules to the new monitoring requirements.

SUMMARY: The proposed amendments to this rule will bring the Board's rules into compliance with the Department's rule, Rule 61-6.015, FAC., by eliminating the obtaining of the renewal of a certificate or registration by misrepresentation as to completion of continuing education requirements from the list of practice violations that may be resolved by issuance of a citation. The Department is going to monitor the completion of continuing education requirements and 455.2177, F.S., provides that neither the Board nor the Department can impose any other sanction than the sanctions provided in 455.2177(2)(b), F.S., for failure of a licensee to meet continuing education requirements and those sanctions will be imposed by the Department.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST: No Statement of Estimated Regulatory Cost was prepared.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated costs, or to provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 455.224, 489.105 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 455.224, 455.225(3) FS.

IF REQUESTED WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATE AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW (IF NOT REQUESTED, THIS HEARING WILL NOT BE HELD):

TIME AND DATE: 10:00 a.m., March 12, 2001

PLACE: Room 324, Collins Building, 107 W. Gaines Street, Tallahassee, Florida

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: Cathleen O'Dowd, Executive Director, Construction Industry Licensing Board, 7960 Arlington Expressway, Suite 300, Jacksonville, Florida 32211-7467

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

61G4-19.001 Citations.

The following violations of § 489.129(1), F.S., may be resolved by the issuance of a citation pursuant to § 455.224, F.S., and Title 61G4, F.A.C. Where a provision other than s. 489.129(1), F.S., is cited as the basis for a violation, the violation is of s. 489.129(1)(j), F.S., by violating the referenced statute, rule, or Board order.

(1) through (15) No change.

~~(16) Sec. 489.115(4), 489.129(1)(a): Obtaining the renewal of a certificate or registration by misrepresentation as to the completion of the continuing education requirements for renewal. Misrepresentation occurs when the licensee obtains the renewal of a certificate or registration and has not completed the continuing education requirements for renewal by the end of the biennial renewal cycle and/or does not have workers' compensation insurance, public liability insurance and property damage insurance, pursuant to Section 489.115(4), F.S.~~

~~\$500.00 fine and fourteen (14) hours of continuing education which shall be in addition to all other continuing education requirements and/or show proof of the insurance required under Section 489.115(4), F.S.~~

In addition to the penalties specified above, the department may recover the costs of investigation associated with the citation. Citations shall be issued pursuant to this rule where no harm to consumers results from the violation. A licensee who has been issued three citations for the same offense shall be prosecuted pursuant to Section 455.225, F.S., for any subsequent violations. The disposition of reported violations prosecuted pursuant to Section 455.225, F.S., shall be according to Rule Chapter 61G4-12 and/or Rule Chapter 61G4-17. To the extent that any of these violations are appropriate for resolution by the issuance of a notice of noncompliance pursuant to Section 455.225(3), F.S., and Rule 61G4-23.001, F.A.C., the initial offense of a minor violation will be dealt with accordingly. Where a licensee fails to commence corrective action within 15 days of the Department's issuance of a notice of noncompliance or where the offense is other than the initial one, the Department may issue a citation pursuant to this rule.

~~Specific Authority 455.224, 489.105 489.108 FS. Law Implemented 455.224, 455.225(3) FS. History--New 1-19-92, Amended 12-21-92, Formerly 21E-19.001, Amended 10-12-94, 3-26-95, 6-5-95, 8-10-95, 1-1-96, 2-26-96, 11-25-97, 4-27-99.~~

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE: Construction Industry Licensing Board

NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Construction Industry Licensing Board

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: January 12, 2001

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: February 2, 2001

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION

Electrical Contractors' Licensing Board

RULE TITLE: RULE NO.:

Criteria for Continuing Education for
Reactivation of License 61G6-9.002

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose of this amendment will be to incorporate the criteria for continuing education.

SUMMARY: The rule amendment is for the purpose of updating the continuing education guidelines.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST: No Statement of Estimated Regulatory Cost was prepared.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated costs, or to provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 489.507(3), 489.519(3) FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 489.513(3), 489.519(3) FS.

IF REQUESTED WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE SCHEDULED AND ANNOUNCED IN THE NEXT AVAILABLE ISSUE OF THE FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE WEEKLY.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: Anthony Spivey, Executive Director, Electrical Contractors' Licensing Board, Northwood Centre, 1940 N. Monroe Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0750

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

61G6-9.002 Criteria for Continuing Education for Reactivation of License.

The following programs of continuing education may be used to satisfy the continuing education requirement provided that the licensee complies with the terms set forth herein:

(1) Courses for credit which are business, technical or safety courses, including alternative non classroom courses relevant to the electrical contracting industry and which require a passing grade taken at an accredited college, university, or community college. The licensee must furnish an official transcript and a notarized statement affirming classroom hours attended and the receipt of a passing grade.

(2) Noncredited courses conducted by an accredited institution of higher learning, official governmental agency, the military, ~~or~~ recognized national or state trade or civil organization, or Board approved alternative, non classroom courses, provided the following conditions are met:

(a) The course must be business, technical or safety course relevant to the electrical contracting industry. For purpose of this rule the following lists are provided as guides for provider applicants in properly categorizing individual courses. Courses in the identified categories include, but are not limited to those listed.

1. Business courses include: (A) Bidding a Job, (B) Maintaining Cash Flow, (C) Interpretation of Contracts and Agreements Purchasing Control, (D) Contract Scheduling, (E) Obtaining Insurance and Bonding, (F) Complying with Contracting Laws and Rules, (G) Personnel Management, (H) Complying with Payroll and Sales Tax Laws, (I) Interpretation of Financial Statements and Reports, and (J) Management Accounting.

2. Technical courses include: (A) General Theory and Electrical Principles, (B) Plan and Specification Reading and Interpretation, (C) Wiring and Protection, (D) Wiring Methods and Materials, (E) Special Occupancies and Situations, (F) Life Safety and Americans with Disabilities Act, (G) Electrical Signs, Outline Lighting, and Structural Considerations, (H) Alarms/Limited Energy, and (I) Estimating.

3. Safety courses include – OSHA Safety, Procedure for Testing and Use of Tools and Equipment.

(b) The course must follow a written text, which must be submitted to the Board for approval on request.

(c) The instructor of the course must be a professional educator, certified electrical contractor or a similar authority in the field.

The licensee must submit a notarized statement affirming the following:

1. Number of classroom hours attended.
 2. Provider of the course.
 3. Location of the course.
 4. Date of the course.
 5. Name of the instructor and his credentials.
 6. Benefit received from the course.
- (3) No change.

Specific Authority 489.507(3), 489.519(3) FS. Law Implemented 489.513(3), 489.519(3) FS. History–New 1-2-80, Formerly 21GG-9.02, 21GG-9.002, Amended 12-27-00,_____.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE: Electrical Contractors' Licensing Board

NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Electrical Contractors' Licensing Board

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: February 6, 2001

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: January 19, 2001

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION

Electrical Contractors' Licensing Board

RULE TITLE: RULE NO.:

Continuing Education Requirements for
Certificate Holders and Registrants 61G6-9.004

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The rule amendment will set forth the requirements for Continuing Education for Certificate Holders and Registrants.

SUMMARY: The rule amendment is for the purpose of updating the continuing education guidelines.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST: No Statement of Estimated Regulatory Cost was prepared.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated costs, or to provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 120.52(15), 120.54(1), 489.507(3), 455.2124 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 455.2124, 489.513(3), 489.517(3) FS.

IF REQUESTED WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE SCHEDULED AND ANNOUNCED IN THE NET AVAILABLE ISSUE OF THE FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE WEEKLY.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: Anthony Spivey, Executive Director, Electrical Contractors' Licensing Board, Northwood Centre, 1940 N. Monroe Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0750

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

61G6-9.004 Continuing Education Requirements for Certificateholders and Registrants.

(1) through (2) No change.

(3) A person certified or registered by the board who is also certified under Chapter 468, Part XII ~~XIII~~, F.S., as a building official, inspector, or plans examiner shall be required to complete the continuing education requirements only once during each biennial period. ~~Proof of completion by any such person must be submitted with each renewal application.~~

(4) A person initially licensed 12 or more months prior to the end of a biennial period is required to complete 7 hours of continuing education as a condition of renewal. A person initially licensed for less than 12 months prior to the end of a biennial period need not complete any continuing education as a condition of renewal. is not required to complete any continuing education requirements for the year in which a certificate or registration is initially issued. Any person who obtains a certificate or registration more than 12 months prior to the end of a biennial period is required to complete two classroom hours of approved continuing education per quarter, not to exceed seven hours for the first year, as a condition of the first renewal of the certificate or registration.

(5) A licensee may obtain a maximum of 7 hours of continuing education credits by taking a home study course. A minimum passing score of 75% must be obtained to receive the required CE credits.

Specific Authority 120.52(15), 120.54(1), 489.507(3), 455.2124 FS. Law Implemented 455.2124, 489.513(3), 489.517(3) FS. History-New 11-30-94, Amended _____.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE: Electrical Contractors' Licensing Board

NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Electrical Contractors' Licensing Board

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: February 6, 2001

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: August 11, 2000

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION

Board of Funeral Directors and Embalmers

RULE TITLE: Random Audits of Completion RULE NO.: 61G8-32.005

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The rule is being repealed.

SUMMARY: The Board is repealing the above rule.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST: No Statement of Estimated Regulatory Cost was prepared.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated costs, or to provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 455.2226(6), 470.005 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 455.2226 FS.

IF REQUESTED WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE SCHEDULED AND ANNOUNCED IN THE NEXT AVAILABLE ISSUE OF THE FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE WEEKLY.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: Sherry Landrum, Executive Director, Board of Funeral Directors and Embalmers, Northwood Centre, 1940 N. Monroe Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0750

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

61G8-32.005 Random Audits of Completion.

Specific Authority 455.2226(6), 470.005 FS. Law Implemented 455.2226 FS. History-New 4-10-94, Repealed _____.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE: Board of Funeral Directors and Embalmers

NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Board of Funeral Directors and Embalmers

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: February 8, 2001

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

DOCKET NO.: 96-104R

RULE CHAPTER TITLE:	RULE CHAPTER NO.:
Solid Waste Management Facilities	62-701
RULE TITLES:	RULE NOS.:
Intent	62-701.100
Definitions	62-701.200
Documents Incorporated by Reference	62-701.210
General Applicability	62-701.220
Prohibitions	62-701.300
Approval of Alternate Procedures and Requirements	62-701.310
Permit Fees for Solid Waste Management Facilities	62-701.315
Solid Waste Management Facility Permit Requirements, General	62-701.320
Landfill Permit Requirements	62-701.330
General Criteria For Landfills	62-701.340
Landfill Construction Requirements	62-701.400
Hydrogeological and Geotechnical Investigation Requirements	62-701.410
Vertical Expansion of Landfills	62-701.430
Landfill Operation Requirements	62-701.500
Water Quality and Leachate Monitoring Requirements	62-701.510
Special Waste Handling	62-701.520
Gas Management Systems	62-701.530
Landfill Final Closure	62-701.600
Closure Procedures	62-701.610
Long-Term Care	62-701.620
Financial Assurance	62-701.630
Closure of Existing Landfills	62-701.640
Materials Recovery Facilities	62-701.700
Waste Processing Facilities	62-701.710
Construction and Demolition Debris Disposal and Recycling	62-701.730
General Permit for Solid Waste Transfer Station	62-701.801
General Permit for Off-site Disposal of Land Clearing Debris	62-701.803
Forms	62-701.900

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The Department is proposing to amend Chapter 62-701, Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.), which regulates a wide variety of solid waste facilities including landfills, construction & demolition debris facilities, transfer stations and materials recovery facilities. The proposed changes are intended to update the rule and to codify Department policies and procedures that have evolved since the rule was last amended.

This rule was substantially revised in November, 1993. Since that time, significant changes have been made to portions of the rule, but other parts have remained untouched. Over time, as technologies have progressed, statutes changed and case law evolved, it has become apparent that the time had come to

review and update the entire rule chapter. Through the workshop process, the regulated community has been forthcoming with suggestions to improve the rule and make it more user friendly. Many of those changes have been incorporated for consideration in this draft rule.

SUMMARY: Some new definitions have been added to help clarify what is meant by terms such as Class I waste, Class III waste, biological waste, degradable waste, putrescible waste, etc. In addition, other definitions were added for a variety of technical terms that are used throughout the rule.

The prohibitions section of the rule has been amended to ensure that this rule is consistent with other Department rules and to address situations that have arisen over the past year such as storage of waste in vehicles or buildings. More importantly, this rule now allows District staff to modify the prohibitions on a case-by-case basis so that site-specific conditions are considered, hopefully resulting in fewer instances where the prohibitions are applied too stringently.

In the interest of making this rule more complete and user friendly for the regulated public, the permit fees section and several other provisions relating to procedural details from Chapter 62-4, F.A.C., the Department's Permitting Rule, have been incorporated into Chapter 62-701.

Changes have been made to the operator training requirements in order to clarify the exact number of hours needed for both operators and spotters of solid waste management facilities, and to allow some flexibility by letting facility owners and operators conduct their own in-house training in certain cases.

Clarifying changes have also been made to the landfill construction requirements pertaining to the standards for geosynthetic components. The proposed changes were worked out with the solid waste engineering and consulting community and serve to bring the rule up to date with modern practice. Similarly, changes have been made to the ground water monitoring requirements to correct some minor problems and bring it up to date.

A new gas management systems section is proposed which attempts to consolidate and clarify gas system requirements for landfills. This section is mainly a consolidation of existing but separate gas management requirements, but has been clarified and updated.

A new waste processing facilities section has also been created in an attempt to regulate facilities equally which manage but don't dispose of solid waste. This section will essentially merge the current requirements that apply to transfer stations and materials recovery facilities and eliminate procedural differences between the current permitting scenarios. The intent is to allow facilities to be designed and permitted based upon what they actually do rather than on how they are labeled. In addition, existing Rule 62-701.700, Materials Recovery Facilities, and existing Rule 62-701.801, General Permit for

Solid Waste Transfer Station, are being repealed, although most of their substantive requirements are being adopted in new Rule 62-701.710, Waste Processing Facilities.

Changes have been made to the financial assurance section in order to standardize the filing date for updated closure cost estimates. In addition, the financial test has been revised to incorporate some of the components of a new EPA financial test.

Finally, the forms section has been updated. The form for notifying the Department of a modification to the general permit for construction and demolition debris facilities has been deleted, and new forms added for permit transfers and for estimating the closure cost estimates for financial assurance.

Any person who wishes to provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing with 21 days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 403.061, 403.087, 403.0877, 403.704, 403.707, 403.716, 403.814 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 403.021, 403.061, 403.087, 403.0877, 403.701-.7199, 403.7221, 403.75-.769 FS.

A HEARING WILL BE HELD BEFORE THE ENVIRONMENTAL REGULATION COMMISSION AT THE TIME, DATE AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

TIME AND DATE: 10:00 a.m., March 29, 2001

PLACE: Department of Environmental Protection, 3900 Commonwealth Boulevard, Conference Room A, Tallahassee, Florida

If accommodation for a disability is needed to participate in this activity, please notify the Personnel Services Specialist in the Bureau of Personnel Services as (850)488-2996 or 800-955-8771 (TDD), at least seven days before the meeting.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULES IS: Mary Jean Yon, Solid Waste Section, Mail Station 4565, 2600 Blair Stone Road, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2400, (850)488-0300

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULES IS:

62-701.100 Intent.

The intent of Chapters 62-701 through 62-722, F.A.C., is to establish standards for the construction, operation, and closure of solid waste management facilities to minimize their threat to public health and the environment; to provide for the safe handling, storage, ~~transportation~~, disposal, or beneficial use of ash residue from the combustion of solid waste; to establish a procedure for the examination and certification of resource recovery equipment to implement the tax exemptions provided by Section 212.08(7)(q)(~~p~~), F.S., and Rule 12A-1.001(20)(23), F.A.C.; to regulate the production and use of compost made from solid waste; to establish a comprehensive program for the proper management and recycling of used oil; to regulate waste tire storage, collection, transport, processing, recycling, reuse, and disposal; to establish procedures for disbursement of

recycling and education grants, small county grants, and waste tire grants, litter control and prevention grants, and small county landfill closure grants to local governments for recycling and solid waste education; to provide a uniform procedure by which certain persons in this state who handle, purchase, receive, recover, sell or are end users of recovered materials shall be certified by and report to the Department and register with and report to certain local governments; and to implement the provisions of the Florida Solid Waste Management Act, Sections 403.702-403.7193 ~~403.701-403.7199~~ and 403.75-403.769, Florida Statutes.

Specific Authority 403.061, 403.704 FS. Law Implemented 403.021, 403.061, 403.087, 403.702-.7193 ~~403.701, 403.7199~~, 403.75-.769 FS. History--New 1-6-93, Formerly 17-701.100, Amended 12-23-96,_____.

62-701.200 Definitions.

The following words, phrases or terms as used in Chapters 62-701 through 62-722, F.A.C., unless the context indicates otherwise, shall have the following meaning:

(1) through (2) No change.

(3) "Air quality standards" means, unless otherwise specified, those standards set forth in Chapter 62-204 ~~62-272~~, F.A.C.

(4) through (7) No change.

(8) "Biomedical waste" has the meaning given it in Rule 64E-16 ~~62-712-200~~, F.A.C.

(9) "Biological waste" means solid waste that causes or has the capability of causing disease or infection and includes biomedical waste, animals which died from disease, and other wastes capable of transmitting pathogens to humans or animals. The term does not include human remains that are disposed of by persons licensed under Chapter 470, F.S. ~~has the meaning given it in Rule 62-712.200, F.A.C.~~

(10) No change.

(11) "~~Brittle point~~" ~~means the point at which the percent elongation at break for the specimen is at a value of five percent absolute or less.~~

(12) through (13) renumbered (11) through (12) No change.

(13) "Class I waste" means solid waste which is not hazardous waste, and which is not prohibited from disposal in a lined landfill under Rule 62-701.300, F.A.C.

(14) "Class III waste" means yard trash, construction and demolition debris, processed tires, asbestos, carpet, cardboard, paper, glass, plastic, furniture other than appliances, or other materials approved by the Department that are not expected to produce leachate which poses a threat to public health or the environment.

(15)(14) No change.

(16) "Clean wood" means wood, including lumber, tree and shrub trunks, branches, and limbs, which is free of paint, glue, filler, pentachlorophenol, creosote, tar, asphalt, other wood preservatives or treatments.

(15) through (24) renumbered (17) through (26) No change.

~~(27)(25)~~ "Construction and demolition debris" means discarded materials generally considered to be not water soluble and non-hazardous in nature, including but not limited to steel, glass, brick, concrete, asphalt material, pipe, gypsum wallboard, and lumber, from the construction or destruction of a structure as part of a construction or demolition project or from the renovation of a structure, including such debris from construction of structures at a site remote from the construction or demolition project site. The term includes rocks, soils, tree remains, trees, and other vegetative matter which normally results from land clearing or land development operations for a construction project; clean cardboard, paper, plastic, wood, and metal scraps from a construction project; effective January 1, 1997, except as provided in Section 403.707(12)(13)(j), F.S., unpainted, non-treated wood scraps from facilities manufacturing materials used for construction of structures or their components and unpainted, non-treated wood pallets provided the wood scraps and pallets are separated from other solid waste where generated and the generator of such wood scraps or pallets implements reasonable practices of the generating industry to minimize the commingling of wood scraps or pallets with other solid waste; and de minimis amounts of other non-hazardous wastes that are generated at construction or demolition projects, provided such amounts are consistent with best management practices of the construction and demolition industries. Mixing of construction and demolition debris with other types of solid waste will cause it to be classified as other than construction and demolition debris.

(28) "Contaminated soil" has the meaning given it in Rule 62-713.200(3), F.A.C.

~~(29)(26)~~ No change.

~~(30)(27)~~ "Degradable waste" means waste that decomposes through chemical breakdown or microbiological activity. It includes materials such as food and vegetative wastes, but does not include materials like concrete, ash residue from the combustion of solid wastes and metals with respect to any material, means that such material, after being discarded, is capable of decomposing to components other than heavy metals or other toxic substances, after exposure to bacteria, light, or outdoor elements.

(28) through (30) renumbered (31) through (33) No change.

~~(34)(31)~~ "Disinfection" means, as relates to composting, the selective destruction of pathogens indicated by a reduction in indicator organisms to less than or equal to 100 fecal coliform most probable number per gram of volatile suspended solids where the organic solid waste was maintained at or above 55 degrees Celsius ~~55°C~~ for three consecutive days in a mechanical composter or in an aerated, insulated static pile, or

for 15 consecutive days in an aerated windrow with at least one turning or a non-aerated windrow with at least four turnings of the windrow.

(32) through (36) renumbered (35) through (39) No change.

~~(40)(37)~~ "Foreign matter" means the inorganic and organic constituents in a solid waste stream that are not readily decomposed and that may be present in the compost. For purposes of Chapter 62-709, F.A.C. this rule, foreign matter is metals, glass, plastics, rubber, bones, and leather, but does not include sand, grit, rocks or other similar materials.

~~(38)~~ "Fugitive emissions" means those emissions which could not reasonably pass through a stack, chimney, vent or other functionally equivalent opening.

(39) through (40) renumbered (41) through (42) No change.

~~(41)~~ "Gas control system" means a system of wells, trenches, pipes, and other related structures that vents the gas produced in a solid waste disposal unit to the atmosphere.

(42) through (43) renumbered (43) through (44) No change.

(45) "Geocomposite" means a product composed of two or more materials, at least one of which is a geosynthetic.

~~(46)(44)~~ No change.

(47) "Geogrid" means a geosynthetic formed by a regular network of integrally connected elements with apertures greater than 6.35 mm (1/4 inch) to allow interlocking with surrounding soil, rock, earth and other surrounding materials to function primarily as reinforcement.

~~(48)(45)~~ "Geonet" means a geosynthetic consisting of integrally connected parallel sets of ribs overlying similar sets at various angles for planar drainage of liquids or gases ~~type of~~ a geogrid that allows planar flow of liquids and serves as a drainage system.

(49) "Geosynthetic" means a planar product manufactured from polymeric material used with soil, rock, earth, or other geotechnical engineering-related material as an integral part of a man-made project, structure or system.

(50) "Geosynthetic clay liner" means a low-permeability manufactured material consisting of a layer of low permeability clay placed between two geotextiles.

~~(51)(46)~~ No change.

(52) "GRI" means Geosynthetic Research Institute.

(47) through (48) renumbered (53) through (54) No change.

~~(49)~~ "Heavy metals" means antimony, arsenic, barium, cadmium, chromium, lead, mercury, selenium, and silver.

(50) through (51) renumbered (55) through (56) No change.

(57) "Industrial byproducts" means those materials which have a demonstrated recycling potential, can be feasibly recycled, and have been diverted or removed from the solid

waste stream for sale, use, or reuse. The term does not include any materials which are defined as recovered materials. Industrial byproducts are regulated as solid waste unless otherwise exempted under Rule 62-701.220(2)(d), F.A.C.

(52) through (55) renumbered (58) through (61) No change.

(62) "Land clearing debris" means rocks, soils, tree remains, trees, and other vegetative matter which normally results from land clearing or land development operations for a construction project. Land clearing debris does not include vegetative matter from lawn maintenance, commercial or residential landscape maintenance, right-of-way or easement maintenance, farming operations, nursery operations, or any other sources not related directly to a construction project.

~~(63)(56)~~ No change.

(64)(57) "Landfill" means a solid waste disposal facility, which is an area of land or an excavation where wastes are or have been placed for disposal, for which a permit, other than a general permit, is required by Section 403.707, F.S. This term shall not include:

(a) a land spreading site; or

(b) a surface impoundment; or

(c) an injection well defined under and subject to the provisions of Chapter ~~62-528~~ ~~62-28~~, F.A.C.; or

(d) a construction and demolition debris disposal site regulated by Rule 62-701.730, F.A.C.

(58) through (59) renumbered (65) through (66) No change.

(67) "Lead-acid battery" means those lead-acid batteries designed for use in motor vehicles, vessels, and aircraft, and includes such batteries when sold as a component part of a motor vehicle, vessel, or aircraft, but not when sold to recycle components.

(60) through (66) renumbered (68) through (74) No change.

(75)(67) "Manure" means a solid waste composed of excreta of animals, and residual materials that have been used for bedding, sanitary or feeding purposes for such animals. For purposes of Chapter 62-709, F.A.C. this rule, manure does not mean such material generated and managed by normal farming operations.

(68) through (69) renumbered (76) through (77) No change.

(78)(70) "Mesophilic stage" means a biological stage in the composting process characterized by active bacteria which favor a moderate temperature range of 20-45 degrees Celsius 200 to 450C. It occurs later in a composting process after the thermophilic stage and is associated with a moderate rate of decomposition.

(79)(71) "Method detection limit" means the smallest concentration of an analyte of interest that can be measured and reported with 99 percent confidence that the concentration

is greater than zero. The method detection limit shall be determined pursuant to procedures outlined in Chapter 62-160, F.A.C. Appendix B of 40 CFR Part 136, which is hereby incorporated by reference.

(72) through (73) renumbered (80) through (81) No change.

(82)(74) "Motor vehicle" means an automobile, motorcycle, truck, trailer, semitrailer, truck tractor and semitrailer combination, or any other vehicle operated ~~in~~ ~~on~~ ~~the roads of~~ this state, used to transport persons or property, and propelled by power other than muscular power, but the term does not include traction engines, road rollers, such vehicles as run only upon a track, bicycles, moped, or farm tractors and trailers.

(83)(75) "Normal farming operations" means the customary and generally accepted activities, practices, and procedures that farmers adopt, use, or engage in during the production and preparation for market of poultry, livestock, and associated farm products; and in the production, harvesting, or packaging of agricultural crops which include agronomic, horticultural, and silvicultural crops. Included ~~are~~ ~~is~~ the management, collection, storage, composting, transportation, and utilization of organic agricultural waste, manure, and materials solely derived from agricultural crops.

(84) "Objectionable odors" has the meaning given that term in Rule 62-210.200, F.A.C.

(85)(76) "Oily wastes" means those materials which are mixed with used oil and have become separated from that used oil. Oily wastes also means materials, including wastewaters, centrifuge solids, filter residues or sludges, bottom sediments, tank bottoms, and sorbents which have come into contact with, and have been contaminated by, used oil ~~and may be~~ ~~appropriately tested and discarded in a manner which is in compliance with other state and local requirements.~~

~~(86)(77)~~ No change.

(87)(78) "On-site" means on the same or geographically contiguous property, which may be divided by public or private right-of-way. It does not include two or more parcels of land more than a mile apart which are connected only by a public or private right-of-way.

(79) through (81) renumbered (88) through (90) No change.

~~(82) "Photodegradable plastic" means a polymeric material that disintegrates under environmental conditions in a reasonable and demonstrable period of time, where the primary mechanism is through the action of light.~~

(91) "PGI" means PVC Geomembrane Institute.

(83) "Polyolefins" means polymers of relatively simple olefins such as ethylene, propylene, butenes, isoprenes and pentenes; and copolymers and modifications thereof.

(84) through (89) renumbered (92) through (97) No change.

(98)(90) "Public used oil collection center" means:

(a) No change.

(b) A facility which stores used oil in aboveground ~~above ground~~ tanks which are approved by the Department, and which accepts small quantities of used oil from households.

(99) "Putrescible waste" means solid waste which contains organic matter capable of being decomposed by microorganisms and of such a character and proportion as to be capable of attracting or providing food for birds. The term does not include uncontaminated yard trash or clean wood.

(100) "PVC" means polyvinyl chloride.

(91) through (92) renumbered (101) through (102) No change.

(103) "Recovered materials processing facility" means a facility engaged solely in the storage, processing, resale, or reuse of recovered materials. Such a facility is not a solid waste management facility if it meets the conditions of Rule 62-701.220(2)(c), F.A.C.

(104)(93) "Recyclable material" Material means those materials which are capable of being recycled and which would otherwise be processed or disposed of as solid waste.

(94) through (107) renumbered (105) through (118) No change.

(119)(408) "Special wastes" means solid wastes that can require special handling and management, including but not limited to, white goods, waste tires, used oil, lead-acid batteries, construction and demolition debris, ash residue, yard trash, and biological wastes, and mercury-containing devices and lamps.

(120)(409) No change.

(121) "Subgrade" means soils native to or imported to a site, or other materials authorized by a Department permit or this chapter, which may be graded and compacted before a landfill liner system is constructed over them.

(122)(440) "Thermophilic stage" means a biological stage in the composting process characterized by active bacteria which favor a high temperature range of 45-75 degrees Celsius 450 to 750 C. It occurs early in a composting process before the mesophilic stage and is associated with a high rate of decomposition.

(111) through (114) renumbered (123) through (126) No change.

(127)(445) "Transfer station" means a facility site the primary purpose of which is to store or hold solid waste for transport to a processing or disposal facility. It does not include green boxes, compactor units, permanent dumpsters, and other containers from which such wastes are transported to a landfill or other solid waste management facility.

(116) through (120) renumbered (128) through (132) No change.

(133)(421) "Volume reduction plant" means an incinerator, pulverizer, compactor, shredding and baling ~~bailing~~ plant, composting plant, or other plant which accepts and processes solid waste for recycling or disposal.

(134)(422) No change.

(135)(423) "Waste tire collection center" means a site where waste tires are collected from the public before being offered for recycling or disposal and where fewer than 1,500 1,000 tires are kept on site on any given day.

(136)(424) No change.

(137)(425) "Waste tire processing facility" means a site where equipment is used to recapture reusable byproducts ~~by-products~~ from waste tires or to cut, burn, or otherwise alter waste tires so that they are no longer whole. The term includes mobile waste tire processing equipment.

(138)(426) "Waste tire residuals" means any liquids, sludges, metals, fabric or byproducts ~~by-products~~ resulting from the processing or storage of tires. Residuals do not include processed tires held for recycling or disposal, provided the conditions of Rule 62-711.530, F.A.C., are met.

(139)(427) "Waste tire site" means a site at which 1,500 1,000 or more waste tires are accumulated. For purposes of this term a site means a piece of property owned, rented, or otherwise controlled by a person, including all contiguous or adjacent properties owned, rented, or otherwise controlled by that person.

(140)(428) "Water quality standards and criteria" means, unless otherwise specified, those standards and criteria set forth in Chapters 62-3 and 62-302 and 62-520, F.A.C.

(129) through (131) renumbered (141) through (143) No change.

(144)(432) "Zone of discharge" has the meaning given it in Rule 62-520.200 62-3-021, F.A.C.

All other definitions found in Chapter 403, F.S., and Chapters 62-702 through 62-722, F.A.C., to the extent that they are consistent with the definitions of this chapter, are applicable to the terms used in this chapter.

Specific Authority 403.704 FS. Law Implemented 403.702-717, 403.75-769 403.704 FS. History-Formerly 10D-12.02, 10-1-74, Revised 7-20-76, Amended 5-24-79, 6-13-84, 4-25-85, 7-1-85, 12-10-85, Formerly 17-7.02, 17-7.020, Amended 8-2-89, 6-25-90, Formerly 17-701.020, Amended 1-6-93, 1-2-94, 5-19-94, Formerly 17-701.200, Amended 12-23-96,_____.

62-701.210 Documents Incorporated by Reference.

Specific references to the documents listed below are made throughout this chapter. These documents are adopted as standards and are incorporated into this chapter by reference. The reference documents are available for inspection at the Department's district offices.

(1) EPA document EPA/600/R-93/182, Quality Assurance and Quality Control for Waste Containment Facilities, September, 1993 ~~EPA/530 SW 86 031, Construction Quality Assurance for Hazardous Waste Land Disposal Facilities, October, 1986.~~

(2) No change.

(3) ASTM Method E96-00 80, Procedure BW, "Standard Test Methods for Water Vapor Transmission of Materials," April 10, 2000 Sections 04.06, 08.03, and 15.09; February, 1981, editorial changes made standard in May, 1987.

(4) through (12) No change.

(13) GRI Test Method GM13 revision 2 dated April 29, 1999.

(14) PGI 1197 Specification for PVC Geomembrane, effective January 1, 1997.

(15) ASTM Method D5321 "Standard Test Method for Determining the Coefficient of Soil and Geosynthetic or Geosynthetic and Geosynthetic Friction by the Direct Shear Method," October 15, 1992.

(16) ASTM Method D4716 "Test Method for Determining the (In-plane) Flow Rate per Unit Width and Hydraulic Transmissivity of a Geosynthetic Using a Constant Head," June 10, 1999.

(17) ASTM Method D5887 "Standard Test Method for Measurement of Index Flux Through Saturated Geosynthetic Clay Liner Specimens Using a Flexible Wall Permeameter," December 10, 1995.

(18) ASTM Method D6243-98 "Standard Test Method for Determining the Internal and Interface Shear Resistance of Geosynthetic Clay Liner by the Direct Shear Method," March 10, 1998.

Specific Authority 403.061, 403.704 FS. Law Implemented 403.061, 403.702-717 403.704 FS. History--New 1-6-93, Amended 1-2-94, Formerly 17-701.210, Amended _____

62-701.220 General Applicability.

~~This chapter applies to all solid waste and each solid waste management facility in this state, with the following exceptions:~~

(1) ~~This chapter has been was substantially amended several times since it was first promulgated on January 6, 1993, and a number of provisions were deleted or modified at that time. Except as otherwise specifically provided herein, facilities remain subject to the provisions which were in effect at the time the site was which were permitted or received a site certification prior to January 6, 1993, or at the time for which a complete application was submitted and deemed complete by the Department prior to January 6, 1993, remain subject to the provisions which were in effect prior to January 6, 1993, and which were applicable to them.~~

(2) This chapter applies to all solid waste and each solid waste management facility in this state, with the following exceptions:

(a) No change.

(b) Injection wells defined under and subject to the provisions of Chapter ~~62-528~~ 62-28, F.A.C.; and

(c) Recovered materials or recovered materials processing facilities, if:

1. No change.

2. The recovered materials or the products or byproducts of operations that process recovered materials are not discharged, deposited, injected, dumped, spilled, leaked, or placed into or upon any land or water so that such products or byproducts or any constituent thereof may enter other lands or be emitted into the air or discharged into any waters, including ground water, or otherwise enter the environment such that a threat of contamination in excess of applicable water quality standards and criteria or air quality standards is caused or pose a threat to public health and safety; and

3. ~~The recovered materials are not hazardous wastes and have not been recovered from hazardous wastes; and~~

4. The facility is registered as required in Section 403.7046, F.S., and Chapter 62-722, F.A.C.:

(d) Industrial byproducts, if:

1. A majority of the industrial byproducts are demonstrated to be sold, used, or reused within one year;

2. The industrial byproducts are not discharged, deposited, injected, dumped, spilled, leaked, or placed into or upon any land or water so that such industrial byproducts or any constituent thereof may enter other lands or be emitted into the air or discharged into any waters, including ground water, or otherwise enter the environment such that a threat of contamination in excess of water quality standards and criteria or air quality standards is caused; and

3. The industrial byproducts are not hazardous wastes;

~~(e)(4)~~ Phosphogypsum stack systems;

(f) Clean debris which has been segregated from other waste and which is used or stored for use as fill or raw material; and

(g) The collection and processing of soil, rocks, vegetative debris, asphalt, and similar materials normally associated with construction and routine maintenance of roads, as defined in Section 334.03(24), F.S., when such materials are beneficially used or reused by the generator as part of a road construction or maintenance project.

(3) No change.

(4) In accordance with former Rule 62-701.720, F.A.C., several persons or organizations requested approval of alternate requirements for certain industrial operations. Written determinations made by the Department prior to December 23, 1996, in response to such requests remain in effect even though Rule 62-701.720, F.A.C., has been repealed, until and unless the Department takes action to modify such determinations through rulemaking.

(5) Local zoning. The Department does not evaluate compliance with local zoning or land use ordinances when determining whether to issue or deny any permit under this chapter. Issuance of a permit does not relieve an applicant from compliance with local zoning or land use ordinances, or with any other laws, rules, or ordinances.

(6) There are several references in this chapter to facilities which are constructed or existing. Unless otherwise specified, these terms mean that the facility has received a permit or is exempt from permitting, and has actually been built or is being built in accordance with that permit or exemption. The terms do not include parts of a facility which, although noted in a long-term design plan, were not authorized to be constructed within the five-year term of the facility's permit(s). A landfill with a slurry wall liner system is deemed to have been constructed when the slurry wall was constructed.

Specific Authority 403.061, 403.704 FS. Law Implemented 403.061, 403.702-.717 403.704 FS. History--New 1-6-93, Amended 1-2-94, 5-19-94, Formerly 17-701.220, Amended _____.

62-701.300 Prohibitions.

(1) General prohibition.

(a) No change.

(b) No person shall store, process, or dispose of solid waste in a manner or location that causes air quality standards to be violated or water quality standards or criteria of receiving waters to be violated.

(2) Siting Disposal. Unless authorized by a Department permit or site certification in effect on [effective date] January 6, 1993, or unless specifically authorized by another Department rule or a Department permit or site certification based upon site-specific geological, design, or operational features, no solid waste shall be stored or disposed of by being placed:

(a) No change.

~~(b) In any area where the absence of geological formations or subsurface features would allow for the unimpeded discharge of waste or leachate to ground or surface water. A person may dispose of solid waste in such an area upon demonstration to the Department that permanent leachate control methods will result in compliance with water quality standards under Chapters 62-302 and 62-520, F.A.C.;~~

(b)(e) Within 500 feet of an existing or approved potable water well unless storage or disposal takes place at a facility for which a complete permit application was filed or which was originally permitted before the potable water well was in existence. This prohibition shall not apply to any renewal of an existing permit that does not involve lateral expansion, nor to any vertical expansion at a permitted facility;

(d) through (f) renumbered (c) through (e) No change.

(f)(g) Within 200 feet of any natural or artificial body of water unless storage or disposal takes place at a facility for which a complete permit application was filed or which was originally permitted before the water body was in existence. For purposes of this paragraph, a "body of water" includes, including wetlands within the jurisdiction of the Department, but does not include impoundments or conveyances which are part of an on-site, permitted stormwater management system, or except bodies of water contained completely within the property boundaries of the disposal site; which do not

discharge from the site to surface waters. A person may store or dispose of solid waste within the 200 foot setback area upon demonstration to the Department that permanent leachate control methods will result in compliance with water quality standards and criteria under Chapters ~~62-302 and 62-520~~, F.A.C. ~~Stormwater control methods shall meet stormwater requirements of Chapter 62-25, F.A.C.~~ However, nothing contained herein shall prohibit the Department from imposing conditions necessary to assure that solid waste stored or disposed of within the 200 foot setback area will not cause pollution from the site in contravention of Department rules.

~~(g)(h)~~ On the right of way of any public highway, road, or alley; and

(h)(i) Within 1000 feet of an existing or approved potable water well serving a community water supply system as defined in Rule 62-550.200(12)(9), F.A.C., unless storage or disposal takes place at a facility for which a complete permit application was filed or which was originally permitted before the water well was in existence. It is the intent of the Department that this provision shall be repealed on the effective date of any rule promulgated by the Department which regulates wellhead protection areas generally. This prohibition shall not apply to any renewal of an existing permit that does not involve lateral expansion, nor to any vertical expansion at a permitted facility.

(3) Burning. Open burning of solid waste is prohibited except in accordance with ~~Chapter 62-256 Rule 62-701.520(2)~~, F.A.C. Controlled burning of solid waste is prohibited except in a permitted incinerator, or in a facility in which the burning of solid waste is authorized by a site certification order issued under Chapter 403, Part II, F.S.; ~~clean vegetative and wood wastes may be burned in an air curtain incinerator in accordance with Rule 62-2.500(1)(e), F.A.C.~~

(4) No change.

(5) PCBs. Disposal ~~No person may dispose~~ of liquids containing a polychlorinated biphenyl (PCB) concentration of ~~50 parts per million or greater~~, or non-liquid PCBs at ~~concentrations of 50 parts per million or greater~~ in the form of contaminated soil, rags, or other debris, may be restricted or prohibited by 40 CFR Part 761. Persons managing PCBs are advised to consult that federal regulation before attempting to dispose of PCBs in any solid waste disposal unit in this state.

(6) Biomedical Biohazardous waste. ~~Biohazardous waste shall be properly incinerated so that little or no organic material remains in the ash residue, or shall be processed by a method approved by the Department pursuant to Chapter 62-712, F.A.C. No untreated biohazardous waste shall be knowingly deposited in any landfill.~~

(a) No biomedical waste shall be knowingly deposited in any solid waste management facility unless:

1. The solid waste facility is specifically permitted to receive untreated biomedical waste;

2. The biomedical waste has been properly incinerated or treated by a process approved by the Department of Health, and the provisions in Rule 62-701.520(5)(c), F.A.C., are complied with; or

3. The biomedical waste is generated by an individual as a result of self-care, or care by a family member or other non health care provider. However, in order to reduce the chance of exposure to the public, home generators are advised to segregate and package such waste before disposal according to the guidelines for disposal of home-generated biomedical waste available from each county health department.

(b) No solid waste, including treated biomedical waste, shall be commingled with untreated biomedical waste unless the solid waste is being managed in the same manner as the untreated biomedical waste.

(c) Treated or untreated biomedical waste shall not be allowed to leak into the environment during transport.

(7) through (8) No change.

(9) Special wastes for waste-to-energy facilities. No person who knows or who should know of the nature of such solid waste shall dispose of lead-acid batteries, mercury-containing devices, or spent mercury-containing lamps in any waste-to-energy facility.

(10) Liquids restrictions.

(a) Noncontainerized liquid waste shall not be placed in solid waste disposal units which accept household waste or construction and demolition debris for disposal unless:

1. through 2. No change.

(b) through (c) No change.

(11)(a) Except as provided in paragraph (b) of this subsection, no person may mix or commingle used oil with solid waste that is to be disposed of in landfills or directly dispose of used oil in landfills. ~~Oily wastes may be disposed of in landfills unless prohibited in other department rules.~~

(b) Oily wastes, sorbents or other materials used for maintenance or to clean up or contain leaks, spills or accidental releases of used oil, and soils contaminated with used oil as a result of spills or accidental releases are not subject to the prohibition in paragraph (a) of this subsection. ~~The Department shall allow disposal of used oil commingled with solid waste if it determines that it is not practicable to separate the used oil from the solid waste, and if such disposal will pose no significant threat to public health or the environment.~~

(12) Yard trash. The prohibitions in paragraphs (2)(b), (f), and (h) of this section apply to the storage, processing, or disposal of yard trash, except that the following setback distances shall apply:

(a) 100 feet from off-site potable water wells, no setback required from on-site water wells;

(b) 50 feet from water bodies; and

(c) 200 feet from wells serving community water supplies.

(13) Tanks. The prohibitions in subsection (2) of this section do not apply to the storage or treatment of solid waste in tanks which meet the criteria of Chapter 62-761 or Rule 62-701.400(6), F.A.C. Instead, no such storage tank shall be installed within 500 feet of any existing community water supply system or any existing non-transient non-community water supply system, nor shall any tank be installed within 100 feet of any other existing potable water supply well.

(14) Indoor storage. The prohibitions in subsection (2) of this section do not apply to the storage or processing of solid waste indoors, provided that the indoor storage area has an impervious surface and a leachate collection system. For the purposes of this subsection, an impervious surface means either a poured concrete pad having a minimum thickness of four inches, or an asphalt concrete paving with both a minimum thickness of one and one-half inches and with an additional component to restrict leaching to ground water such as a soil cement sub-base, an epoxy seal or a geomembrane.

(15) Storage in vehicles. The prohibitions in subsection (2) of this section do not apply to the storage of solid waste in an enclosed or covered vehicle, provided that such vehicle has either been unloaded or moved over public highways within the previous seven days.

(16) Existing facilities. Those portions of facilities which were constructed prior to [eff date] remain subject to the prohibitions that were in effect at the time the permit authorizing construction was issued. Lateral expansions of such facilities remain subject to the prohibitions that were in effect at the time the permit authorizing the lateral expansion was issued. For example, portions of facilities constructed prior to May 19, 1994 were subject to the prohibition against storing or disposing of solid waste within 500 feet of an existing or approved shallow water supply well, but are not subject to the prohibitions of paragraphs (2)(b) and (h) of this section. However, lateral expansions of such facilities which occurred after May 19, 1994 are subject to the prohibitions of paragraphs (2)(b) and (h) of this section.

Specific Authority 403.704 FS. Law Implemented 403.704, 403.707, 403.708 FS. History—Formerly 10D-12.06, 10D-12.07, Amended 10-1-74, 5-24-79, 5-27-82, 12-10-85, Formerly 17-7.04, 17-7.040, Amended 6-25-90, Formerly 17-701.040, Amended 1-6-93, 1-2-94, 5-19-94, Formerly 17-701.300, Amended 12-23-96,_____.

62-701.310 Approval of Alternate Procedures and Requirements.

(1) Applicability. Any person subject to the provisions of this chapter or Chapters 62-702 through ~~62-722~~ 62-720, F.A.C., may request in writing a determination by the Secretary that a requirement shall not apply, and shall request approval of alternate procedures or requirements.

(2) No change.

(3) Department order. The Secretary shall specify by order each alternate procedure or requirement approved in accordance with this section or shall issue an order denying the

request for such approval. The Department's order shall be agency action, reviewable in accordance with Sections 120.569 and 120.57, F.S.

(4) No change.

(5) Variances. Requests for variances from specific statutory or rule requirements may ~~shall~~ be made pursuant to Section 403.201, F.S., and Rule 62-110.104 ~~62-103.100~~, F.A.C. Requests for variances or waivers from rule requirements may also be made pursuant to Section 120.542, F.S., and Rule 28-104.002, F.A.C.

(6) Requests for alternate procedures shall be accompanied by ~~the a fee specified of \$2000 in accordance with~~ Rule 62-701.315(8) ~~62-4.050(4)(n)4~~, F.A.C. Requests must be submitted to the Director of the Division of Waste Management, 2600 Blair Stone Road, Twin Tower Office Building, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2400.

(7) To the extent that any request for alternate procedures or requirements involves the practice of engineering or geology, the request shall be signed and sealed by a professional engineer or a professional geologist.

Specific Authority 403.704 FS. Law Implemented 403.0877, 403.704, 403.707 FS. History--New 7-1-85, Amended 12-10-85, Formerly 17-7.078, 17-701.078, Amended 1-6-93, 5-19-94, Formerly 17-701.310, Amended _____.

62-701.315 Permit Fees for Solid Waste Management Facilities.

Notwithstanding the provisions of Rule 62-4.050(4)(w), F.A.C., the following fees shall apply to permit applications for solid waste management facilities. The provisions of Rule 62-4.050(4)(o) through (v), F.A.C., continue to apply to such permits or applications. Fees for permit modifications are established in Rule 62-701.320(4), F.A.C.

(1) Construction permits.

(a) Class I landfill	\$10,000
(b) Class II landfill	\$10,000
(c) Class III landfill	\$ 6,000
(d) Waste-to-energy facility not covered by the Florida Electrical Power Plant Siting Act	\$10,000
(e) Other resource recovery facilities	\$ 2,000
(f) Incinerator	\$ 3,000
(g) Manure or yard trash composting facility	\$ 2,000
(h) Solid waste composting facility	\$ 5,000
(i) Waste tire processing facility	\$ 1,250
(j) All other solid waste facilities	\$ 1,000
(k) Offsite biomedical waste treatment facility other than a biomedical waste incinerator	\$ 2,000
<u>(2) Operation permits.</u>	
(a) Class I landfill	\$10,000
(b) Class II landfill	\$10,000

(c) Class III landfill	\$ 4,000
(d) Waste-to-energy facility not covered by the Florida Electrical Power Plant Siting Act	\$10,000
(e) Other resource recovery facilities	\$ 1,000
(f) Incinerator	\$ 1,000
(g) Manure and yard trash composting facility	\$ 1,000
(h) Solid waste composting facility	\$ 3,000
(i) Off-site biomedical waste treatment facility other than a biomedical waste incinerator	\$ 1,000
(j) All other solid waste facilities	\$ 500
<u>(3) Closure permits.</u>	
(a) Class I landfill	\$ 7,500
(b) Class II landfill	\$ 7,500
(c) Class III landfill	\$ 4,000
(d) All other solid waste facilities	\$ 1,000
(e) Closure permit for landfill which involves only long-term care (10-year duration)	\$ 2,000
<u>(4) Waste processing facility.</u>	
(a) Construction/operation permit	\$ 2,000
(b) Renewal permit which does not involve additional construction	\$ 1,000
<u>(5) Construction and demolition debris disposal facilities.</u>	
(a) Construct, operate, and close a facility, including facilities that also recycle	\$ 2,500
(b) Renewal permit which does not involve additional construction	\$ 1,000
(c) Renewal permit involving only long-term care	\$ 250
(6) General permit for land clearing debris disposal facility.	\$ 100
<u>(7) Construction permit and/or an operation permit for a facility which has multiple solid waste management components that normally would require individual solid waste permits. A single application may be submitted and the permit fee will be the sum of all individual permits; however, the total permit fees for the facility shall not exceed \$25,000, exclusive of modifications and renewals.</u>	
<u>(8) Request for an Alternate Procedure.</u>	
(a) Landfill	\$ 2,000
(b) Other	\$ 500
<u>(9) Research, Development and Demonstration permits (one-year duration).</u>	
(10) Ground Water Monitoring Plan Approvals for landfills with no other Department permit.	\$ 500
(11) Transfer of permit.	\$ 50

Specific Authority 403.061, 403.087, 403.704 FS. Law Implemented 403.0877, 403.702, 403.704, 403.707, 403.7221 FS. History--New _____.

62-701.320 Solid Waste Management Facility Permit Requirements, General.

(1) Permit requirements. Except as otherwise provided in this chapter, no ~~no~~ solid waste management facility shall be constructed, operated, maintained, modified, or closed without a permit issued by the Department, or by an approved local program acting under a delegation agreement with the Department.

(2) Exemptions. Except as provided in Section 403.707(2), F.S., no permit under this chapter shall be required for the following activities or facilities. For purposes of this subsection, disposal shall be deemed to include storage prior to disposal or processing.

(a) Disposal by persons of solid waste resulting from their own activities on their own property, provided such waste is either household waste from their residential property or is rocks, soils, trees, tree remains, and other vegetative matter which normally results from land development operations on that property. Disposal of materials which could create a public nuisance or adversely affect the environment or public health, such as white goods, automotive materials including batteries and tires, petroleum products, pesticides, solvents, or hazardous substances, is not covered under this exemption.

(b) No change.

(c) On-site disposal of construction and demolition debris, provided that disposal conforms to Rule 62-701.730(17)(3), F.A.C.

~~(d) Clean debris which is used as fill material.~~

(e) through (g) renumbered (d) through (f) No change.

(3) No change.

(4) Modification of ~~an approved permit. Nothing in this rule shall be construed to limit or prohibit modifications of a permit under the provisions of Rule 62-4.080, F.A.C.~~

(a) Permits shall be modified in accordance with the requirements of Rule 62-4.080, F.A.C.

(b) A modification which does not require substantial technical evaluation by the Department, does not require a new site inspection by the Department, and is not expected to lead to substantially different environmental impacts or will lessen the impacts of the original permit is considered a minor modification, the fee for which is set forth in Rule 62-4.050(4)(s), F.A.C.

(c) A modification which is reasonably expected to lead to substantially different environmental impacts which require a detailed review by the Department is considered a substantial modification, the fee for which is set forth in Rule 62-4.050(7), F.A.C.

(d) A modification which is reasonably expected to lead to substantially different environmental impacts, but which requires a less detailed review than does a substantial modification, is considered an intermediate modification, the fee for which is one-half of that required for a substantial modification.

(5) Permit application.

(a) Applications for a solid waste management facility shall be submitted on appropriate Department forms listed in Rule 62-701.900, F.A.C., to the Department district office with jurisdiction where the facility is located. A minimum of four ~~six~~ copies each of the application, engineering plans and reports, and all supporting information for the proposed construction, substantial modification, operation or closure of a facility shall be provided to the Department.

(b) through (c) No change.

(6) Engineer of record and professional certification. All engineering plans, reports, and information supporting the application shall be compiled by the engineer of record who shall be responsible for assurance that all technical components have been prepared under the direction and supervision and signed and sealed by the professional registered in Florida in each contributing technical discipline. The engineer of record's signature and seal on the application shall assure that all appropriate technical professional disciplines have been employed in development of the application. The application shall provide that the engineer of record, or another qualified professional working under the supervision of the engineer of record, shall make periodic inspections during construction of the facility to ensure that design integrity is maintained.

(7) Application content and format. Applications for permits to construct, operate, modify, or close a solid waste management facility shall include in the following sequence:

(a) through (b) No change.

(c) The permit fee specified in Rule ~~62-701.315~~ 62-4.050, F.A.C., in check or money order, payable to the Department.

(d) No change.

(e) Appendices submitted as part of an engineering report to support a permit application shall contain, where required under applicable sections of this rule:

1. An operation plan and closure plan appropriate for the type of facility;

2. through 5. No change.

(f) No change.

(g) Documentation that the applicant either owns the property or has legal authorization from the property owner to use the site for a solid waste management facility Proof of property ownership, or a copy of any lease agreement, transfer of property agreement with right of entry for long term care, interlocal government agreement, or any other agreement between the facility operator and property owner which may affect the facility; and

(h) For facilities owned or operated by a county, a description of the existing or proposed recycling facilities or activities, if any, at the site and a description of whether, and the extent to which, these recycling facilities or activities will contribute to the county's achievement of the waste reduction and recycling goals contained in Section 403.706, F.S.

(i) No change.

(8) Notice of application.

(a) An applicant for a permit to construct or substantially modify a solid waste management facility shall publish and provide proof of publication to the Department of a Notice of Application in a newspaper of general circulation in the area where the facility will be located. This notice shall conform to the requirements of, in accordance with Rule 62-110.106 62-103.150, F.A.C., except that the notice shall be published within 14 days of submittal of a permit application to the Department.

(b) An applicant for a permit to construct or substantially modify a Class I, II, or III landfill. For all landfills, the Department shall mail a notice of receipt of permit application to the Chair of the Board of County Commissioners, the highest ranking elected official of the municipality, and each State Senator and Representative serving the jurisdiction in which the project is located. The notice shall be mailed within 14 days of submittal of the application to the Department, and proof of mailing shall be provided to the Department. After the Department completes the permit review, the Department shall send a copy of the notice of intent to issue or deny the permit will also be sent to these same officials.

(9) Permits for construction, modification, operation, and closure. Complete permit applications for construction or operation of a solid waste management facility, renewal of an operation permit for an existing facility, modification of an existing facility, or closure of a facility shall be evaluated by the respective Department district office in accordance with Chapters 62-4 and 62-701, F.A.C. The Department shall:

(a) Issue a construction permit, or a construction/operation permit for a solid waste management facility, or for a substantial modification of an existing solid waste management facility. After all specified construction has been completed and before acceptance of any solid waste, the engineer of record shall certify to the Department on Form 62-701.900(2) that the permitted construction is complete and that it was done in accordance with the plans submitted to the Department except where minor deviation was necessary. All deviations shall be described in detail and the reasons therefore enumerated. The applicant shall provide at least 14 days advance notice to the Department prior to accepting solid waste so that the Department has the opportunity to inspect the site the owner or operator shall submit to the Department a certification of construction completion, Form 62-701.900(2), signed and sealed by a professional engineer, and any modifications of the record drawings, and shall arrange for Department representatives to inspect the facility in the company of the permittee, the engineer, and the proposed facility operator. The facility shall not be operated until the certification has been submitted and approved, all

documentation required as a condition of the permit has been submitted, and a facility inspection by Department personnel has been conducted; or

(b) through (c) No change.

(d) Deny the issuance of a permit if reasonable assurances ~~is are~~ not provided that the requirements of Chapters 62-4 and 62-701, F.A.C., will be satisfied.

(10) Permit renewals.

(a) A renewal application shall be timely and sufficient. If the renewal application is submitted prior to sixty days before expiration of the existing permit, it will be considered timely and sufficient. If the renewal application is submitted at a later date, it will not be considered timely and sufficient unless it is submitted and made complete prior to the expiration of the existing permit. When the application for renewal is timely and sufficient, the existing permit shall remain in effect until the renewal application has been finally acted upon by the Department or as otherwise provided in Section 120.60, F.S.

(b) Permits shall be renewed at least every five years. Applicants for permit renewal shall demonstrate how they will comply with any applicable new or revised laws or rules relating to construction, operation, or closure of solid waste management facilities. Closure plans shall be updated at the time of permit renewal to reflect changes in closure design, long-term care requirements, and financial responsibility documentation.

(c) Facility information that was submitted to the Department to support the expiring permit, and which is still valid, does not need to be re-submitted for permit renewal. The permit renewal application shall list and reaffirm that the information is still valid.

(11) Permit transfers.

(a) Any person wishing to transfer a permit shall submit such a request using Form 62-701.900(8). The form must be completed with the signatures of both the permittee and the proposed new permittee.

(b) A transfer of permit is required upon the sale or transfer of a facility. A transfer of permit is also required if a new or different person takes ownership or control of the facility. A transfer of permit is not required if the facility simply changes its name, although the permittee must notify the Department of such a change using Form 62-701.900(8). A transfer of permit is also not required solely as a result of the sale of stock or assets or a change of operating personnel, as long as ownership or control of the facility has not changed.

(c) The proposed new permittee shall provide reasonable assurance that it has the ability to comply with the conditions of the existing permit and that it meets any financial assurance requirements of the permit.

(d) Within 30 days of receipt of an application for permit transfer, the Department shall request additional information if the application is not complete. Within 30 days of receipt of a complete application, the Department shall either approve or

deny the permit transfer. The Department's determination shall be based solely on its evaluation of the requirements in paragraphs (a) through (c) above. If the Department fails to take action to approve or deny the transfer within 30 days of receipt of a complete application, the transfer shall be deemed approved.

(e) Until this transfer is approved by the Department, the permittee and any other person constructing, operating, or maintaining the permitted facility shall be liable for compliance with the terms of the permit. The permittee seeking to transfer the permit shall remain liable for corrective actions that may be required as a result of any violations occurring prior to the sale or legal transfer of the facility.

(12)(10) No change.

(11) Local zoning. The Department does not evaluate compliance with local zoning or land use ordinances when determining whether to issue or deny any permit under this chapter. Issuance of a permit does not relieve an applicant from compliance with local zoning or land use ordinances, or with any other laws, rules, or ordinances.

(13)(12) Airport safety.

(a) Applicability. This subsection applies to those solid waste management facilities constructed after January 6, 1993, as well as lateral expansions of facilities which were constructed prior to January 6, 1993. For purposes of this subsection, an "airport runway" does not include facilities used solely for helicopters or other aircraft which take off and land vertically.

(b) No change.

(c) Applicants proposing to construct ~~site~~ new landfills within a six mile radius, and applicants proposing to construct lateral expansions of existing landfills within a five-mile radius, of any licensed and operating airport runway used by turbine powered or piston engine aircraft shall notify the affected airport, the Federal Aviation Administration, and the Florida Department of Transportation when the application is filed with the Department, and shall provide evidence of such notification to the Department.

(d) The following facilities are exempt from the requirements of this subsection:

1. Enclosed solid waste management facilities where waste is received and processed indoors, where all waste or residue is removed by enclosed or covered vehicles, and where putrescible waste is not processed, stored, or otherwise managed outdoors except in enclosed or covered vehicles;

2. Recovered materials processing facilities;

3. Yard trash processing facilities;

4. Land clearing debris disposal facilities;

5. Ash monofills;

6. Construction and demolition debris disposal or recycling facilities which are not co-located with other solid waste disposal facilities accepting putrescible wastes; and

7. Any other solid waste management facility which does not accept putrescible waste for disposal, processing, or recycling.

(14)(13) Other facility permits. In addition to the exemptions in subsection (2) of this section, the following solid waste management facilities which are constructed and operated under an appropriate and currently valid permit are not required to obtain a separate solid waste permit pursuant to this chapter:

(a) through (b) No change.

(c) Solid waste management facilities, such as composting facilities, waste tire processing facilities, soil treatment facilities, and used oil processing recycling facilities, and biohazardous waste treatment or storage facilities, which are required to obtain permits under Rules 62-702 through ~~62-722~~ 62-729, F.A.C.

(15)(14) Operator training. The owner or operator of a landfill, or other solid waste management facility required by this chapter to have trained operators or spotters, waste to energy facility, biological waste incineration facility, or mobile soil thermal treatment facility shall not employ a person to perform, nor may any person perform, the duties of an operator or spotter at ~~of~~ such facility unless that person is a trained operator or trained spotter, or an interim operator or interim spotter.

(a) Owners and operators of facilities shall ensure that operators employed at the facility are properly trained to operate the facility, and that spotters are properly trained to identify and properly manage any hazardous or prohibited materials which are received at the facility. A training plan shall be included as part of the permit application. The training plan shall either include a list and schedule of those classes offered to the public which will be attended by the facility's operators and spotters, or shall include a description of the facility's in-house training program. All training courses, whether public or in-house, must be approved by the Department in accordance with Section 403.716, F.S. Any in-house operator training program which includes an examination required by this subsection must be administered by an independent third party. Any other in-house operator training program must be administered by a trained operator. Any in-house spotter training program must be administered by a trained operator or a trained spotter. The training plan, along with records documenting how the training plan is being implemented, shall be kept at the facility at all times and be made available for inspection by Department staff. The Department will maintain a list of relevant training courses which are available in this State.

(b) In order to be considered trained, operators of the following facilities shall complete the following training requirements at courses described in the facility's operating plan:

1. Operators of Class I, II, or III landfills, and operators of construction and demolition debris disposal facilities, shall complete 24 hours of initial training, and shall pass an examination as part of that training. Within three years after passing the examination, and every three years thereafter, operators shall complete an additional 16 hours of continued training.

2. Operators of waste processing facilities shall complete 16 hours of initial training, and shall pass an examination as part of that training. Within three years after passing the examination, and every three years thereafter, operators shall complete an additional 8 hours of continued training.

(c) In order to be considered trained, spotters shall complete 8 hours of initial training at courses described in the facility's operating plan. Within three years after attending the initial training, and every three years thereafter, spotters shall complete an additional 4 hours of continued training.

(d) Training requirements for operators and spotters at landfills and construction and demolition debris disposal facilities shall be effective on [eff date]. Training requirements for operators and spotters at waste processing facilities, and training requirements for spotters at land clearing debris disposal facilities, shall be effective July 1, 2001.

(e) Operators and spotters who received initial training prior to [eff date] will still be considered trained. Such persons shall complete the continued training requirements that were in effect prior to [eff date], after which they shall comply with the continuing training requirements of this subsection. Facilities operating on [eff date] shall modify their training plans to comply with this subsection by the time any operators or spotters employed by the facility are required to meet these requirements.

(f)(a) Notwithstanding the definition in Rule 62-701.200, F.A.C., and solely for ~~For~~ purposes of this subsection, "operator" means any person, including the owner, who is principally engaged in, and is in charge of, the actual operation, supervision, and maintenance of a solid waste management facility and includes the on-site person in charge of a shift or period of operation during any part of the day, such as facility managers, supervisors and equipment operators. It does not include office personnel, laborers, equipment operators not in a supervisory capacity, transporters, corporate directors, elected officials, or other persons in managerial roles unless such persons are directly involved in on-site supervision or operation of a solid waste management facility. A trained operator may perform the duties of a trained spotter.

(g)(b) For purposes of this subsection, "interim operator" means a person who has, in the opinion of the facility manager, shown competency in his chosen occupation through a combination of work experience, education and training and

who has at least one year of experience at that facility or a similar facility. An interim operator may perform the duties of an operator, but only under the supervision of a trained operator.

(h) For purposes of this subsection, "spotter" means a person employed at a solid waste management facility whose job it is to inspect incoming waste and to identify and properly manage any hazardous or prohibited materials which are received at the facility. Spotters shall be stationed where they can thoroughly inspect each shipment of waste for prohibited materials. Placement of spotters shall be specified in the facility's operation plan.

(i) For purposes of this subsection, "interim spotter" means a person who has, in the opinion of the facility manager, shown competency in his chosen occupation through a combination of work experience, education and training. An interim spotter may perform the duties of a spotter, but only under the supervision of a trained operator or trained spotter.

Specific Authority 403.061, 403.704, 403.716 FS. Law Implemented 403.0877, 403.702, 403.704, 403.707, 403.716 FS. History—New 1-6-93, Amended 1-2-94, 5-19-94, Formerly 17-701.320, Amended 12-23-96,_____.

62-701.330 Landfill Permit Requirements.

(1) Applicability.

(a) Except as otherwise specifically provided herein, this chapter shall apply to all solid waste disposal units constructed or operated under a landfill permit issued after [effective date] January 6, 1993, including renewals of existing permits.

(b) All holders of landfill construction or operation permits issued prior to [effective date] January 6, 1993, which contain conditions not in conformance with this chapter shall apply for modification of the permit to conform to this chapter to the District Office of the Department which issued the permit. The submission shall occur at the time of application for renewal of an existing permit, or before [effective date + 6 months] July 6, 1993, whichever is later. For purposes of this paragraph, a permit issued prior to [effective date] January 6, 1993, is deemed to include a completed permit application received by the Department prior to [effective date] January 6, 1993.

(c) No change.

(d) Facilities operating pursuant to a Consent Order with the Department in effect on [effective date] January 6, 1993, shall continue to operate in accordance with the order until the order expires by its own terms, provided the landfill is in compliance with the terms and conditions of the order. If the facility owner or operator fails to comply with any substantive term or condition of the order, the facility covered by the order must comply with the operational, closure and long-term care requirements of this chapter.

(2) Term of permit. The time period for permits shall be no longer than five years from the date of issuance by the Department. ~~Permits may be issued for a shorter period for specific circumstances.~~

~~(3) Permit renewals.~~

~~(a) Construction/operation permits shall be renewed at least every five years. Applicants for permit renewal shall demonstrate how they will comply with any applicable new or revised laws or rules relating to construction, operation, or closure of landfills. Closure plans shall be updated at the time of permit renewal to reflect changes in closure design, long-term care requirements, and financial responsibility documentation.~~

~~(b) Facility information that was submitted to the Department to support the expiring permit, and which is still valid, does not need to be re-submitted for permit renewal. The permit renewal application shall list and reaffirm that the information is still valid.~~

~~(3)(4) Permit applications. Permit applications for landfills shall meet the requirements of Rule 62-701.320, F.A.C., and shall also include the following specific requirements:~~

~~(a) through (e) No change.~~

~~(f) The hydrogeological and geotechnical investigations and ground water monitoring plan required by Rule 62-701.410 and ~~510~~, F.A.C.~~

~~(g) The ground water monitoring plan ~~The Geotechnical investigation~~ required by Rule ~~62-701.510~~ ~~62-701.420~~, F.A.C.~~

~~(h) Evidence of an approved laboratory to do water quality monitoring in accordance with Chapter Rule 62-160, F.A.C.~~

~~(i) through (j) No change.~~

~~(5) Modification of landfill permit. Permits shall be modified in accordance with the requirements of Rule 62-4.080, F.A.C. A modification which is reasonably expected to lead to substantially different environmental impacts which require a detailed review by the Department is considered a substantial modification.~~

Specific Authority 403.061, 403.704 FS. Law Implemented 403.702, 403.704, 403.707 FS. History—New 1-6-93, Amended 1-2-94, Formerly 17-701.330, Amended _____.

62-701.340 General Criteria For Landfills.

(1) Performance standards. A landfill shall be designed, constructed, operated, maintained, closed, and monitored throughout its design period to control the movement of waste and waste constituents into the environment so that ground water and surface water quality standards and criteria and air quality standards of Chapters 62-3 and 62-302, F.A.C., will not be violated ~~beyond the zone of discharge specified for the landfill.~~

(2) Minimum ground water criteria. For those landfills or solid waste disposal units which are constructed after January 6, 1993, and which are constructed with at least a double or composite liner, the minimum ground water criteria specified

in Rule ~~62-520.400~~ ~~62-3.402~~, F.A.C., shall apply only outside of the footprint of the solid waste disposal unit, or if the unit is surrounded by a perimeter road, outside the perimeter road, notwithstanding the provisions of Rules ~~62-520.400 and 420 62-3.404~~, F.A.C.

(3) Classification of landfills. Landfills or solid waste disposal units are classified according to the amount or types of waste received.

(a) Class I landfills are those which receive an average of 20 tons or more of Class I solid waste per day.

(b) Class II landfills are those which receive an average of less than 20 tons of Class I solid waste per day.

~~(c) Class I and Class II landfills receive general, non-hazardous household, commercial, industrial, and agricultural wastes, subject to the restrictions of Rules 62-701.300 and 62-701.520, F.A.C.~~

~~(c)(d) Class III landfills are those which receive only Class III waste yard trash, construction and demolition debris, waste tires, asbestos, carpet, cardboard, paper, glass, plastic, furniture other than appliances, or other materials approved by the Department which are not expected to produce leachate which poses a threat to public health or the environment. Class III landfills shall not accept putrescible household waste. The Department shall exempt Class III landfills from some or all of the requirements for liners, leachate controls, and water quality monitoring in Rules 62-701.400(3) and (4), and 62-701.510, F.A.C., if it determines the applicant demonstrates that no significant threat to the environment will result from the exemption based upon the types of waste received, methods for controlling types of waste disposed of, and the results of the hydrogeological and geotechnical investigations required in Rules 62-701.410 and ~~62-701.420~~, F.A.C., that no significant threat to the environment will result from such exemption. Yard trash composting facilities shall be operated in accordance with Chapter 62-709, F.A.C. Owners or operators of Class III landfills which are operating on January 6, 1993, shall apply for modification of their permits to comply with this paragraph no later than January 6, 1994.~~

~~(4) No change.~~

(5) Zone of discharge. A landfill's zone of discharge shall be determined pursuant to Chapter 62-522, F.A.C. For all solid waste disposal units constructed after January 6, 1993, the zone of discharge shall not exceed 100 feet from the edge of those solid waste disposal units permitted to be constructed, unless modified in accordance with Rule 62-522.500, F.A.C.

Specific Authority 403.061, 403.704 FS. Law Implemented 403.0877, 403.702, 403.704, 403.707 FS. History—New 1-6-93, Amended 1-2-94, 5-19-94, Formerly 17-701.340, Amended _____.

62-701.400 Landfill Construction Requirements.

(1) through (2) No change.

(3) Landfill liner requirements. Landfills shall be constructed with composite or double liners, and a leachate collection and removal system.

- (a) No change.
- (b) Composite liners.

1. The upper component of the composite liner shall be a 60-mil minimum average thickness geomembrane, as defined by method GRI GM13, or thicker geomembrane liner with a maximum water vapor transmission rate of 0.24 grams per square meter per day ($g/(m^2 \times day)$) as determined by ASTM Method E96-00 80, procedure BW, "Standard Test Methods for Water Vapor Transmission of Materials," Sections ~~04.06, 08.03, and 15.09~~. A primary leachate collection and removal system and a drainage layer shall be installed above the geomembrane liner. Except in sumps and leachate collection trenches, the system shall be designed to limit leachate head above the liner during routine landfill operation after placement of initial cover, as specified in Table A below, depending upon the thickness and hydraulic conductivity of the lower component ~~of~~ of the composite liner. Leachate head calculations shall consider leachate recirculation if the leachate is recirculated.

2. The lower component of the composite liner shall be constructed in six-inch lifts. The thickness of the lower component may be varied in relation to the hydraulic conductivity of the lower component and the design leachate head above the liner, in accordance with Table A.

TABLE A:

Minimum Thickness of Lower Component of Composite Liner (in feet)

Maximum Design Hydraulic Head (in inches)	1×10^{-7}	5×10^{-8}	1×10^{-8}
1	2	1	1
6	2.5	1.5	1
12	3	2	1

TABLE A: Minimum Thickness of Lower Component of Composite Liner (feet)			
Maximum Design Hydraulic Head (inches)	Maximum Hydraulic Conductivity (cm/sec)		
	1×10^{-7}	5×10^{-8}	1×10^{-8}
1	2.0	1.0	1.0
6	2.5	1.5	1.0
12	3.0	2.0	1.0

- (c) Double liners.

1. Double liner systems shall consist of upper and lower 60-mil minimum average thickness geomembranes, as defined by method GRI GM13, with a maximum water vapor transmission rate of 0.24 $g/(m^2 \times day)$; a primary leachate collection and removal system lying above the upper geomembrane designed to limit the leachate head to one foot above the liner during routine landfill operations after placement of initial cover, except in sumps and leachate collection trenches; and a leak detection and secondary leachate collection system between the upper and lower liners. The lower geomembrane shall be placed directly on a sub-base which is a minimum six inches thick, is free of sharp materials or any materials larger than one-half inch, and has a saturated hydraulic conductivity of less than or equal to 1×10^{-5} cm/sec. A geosynthetic clay liner with a hydraulic conductivity not greater than 1×10^{-7} cm/sec may be used in place of the six-inch thick sub-base layer provided it is placed on a prepared subgrade which will not damage the geosynthetic clay liner.

- 2. No change.

(d) Standards for geosynthetic components geomembranes.

- 1. No change.

2. Geomembranes shall not be used at landfills unless they are subjected to continuous spark testing by the manufacturer at the factory and no defects have been found.

~~3.2.~~ Geomembranes shall be protected from physical damage by placing a minimum 24-inch-thick protective layer above the upper liner. All materials in direct contact with the liner shall be free of sharp materials or any materials larger than one-half inch. The upper 12 inches of the protective layer shall be composed of soil, tire chips four square inches or smaller with no protruding wires that could pose a threat to the integrity of the liner, or other materials approved by the Department which are permeable, non-reactive, stable, and which offer protection for the liner from punctures.

- ~~4.3.~~ No change.

5. High density polyethylene (HDPE) geomembranes shall meet the specification contained in method GRI GM13.

6. Polyvinyl chloride (PVC) geomembranes shall meet the specification contained in method PGI 1197.

7. Interface shear strength of the actual components which will be used in the liner system shall be tested with method ASTM D5321 or an equivalent test method. However, when testing geosynthetic clay liners, method ASTM D6243, or an equivalent test method, shall be used. Unless it can be justified otherwise, the interface shall be tested in a water-saturated state. For the purposes of this test, clays compacted in the test apparatus during setup which have a water content wet of optimum shall be considered water saturated.

8. The transmissivity of geonets shall be tested with method ASTM D4716, or an equivalent test method, to demonstrate that the design transmissivity will be maintained

for the design period of the facility. The testing for the geonet in the liner system shall be conducted using actual boundary materials intended for the geonet at the maximum design normal load for the landfill, and at the design load expected from one lift of waste. At the maximum design normal load, testing shall be conducted for a minimum period of 100 hours unless data equivalent to the 100-hour period is provided in which case the test shall be conducted for a minimum period of one hour. In the case of the design load from one lift of waste, the minimum period shall be one hour. For geonets used in final covers, only one test shall be conducted for a minimum period of one hour using the expected maximum design normal load from the cover soils and the actual boundary materials intended for the geonet.

9. The hydraulic conductivity of geosynthetic clay liners shall be tested with method ASTM D5887, or an equivalent test method. First, the GCL test specimen shall be hydrated with the fluid which is expected to cause hydration in the field, or a similar fluid, for a minimum of 48 hours using sufficient backpressure to achieve a minimum B coefficient of 0.9 and using a confined effective consolidation stress not exceeding five pounds per square inch. Then, the hydraulic conductivity test on the GCL specimen shall be conducted, using the appropriate permeant fluid, at a confined effective consolidation stress not exceeding five pounds per square inch. The hydraulic conductivity test shall continue until steady state conditions are reached or a minimum of two pore volumes of permeant fluid have passed through the test specimen. The permeant fluid shall be either leachate from the landfill (or a similar landfill) if the GCL is used in a liner system, or water if the GCL is used as a barrier layer in a final cover.

10. If not submitted as part of the permit application to the Department, then the testing required in subparagraphs (3)(d)7., 8. and 9. of this section for the materials used in the liner construction shall be conducted as part of the construction quality assurance activities, and the results of these tests shall be included in the completion of construction documents required in subsection (7) of this section.

11. The testing required in subparagraphs (3)(d)7., 8. and 9. of this paragraph are single-point tests required either as part of the permit application phase of a landfill project or prior to liner construction. The purpose of these tests is to confirm that the components selected for the liner construction meet the design criteria used in the permit application.

(e) The following specifications shall be provided for geosynthetic components:

1. No change.

2. Material specifications for geomembranes, geotextiles, geogrids, geocomposites, and geonets, including general requirements, specified geomembrane properties, and labeling labelling;

3. through 4. No change.

5. Geotextile and geogrid specifications including handling and placement, conformance testing, seams and overlaps, repair, and placement of soil materials and any overlying materials.

6. Geonet and geocomposite specifications including handling and placement, conformance testing, stacking and joining, repair, and placement of soil materials and any overlying materials.

7. Geosynthetic clay liner (GCL) specifications including handling and placement, conformance testing, seams and overlaps, repair, and placement of soil materials and any overlying materials.

(f) Standards for soil components.

1. through 2. No change.

3. The soil component of the liner system may consist of in-situ soils, provided they meet the specifications for soil liners. Testing of in-situ soil shall be performed in accordance with the site specific Construction Quality Assurance Plan in accordance with Rules 62-701.400(7) and (8), F.A.C.

4. through 5. No change.

(4) Leachate collection and removal system. Landfills shall have a leachate collection and removal system that is designed, constructed, maintained, and operated to collect leachate and convey it to collection points for removal.

(a) The primary and secondary leachate collection and removal systems shall:

1. through 2. No change.

3. Have granular material or synthetic geotextile filter overlying or surrounding the leachate collection and removal system to prevent clogging of the collection system by infiltration of fine particles ~~from the waste~~; and

4. No change.

(b) The primary leachate collection and removal system shall have a granular drainage layer above the top geomembrane liner, at least 12 inches thick, with a hydraulic conductivity of not less than 1×10^{-3} cm/sec, overlain with an additional 12 inches of protective material as specified in ~~R~~rule 62-701.400(3)(d)3.2., F.A.C., that is chemically resistant to the waste and leachate. It shall be designed with a bottom slope to achieve the required leachate head after the predicted settlement determined by the foundation analysis. Leachate collection systems incorporating synthetic drainage materials may be used if it can be demonstrated that they are equivalent to or more effective than the granular design, including chemical compatibility, flow under load, and protection of the geomembrane liner.

(5) Leachate recirculation. Leachate shall be recirculated only at solid waste disposal units which have a leachate recirculation system included in their operation plan, and which have been constructed and operated in a manner consistent with that system. If leachate is recirculated after closure, the operation plan shall be included as part of the

approved closure plan. The leachate recirculation system shall include estimated impacts on the head of leachate over the liner, subsidence of the waste, and gas production, and shall meet the following requirements unless otherwise approved in the operation plan. Leachate recirculation systems shall only be used at solid waste disposal units that have been designed for leachate recirculation and meet the following requirements:

(a) through (d) No change.

(e) Landfill gas shall be managed in accordance with Rule 62-701.530, F.A.C. A gas management system shall be implemented to control odors and migration of methane.

(f) Recirculation of leachate is prohibited on top of areas where a barrier layer which is part of the final cover has been installed applied. Irrigation of the final vegetative cover may be done with treated leachate which meets the water quality standards of the receiving water body, if such irrigation does not contribute significantly to leachate generation.

(6) Leachate storage tanks and leachate surface impoundments.

(a) No change.

(b) Surface impoundments for leachate treatment or storage that are located at landfills are subject to the following requirements:

1. through 2. No change.

3. The impoundment shall have a double liner system consisting of an upper and lower 60-mil minimum average thickness geomembrane, as defined by method GRI GM13, and a leak detection and collection system between the geomembranes with a minimum hydraulic conductivity of one cm/sec. The lower geomembrane shall be placed directly on a subbase which is at least six inches thick and has a saturated hydraulic conductivity of less than or equal to 1×10^{-5} cm/sec. A geosynthetic clay liner with a hydraulic conductivity not greater than 1×10^{-7} cm/sec may be used in place of the six-inch thick sub-base layer provided it is placed on a prepared subgrade which will not damage the geosynthetic clay liner. The leak detection and collection system shall be checked daily. The design of the upper liner shall include calculations to predict the potential leakage through the upper liner. If the daily checks indicate the upper liner is leaking at a rate greater than predicted by the design calculations, the Department shall be notified. If the leakage rate will result in the flooding of the leak detection and collection system, the impoundment shall be emptied and the liner repaired.

4. through 6. No change.

(c) Above ground leachate storage tanks that are located at solid waste management facilities are subject to the following requirements:

1. Tanks shall be constructed of concrete, ~~or~~ steel, reinforced plastic, polyethylene, or fiberglass. Tanks shall be supported on a well drained, stable foundation.

2. through 5. No change.

6. The secondary containment system shall be constructed of materials compatible with the liquid stored. The containment system shall be constructed of either:

a. No change.

b. A concrete pad that will maintain its integrity for the lifetime of the tank, provided that the tank, if made of steel, has with a corrosion resistant coating; or

c. A geomembrane of a minimum average thickness of 60 mils, as defined by method GRI GM13, with a maximum water vapor transmission rate of $0.24 \text{ g}/(\text{m}^2 \times \text{day})$.

7. through 9. No change.

(d) No change.

(7) Liner systems construction quality assurance.

(a) Liner systems shall have a construction quality assurance plan to provide personnel with adequate information to achieve continuous compliance with the liner construction requirements. The plan shall include or refer to specifications and construction methods which use established engineering practices to construct a liner system and provide for quality control testing procedures and sampling frequencies. Sampling and testing shall be conducted in the field by trained personnel during construction and after construction completion. Such personnel will be under the direction of the construction quality assurance professional engineer, to assure the liner system will comply with the standards. The construction quality assurance professional engineer or his designee shall be on-site at all times during construction to monitor construction activities. Construction activities include the time during which the protective layer is installed over the geomembrane, to ensure that the placement techniques do not cause damage to the liner system materials.

(b) Liner systems shall be installed in accordance with a Department-approved construction quality assurance plan. Plans that comply with EPA Document EPA/600/R-93/182 530-SW-86-034 shall be presumed to be in compliance with this section. The following minimum specific elements shall be included in the plan:

1. through 5. No change.

(c) through (d) No change.

(8) No change.

(9) Surface water management systems.

(a) Stormwater shall be controlled in accordance with Part IV of Chapter 373, F.S., and the rules promulgated thereunder. A copy of any permit for stormwater control issued by the Department, or documentation that no such permit is required, shall be submitted to the Department and construction authorized by that permit shall be completed before the facility receives waste for disposal. Applicants should be aware that other government agencies may also regulate stormwater management and may require separate permits.

(b) A stormwater management system shall be designed, constructed and maintained which, at a minimum, prevents stormwater from the peak discharge of the 25 year storm event from running onto those portions of the landfill which have not been closed.

~~(b) A stormwater management system shall be designed, constructed and maintained which collects and controls, at a minimum, the volume of runoff from a 25 year, 24 hour storm event.~~

~~(c) Stormwater controls shall include retention or detention ponds, and drainage ways specifically designed and sized according to local drainage patterns, soil permeability, annual precipitation, area land use, and other characteristics of the contributing watershed.~~

~~(c)(d) Stormwater management systems shall be designed to avoid mixing of stormwater with leachate. Stormwater or other surface water which comes into contact with the landfilled solid waste or mixes with leachate shall be considered leachate and is subject to the requirements of Rules 62-701.500(8) and 62-701.510(5), F.A.C.~~

~~(e) Nothing herein shall be construed to supercede the applicable standards and requirements of Chapters 62-25, 62-302, and 62-330, F.A.C., or the rules and requirements of any other state or local agencies.~~

(10) Gas control systems. ~~(a) Landfills that receive degradable biodegradable wastes shall be designed and constructed with have a gas management monitoring and control system that complies with the requirements of Rule 62-701.530, F.A.C. designed to prevent explosions and fires, and to minimize off site odors and damage to vegetation. Landfill gas control systems shall:~~

1. Be designed to prevent the concentration of methane and other gasses generated by the landfill from:

a. Exceeding twenty five percent of the lower explosive limit for gasses in structures on or off site, excluding gas control or recovery components;

b. Exceeding the lower explosive limit for gasses at or beyond the landfill property boundary; and

c. Causing objectionable odors at or beyond the landfill property boundary;

2. Be designed for site specific conditions and be installed in each section of the landfill that has been filled to design dimensions;

3. Be designed to reduce gas pressure in the interior of the landfill by collecting the gasses to prevent them from moving laterally. Collection pipes, pathways, or vents shall collect gas from at least the uppermost two thirds of the filled waste or where the more anaerobic conditions exist. Air shall not be forced into the collection system. Passive venting or suction shall be used to extract gas; and

4. Not interfere with or cause failure of the liner or leachate control systems.

~~(b) Flaring of landfill gasses may be used as a method of gas control, particularly control of objectionable odors, in accordance with the permitting requirements of Chapter 62-296, F.A.C.~~

~~(c) Owners or operators of solid waste disposal units that have received biodegradable waste shall implement a routine gas monitoring program to ensure that the standards of paragraph (10)(a) of this section are met.~~

1. The location of monitoring points and frequency of monitoring shall be determined by the following factors:

a. Soil conditions;

b. The hydrogeologic conditions surrounding the facility;

c. The hydraulic conditions surrounding the facility; and

d. The location of facility structures and property boundaries.

2. All monitoring points shall be sampled quarterly, and the results reported to the Department.

3. If methane gas levels exceed the lower explosive limits specified in paragraph (10)(a) of this section, the owner or operator shall:

a. Immediately take all necessary steps to ensure protection of human health and notify the Department;

b. Within 7 days of detection, submit to the Department for approval a remediation plan for the methane gas releases. The plan shall describe the nature and extent of the problem and the proposed remedy. The remedy shall be completed within 60 days of detection unless otherwise approved by the Department.

(d) Landfills using piping or a similar conduit to convey gas shall be furnished with a positive means of gas condensate collection and disposal at each low point in the conveyance system.

(11) Landfill gas recovery facilities.

(a) Landfill gas recovery facilities are considered solid waste management facilities, and shall be constructed and operated only in accordance with a Department permit. Landfill gas recovery facilities that are operating without a permit shall submit a complete application to the Department on or before July 6, 1993. If a gas recovery facility is included in the approved closure plan or closure permit of the landfill, no separate permit for the facility is required, provided that the facility must meet all the requirements of this subsection.

(b) The application shall be on Form 62-701.900(1), and shall contain at least the following:

1. The information contained in Rules 62-701.320(7) and 62-701.330(4), F.A.C.;

2. Where relevant and practical, the information required in Rule 62-701.600(4), F.A.C.;

3. An estimate of the quantities of gas condensate currently collected or expected to be collected, and a description of how the condensate is or will be disposed of;

4. A description of the procedures for sampling, analyzing, and reporting data from the condensate sampling;

5. A closure plan that shall include methods to control landfill gasses after operation of the recovery facility ceases and any other requirements contained in Rule 62-701.400(10), F.A.C.

~~(e) The owner or operator of a gas recovery facility shall post a performance bond to cover the estimated costs of closing the facility. If the gas recovery facility is included in the approved closure plan or closure permit of the landfill, and if the closure costs are included in the landfill closure cost estimates for which financial responsibility is required by Rule 62-701.630, F.A.C., then no separate proof of financial responsibility is required.~~

~~(11)(12) No change.~~

Specific Authority 403.061, 403.704 FS. Law Implemented 403.702, 403.704, 403.70, FS. History—New 1-6-93, Amended 1-2-94, 5-19-94, Formerly 17-701.400, Amended _____.

62-701.410 Hydrogeological and Geotechnical Investigation Requirements.

(1) Hydrogeological investigation and site report. The hydrogeological investigation and site report required by Rule 62-701.330(3)(4), F.A.C., shall be site specific, shall be conducted by or under the supervision of a professional geologist or professional engineer with experience in hydrogeologic investigations, and shall:

(a) through (c) No change.

(d) Include a map showing the locations of all potable wells within 500 feet of the waste storage and disposal areas, and locations of all wells serving community water supplies within 1000 feet of the waste storage and disposal areas, to demonstrate compliance with Rules 62-701.300(2)(b) and (h), F.A.C.

(2) Geotechnical site investigation. The geotechnical site investigation required by Rule 62-701.330(3)(4), F.A.C., shall be conducted by or under the supervision of a professional engineer with experience in geotechnical engineering. Prior to any construction on the landfill site, the engineer shall define the engineering properties of the site that are necessary for the design, construction, and support of the landfill and all installations of the facility and shall:

(a) through (e) No change.

(3) through (4) No change.

Specific Authority 403.061, 403.704 FS. Law Implemented 403.0877, 403.702, 403.704, 403.707 FS. History—New 1-6-93, Formerly 17-701.410, Amended 12-23-96, _____.

62-701.430 Vertical Expansion of Landfills.

(1) Applicability. Construction of a solid waste disposal unit on top of or against the side slopes of a previously filled landfill, whether active, closed, or inactive is considered vertical expansion of that landfill. Vertical expansion shall require either a modification of the landfill permit, or a new

permit if the landfill has been closed. If a landfill has not been closed at the time of the vertical expansion, then the closure requirements of that landfill will apply at the time of closure of the vertical expansion, unless the closure requirements for the vertical expansion are more stringent. The following requirements shall apply:

(a) through (b) No change.

(c) For vertical expansion over unlined landfills or landfills that were not constructed in accordance with permit requirements, the vertical expansion shall comply with all the requirements of Rule 62-701.400, F.A.C., with the following exceptions:

1. No change.

2. The slope liner shall consist of a 60-mil or thicker geomembrane with a maximum water vapor transmission rate of 0.24 g/(m² x day) as determined by ASTM Method E96-00 80, procedure BW, "Standard Test Methods for Water Vapor Transmission of Materials," ~~Sections 04.06, 08.03, and 15.09.~~

3. through 4. No change.

5. If the vertical expansion consists exclusively of construction and demolition debris, the expansion must comply with the requirements of Rules 62-701.730 ~~and 62-701.803~~, F.A.C., as well as paragraph (a) of this subsection. If the vertical expansion consists exclusively of land clearing debris, the expansion must comply with the requirements of Rule 62-701.803, F.A.C., as well as paragraph (a) of this subsection.

6. No change.

7. If the vertical expansion consists of a Class III landfill, the provisions of Rule 62-701.340(3)(c)(d), F.A.C., apply.

(d) No change.

(2) Construction requirements. The design for the vertical expansion shall also provide calculations and supporting information on the following factors:

(a) Construction on the slopes of a filled landfill requires a determination of foundation stability in accordance with Rule 62-701.410 ~~62-701.420~~, F.A.C., and calculations for the total settlement of the waste in the existing landfill and the waste that will be disposed of in the new disposal area to be constructed. Total settlement calculations shall address both compression and differential settlement and shall be based on worst case predictions. Total settlement calculations shall show the final elevations of the liner systems, that gravity drainage will be maintained, and that no other component of the design will be adversely affected.

(b) through (c) No change.

(d) A gas control system shall be installed to vent gas from the interface between the existing landfill slopes and the vertical expansion slopes to prevent accumulation of gas under the new liner system. Gas venting is achieved by installing a gas-venting layer under the entire slope that will be covered by the new liner system. The gas-venting layer shall convey gas to vertical vents at the crest of the interface slopes.

Specific Authority 403.061, 403.704 FS. Law Implemented 403.702, 403.704, 403.707 FS. History—New 1-6-93, Amended 5-19-94, Formerly 17-701.430, Amended _____.

62-701.500 Landfill Operation Requirements.

(1) Operating personnel. All Class I and Class III landfills shall have at least one trained operator at the landfill during all times when the landfill receives waste, in accordance with Rule 62-701.320(15), F.A.C. ~~Trained operators are those who have satisfied the requirements of Chapter 62-703, F.A.C.~~ If an operator is employed at a Class II landfill, that person must be a trained operator. All Class I and Class III landfills shall have at least one trained spotter at each working face at all times when the landfill receives waste to detect unauthorized wastes.

(2) Operation plan. Each landfill owner or operator shall have an operational plan that provides written, detailed instructions for the daily operation of the landfill. The operation plan shall be kept at or near the landfill facility and shall be accessible to landfill operators. The operation plan shall be substantially complied with at all times, and shall be revised if operational procedures change. The plan shall include procedures for:

- (a) through (c) No change.
- (d) Weighing incoming waste, if required under Rule 62-701.500(4)(a), F.A.C.;
- (e) through (g) No change.
- (h) Operations of gas, leachate, and stormwater controls; ~~and~~
- (i) Water quality monitoring; and
- (j) Maintaining and cleaning the leachate collection system.

(3) Operating record. The operating record shall consist of: all records, reports, analytical results, demonstrations, and notifications required by this chapter; any construction, operation, and closure permits, including all modifications to those permits, issued by the Department, along with the engineering drawings and supporting information; and the training records ~~verifications~~ required by Rule 62-701.320(15) Chapter 62-703, F.A.C. The record is considered part of the operation plan, and shall be kept with the plan at or near the landfill facility, or in an alternate location designated in the operating permit which is readily accessible to landfill operators. The operating record shall be available for inspection at reasonable times by Department personnel.

- (4) Waste records.
 - (a) No change.
 - (b) Types of waste received:

1. Household waste	7. Agricultural waste
2. Commercial waste	8. Industrial waste
3. Ash residue	9. Yard trash
4. Incinerator by-pass waste	10. Sewage sludge
5. Construction and demolition debris	11. Industrial sludge
6. Treated <u>biomedical biohazardous</u>	12. Water/air

waste treatment sludges
13. Waste tires

- (5) No change.
- (6) Monitoring of waste.
 - (a) The owner or operator shall implement a load-checking program to detect and discourage attempts to dispose of unauthorized wastes at the landfill. The load-checking program shall consist of the following minimum requirements:

- 1. through 2. No change.
- (b) through (c) No change.
- ~~(d) Training. Inspectors, equipment operators, weigh station attendants, and spotters shall be trained to identify unauthorized wastes or potential sources of regulated hazardous wastes. The training program shall emphasize familiarity with containers and labels typically used for hazardous wastes and hazardous materials.~~

- (7) Waste handling requirements.
 - (a) through (i) No change.
 - (j) Erosion control measures shall be employed to correct any erosion which exposes waste or causes malfunction of the storm water management system. Such measures shall be implemented within three days of occurrence. If the erosion cannot be corrected within seven days of occurrence the landfill operator shall notify the Department and propose a correction schedule.

- (8) Leachate management.
 - (a) No change.
 - (b) The landfill operator is responsible for the operation of the leachate collection and removal system and for maintaining the system as designed for the design period. Leachate shall be collected and treated as necessary so that to meet surface and ground water quality standards and criteria are not violated of Chapter 62-3 and 62-302, F.A.C. If the leachate is classified as a hazardous waste, it shall be managed in accordance with Chapter Rule 62-730, F.A.C.

- (c) through (e) No change.
- (f) Quantities of leachate collected by the leachate collection and removal system shall be recorded in gallons per day before on-site treatment or transport off-site, and shall be included with the operating record.

(g) A recording rain gauge shall be installed, operated, and maintained to record precipitation at the landfill. Precipitation records shall be included with the operating record and shall be maintained and used by the permittee to compare with leachate generation rates.

(h) New leachate collection systems shall be water pressure cleaned or inspected by video recording after construction but prior to initial placement of wastes. Existing leachate collection systems shall be water pressure cleaned or inspected by video recording at the time of permit renewal. Results of the collection system cleanings or inspections shall be available to the Department upon request.

(9) Gas monitoring. All landfills that have received ~~degradable organic~~ wastes shall implement a ~~routine gas management system monitoring program~~ to meet the requirements of Rule ~~62-701.530 62-701.400(10)~~, F.A.C.

(10) Stormwater system management. Stormwater management systems shall be operated and maintained as necessary to meet the requirements of Rule 62-701.400(9) ~~applicable standards of Chapters 62-3, 62-302, and 62-25~~, F.A.C.

(11) Equipment and operation features. The landfill shall have:

(a) through (c) No change.

~~(d) At Class I and Class III landfills, personnel shelter and sanitary facilities and first aid equipment;~~

~~(d)(e)~~ No change.

~~(e)(f)~~ Fire protection and fire-fighting capabilities adequate to ~~ensure safety of employees and to control~~ accidental burning of solid waste in the landfill. Fire protection includes procedures for notification of local fire protection agencies for assistance in emergencies;

(g) through (h) renumbered (f) through (g) No change.

(12) No change.

(13) Recordkeeping. In addition to records and reporting required by other sections of this chapter, the landfill owner or operator shall:

(a) through (c) No change.

(d) Records which are more than five years old and which are required to be retained may be archived, provided that the landfill operator can retrieve them for inspection within seven days.

Specific Authority 403.061, 403.704 FS. Law Implemented 403.702, 403.704, 403.707 FS. History--New 1-6-93, Amended 1-2-94, 5-15-94, Formerly 17-701.500, Amended _____.

62-701.510 Water Quality and Leachate Monitoring Requirements.

(1) Applicability.

(a) This section shall apply only to applications for construction or lateral expansion of a solid waste disposal unit received after January 6, 1993. However, no later than October 9, 1994, owners or operators of all solid waste disposal units receiving waste after January 6, 1993 shall submit their permit for modification to comply with the following:

1. Leachate shall be sampled and analyzed in accordance with subsection (5) and paragraph (6)(c)(~~b~~) of this section (if the unit is lined);

2. through 3. No change.

(b) through (c) No change.

(2) Water quality monitoring plan and system.

(a) No change.

(b) The water quality monitoring system shall be installed and consist of: a sufficient number of ground water wells installed at appropriate locations and depths to yield ground

water samples from the uppermost aquifer, as well as other aquifers reasonably expected to be affected by the landfill; surface water monitoring points installed at locations to yield samples of surface water that may be affected by the landfill; and leachate monitoring points to yield representative leachate samples. All sampling and analysis activities shall be performed ~~by organizations that have Comprehensive Quality Assurance Plans approved~~ in accordance with Chapter 62-160 Rule 62-160.300(8), F.A.C.

(c) No change.

(3) Ground water monitoring.

(a) No change.

(b) Multiple downgradient compliance wells shall be located at or immediately adjacent to the compliance line of the zone of discharge, if required in subsection (7) of this section. If site-specific conditions require installation of compliance wells within the zone of discharge, then a confirmed exceedance of a ground water standard above background at such wells will be considered a violation of that standard.

(c) No change.

(d) Monitoring wells.

1. The location of each well, in degrees, minutes and seconds of latitude and longitude, ~~the Universal Transverse Mercator coordinates~~, and the elevation of the top of the well casing to the nearest .01 foot, National Geodetic Vertical Datum (NGVD 1929), shall be determined by a registered Florida land surveyor.

2. An identification number shall be assigned by the Department to each monitoring well in accordance with the Department's Water Assurance Compliance Ground Water Monitoring System computer file. The identification number shall be used on all water quality monitoring reports.

3. through 6. No change.

(4) Surface water monitoring.

(a) through (b) No change.

(c) The details concerning the sampling locations and the analysis requirements shall be specified in the water quality monitoring plan. Each monitoring location shall be marked and its position shall be determined by a registered Florida land surveyor in degrees, minutes and seconds of latitude and longitude ~~and Universal Transverse Mercator coordinates~~.

(5) No change.

(6) Initial and routine ~~Routine~~ sampling frequency and requirements. Except as otherwise specified in a Department permit or order or in subsection (7) of this section, frequency of sampling and analysis shall comply with the following. However, the owner or operator of a solid waste disposal unit may request a permit modification from the appropriate District Office of the Department to delete specific monitoring parameters or field parameters from routine analyses of detection or compliance wells and surface water. The

Department will grant such modification upon a demonstration that these parameters are not reasonably expected to be in or derived from the waste contained in the unit.

(a) Demonstration to delete parameters. A demonstration to delete monitoring parameters may include an evaluation of:

1. The concentration or contrast between monitoring parameters in leachate and in background water quality; and
2. The types, quantities and concentrations of constituents in the wastes, and their degradation products, managed at the facility;

(b)(a) Initial background ~~Background~~ water quality.

1. Initial background ~~Background~~ water quality for a proposed landfill shall be determined by analysis of at least one water sample taken from each well that was installed, and each surface water monitoring location that was established, during the site hydrogeological investigation. The water quality information shall be submitted to the Department as part of the supporting information for the permit application.

2. Sampling and analysis for initial background ground water quality shall be for the parameters listed in paragraphs (8)(a) and (8)(d) of this section.

3. Sampling and analysis for initial background surface water quality shall be for the parameters listed in paragraph (8)(b) of this section.

(c)(b) Routine leachate ~~Leachate~~ sampling.

1. Leachate shall be sampled and analyzed ~~semi-annually for the parameters listed in paragraph (8)(c) of this section. In addition, leachate shall be sampled and analyzed~~ annually for the parameters listed in paragraphs (8)(c) and (d) of this section.

2. For landfills which are receiving waste, if this annual analysis indicates that a contaminant listed in 40 CFR Part 261.24 exceeds the regulatory level listed therein, the permittee shall initiate monthly sampling and analysis and shall notify the Department in writing. ~~If in any three consecutive months the same listed contaminant exceeds the regulatory level, the permittee shall notify the Department and shall, within 90 days, initiate a program designed to identify the source and reduce the presence of the contaminant in the leachate so that it no longer exceeds the regulatory level. This program may include additional monitoring of waste received and additional up front separation of waste materials. The permittee shall coordinate with the Department regarding implementation of the program. Any leachate which is not recirculated or taken to a permitted domestic wastewater treatment facility shall be treated or managed so that no contaminant exceeds the regulatory level.~~ If in any three consecutive months no listed contaminant is found to exceed the regulatory level, the permittee may discontinue the monthly sampling and analysis and return to a routine sampling schedule.

(d)(e) Routine monitoring well sampling. All detection wells, and a representative sample of background wells, shall be sampled and analyzed for the ground water parameters

listed in paragraph (8)(a) of this section, in accordance with the water quality monitoring plan. For lined landfills, this shall be done at least semi-annually. Background wells may be sampled at a frequency other than semi-annually if approved by the Department in the permit.

(e)(d) Routine surface water sampling. Surface waters shall be sampled and analyzed semi-annually for the parameters listed in paragraph (8)(b) of this section, in accordance with the water quality monitoring plan.

(7) Evaluation Assessment monitoring, prevention measures and corrective action.

(a) Evaluation Assessment monitoring. If monitoring parameters are detected in detection wells in concentrations which are significantly above background water quality, or which are at levels above the Department's water quality standards or criteria specified in Chapter 62-520, F.A.C., the permittee may resample the wells within 30 ~~15~~ days after the sampling data is received, to confirm the data. Should the permittee choose not to resample, the Department will consider the water quality analysis as representative of current ground water conditions at the facility. If the data is confirmed, or if the permittee chooses not to resample, the permittee shall notify the Department in writing within 14 days of this finding. Upon notification by the Department, the permittee shall initiate evaluation assessment monitoring as follows:

1. No change.
2. Within 90 days of initiating evaluation assessment monitoring and annually thereafter, the permittee shall sample and analyze a representative sample of the background wells and all affected detection wells for the parameters listed in paragraph (8)(d) of this section. Any new parameters detected and confirmed in the affected downgradient wells shall be added to the routine ground water monitoring parameter lists required in subsection (6) of this section for the affected wells.
3. Within 90 days of initiating evaluation assessment monitoring, the permittee shall install and sample compliance monitoring wells at the compliance line of the zone of discharge and downgradient from the affected detection monitoring wells. These wells shall be installed according to the requirements of paragraph (3)(d) of this section, and samples from these wells and the affected detection wells shall be analyzed quarterly for the parameters listed in paragraphs (8)(a) and (d) of this section.

4. Within 180 days of initiating evaluation assessment monitoring, the permittee shall submit a contamination evaluation assessment plan to the appropriate Department District Office. This plan shall be designed to delineate the extent and cause of the contamination, in order to predict the likelihood that Department water quality standards will be violated outside the zone of discharge, and to evaluate methods to prevent any such violations. After the Department and the permittee agree that the plan is so designed, the permittee shall implement this plan and submit a contamination evaluation

~~assessment~~ report in accordance with the plan. All reasonable efforts shall be made by the permittee to prevent further degradation of water quality from the landfill activities.

5. The owner or operator of a solid waste disposal unit may request a permit modification from the appropriate District Office of the Department to use an alternate monitoring frequency, for repeated sampling during evaluation monitoring. The Department will grant such modification upon a demonstration that the alternate frequency is appropriate based upon site specific lithology of the aquifer and unsaturated zone, hydraulic conductivity of the aquifer and unsaturated zone, ground water flow rates, minimum distance of travel and the fate and transport of parameters detected.

6. The owner or operator of a solid waste disposal unit may request a permit modification from the appropriate District Office of the Department to delete specific monitoring parameters or field parameters from evaluation analyses of detection or compliance wells. The Department will grant such modification upon a demonstration that these parameters are not reasonably expected to be in or derived from the waste contained in the unit.

~~7.5- The permittee shall not discontinue evaluation monitoring, and return to routine monitoring only, until authorized to do so by the Department. The Department shall make this determination based upon the results of the contamination evaluation report and other relevant water quality data. If for two consecutive sampling events the concentrations of all parameters listed in paragraphs (8)(a) and (d) of this section are at or below background values, the permittee, after notifying the Department, may discontinue assessment monitoring and return to the routine monitoring requirements in subsection (6) of this section.~~

(b) Prevention measures and corrective ~~Corrective~~ actions.

1. If the contamination evaluation ~~assessment~~ report indicates that water quality standards are likely to be violated outside the zone of discharge, the permittee shall, within 90 days, submit a prevention measures ~~remedial action~~ plan to the Department. Upon approval, the permittee shall initiate prevention measures ~~corrective actions~~ to prevent such violations.

2. If any contaminants are detected and confirmed in compliance wells in concentrations which exceed both background levels and Department water quality standards or criteria, or are detected and confirmed in detection wells in concentrations which are above Department water quality minimum criteria, the permittee shall notify the Department within 14 days of this finding and shall initiate corrective actions. Evaluation ~~Assessment~~ monitoring shall continue according to the requirements of paragraph (7)(a) of this section.

(8) Water quality parameters. The following list of water quality monitoring parameters shall be used for each type of sampling to be done.

(a) through (b) No change.

(c) Leachate monitoring parameters:

Field parameters	Laboratory parameters
Specific conductivity	Total ammonia – N
pH	Bicarbonate
Dissolved oxygen	Chlorides
Colors, sheens	Iron
(by observation)	Mercury
	Nitrate
	Sodium
	Total dissolved solids (TDS)
	Those parameters listed in 40-CFR Part 258 Appendix I

(d) No change.

(9) Water quality monitoring reporting.

(a) The landfill owner or operator shall report all water quality and leachate monitoring results to the Department semi-annually, unless a different monitoring frequency is specified in the permit. Water quality data contained in the report may be submitted to the Department electronically, and may be used in place of written copies of the data, if approved by the Department in the permit. The operator of the landfill shall notify the Department at least 14 days before the sampling is scheduled to occur so that the Department may collect split samples. The report shall include at least the following:

1. through 8. No change.

9. An updated ground water table contour map signed and sealed by a professional geologist or professional engineer with experience in hydrogeologic investigations, with contours at no greater than one-foot intervals unless site-specific conditions dictate otherwise, which indicates ground water elevations and flow direction; and

10. A summary of any water quality standards or criteria that are exceeded.;

(b) A technical report, ~~prepared~~, signed and sealed by a professional geologist or professional engineer with experience in hydrogeologic investigations, shall be submitted to the Department every two years, and shall be updated at the time of permit renewal. The report shall summarize and interpret the water quality and leachate monitoring results ~~data~~ and water level measurements collected during the past two years. The report shall contain, at a minimum, the following:

1. Tabular ~~and graphical~~ displays of any data which shows that a monitoring parameter has been detected, and graphical displays of any leachate key indicator parameters detected (such as pH, specific conductance, TDS, TOC, sulfate, chloride, sodium and iron), including hydrographs for all monitor wells;

2. Trend analyses of any monitoring parameters consistently detected;

3. No change.

4. Comparisons between background water quality and the water quality in detection and compliance upgradient and downgradient wells;

5. through 8. No change.

(c) No change.

Specific Authority 403.061, 403.704 FS. Law Implemented 403.702, 403.704, 403.707 FS. History—New 1-6-93, Amended 1-2-94, 5-19-94, Formerly 17-701.510, Amended _____.

62-701.520 Special Waste Handling.

(1) No change.

~~(2) Disaster debris. In the event of a natural disaster, during which large volumes of debris are accumulated (such as trees and buildings that have been destroyed) the debris may be transported to an area remote from habitation and burned in accordance with Rule 62-256, F.A.C.~~

~~(2)(3) No change.~~

~~(3)(4) Asbestos waste disposal.~~

(a) Asbestos-containing waste materials may be accepted for disposal at a permitted Class I, II, or III landfill. Each active waste disposal site that receives asbestos-containing waste material from a source covered under the National Emission Standards for Asbestos, 40 CFR Part 61, Subpart M, shall meet the requirements of 40 CFR Part 61.154, which are incorporated by reference herein. For purposes of this rule, the term "Administrator," when used in 40 CFR Part 61.154, shall mean Secretary of the Department of Environmental Protection.

(b) through (c) No change.

~~(4)(5) Contaminated soil. Soil which has been contaminated with petroleum products or any other products which are not hazardous wastes may be disposed of in permitted, lined landfills. Petroleum contaminated soil which has been treated pursuant to Chapter 62-713 62-775, F.A.C., may be disposed of at permitted disposal facilities and may, if it meets the criteria of Rules 62-701.200(24), (37), and (38), F.A.C., be used as cover material at permitted landfills.~~

~~(6) Ash residue. Ash residue from the burning of solid waste shall be managed in accordance with Chapter 62-702, F.A.C. Ash residue which meets the criteria of Rules 62-702.570(6) and 17-701.200(37), F.A.C., may be used as initial cover at permitted, lined landfills.~~

(5) Biological waste disposal.

(a) Disposal of bodies of domestic animals, upon the death of such animals due to disease, shall be accomplished pursuant to Section 823.041(1), F.S. This provision does not prohibit the disposal of such animals in Class I or II landfills.

(b) Disposal of dead poultry and hatchery residue shall be accomplished pursuant to Section 583.181(2), F.S.

(c) Biomedical waste that has been treated may be disposed of as solid waste that is not biomedical. Such treated waste must be in containers clearly labeled with the phrase

"Treated Biomedical Waste." The local governments that are responsible for solid waste collection and disposal shall be notified that treated biomedical waste will be disposed of in their facility before such disposal. All transport vehicles transporting treated biomedical waste to a solid waste facility for disposal shall be fully enclosed and secured when unattended. This provision shall not be construed as superseding a solid waste management facility operator's authority to set limitations or restrictions on the disposal of treated biomedical waste at that facility. Treated biomedical waste shall be disposed of only at permitted Class I or II landfills or incinerators used to combust solid waste.

Specific Authority 403.061, 403.704 FS. Law Implemented 403.702, 403.704, 403.705, 403.707, 403.708 FS. History—Formerly 10D-12.07, Amended 10-1-74, 5-24-79, 11-25-82, 7-10-84, 12-10-85, Formerly 17-7.06, 17-7.060, 17-701.060, Amended 1-6-93, 1-2-94, Formerly 17-701.520, Amended _____.

62-701.530 Gas Management Systems.

(1) Design requirements.

(a) Landfills that receive degradable wastes shall have a gas management system designed to prevent explosions and fires, and to minimize off-site odors, lateral migration of gases and damage to vegetation. Combustible gases shall be calibrated to methane. Owners or operators of such landfills shall submit a general gas management system design as part of their permit application, and may modify that design as necessary at the time of closure based upon site-specific conditions. Landfill gas management systems shall:

1. Be designed to prevent the concentration of combustible gases generated by the landfill from:

a. Exceeding twenty-five percent of the lower explosive limit for combustible gases in structures on- or off-site, excluding gas control or recovery components; and

b. Exceeding the lower explosive limit for combustible gases at or beyond the landfill property boundary;

2. Be designed for site-specific conditions;

3. Be designed to reduce gas pressure in the interior of the landfill by collecting the gases to prevent them from moving laterally. Collection pipes, pathways, or vents shall collect gas from at least the uppermost two-thirds of the filled waste or where the more anaerobic conditions exist. Air shall not be forced into the collection system. Passive venting or suction shall be used to extract gas; and

4. Be designed to not interfere with or cause failure of the liner, leachate control systems or final cover.

(b) Flaring of landfill gases may be used as a method of gas control, particularly control of objectionable odors, in accordance with the permitting requirements of Chapter 62-296, F.A.C.

(c) Landfills using piping or a similar conduit to convey gas shall be furnished with a positive means of gas condensate collection and disposal at each low point in the conveyance system.

(2) Monitoring requirements. Owners or operators of solid waste disposal units at landfills that have received degradable waste shall implement a routine gas monitoring program to ensure that the design requirements of subsections (1)(a)1. and 3. of this section are met. The routine gas monitoring program shall monitor concentrations of combustible gases at ambient monitoring points and in soil monitoring probes.

(a) Ambient monitoring points. Ambient monitoring points shall be located in on-site structures, excluding gas control or recovery components, that can be impacted by combustible gases from the landfill as determined by the location of these structures and property boundaries of the facility.

(b) Soil monitoring probes. Soil monitoring probes shall be installed along each property boundary segment of the facility, particularly those adjacent to off-site occupied structures within 100 feet of the property boundary or where distressed vegetation is present, and shall be spaced as needed to detect gas migration. When locating the soil monitoring probes, the owner or operator shall also consider the location of facility structures and the soil conditions, hydrogeologic conditions and hydraulic conditions surrounding the facility. Soil monitoring probes shall extend to the depth of the base of waste fill or at least three feet below ground surface, whichever is deeper. Sampling shall be conducted in the headspace of the monitoring probe without purging the gas before collecting the sample. Where sand, gravel, or more gas permeable soil strata may interconnect the waste deposit and the property boundary, multiple depth monitoring probes are necessary to draw gas samples from the permeable layers.

(c) All ambient monitoring points and soil monitoring probes shall be sampled quarterly for concentrations of combustible gases, and the results reported to the Department. Combustible gases shall be determined as a percent of the lower explosive limit and shall be calibrated to methane.

(3) Construction and control requirements. The gas management system shall be constructed and operated as authorized by a Department permit or this section.

(a) Gas remediation plan. If the results of monitoring show that combustible gas concentrations exceed the lower explosive limits specified in subsection (1) of this section, the owner or operator shall:

1. Immediately take all necessary steps to ensure protection of human health and notify the Department; and

2. Within 7 days of detection, submit to the Department for approval a gas remediation plan for the gas releases. The plan shall describe the nature and extent of the problem and the proposed remedy. The remedy may include some or all of the gas management system design contained in subsection (1) of this section. The remedy shall be completed within 60 days of detection unless otherwise approved by the Department.

(b) Odor remediation plan. The facility shall be operated to control objectionable odors in accordance with Rule 62-296.320(2), F.A.C. If gas concentrations cause objectionable odors beyond the landfill property boundary, the owner or operator shall:

1. Implement a routine odor monitoring program to determine the timing and extent of any off-site odors; and

2. If the monitoring program confirms the existence of objectionable odors, submit to the Department for approval an odor remediation plan for the gas releases. The plan shall describe the nature and extent of the problem and the proposed remedy. The remedy shall be initiated within 30 days of approval.

(4) Closure requirements. Owners or operators of solid waste disposal units at landfills that have received degradable waste and have been filled to their design dimensions, and have not been certified closed prior to [eff date], shall construct, if not already constructed, and operate a gas management system to ensure that the requirements of subsections (1), (2) and (3) of this section are met.

(5) Landfill gas recovery facilities.

(a) Landfill gas recovery facilities are considered solid waste management facilities, and shall be constructed and operated only in accordance with a Department permit. If a gas recovery facility is included in the approved closure plan or closure permit of the landfill, no separate permit for the facility is required, provided that the facility must meet all the requirements of this subsection.

(b) The application shall be on Form 62-701.900(1), and shall contain at least the following:

1. The information contained in Rules 62-701.320(7) and 62-701.330(3), F.A.C.;

2. Where relevant and practical, the information required in Rule 62-701.600(4), F.A.C.;

3. An estimate of the quantities of gas condensate currently collected or expected to be collected, and a description of how the condensate is or will be disposed of;

4. A description of the procedures for sampling, analyzing, and reporting data from the condensate sampling; and

5. A closure plan that shall include methods to control landfill gasses after operation of the recovery facility ceases and any other requirements contained in Rule 62-701.400(10), F.A.C.

(c) The owner or operator of a gas recovery facility shall post a performance bond to cover the estimated costs of closing the facility. If the gas recovery facility is included in the approved closure plan or closure permit of the landfill, and if the closure costs are included in the landfill closure cost estimates for which financial responsibility is required by Rule 62-701.630, F.A.C., then no separate proof of financial responsibility is required.

(6) Compliance with this section does not relieve an applicant from compliance with any applicable air requirements of Title V, county ordinance, or local programs.

Specific Authority 403.061, 403.704 FS. Law Implemented 403.702, 403.704, 403.707 FS. History—New

62-701.600 Landfill Final Closure.

(1) Applicability.

(a) Inactive landfills.

1. Landfills or solid waste disposal units which were closed in a manner approved by the Department prior to January 6, 1993, or which have received final cover before July 1, 1985, are exempt from the requirements of this section, although Rule 62-701.610(8), F.A.C., shall apply to any relocation of waste at such landfills or units.

2. through 3. No change.

(b) No change.

(2) Closure schedule.

(a) No change.

(b) Notice and ~~advice~~ advise to users. At least 120 days prior to the date when wastes will no longer be accepted at the landfill, the owner or operator shall advise users of the intent to close the landfill by posting signs at the entrance of the landfill giving the date of closing, the location of alternative disposal facilities, and the name of the person responsible for closing the landfill. These signs shall be maintained throughout the closing period. If unforeseen circumstances do not allow the 120 day notice to users, notice shall be provided as soon as the need to close the facility becomes apparent.

(c) No change.

(3) No change.

(4) Closure report. A report on the final closure of the landfill shall address the following requirements, or shall contain an explanation of why the requirement is not applicable:

(a) No change.

(b) The geotechnical investigation report and water quality monitoring plan required in Rule 62-701.330(3)(4), F.A.C.

(c) No change.

(d) A report on actual or potential gas migration in landfills that contain ~~degradable~~ biodegradable wastes ~~disposed of in porous soils~~ which would allow migration of gas off the landfill property. ~~Gas migration test points shall be located along property boundaries, particularly those adjacent to off site occupied structures within 100 feet of the property boundary or where distressed vegetation is present. Test points are required along each boundary segment spaced as needed to detect gas migration. Test points shall extend at least three feet below ground surface. Where sand, gravel, or more gas permeable soil strata may interconnect the waste deposit and the property boundary, multiple depth sampling points are necessary to draw gas samples from the permeable layers. Methane concentrations shall be determined as a percent of the~~

~~lower explosive limit. Methane concentrations shall not exceed the lower explosive limit at the property boundary or 25 percent of the limit within structures on the property.~~

(e) No change.

(5) Closure design. The closure design plan shall consist of engineering plans and a report on closing procedures that apply to the final closing of solid waste disposal units during the operation of the landfill, the final closing of the landfill, and the monitoring and maintenance during the long-term care period. The closure design plan shall include the following information:

(a) through (d) No change.

(e) Final side slope design. Side slopes of ~~above-ground~~ aboveground disposal units shall not be steeper than three feet horizontal to one foot vertical rise to control erosion of the final cover material. Such units shall incorporate reverse sloping benches or terraces into the side slopes of the landfill and shall contain down slope drainage ways with water flow energy dissipaters. Access for maintenance equipment shall be provided. Such designs shall address the susceptibility for erosion of the earthen material that is proposed for final cover relative to historical rainfall patterns for the area, the period between the patterns for the area, the period between the application of the final cover and establishment of vegetation, and maintenance procedures.

(f) Final cover installation plans showing the sequence of applying final ~~for~~ cover. All areas filled with waste shall have a final cover designed to minimize infiltration of rainfall and subsequent generation of leachate, based on water balance calculations and leachate controls used.

1. No change.

2. Final cover shall be placed over the entire surface of each completed solid waste disposal unit or units within 180 days after the final waste deposit, or within the time frame set forth in the approved closure plan. The final cover shall be vegetated ~~with drought resistant species to control erosion and provide. The final cover is intended to be a moisture infiltration seal, with therefore vegetational species that are planted shall be drought resistant and have such that the roots will not penetrate the final cover seal and thus provide a channel for moisture infiltration.~~

3. through 4. No change.

(g) Final cover design.

1. Landfills shall have a final cover designed to minimize infiltration and erosion, which shall include a barrier layer consisting of a soil layer, a geomembrane, or a combination of a geomembrane with a low permeability material. All geosynthetic and soil components used in the final cover shall meet the standards and specifications contained in Rules 62-701.400(3)(d)1. and 2., (3)(d)5.-11., (e), and (f). For lined Class I and Class II landfills, the barrier layer shall have a permeability which is substantially equivalent to, or less than, the permeability of the bottom liner system. If the landfill uses

a geomembrane in the bottom liner system, the barrier layer shall also incorporate a geomembrane. For unlined Class I and Class II landfills, the barrier layer shall have a permeability of 1×10^{-7} cm/sec or less. For Class III landfills, the barrier layer shall have a permeability of 1×10^{-5} cm/sec or less. For Class III landfills which accepted only yard trash, no barrier layer is required; instead, final cover shall consist of a 24-inch thick soil layer, the upper six inches of which shall be capable of supporting vegetative growth.

2. If the barrier layer consists only of soil, it shall be at least 18 inches thick, ~~installed~~ ~~emplaced~~ in 6-inch thick lifts, and shall have a final, 18-inch thick layer of soil that will sustain vegetation to control erosion placed on top of the barrier layer.

3. If the barrier layer consists only of a geosynthetic clay liner (GCL), a protective soil layer at least 24 inches thick shall be placed on top of the GCL with the upper six inches being able to sustain vegetative growth. The GCL shall be placed on a protective soil layer at least 12 inches thick. Material specifications and installation methods, which may include a drainage layer between the GCL and the protective soil layer over the GCL, shall be adequate to protect the barrier layer from root penetration, resist erosion, and remain stable on the final design slopes of the landfill.

~~4.3-~~ If a geomembrane is used in the barrier layer, it shall be a semi-crystalline thermoplastic with at least 40 mils average thickness, as defined by method GRI GM13, or a non-crystalline thermoplastic at least 30 mils thick, within the tolerances specified in method PGI 1197, with a maximum water vapor transmission rate of $2.4 \text{ g}/(\text{m}^2 \times \text{day})$, have chemical and physical resistance to materials it may come in contact with, and withstand exposure to the natural environmental stresses and forces throughout the installation, seaming process, and settlement of the waste during the closure and long-term care period. A protective soil layer at least 24 inches thick shall be put on top of the geomembrane. Material specifications, installation methods, and compaction specifications, which may include a drainage layer between the geomembrane and the protective soil layer, shall be adequate to protect the barrier layer from root penetration, resist erosion, and remain stable on the final design slopes of the landfill. This layer shall include topsoil ~~top soil~~ or soils that will sustain vegetative growth. ~~In some cases, a drainage layer may be required between the cap (soil and geomembrane layer) and the top soil layer.~~

5. The final cover design shall include an evaluation of the stability of the cover system and the disposed waste. This evaluation shall include an analysis of the potential for slides along the weakest interface of the final cover system and of the potential for deep seated rotational or translational failures through the waste and the final cover.

4. through 5. renumbered 6. through 7. No change.

(h) Proposed method of stormwater control. Stormwater occurring on the landfill property and from areas adjacent to the landfill property shall be prevented from coming onto or into waste filled areas. The closure design plan shall demonstrate how the stormwater management systems shall be operated and maintained as necessary to meet the requirements of Rule 62-701.400(9) compliance with Chapter 62-25, F.A.C.

(i) through (j) No change.

(k) A description of the proposed or existing gas management system which complies with Rule 62-701.530, F.A.C.

(6) Closure operation plan. The closure operation plan shall:

(a) through (e) No change.

(f) Provide for the development and implementation of the routine gas management system monitoring program required in Rule 62-701.530 ~~Rule 62-701.400(10)(e)~~, F.A.C.; and

(g) No change.

(7) No change.

Specific Authority 403.061, 403.704 FS. Law Implemented 403.702, 403.704, 403.707 FS. History—New 1-6-93, Amended 1-2-94, 5-19-94, Formerly 17-701.600, Amended _____.

62-701.610 Closure Procedures.

(1) through (2) No change.

(3) Final survey report. When landfill operations have been conducted which have raised the final elevations higher than 20 feet above the natural land surface, a final survey shall be performed after closure is complete by an engineer or a registered land surveyor to verify that final contours and elevations of the facility are in accordance with the plans as approved in the permit. Aerial mapping techniques which provide equivalent survey accuracy may be substituted for the survey. The survey or aerial mapping information shall be included in the report along with information reflecting the conditions of the landfill as constructed. Contours ~~shall~~ ~~should~~ be shown at no greater than five-foot intervals. The landfill owner or operator shall submit this report to the Department in accordance with the closing schedule.

(4) through (5) No change.

(6) Official date of closing. Upon receipt of the documents required in subsections (3), (4), and (5) of this section, the Department shall, within 30 days, acknowledge by letter to the facility operator that notice of termination of operations and closing of the facility has been received. If the entire landfill has been closed, the date of this letter shall be the official date of landfill closing for purposes of determining the long-term care period. If only a portion of the landfill has been closed, the long-term care period will begin upon the closing of the entire landfill, unless the portion which has been closed can be monitored and maintained separately from the rest of the landfill. The date of this letter shall be the official date of landfill closing for the purpose of determining the long-term care period.

(7) Use of closed landfill areas. Closed landfill areas, if disturbed, are a potential hazard to public health, ground water and the environment. The Department retains regulatory control over any activities which may affect the integrity of the environmental protection measures such as the landfill cover, drainage, liners, monitoring system, or leachate and stormwater controls. Consultation with the Department is required prior to conducting activities at the closed landfill areas.

(8) Relocation of waste. The owner of a closed landfill may request permission from the Department to move waste from one point to another within the footprint of the same solid waste disposal unit. If the landfill has a valid closure permit, the permittee shall seek a modification to reflect the relocation of waste. The Department shall approve such a request upon a demonstration that:

(a) The activity will not cause or contribute to any leachate leakage from the landfill, and will not adversely affect the closure design of the landfill;

(b) Any leachate, stormwater runoff, or gas which is generated by the activity is controlled on site;

(c) Any hazardous waste which is generated by the activity will be managed in accordance with Chapter 62-730, F.A.C.;

(d) Immediately after the activity is completed, the landfill will be covered, vegetated, and graded to comply with the closure requirements that apply to that landfill, which shall include a final cover of at least two feet of soil; and

(e) The appropriate District Office of the Department is notified at least seven days before the activity takes place in order to have the opportunity to inspect the site.

Specific Authority 403.704 FS. Law Implemented 403.704, 403.707 FS. History—New 7-1-85, Formerly 17-7.074, 17-701.074, Amended 1-6-93, 1-2-94, Formerly 17-701.610, Amended _____.

62-701.620 Long-Term Care.

(1) No change.

(2) Long-term care permit. Long-term care shall be conducted in accordance with a closure permit. Closure permits involving only long-term care shall be issued with a duration of ten years unless the owner or operator specifically requests a shorter duration. If a shorter duration is requested, the permit fee shall be prorated.

(3)(2) Reduced long-term care period. The owner or operator of a landfill may apply to the appropriate District Office of the Department for a permit modification to reduce the long-term care schedule or eliminate some aspects of long-term care. The Department will grant such modification if reasonable assurance is provided to the Department that there is no threat to human health or the environment and if the landfill:

(a) Has been constructed and operated in accordance with approved standards, and has a leachate control system and a liner;

(b) through (d) No change.

(4)(3) No change.

(5) Gas monitoring. The gas collection and monitoring system required in Rule 62-701.600(6)(f), F.A.C., shall be maintained for the long-term care period of the landfill. The owner or operator of a landfill may apply to the appropriate District Office of the Department for a permit modification to reduce the long-term care schedule. The Department will grant such a modification if the applicant demonstrates that the landfill has stabilized to the point where there is no significant production of combustible gases or objectionable odors.

(6)(4) No change.

(7)(5) Successors in interest. Any person acquiring rights or ownership, possession or operation of a permitted landfill through lease or transfer of property shall be subject to all requirements of the permit for the facility and shall provide any required proof of financial responsibility to the Department in accordance with this rule. Any lease or transfer of property shall include specific conditions to delineate:

(a) through (b) No change.

(c) Mineral rights attached to the property and the rights to any recoverable materials that may be buried on the property or landfill gases ~~gasses~~ that may be produced. A Department permit shall be required if any on-site operations subsequent to closing of a landfill involve disturbing the landfill.

(6) through (7) renumbered (8) through (9) No change.

(10)(8) Following completion of the long-term care period for each solid waste management unit, the owner or operator shall notify the Department that a certification, signed and sealed by a professional engineer, verifying that long-term care has been completed in accordance with the closure plan has been placed in the operating record.

Specific Authority 403.704 FS. Law Implemented 403.704, 403.707 FS. History—New 7-1-85, Formerly 17-7.075, 17-701.075, Amended 1-6-93, 1-2-94, 5-19-94, Formerly 17-701.620, Amended _____.

62-701.630 Financial Assurance.

(1) No change.

(2) Applicability.

(a) through (c) No change.

(d) Owners or operators of existing Class I or II landfills receiving waste after October 9, 1993, which are required to undertake a corrective action program in accordance with Rule 62-701.510(7), F.A.C., shall submit proof of financial assurance to the Department by April 4, 1994, or no later than 120 days after the corrective action remedy has been selected, whichever is later.

(3) Cost estimates for closure.

(a) For the purposes of determining the amount of proof of financial assurance that is required in subsections (5) and (6) of this section, the owner or operator shall estimate the total cost of closure for the permitted portions of the landfill or for those portions of the landfill for which a construction permit is sought, for the time period in the landfill operation when the

extent and manner of its operation make closing most expensive. The annual cost of long-term care shall be estimated and listed separately, and multiplied by 30 years. The owner or operator shall submit the estimates, together with all necessary justification, to the Department along with the proof of financial assurance. The costs shall be estimated and certified by a professional engineer for a third party performing the work, on a per unit basis, with the source of estimates indicated.

(b) through (c) No change.

(d) Cost estimates required in this section shall be prepared and submitted on Form 62-701.900(28).

(e) The owner or operator shall keep the latest closure cost estimate at the facility. When this estimate has been adjusted in accordance with paragraph (4)(a) of this section, the latest adjusted closure cost estimate shall also be kept at the facility.

~~(4) Cost Annual cost adjustments for closure.~~

(a) Every owner or operator of a landfill shall annually adjust the closure cost estimate for inflation and submit updated information to the Department an annual cost adjustment statement, certified by a professional engineer. Closing and long-term care costs shall be listed separately. For owners or operators using an alternate financial mechanism, this statement shall be submitted between January 1 and March 1 of each year. For owners or operators using an escrow account, this statement shall be submitted between July 1 and September 1 of each year. This paragraph does not prohibit an owner or operator from submitting other information updating the closure cost estimate at other times of the year.

(b) During the life of those portions of the landfill which have not been finally closed, as well as during the long-term care period, the owner or operator shall adjust ~~revise~~ the closure cost estimate for inflation and changes in the closing and long-term care plan. Such adjustments ~~revisions~~ shall be made either by:

1. Recalculating the maximum cost of closure or long-term care, in current dollars, as specified in subsection (3) of this section; or

2. By using an inflation factor derived from the most recent Implicit Price Deflator for Gross National Product published by the U.S. Department of Commerce in its Survey of Current Business as specified in subparagraphs (4)(b)2.a. and b. of this section. The inflation factor is the result of dividing the latest published annual Deflator by the Deflator for the previous year.

a. The first adjustment is made by multiplying the closure or long-term care cost estimate by the inflation factor. The result is the adjusted closure or long-term care cost estimate.

b. Subsequent adjustments are made by multiplying the latest adjusted closure or long-term care cost estimate by the latest inflation factor.

(c) If the closure or long-term care plan is modified during the operating, closure or long-term care period, the owner or operator shall revise the cost estimate. Revisions shall be made and submitted as specified in subparagraph (4)(b)(1) of this section, annually in accordance with the provisions of 40 CFR Part 264.142(b) or 40 CFR Part 264.144(b) and Cost estimates submitted in accordance with this subsection will be used as the basis for comparison against the balance of the funding mechanisms specified in subsections (5) and (6) of this section in the landfill management escrow account or the value of an alternate funding mechanism.

~~(d)(e) No change.~~

~~(d) If the value of the landfill management escrow account or alternate funding mechanism is greater than the total amount of the current closure cost estimate, the owner or operator may reduce the value of the account or funding mechanism to reflect the new estimate.~~

~~(e) If the closure cost estimate must be increased as a direct result of amendments to this chapter after January 2, 1994, the owner or operator, upon notification to the Department, may delay updating the annual cost adjustment statement to reflect this increase for up to two years.~~

(5) Landfill management escrow account.

(a) through (b) No change.

(c) The revenue shall be deposited in an interest-bearing escrow account, the landfill management escrow account, to be held and administered by the owner or operator. The owner or operator shall file with the Department a signed duplicate original of the escrow account agreement and an annual audit of the account. The audit shall be conducted by an independent Certified Public Accountant and shall be filed no later than ~~March~~ December 31 of the following ~~each~~ year. ~~Counties using a Single Audit accounting system shall file this audit by March 31 of the following year.~~ The audit shall consist of reporting the balance in the landfill management escrow account as of the end of each fiscal year and a list of all deposits and withdrawals made. The list shall include the date and the amount of each deposit and withdrawal.

(d) Payments into the landfill management escrow account shall be made by the owner or operator at least annually according to one of the following methods:

1. For a new landfill, the first payment must be made before the end of the first fiscal year after the initial receipt of solid waste into the landfill. A notice of such payment shall be submitted to the Department. The first payment shall be equal to the current closing cost estimate for the landfill divided by the number of years in the active life of the landfill. Subsequent payments must be made at least annually, over the term of the active life of the landfill, on the anniversary date of the first payment. The calculations for such annual payment shall be determined using one of the following methods as follows:

a. "Pay-in" method: $\text{payment} = (\text{CE} - \text{CV})/\text{Y}$, where CE is the current calculated closure cost estimate, CV is the current value of the escrow account, and Y is the number of remaining years in the active life of the landfill; or

b. "Balance" method: the fiscal year end account balance $\equiv [\text{CE} \times (\text{DE}/\text{DL})] - \text{E}$, where CE is the latest current dollar closure cost estimate approved by the Department; DE, the design life exhausted (by solid waste disposal unit), is the period of time between the initial receipt of waste and the account audit date; DL, the design life (by solid waste disposal unit), is the period of time between initial receipt of waste and end of receipt of waste; and E, all documented closure expenditures to date (by solid waste disposal unit), are expenses identified by the fiscal year end audit(s) as being incurred closing or maintaining the landfill identified in the closure plan. The choice of use of this formula requires the continued use throughout the remaining design life of the landfill or phase. In the event the fiscal year end audited account balance exceeds the required balance, the owner or operator may remove the excess funds upon written authorization from the Department.

2. through 3. No change.

~~4. For an existing government-owned landfill scheduled to close on or before October 1, 1995, no escrow account funding is required for costs associated with the closing of the landfill. Proof of financial assurance for closing costs shall consist of specific documentation of how the owner or operator intends to finance the closing of the landfill. Escrow funding for long-term care shall be provided.~~

~~4.5.~~ No change.

(e) through (f) No change.

(6) Alternate proof of financial assurance.

(a) An owner or operator may establish proof of financial assurance with the Department in lieu of, or in combination with, the requirements of subsection (5) of this section. Such proof may include surety bonds, certificates of deposit, securities, letters of credit, trust fund agreements, closure insurance or financial tests and corporate guarantees showing that the owner or operator has sufficient financial resources to cover, at a minimum, the costs of complying with all state landfill closing and long-term care requirements. If such proof of financial assurance is surety bonds, letters of credit, trust fund agreements, closure insurance or financial tests and corporate guarantees, such proof shall be submitted on forms provided by the Department in accordance with the requirements of paragraphs (b) through (d) ~~and (e)~~ of this subsection. If proof of financial assurance is securities or certificates of deposit, these instruments must be used in conjunction with a trust fund and shall be submitted directly to the trustee. The owner or operator shall estimate such costs pursuant to subsection (3) of this section.

(b) 40 CFR Part 264 Subpart H which contains EPA's rules on financial requirements for owners and operators of hazardous waste facilities are hereby adopted as financial requirements for purposes of this section incorporated by reference as those rules appear in 40 CFR Part 264, revised as of July 1, ~~2000~~ 1988, except:

1. The following sections of 40 CFR Part 264, Subpart H are specifically not adopted as part of this rule:

a. 264.140(a); 264.140(b); ~~264.140(d)~~; 264.141(a); 264.141(e); ~~264.142(b)~~; ~~264.142(c)~~; ~~264.144(b)~~; ~~264.144(c)~~; 264.147; 264.149; 264.150; and 264.151.

b. No change.

c. All references to sections or subparts of 40 CFR Part 264 not contained in Subpart H.

d. No change.

e. All references to RCRA, ~~or Section 3008 of RCRA.~~

2. References to 40 CFR 264.143 (f) (1) and 264.145 (f) (1) shall mean Rule 62-701.630 (6) (c), F.A.C. References in 40 CFR Part 264, Subpart H to the United States Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) shall mean the State of Florida Department of Environmental Protection (DEP); to Regional Administrator shall mean the Secretary of the Department; or the Secretary's written designee, to RCRA permits shall mean solid waste management permits; to Post-Closure Care/Post-Closure Cost Estimate shall mean Long-Term Care/Long-Term Care Cost Estimate; to EPA identification number shall mean the Department identification number; to hazardous waste shall mean solid waste; and to hazardous waste treatment, storage or disposal facilities shall mean landfills; to Section 3008 of RCRA shall mean FDEP Agency Action; and to one or more states shall mean in the State of Florida.

(c) An owner or operator may satisfy the requirements of this subsection by passing a financial test using Form 62-701.900(5)(e). To pass this test the owner or operator must meet the criteria of either subparagraph 1. or 2. as follows:

1. The owner or operator must have:

a. One of the two following ratios: A ratio of less than 1.5 comparing total liabilities to net worth; or a ratio of greater than 0.10 comparing the sum of net income plus depreciation, depletion and amortization, minus \$10 million, to total liabilities;

b. Net working capital of at least three times the sum of the required action;

c. Tangible net worth greater than the sum of the required action plus \$10 million, or at least three times the sum of the required action, whichever is greater; and

d. Assets located in the United States amounting to at least three times the sum of the required action.

2. The owner or operator must have:

a. A bond issuance, secured or unsecured, having a redemption date with at least five years remaining. An unsecured bond rating must maintain a rating of BBB or better as issued by Standard and Poor's bond rating service or Baa2 or better as issued by Moody's bond rating service. A facility using an insured or secured bond must demonstrate to the Department the bond rating as assigned by Standard and Poor's would be BBB or better, or as assigned by Moody's would be Baa2 or better, if the bond was not an insured or backed security but a bond debenture;

b. Tangible net worth greater than the sum of the required action plus \$10 million, or at least three times the sum of the required action, whichever is greater; and

c. Assets located in the United States amounting to at least three times the sum of the required action.

~~(d)(e)~~ Government-owned facilities ~~using a Single Audit accounting system and~~ providing proof of financial assurance using a financial test, must send updated information outlined in 40 CFR 264.143(f)(5) and 264.145(f)(5) to the Department within 180 days after the close of each succeeding fiscal year.

~~(e)(d)~~ Form 62-701.900(5) shall be used, and originally signed duplicates submitted, when demonstrating submitting proof of financial assurance under this section.

(7) Cost estimates for corrective action. An owner or operator of a landfill required to establish financial assurance for a corrective action program pursuant to paragraph (2)(d) of this section shall have a detailed written estimate in current dollars, estimated and certified by a professional engineer, of the cost of hiring a third party to perform the corrective action in accordance with Rule 62-701.510(7), F.A.C. The corrective action cost estimate must account for the total cost of corrective action activities as described in the corrective action plan for the entire corrective action period. The owner or operator shall submit the estimate, together with all necessary justification, to the Department for approval along with proof of financial assurance.

(8) ~~Cost~~ Annual cost adjustments for corrective action.

(a) The owner or operator shall annually adjust the estimate for inflation and changes in the corrective action plan until the corrective action program is completed in accordance with Rule 62-701.510(7), F.A.C. The adjustment shall be made either by:

1. Recalculating ~~recalculating~~ the maximum cost of corrective action, in current dollars, as specified in subsection (7) of this section; or

2. By ~~by~~ using an inflation factor derived from the most recent Implicit Price Deflator for Gross National Product published by the U.S. Department of Commerce in its Survey of Current Business as specified in subparagraphs a. and b. as follows ~~(8)(a)1. and 2. of this section.~~ The inflation factor is the result of dividing the latest published annual Deflator by the Deflator for the previous year.

1. through 2. renumbered a. through b. No change.

(b) If the corrective action plan is modified during the corrective action period, the owner or operator shall revise the corrective action cost estimate ~~no later than 30 days after this modification is effective.~~ Revisions ~~Annual adjustments~~ shall be made and submitted as specified in subparagraph (8)(a)1. of this section.

(c) No change.

(9) Financial assurance for corrective action.

(a) For government owned landfills, the owner or operator shall demonstrate proof of financial assurance for corrective action with the Department by establishing an escrow account or by using one of the approved alternate mechanisms specified in subsection (6) of this section. ~~+~~ Payments into the landfill management escrow account shall be made by the owner or operator according to one of the following methods:

1.a. The owner or operator shall deposit into the landfill management escrow the full cost associated with the corrective action remedy ~~by April 9, 1994, or~~ within 120 days after the corrective action remedy has been selected, ~~whichever is later;~~ or

2.b. If the local government can document ~~with specificity~~ a specific non-general revenue source adequate to cover the total corrective action cost, then only that portion of the corrective action to be undertaken the following year need be funded.

(b) For privately owned landfills, the owner or operator shall demonstrate proof of financial assurance for corrective action with the Department by establishing an escrow account or by using one of the approved alternate mechanisms specified in subsection (6) of this section. The escrow account shall be funded for the full cost associated with the corrective action remedy ~~by April 9, 1994, or~~ within 120 days after the corrective action remedy has been selected, ~~whichever is later.~~ If a trust fund is used, the first payment into the trust must be at least equal to one-half of the current cost estimate for corrective action. The amount of subsequent payments must be determined by the following formula: Next payment = [RB - CV]/Y, where RB is the most recent estimate of the required trust fund balance for corrective action, CV is the current value of the trust fund, and Y is the number of years remaining in the pay-in period. The pay-in period is one-half of the estimated length of the corrective action program funding shall be in accordance with 40 CFR Part 258.74(a).

Specific Authority 403.704 FS. Law Implemented 403.704, 403.707 FS. History—New 7-1-85, Formerly 17-7.076, Amended 11-28-89, Formerly 17-701.076, Amended 1-6-93, 1-2-94, 5-19-94, Formerly 17-701.630, Amended _____.

62-701.640 Closure of Existing Landfills.

~~(1) Any Class I or Class II landfill receiving waste on January 2, 1994 shall close by October 9, 1996, in accordance with Rules 62-701.600-.630, F.A.C., if:~~

(a) It is within the airport setbacks specified in Rule 62-701.320(12)(b), F.A.C., and the owner or operator cannot demonstrate that the facility is designed and will be operated so that it does not pose a bird hazard to aircraft;

(b) It is located within the 100 year floodplain as specified in Rule 62-701.340(4)(b), F.A.C., unless the owner or operator can demonstrate that it will not restrict the flow of the 100 year flood, reduce the temporary water storage capacity of the floodplain unless compensating storage is provided, or result in a washout of solid waste; or

(c) It is located in a fault area, seismic zone, or unstable area as specified in Rule 62-701.420(1)(c), F.A.C., unless the owner or operator can demonstrate that the facility was adequately designed to tolerate the anticipated stresses associated with these areas.

(2) The Department shall extend the deadline for closure specified in subsection (1) of this section for up to two years if the owner or operator of the landfill demonstrates to the Department that:

(a) There is no available and practicable alternative disposal capacity; and

(b) Such extension would result in no immediate threat to human health or the environment.

(3) Any such demonstrations shall be submitted to the Department no later than July 9, 1996.

Specific Authority 403.704 FS. Law Implemented 403.704, 403.707 FS. History—New 1-2-94, Amended 5-19-94, Formerly 17-701.640, Repealed

62-701.700 Materials Recovery Facilities.

(1) Applicability. No person shall construct or operate a materials recovery facility without a permit issued by the Department.

(2) Engineering report. A permit application for a materials recovery facility shall include the information required in Rule 62-701.320, F.A.C., and an engineering report that includes:

(a) A description of the solid waste that is proposed to be collected, stored, processed or disposed of by the facility, a projection of those waste types and quantities expected in future years, and the assumptions used to make the projections;

(b) A description of the operation and functions of all processing equipment that will be used, with design criteria and expected performance. The description shall show the flow of solid waste and associated operations in detail, and shall include:

1. Regular facility operations as they are expected to occur;

2. Procedures for start up operations, and scheduled and unscheduled shut down operations; and

3. Potential safety hazards and control methods, including fire detection and control;

(c) A description of loading, unloading, and processing areas. If wastes which are reasonably expected to produce leachate are being processed, the facility shall be designed with a leachate control system to prevent discharge of leachate and mixing of leachate with stormwater;

(d) Identification and capacity of temporary on site storage areas for recyclable materials, non processable wastes, unauthorized wastes, and residues;

(e) Provisions for solid waste and leachate containment;

(f) Identification of potential ground water and surface water contamination; and

(g) A plan for disposal of unmarketable recyclable materials and residue, and for waste handling capability in the event of breakdowns in the operations or equipment. Wastes shall be handled on a first in, first out basis. Stored putrescible wastes shall not be allowed to remain unprocessed for more than 48 hours unless provisions are made to control vectors and odors.

(3) Operational requirements. A permit application for a materials recovery facility shall include the following operational requirements:

(a) An operation and maintenance manual describing the facility operations, the persons responsible for the operations, and types of equipment that will be used. All activities at the facility shall be performed in accordance with the manual and plans for the facility. Manuals and plans shall be updated as operations change but no less frequently than upon renewal of the operation permit;

(b) A plan to screen the wastes received by the facility, that specifies inspection procedures and procedures to handle unauthorized wastes;

(c) A contingency plan to cover operations interruptions and emergencies such as fires, explosions, or natural disasters; and

(d) A closure plan that identifies the steps needed to close the facility. The closure plan shall provide for the following:

1. Owner or operator notification to the Department in writing 180 days before the date the facility is expected to close. No waste shall be received by the facility after the expected closing date;

2. Within 30 days after receiving the final solid waste shipment, the owner or operator shall remove or otherwise dispose of all solid waste or residue in accordance with the approved closure plan; and

3. Closure must be completed within 180 days after receiving the final waste quantity. Closure will include removal of all recovered materials from the site. When closure is completed, the owner or operator shall certify in writing to the Department that closure is complete. The Department will make an inspection within 30 days to verify the closure and advise the owner or operator of the closure status.

~~(4) Financial responsibility. The owner or operator of a materials recovery facility shall post a performance bond payable to the Department to cover the cost of properly closing the facility, if one or more of the following conditions exist:~~

~~(a) Where the owner of the land or materials recovery facility and the operator of the facility are not the same person;~~

~~(b) If the operator of the facility could stockpile waste that may create an environmental threat if the facility closes without properly disposing of the waste.~~

~~(5) Stormwater. Stormwater shall be controlled in accordance with Chapters 62-25 and 62-330, F.A.C. A copy of any permit for stormwater control issued by the Department, or documentation that no such permit is required, shall be submitted to the Department before the facility receives waste. Applicants should be aware that other government agencies may also regulate stormwater management and may require separate permits.~~

Specific Authority 403.061, 403.704 FS. Law Implemented 403.702, 403.704, 403.707 FS. History—New 1-6-93, Amended 5-19-94, Formerly 17-701.700, Repealed _____.

62-701.710 Waste Processing Facilities.

(1) Applicability.

(a) This rule applies to solid waste management facilities which do not dispose of solid waste on-site. This includes materials recovery facilities, transfer stations, and volume reduction facilities, but does not include used oil processing facilities, waste tire processing facilities, soil treatment facilities, yard trash processing facilities incinerators or combustors, or solid waste composting facilities, each of which is regulated under separate rules. However, in accordance with Rule 62-701.320(5)(c), F.A.C., owners or operators of facilities which manage several different types of wastes, including used oil, waste tires, contaminated soil, or compost, may apply for a single permit which addresses all applicable requirements.

(b) No person shall construct or operate a waste processing facility without a permit issued by the Department. Persons operating waste processing facilities under a permit (including a general permit) issued by the Department prior to [effective date], may continue to operate that facility under the terms of their existing permit until it expires. Persons who submitted a complete application for a materials recovery facility, and persons who submitted a general permit notification for a transfer station at least 30 days prior to [eff date] which the Department has not denied, are not subject to this rule until the time for renewal of that permit, if issued. All modifications or renewals of existing permits, and all new construction or operation permits issued on or after [effective date] for waste processing facilities, shall comply with this rule.

(c) For facilities operating under a general permit, a timely and sufficient application for an individual permit will be considered a renewal application for purposes of Section 120.60(4), F.S.

(d) A waste processing facility which ceases accepting waste prior to the expiration of its permit shall close in accordance with the provisions of that permit.

(e) This rule shall not apply to the following:

1. Green boxes, compactor units, permanent dumpsters, and other containers from which such wastes are transported to a landfill or other solid waste management facility, which do not accept waste from commercial waste haulers that accept waste from multiple generators, and which are not causing a sanitary nuisance;

2. Facilities owned or operated by local governments which serve as drop-off points for household waste, provided:

a. The facility accepts only household waste, which may include yard trash;

b. All putrescible waste, household garbage, or other waste which may produce leachate is containerized; and

c. The facility does not accept waste from commercial waste haulers that collect municipal solid waste from multiple generators;

3. Household hazardous waste collection centers operated by or exclusively on behalf of a local government;

4. Facilities at industrial operations where waste is stored prior to shipment to a solid waste management facility, or where industrial byproducts are segregated and managed, provided that the industrial operation is regulated under another Department permit or certification; and

5. Facilities used solely for the management of yard trash, including mulching operations, composting operations, and yard trash transfer stations.

(2) Application. A permit application for waste processing facility shall be submitted on Form 62-701.900(4). The form shall indicate whether the facility will operate as a materials recovery facility, transfer station, volume reduction plant, or some combination thereof, shall be signed and sealed by a professional engineer, and shall include the information required in Rules 62-701.320(5), (6), (7), and (8)(a), F.A.C., specifically including:

(a) A description of the solid waste that is proposed to be collected, stored, processed or disposed of by the facility, a projection of those waste types and quantities expected in future years, and the assumptions used to make the projections;

(b) A site plan, of a scale not greater than 200 feet to the inch, which shows the facility location, total acreage of the site, and any other relevant features such as water bodies or wetlands on or within 200 feet of the site, potable water wells on or within 500 feet of the site, and wells serving community water supplies on or within 1000 feet of the site;

(c) A description of the operation and functions of all processing equipment that will be used, with design criteria and expected performance. The description shall show the flow of solid waste and associated operations in detail, and shall include:

1. Regular facility operations as they are expected to occur;

2. Procedures for start up operations, and scheduled and unscheduled shut down operations; and

3. Potential safety hazards and control methods, including fire detection and control;

(d) A description of loading, unloading, storage, and processing areas;

(e) Identification and capacity of any on-site storage areas for recyclable materials, non-processable wastes, unauthorized wastes, and residues;

(f) A plan for disposal of unmarketable recyclable materials and residue, and for waste handling capability in the event of breakdowns in the operations or equipment;

(g) A boundary survey, legal description, and topographic survey of the property;

(h) An operation plan which describes how the applicant will comply with Rule 62-701.710(4), F.A.C.;

(i) A closure plan which describes generally how the applicant will comply with Rule 62-701.710(6), F.A.C.; and

(j) The financial assurance documentation required by Rule 62-701.710(7), F.A.C.

(3) Design requirements. Minimum design requirements for waste processing facilities are as follows:

(a) Tipping, processing, sorting, storage and compaction areas that are in an enclosed building or covered area shall have ventilation systems. The areas that are not enclosed shall be equipped with litter control devices and visual screening.

(b) The facility shall be designed with a leachate control system to prevent discharge of leachate and mixing of leachate with stormwater, and to minimize the presence of standing water.

(c) Provisions shall be made for evaluating the quantity of all incoming solid waste and recovered materials. Storage areas shall be designed to hold the expected volume of materials until they are transferred for disposal or recycling.

(4) Operational requirements.

(a) A permit application for a waste processing facility shall include the following operational requirements:

1. An operation and maintenance manual describing the facility operations, the persons responsible for the operations, and types of equipment that will be used. All activities at the facility shall be performed in accordance with the manual and plans for the facility. Manuals and plans shall be updated as operations change but no less frequently than upon renewal of the operation permit;

2. A plan to inspect the wastes received by the facility, that specifies inspection procedures and procedures to handle unauthorized wastes; and

3. A contingency plan to cover operational interruptions and emergencies such as fires, explosions, or natural disasters.

(b) Stored putrescible wastes shall not be allowed to remain unprocessed for more than 48 hours; however, if the operation plan includes provisions to control vectors and odors, putrescible wastes may be stored for up to seven days. Areas where waste is stored or processed shall be cleaned at least weekly to prevent odor or vector problems, and all drains and leachate conveyances shall be kept clean so that leachate flow is not impeded.

(c) Operators and spotters shall be trained in accordance with Rule 62-701.320(15), F.A.C.

1. A trained operator shall be on duty whenever the facility is operating. Operating hours shall be posted at the facility.

2. At least one trained spotter shall be on duty at all times that waste is received at the site to inspect the incoming waste. Any prohibited material shall be removed from the waste stream and placed into appropriate containers for disposal at a permitted facility in accordance with a schedule submitted as part of the operation plan.

(d) The facility shall be operated to control objectionable odors in accordance with Rule 62-296.320(2), F.A.C.

(e) Adequate fire protection shall be available at all times.

(f) Access to the facility shall be controlled during the active life of the facility by fencing or other effective barriers to prevent disposal of unauthorized solid waste.

(5) Certification. Certification of construction completion shall be done in accordance with Rule 62-701.320(9)(a), F.A.C.

(6) Closure requirements.

(a) The permit application shall include a closure plan that identifies the steps needed to close the facility.

(b) The owner or operator shall notify the Department in writing prior to ceasing operations, and shall specify a closing date. No waste shall be received by the facility after the closing date.

(c) Within 30 days after receiving the final solid waste shipment, the owner or operator shall remove or otherwise dispose of all solid waste or residue in accordance with the approved closure plan. Stored putrescible wastes shall continue to be managed in accordance with Rule 62-701.710(4)(b), F.A.C.

(d) Closure must be completed within 180 days after receiving the final solid waste shipment. Closure will include removal of all recovered materials from the site. When closure is completed, the owner or operator shall certify in writing to the Department that closure is complete. The Department will make an inspection within 30 days to verify the closure and advise the owner or operator of the closure status.

(7) Financial assurance.

(a) The owner or operator of a waste processing facility shall provide the Department with proof of financial assurance issued in favor of the State of Florida in the amount of the closing cost estimates for the facility. This proof, along with the closing cost estimates, shall be submitted to the Department as part of the permit application for the facility. Proof of financial assurance shall consist of one or more of the following financial instruments which comply with the requirements of Rule 62-701.630(6), F.A.C.: trust fund; surety bond guaranteeing payment; surety bond guaranteeing performance; irrevocable letter of credit; insurance; and financial test and corporate guarantee. If the owner or operator of the facility is a local government, an escrow account which complies with the requirements of Rule 62-701.630(5), F.A.C., may be used to provide proof of financial assurance. Financial documents shall be submitted on Form 62-701.900(5)(a), (b), (c), (d), (e), (f), (g), or (h), as appropriate.

(b) Closure cost estimates and annual updates thereof shall comply with the provisions of Rules 62-701.630(3) and (4), F.A.C., except that long-term care costs need not be included, and the costs shall be based upon compliance with this section.

(c) If a local government requires financial assurance for closure, which is at least as stringent as that required by this rule, the Department will attempt to establish a cooperative mechanism with the local government and thereby avoid duplicative financial requirements.

(8) Stormwater. Stormwater shall be controlled in accordance with Part IV of Chapter 373, F.S., and the rules promulgated thereunder. A copy of any permit for stormwater control issued by the Department, or documentation that no such permit is required, shall be submitted to the Department and construction authorized by that permit shall be completed before the facility receives waste. Applicants should be aware that other government agencies may also regulate stormwater management and may require separate permits.

(9) Recordkeeping.

(a) Operational records shall be maintained to include a daily log of the quantity of solid waste received, processed, stored, and removed from the site for recycling or disposal, and the county of origin of the waste, if known. These records shall include each type of solid waste, recovered materials, residuals, and unacceptable waste which is processed, recycled, and disposed. Such records shall be compiled on a monthly basis and shall be available for inspection by the Department. Records shall be retained at the facility for three years.

(b) The owner or operator of any facility which recycles solid waste shall submit an annual report to the Department on Form 62-701.900(7). This report shall include a summary of the amounts and types of wastes received and the amounts and types of wastes disposed of or recycled. The county of origin of materials which are recycled, or a statement that the county

of origin is unknown, shall be included in the report. The report shall be submitted no later than April 1 of each year beginning in 1998, and shall cover the preceding calendar year.

(10) Special requirements for facility types.

(a) Transfer stations which accept primarily household waste, commercial waste, or recovered materials, which manage waste on a first-in, first-out basis, and which store waste for no greater than 7 days are exempt from the requirement to provide financial assurance set forth in subsection (7) of this section.

(b) Waste processing facilities which accept only construction and demolition debris are exempt from the requirement to provide a leachate control system set forth in paragraph (3)(b) of this section, provided that all areas where waste is stored or processed are covered by a ground water monitoring system which meets the requirements of Rule 62-701.730(4)(b), F.A.C.

(11) Alternate procedures. The owner or operator of a facility may request alternate procedures and requirements in accordance with Rule 62-701.310, F.A.C. However, if such request is based upon the nature of the waste accepted at the facility (for example, if a facility accepts only segregated wastes which are expected to have a minimal environmental impact), the request will be submitted to and acted on by the appropriate District office of the Department as part of a permit application or modification, and need not be accompanied by any additional fee.

Specific Authority 403.061, 403.704 FS. Law Implemented 403.702, 403.704, 403.707 FS. History—New

62-701.730 Construction and Demolition Debris Disposal and Recycling.

(1) Applicability.

(a) No person shall construct or operate an off-site construction and demolition debris disposal facility without a permit issued by the Department. Except as otherwise specifically provided in this rule, such facilities which were constructed or operated in accordance with a general permit issued by the Department on or before June 1, 1996, may continue to operate in accordance with that general permit in accordance with the following schedule:

1. through 2. No change.

3. Owners or operators of facilities operating under a general permit issued after April 1, 1993, shall, by April 1, 1998, either submit a complete permit application that complies with this section, or shall:

a. Submit a ground water monitoring plan that complies with the requirements of Paragraph (4)(b) of this section, and a hydrogeological investigation which complies with the requirements of Subparagraph (2)(a)3. of this section, along with a \$500 processing fee as required by Rule 62-701.315(10) ~~62-4.050(4)(h)33~~. The plan shall be implemented within 90 days of submittal;

b. No change.

4. For owners or operators of facilities operating under a general permit issued after April 1, 1993, a modification to that general permit is hereby granted under the following conditions:

a. A person wishing to continue to operate the facility in accordance with a modified general permit shall notify the Department on Form 62-701.900(8).

b. through d. No change.

5. through 6. No change.

(b) through (f) No change.

(2) Application. A permit application for an off-site construction and demolition debris disposal facility, disposal unit, or lateral expansion shall be submitted on Form 62-701.900(6) and shall include the information required in Rules 62-701.320(5), (6), (7), and (8)(a), F.A.C., specifically including:

(a) An engineering report, signed and sealed by a professional engineer, that includes:

1. No change.

2. A geotechnical investigation which meets the criteria of Rule 62-701.410 420, F.A.C.

3. through 4. No change.

(b) through (c) No change.

(d) A closure plan which describes generally how the applicant will comply with Rules 62-701.730(9) and (10), F.A.C.; and

(e) The financial assurance documentation required by Rule 62-701.730(11), F.A.C.; and

~~(f) Documentation that the applicant either owns the land or has legal authorization from the land owner to use the land for a disposal facility and to conduct long-term care.~~

(3) Certification. Certification of construction completion shall be done in accordance with Rule 62-701.320(9)(a), F.A.C. After completion of construction of a construction and demolition debris disposal facility, and before acceptance of any construction and demolition debris, the engineer of record shall certify to the Department on Form 62-701.900(2) that the permitted construction is complete and that it was done in accordance with the plans submitted to the Department except where minor deviation was necessary. All deviations shall be described in detail and the reasons therefor enumerated. The applicant shall provide at least 7 days advance notice to the Department prior to accepting construction and demolition debris so that the Department has the opportunity to inspect the site.

(4) Other requirements. Except as specified in this section, the requirements of Rules 62-701.330 through 62-701.630, F.A.C., do not apply to construction and demolition debris disposal facilities.

(a) No change.

(b) A ground water monitoring plan which meets the criteria set forth in Rule 62-701.510 and Chapter 62-522, F.A.C., shall be included with the permit application, and shall be implemented and maintained by the owner or operator, with the following exceptions:

1. through 3. No change.

4. Detection wells shall be sampled and analyzed at least semi-annually for the following parameters:

Field Parameters	Laboratory Parameters
pH	Aluminum
Turbidity	Chlorides
Temperature	Nitrate
Specific conductivity	Sulfate
Dissolved oxygen	Total dissolved solids
Water elevations	Iron
Colors and sheens (by observation)	Sodium
	Arsenic
	Cadmium
	Chromium
	Lead
	Mercury
	Total ammonia – N Ammonia
	Phenols
	Those parameters listed in EPA Methods 601 and 602

5. Background water quality shall be ~~established sampled and analyzed~~ in accordance with the provisions of Rule 62-701.510(6)(b)(~~a~~), F.A.C., except that sulfate, aluminum and phenols shall also be analyzed for. In addition, all background and detection wells shall be sampled and analyzed at least once prior to permit renewal for those parameters listed in Rule 62-701.510(8)(a), F.A.C., as well as sulfate, aluminum and phenols.

6. No change.

(c) No change.

(d) Waste material from a waste processing facility which is mixed with Class I or Class III waste, either before or after processing, is not considered construction and demolition debris and may not be accepted for disposal at a construction and demolition debris disposal facility.

(5) Stormwater. Stormwater shall be controlled in accordance with Part IV of Chapter 373, F.S., and the rules promulgated thereunder Chapters 62-25 and 62-330, F.A.C. A copy of any permit for stormwater control issued by the Department, or documentation that no such permit is required, shall be submitted to the Department before the facility receives waste for disposal or recycling. Applicants should be aware that other government agencies may also regulate stormwater management and may require separate permits.

(6) No change.

(7) Operation requirements. Owners and operators of construction and demolition debris disposal facilities shall comply with the following requirements by May 1, 1997, or at the time of permit issuance, whichever is sooner:

(a) through (c) No change.

(d) A trained operator shall be on duty at the facility at all times that the facility is operating. In addition, a sufficient number of spotters ~~At least one spotter~~ shall be on duty at the working face to inspect the incoming waste at all times waste is being accepted at the site. Waste shall ~~must~~ be inspected after it is removed from the transport vehicle and prior to placement for final disposal. Any prohibited material shall be removed from the waste stream and placed into appropriate containers or secure storage areas for disposal or recycling at a facility authorized by the Department to receive such waste.

(e) The facility shall be operated to control objectionable odors in accordance with Rule 62-296.320(2), F.A.C. If objectionable odors are detected off-site, the owner or operator shall comply with the requirements of Rule 62-701.530(3)(b), F.A.C.

(f) No change.

(g) Plastic buckets may not be accepted at the facility unless they are empty when they arrive.

(h) Carpet remnants which are from a construction or demolition project may be accepted at the facility.

(8) Training. ~~Operators~~ Owners and operators of facilities shall ensure that operators and spotters employed at the facility shall be properly trained in accordance with Rule 62-701.320(15), F.A.C. to operate the facility, and to identify and properly manage any hazardous or prohibited materials which are received at the facility. A training plan shall be included as part of the permit application. The training plan shall either include a list and schedule of those classes offered to the public which will be attended by the facility's operators and spotters, or shall include a description of the facility's in-house training program and a demonstration that this program can be expected to adequately train operators and spotters to operate the facility and to identify and properly manage any hazardous or prohibited materials which are received at the facility. The training plan, along with records documenting how the training plan is being implemented, shall be kept at the facility at all times and be made available for inspection by Department staff. Owners and operators of facilities in operation prior to December 23, 1996, shall comply with this subsection by May 1, 1997, or at the time of permit issuance, whichever is sooner. Within one year of the date that the training plan is submitted to the Department, or within one year of the hiring of any particular operator, each operator shall complete at least 20 hours of training in a course described in the training plan. Within each three year period after successfully completing the initial training course, each operator shall complete at least 15 hours of continuing training in a course described in the training plan. Spotters must meet

~~the same training requirements as operators except that only 8 hours of initial training and 8 hours of continuing training are required. The Department will maintain a list of relevant training courses which are available in this State.~~

(9) No change.

(10) Long-term care. The owner or operator of the construction and demolition debris disposal facility shall continue to monitor and maintain the facility for five years from the date of closing. This time period shall be extended if assessment monitoring or corrective action has been initiated in accordance with Rule 62-701.510(7), F.A.C., or if site-specific conditions make it likely that any contamination which may emanate from ~~from~~ the disposal area would not be detected within five years.

(11) No change.

(12) Annual Reports. The owner or operator of the facility shall submit an annual report to the Department on Form 62-701.900(7). This report shall include a summary of the amounts and types of wastes received and the amounts and types of wastes disposed of or recycled. The county of origin of materials which are recycled, or a statement that the county of origin is unknown, shall be included in the report. The report shall be submitted no later than April 1 of each year beginning in 1998, and ~~had~~ shall cover the preceding calendar year. This provision applies to all facilities regardless of the compliance schedules in Rule 62-701.730(1), F.A.C.

(13) Recycling.

(a) The owner or operator of a facility which accepts construction and demolition debris for disposal and which also recovers materials from the construction and demolition debris waste stream for purposes of recycling shall meet the requirements of this section as well as the requirements of Rule 62-701.710 ~~62-701.700~~, F.A.C. If there is a conflict between this section and Rule 62-701.710 ~~62-701.700~~, F.A.C., this section shall govern. It is not necessary for the owner or operator to apply for a separate permit as a waste processing materials recovery facility or to pay an additional fee.

(b) The owner or operator of a facility which recovers materials from the construction and demolition debris waste stream for purposes of recycling but which does not dispose of any wastes on-site shall apply for a permit on Form 62-701.900(4)(6), and shall comply with the provisions of Rule 62-701.710 ~~62-701.700~~, F.A.C., with the following exceptions and additions:

1. ~~At least one spotter shall be on duty at all times that waste is received at the site to inspect the incoming waste. Any prohibited material shall be removed from the waste stream and placed into appropriate containers for disposal at a permitted facility in accordance with a schedule submitted as part of the operation plan.~~

2. ~~The training requirements of subsection (8) of this section apply.~~

3. The financial assurance requirements of subsection (11) of this section apply, except for those provisions relating to long-term care.

4. The reporting requirements of subsection (12) of this section apply.

5. The requirements of paragraphs (7)(c) and (e) of this section apply. Access to the facility shall be controlled during the active life of the facility, and the facility shall be operated to control objectionable odors in accordance with Rule 62-296.320(2), F.A.C.

6. The requirements of Rules 62-701.700(2)(c) and (e), F.A.C., regarding a leachate control system and leachate containment do not apply if all areas where waste is stored and processed are covered by a ground water monitoring system which meets the requirements of paragraph (4)(b) of this section. Owners and operators of facilities which were permitted prior to January 6, 1993, shall meet the requirements of Rules 62-701.700(2)(c) and (e), F.A.C., or shall meet the requirements of paragraph (4)(b) of this section, at the time of permit renewal.

(c) No change.

(14) No change.

(15) Clean debris. Clean debris may be used as fill or raw material in any area, including waters of the State, subject to receipt of an environmental resource permit from the Department where applicable. Clean debris used as fill material is not solid waste, and such use does not require a solid waste permit under this rule.

(16) through (19) No change.

(20) Fees. The fee for a permit to construct, operate, and close a construction and demolition debris disposal facility, including facilities that also recycle, is \$2500. The fee for a permit to construct, operate, and close a construction and demolition debris recycling facility is \$2000. The fee for renewing a disposal or recycling facility permit which does not involve additional construction is \$1000. The fee for renewing a disposal or recycling facility permit involving only long-term care is \$250.

(20)(21) No change.

Specific Authority 403.0877, 403.704, 403.707 FS. Law Implemented 403.0877, 403.706, 403.707 FS. History—New 8-2-89, Formerly 17-701.061, Amended 1-6-93, Formerly 17-701.730, Amended 12-23-96, 4-23-97, _____.

62-701.801 General Permit for Solid Waste Transfer Station.

(1) General Permit. A general permit is hereby granted to any person for the construction and operation of a solid waste transfer station that has been designed or will be operated in accordance with the standards and criteria set forth in Rules 62-4.540 and 62-701.300, F.A.C., and this section.

(2) Notification. Any person wishing to operate a transfer station pursuant to this section shall notify the Department on Form 62-701.900(4) and provide the following:

(a) Regional map. The regional map shall delineate the service area of the proposed transfer station.

(b) Site plan. The site plan shall include:

1. Site conditions and projected use including all site structures, buildings, fences, gates, entrances and exits, parking areas, on-site roadways, and signs;

2. Property boundaries, access roads, surface water bodies, and the location of 100-year flood plain boundaries;

3. Proposed structures and areas designated for unloading, sorting, storage, and loading, including dimensions, elevations, and floor plans of these structures and areas, and the general process flow; and

4. Adjacent properties including the location of public and private water supplies on these properties.

(c) Engineering report. The engineering report shall include:

1. A description of the general operating plan for the proposed facility including the origin, composition, and expected weight or volume of all solid waste to be accepted at the facility, the maximum time waste will be stored, where all wastes will be disposed, the capacity of the facility, the operating hours of the facility, and the expected life of the facility;

2. A description of all machinery and equipment to be used, including the design capacity;

3. A transfer plan specifying the transfer route, the number and type of transfer vehicles to be used, and how often solid waste will be transferred to the disposal site;

4. A description of the facility's drainage system and water supply system;

5. A plan for hiring and training equipment operators and other personnel concerning the operation of the facility; and

6. A contingency plan describing alternate solid waste handling procedures for periods of inoperation or delays in transporting solid waste.

(3) Design requirements. Minimum design requirements for transfer stations are as follows:

(a) On-site roads and unloading areas shall be designed for efficient movement and unloading of vehicles.

(b) Tipping, processing, sorting, storage and compaction areas that are in an enclosed building or covered area shall have ventilation systems. The areas that are not enclosed shall be equipped with litter control devices and visual screening.

(c) The facility shall be designed with a leachate control system to prevent discharge of leachate and mixing of leachate with stormwater.

(d) Provisions shall be made for weighing or measuring all incoming solid waste and recovered materials. Storage areas shall be designed to hold the expected volume of materials until they are transferred for disposal or recycling.

(e) Where the general public may use the transfer facility, safety procedures shall be established for private vehicles.

~~(4) Operational requirements.~~

~~(a) Prohibited wastes shall not be accepted at a transfer station. Handling of unauthorized wastes shall be addressed in the contingency plan.~~

~~(b) An attendant shall be on duty whenever the facility is operating. Operating hours shall be posted, and fencing, gates, or other means shall be used to prevent unauthorized access when the station is closed.~~

~~(c) Litter, insects, odors and vectors shall be controlled to prevent sanitary nuisance and unsightly appearance.~~

~~(d) Wastes shall be handled on a first in, first out basis to the extent practicable. All waste storage areas shall be cleaned at the end of each day's operations or during continuous operation, as necessary, to prevent odor or vector problems. All floors shall be free of standing liquids. Drainage from cleaning areas shall be discharged to sanitary sewers or the equivalent.~~

~~(e) Adequate fire protection must be available at all times.~~

~~(f) Recovered materials shall be clearly identified and stored in a safe, sanitary manner. A record of the type and quantity of recovered materials shall be maintained and reported as part of the county's recycling program.~~

~~(g) Operational records shall be maintained to include a daily log of the quantity of solid waste received and transported and the origin of the waste. Such records shall be compiled on a monthly basis and shall be available for inspection by the Department. Reports shall be retained at the station for three years.~~

~~(5) Certification of construction completion. Within 30 days of completion of construction, the engineer of record shall certify to the Department that the permitted construction is complete and that it was done in accordance with the plans submitted to the Department except where minor deviation was necessary. All deviations shall be described in detail and the reasons therefor enumerated.~~

~~(6) Stormwater. Stormwater shall be controlled in accordance with Chapters 62-25 and 62-330, F.A.C. A copy of any permit for stormwater control issued by the Department, or documentation that no such permit is required, shall be submitted to the Department before the facility receives waste. Applicants should be aware that other government agencies may also regulate stormwater management and may require separate permits.~~

~~(7) Any person wishing to construct or operate a transfer station pursuant to this section shall publish, in a newspaper of general circulation in the area affected, notice of application for a general permit. Such public notice of application shall be published within 14 days after the applicant notifies the Department. Within 21 days after publication of notice, any person whose substantial interests are affected may request a hearing in accordance with Section 120.57, F.S. No person shall begin work pursuant to a general permit until after the~~

~~time for requesting a hearing has passed or, if a hearing is requested, until final agency action is taken authorizing construction.~~

~~Specific Authority 403.814(1) FS. Law Implemented 403.061, 403.087, 403.088, 403.702-403.73, 403.814 FS. History--New 7-8-82, Formerly 17-4.61, 17-4.610, 17-7.801, Amended 1-6-93, 5-19-94, Formerly 17-701.801, Repealed _____.~~

~~62-701.803 General Permit for Off-site Disposal of Land Clearing Debris.~~

~~(1) Notification. Notwithstanding the provisions of Rule 62-701.730, F.A.C., facilities which accept for disposal only land clearing debris may operate under a general permit pursuant to Part III of Rule 62-4, F.A.C., and this section. For purposes of this rule, the term "land clearing debris" means rocks, soils, tree remains, trees, and other vegetative matter which normally results from land clearing or land development operations for a construction project. Land clearing debris does not include vegetative matter from lawn maintenance, commercial or residential landscape maintenance, right-of-way or easement maintenance, farming operations, nursery operations, or any other sources not related directly to a construction project. The owner or operator of the land clearing debris disposal facility shall notify the Department in writing on Form 62-701.900(3) of the intent to use this general permit. Owners or operators of solid waste management facilities which have a permit under Chapter 62-701, F.A.C., to receive land clearing debris are exempt from this requirement. The notification shall include:~~

~~(a) A site plan, of a scale not greater than 200 feet to the inch, which shows the project location and identifies the proposed disposal areas, total acreage of the site and of the proposed disposal area, and any other relevant features such as water bodies, wetlands, or potable water wells on or within 200 ~~500~~ feet of the site;~~

~~(b) Identification of ground water levels at the site, including the seasonal high ground water level if known;~~

~~(c) A general description of the facility operations, including equipment and personnel planned for the operation and closure of the facility, and a training plan which complies with the requirements of Rule 62-701.320(15), F.A.C.;~~

~~(d) through (g) No change.~~

~~(h) Documentation that the applicant either owns the land or has legal authorization from the landowner ~~land owner~~ to use the land for a disposal facility.~~

~~(2) Certification. Certification of construction completion shall be done in accordance with Rule 62-701.320(9)(a), F.A.C. Within 30 days of completion of construction, the applicant or the engineer of record shall certify to the Department that the permitted construction is complete and that it was done in accordance with the plans submitted to the Department except where minor deviation was necessary. All deviations shall be described in detail and the reasons therefor enumerated.~~

(3) Other requirements. The requirements of Rules 62-701.330 through 62-701.630, F.A.C., do not apply to land clearing debris disposal facilities, provided that none of the prohibitions contained in Rule 62-701.300, F.A.C., or the water quality standards contained in Chapters 62-3 and 62-302, F.A.C., shall be violated.

(4) Stormwater. Stormwater shall be controlled in accordance with Part IV of Chapter 373, F.S., and the rules promulgated thereunder Chapters 62-25 and 62-330, F.A.C. A copy of any permit for stormwater control issued by the Department, or documentation that no such permit is required, shall be submitted to the Department before the facility receives waste for disposal. Applicants should be aware that other government agencies may also regulate stormwater management and may require separate permits.

(5) through (7) No change.

(8) Inspection of waste. At least one spotter shall be on duty at the working face at all times that the site is operating to inspect the incoming waste. Any material other than land clearing debris shall be removed from the waste stream and placed into appropriate containers for disposal at a permitted facility. Spotters shall be trained in accordance with Rule 62-701.320(15), F.A.C.

(9) through (12) No change.

(13) A general permit issued under this section shall be valid for five years. ~~The permit fee shall be \$100, as required under Rule 62-4.040, F.A.C.~~

Specific Authority 403.704, 403.707, 403.814 FS. Law Implemented 403.707, 403.814 FS. History--New 8-2-89, Amended 1-6-93, 1-2-94, 5-19-94, Formerly 17-701.803, Amended 12-23-96, 4-23-97, _____.

62-701.900 Forms.

The forms used by the Department in the solid waste management program are adopted and incorporated by reference in this section. The form is listed by rule number, which is also the form number, and with the subject, title and effective date. Copies of forms may be obtained from a local District Office or by writing to the Florida Department of Environmental Protection, DEP Library, 2600 Blair Stone Road, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2400.

(1) Application to Construct, Operate, Modify, or Close a Solid Waste Management Facility, effective _____ ~~May 19, 1994.~~

(2) Certification of Construction Completion of a Solid Waste Management Facility, effective May 19, 1994.

(3) Notification of Intent to Use a General Permit for a Land Clearing Debris Disposal Facility, effective _____ ~~12-23-96.~~

(4) Application to Construct, Operate, or Modify a Waste Processing Facility, effective _____ ~~Notification of Intent to Use a General Permit to Construct and Operate a Transfer Station, effective May 19, 1994.~~

(5) Financial mechanisms for solid waste management facilities requiring closure and/or long-term care, effective _____ ~~May 19, 1994.~~

- (a) Solid Waste Facility Irrevocable Letter of Credit.
- (b) Solid Waste Facility Financial Guarantee Bond.
- (c) Solid Waste Facility Performance Bond.
- (d) Solid Waste Facility Closure/Long-Term Care Insurance Certificate.
- (e) Solid Waste Facility Financial Test.
- (f) Solid Waste Facility Corporate Guarantee.
- (g) Solid Waste Facility Trust Fund Agreement to Demonstrate Closure and/or Long-Term Care Financial Assurance.

(h) Solid Waste Facility Standby Trust Fund Agreement.

(6) Application to Construct, Operate, or Modify a Construction and Demolition Debris Disposal or Disposal with ~~or Recycling Facility, effective _____~~ April 23, 1997.

(7) Annual Report for a Construction and Demolition Debris Disposal Facility, effective 12-23-96.

(8) Permit Transfer Form, effective _____ ~~Notification of Intent to Modify a General Permit for a Construction and Demolition Debris Disposal Facility, effective April 23, 1997.~~

(9) through (25) No change.

(26) ~~Application and Reporting Form for Recovered Materials Certification, effective _____~~ 12-23-96.

(27) Reporting Form for Recovered Materials, effective _____.

(28) Financial Assurance Cost Estimating Form, effective _____.

Specific Authority 403.704 FS. Law Implemented 403.707 FS. History--New 8-2-89, Amended 1-6-93, 5-19-94, Formerly 17-701.900, Amended 12-23-96, 4-23-97, _____.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE: Bill Hinkley, Chief, Bureau of Solid and Hazardous Waste

NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: John Ruddell, Director, Division of Waste Management

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: February 17, 1999

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: September 3, 1999

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

Board of Optometry

RULE TITLE:

RULE NO.:

Citations

64B13-15.009

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The proposed rule amendment is intended to address the failure to respond to a continuing education audit a violation appropriate for issuance of a citation.

SUMMARY: The proposed rule amendment adds the failure to respond to a continuing audit as a violation appropriate for issuance of a citation.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST: No Statement of Estimated Regulatory Cost was prepared.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated costs, or to provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 463.005, 456.077 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 456.077 FS.

IF REQUESTED WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATE AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW (IF NOT REQUESTED, THIS HEARING WILL NOT BE HELD):

TIME AND DATE: 10:00 a.m., March 21, 2001

PLACE: Room 324, Collins Building, 107 W. Gaines Street, Tallahassee, FL

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: Joe Baker, Jr., Executive Director, Board of Optometry/MQA, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C07, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3257

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

64B13-15.009 Citations.

(1) through (3) No change.

(4) Pursuant to Section 456.077, Florida Statutes, the Board sets forth below those violations for which there is no substantial threat to the public health, safety, and welfare; or, if there is a substantial threat to the public health, safety, and welfare, such potential for harm has been removed prior to the issuance of the citation. The Board hereby designates the following as citation violations which shall result in a penalty of two hundred fifty dollars (\$250.00).

(a) through (d) No change.

(e) Failure to respond to a continuing education audit as required by Rule 64B13-5.001, F.A.C.

(5) through (7) No change.

Specific Authority 463.005, 456.077 FS. Law Implemented 456.077 FS. History—New 1-1-92, Formerly 21Q-15.009, 61F8-15.009, 59V-15.009, Amended 3-21-00,_____.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE: Board of Optometry

NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Board of Optometry

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: January 8, 2001

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: January 26, 2001

FISH AND WILDLIFE CONSERVATION COMMISSION

Freshwater Fish and Wildlife

RULE TITLE: Definitions
RULE NO.: 68A-1.004

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose of the proposed rule is to revise the definitions and names of the agency’s regional boundaries.

SUMMARY: The proposed rule would change region names and revise the list of counties that define the regional boundaries to conform with Commission action taken in November 2000. Proposed changes would adjust county references in four of the agency’s five administrative regions to reflect the movement of those counties to a new administrative region and change names of four of the five administrative regions.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST: It is estimated that the proposed action will cost the agency approximately \$200 for administrative preparation and \$6 for legal advertising. No other significant economic impacts are expected.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated regulatory costs, or to provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const.

A HEARING ON THE PROPOSED RULE WILL BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATE AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

TIME AND DATES: 8:30 a.m., each day, March 29-30, 2001

PLACE: Holiday Inn – Capital, 1355 Apalachee Parkway, Tallahassee, Florida

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE AND ECONOMIC STATEMENT IS: James Antista, General Counsel, Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission, 620 South Meridian Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1600

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

68A-1.004 Definitions.

The following definitions are for the purpose of carrying out the provisions of the rules of the Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission relating to wild animal life and freshwater aquatic life. As used herein, the singular includes the plural. The following shall be construed respectively to mean:

(1) through (60) No change.

(61) Regions – The following geographical portions of the state:

(a) Southwest Region: Charlotte, DeSoto, ~~Glades~~, Hardee, ~~Hernando~~, Highlands, Hillsborough, Lee, Manatee, Pasco, Pinellas, Polk and Sarasota counties.

(b) ~~Northeast Central~~ Region: Alachua, Baker, Bradford, Citrus, Clay, Columbia, Dixie, ~~Duval~~, Gilchrist, Hamilton, Hernando, Lafayette, Levy, Madison, ~~Nassau~~, Suwannee, Taylor and Union counties.

(c) No change.

(d) ~~Everglades South~~ Region: Broward, Collier, Dade, Glades, Hendry, ~~Indian River~~, Martin, Monroe, Okeechobee, Palm Beach and St. Lucie counties.

(e) ~~Central Northeast~~ Region: Brevard, Citrus, Duval, Flagler, Indian River, Lake, Marion, Nassau, Orange, Osceola, Putnam, Seminole, Sumter, St. Johns and Volusia counties.

(62) through (89) No change.

Specific Authority Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const. Law Implemented Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const. History—New 8-1-79, Amended 6-15-81, 11-17-81, 6-21-82, 7-1-83, 7-1-84, 7-1-85, Formerly 39-1.04, Amended 6-1-86, 5-10-87, 10-8-87, 3-1-88, 4-13-88, 4-27-89, 4-11-90, 7-1-92, 4-20-93, 3-1-94, 7-1-94, 4-1-96, 11-23-97, 7-1-98, 6-23-99, Formerly 39-1.004, Amended 7-1-00,_____.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE: Gregory L. Holder

NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Dr. Allan L. Egbert

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: January 3, 2001

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: November 22, 2000

FISH AND WILDLIFE CONSERVATION COMMISSION

Freshwater Fish and Wildlife

RULE TITLE: General Information Concerning Agency
PURPOSE AND EFFECT: These are technical changes to the rule.

RULE NO.: 68A-2.005

SUMMARY: The changes correct the addresses of our regional offices, make clear how many times a year the Commission meets (5) and adds the agency web site as a location to obtain Commission agendas.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST: None.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated regulatory costs, or to provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const.
LAW IMPLEMENTED: 120.525 FS., Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const.

A HEARING ON THE PROPOSED RULE WILL BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATE AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

TIME AND DATES: 8:30 a.m., each day, March 29-30, 2001
PLACE: Holiday Inn – Capital, 1355 Apalachee Parkway, Tallahassee, FL

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE AND ECONOMIC STATEMENT IS: James Antista, General Counsel, Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission, 620 South Meridian Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1600

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

68A-2.005 General Information Concerning Agency.

(1) The Commission headquarters is located at 620 South Meridian Street, Tallahassee, Florida ~~32399-1600~~ ~~32304~~, and is open for business between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. on all week days, except State holidays. Regional offices are located at:

(a) ~~3900 Drane Field Road~~ ~~2202 Lakeland Hills Boulevard~~, Lakeland, Florida ~~33811~~ ~~33804~~.

(b) Route 7, Box ~~440~~ ~~402~~, Lake City, Florida 32055.

(c) ~~3911 Highway 2321~~ ~~226 Airport Drive~~, Panama City, Florida ~~32409~~ ~~32405~~.

(d) ~~8535 Northlake Boulevard~~ ~~551 North Military Trail~~, West Palm Beach, Florida ~~33412~~ ~~33406~~.

(e) 1239 Southwest Tenth Street, Ocala, Florida ~~34474~~ ~~32670~~.

(2) No change.

(3) The Commission ~~normally~~ holds public business meetings on a regular basis ~~on a monthly basis~~, convening at various locations around the State ~~for the convenience of the public and under the auspices of Florida Statute 372.061~~. Notice of these meetings is published in the Florida Administrative Weekly periodical as well as by news releases. Copies of meeting agendas can be obtained from Commission headquarters in Tallahassee and from the Commission website at www.state.fl.us/fwc/.

Specific Authority Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const.. Law Implemented 120.525 FS. History—New 8-1-79, Formerly 39-2.05, 39-2.005, Amended_____.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE: Lt. Colonel Julie Jones

NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Dr. Allan L. Egbert

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: January 24, 2001

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: January 12, 2001

FISH AND WILDLIFE CONSERVATION COMMISSION

Freshwater Fish and Wildlife

RULE TITLE: Permits for Hunting or Other Recreational
RULE NO.: 68A-9.004

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose of the proposed rule is to add a random drawing component to the issuance of quota permits for Miami Corporation WMA.

SUMMARY: The proposed rule would allocate eighty (80) percent of the available quota permits for first-come, first-served issuance and twenty (20) percent for a random drawing.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST: It is estimated that the proposed action will cost the agency \$175 in administrative costs and \$120 for legal advertising. No other significant economic impacts are anticipated.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated regulatory costs, or to provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const.

A HEARING ON THE PROPOSED RULE WILL BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATE AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

TIME AND DATES: 8:30 a.m., each day, March 29-30, 2001

PLACE: Holiday Inn – Capital, 1355 Apalachee Parkway, Tallahassee, Florida

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE AND ECONOMIC STATEMENT IS: James Antista, General Counsel, Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission, 620 South Meridian Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1600

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

68A-9.004 Permits for Hunting or Other Recreational Use on Type I Wildlife Management Areas.

- (1) No change.
- (a) through (f) No change.

(g) Applications for the Miami Corporation WMA shall be filed with the Bureau of Licensing and Permitting no earlier than 8:00 a.m. on the third Monday in July. Only one application per person shall be submitted and applications shall be accepted only from the U. S. Postal Service or a commercial delivery service such as United Parcel Service, Federal Express, or licensed couriers. Hand delivered or faxed applications or any applications received earlier than 8:00 a.m. on the third Monday in July shall be rejected. A quota of eighty (80) percent of the permits available for issuance shall be issued on a first-come, first-served basis from applications received on or after 8:00 a.m. on the third Monday in July. When the first-come, first-served quota is filled, all applications remaining and those received no later than 5:00 p.m. on the second Monday following the third Monday in July shall be included in a random drawing for the remaining twenty (20) percent of the permits.

- (2) No change.

Specific Authority Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const. Law Implemented 372.121, 372.57, 375.313 FS. History—New 8-1-79, Amended 6-4-81, 6-21-82, Formerly 39-9.04, Amended 6-2-86, 11-1-89, 7-16-98, 5-13-99, Formerly 39-9.004, Amended 7-1-00,_____.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE: Mr. Timothy A. Breault

NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Dr. Allan L. Egbert

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: February 2, 2001

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: November 22, 2000

FISH AND WILDLIFE CONSERVATION COMMISSION

Freshwater Fish and Wildlife

RULE TITLE: Regulations Governing the Operation of Private Hunting Preserves

RULE NO.: 68A-12.010

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose and effect of the proposed rule is to reduce hybridization between mallards and mottled ducks resulting from release of mallards on hunting preserves. This rule change would eliminate hunting preserves as a source of feral, captive-reared mallards by eliminating the provision for preserves to release mallards for shooting purposes. Release of black ducks also would be prohibited to preclude the potential for hybridization between black ducks and mottled ducks.

SUMMARY: Proposed rule changes would eliminate the provision for private hunting preserves to release mallards or black ducks for shooting purposes, except that hunting preserves that have commercially released mallards for shooting during the period January 1, 1998, through December 31, 2000, would be allowed to release mallards until June 30, 2006, provided they remain licensed continuously.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST: It is estimated that the proposed action will cost the agency approximately \$850 for administrative preparation and \$200 for advertising.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated regulatory costs, or to provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const.

A HEARING ON THE PROPOSED RULE WILL BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATE AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

TIME AND DATES: 8:30 a.m., each day, March 29-30, 2001

PLACE: Holiday Inn – Capital, 1355 Apalachee Parkway, Tallahassee, Florida

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE AND ECONOMIC STATEMENT IS: James Antista, General Counsel, Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission, 620 South Meridian Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1600

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

68A-12.010 Regulations Governing the Operation of Private Hunting Preserves.

(1) The executive director may issue a license as provided by § 372.661, F.S., for the establishment and operation of a private hunting preserve to allow the release and taking of captive-raised native and non-native game animals, as specified herein. Application for such license shall be made on Form GFC 333 (incorporated herein by reference, effective April 15, 1992 and available at the Commission's Tallahassee and regional offices). No hunting preserve license shall be issued until the premises of such preserve has been inspected by a representative of the Commission and the requirements of this section have been met.

(2) through (11) No change.

(12) Only mallards ~~or black ducks~~ which are more than two generations removed from the wild may be released for shooting. Such birds may not be handled so as to attract wild waterfowl. No person shall be permitted to shoot game farm ducks on any hunting preserve situated on a marsh, lake, river or any other place where there are concentrations of wild waterfowl or if the operation of the preserve attracts concentrations of wild waterfowl. Mallards may be released for shooting on hunting preserves, including preserves denoted as either private or commercial on GFC Form 333, only until June 30, 2006, and only on hunting preserves that:

(a) Produce documentary evidence of having commercially released mallards for shooting during the period January 1, 1998, through December 31, 2000; and

(b) Have been continuously licensed per § 372.661, F.S., since July 1, 2001.

(13) through (19) No change.

(20) The minimum acreage provisions of subparagraphs ~~(4)(3)(b)1.-3.~~ and the yardage requirement in subsection ~~(7)(6)~~, shall not apply to those operations licensed prior to July 1, 1996.

Specific Authority Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const. Law Implemented Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const. History--New 8-1-79, Amended 6-4-81, 6-21-82, 7-1-83, Formerly 39-12.10, Amended 8-5-86, 4-11-90, 4-15-92, 10-20-96, 6-23-99, Formerly 39-12.010, Amended _____.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE:
Mr. Timothy A. Breault

NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Dr. Allan L. Egbert

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: January 3, 2001

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: January 12, 2001

FISH AND WILDLIFE CONSERVATION COMMISSION

Freshwater Fish and Wildlife

RULE TITLE: Quota Permits; Antlerless Deer Permits; Special-Opportunity Permits

RULE NO.: 68A-15.005

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose and effect of the proposed rule is to reincorporate a revised list for quota and special-opportunity permits.

SUMMARY: The proposed changes would reincorporate a new reference list for quota and special-opportunity permits. The new list has been revised to reorganize quota hunts consistent with realignment of administrative regions; to make technical corrections; to reduce hunter quotas on Big Shoals WMA to accommodate acreage reductions (archery reduced from 50 to 35, muzzleloading gun reduced from 30 to 20, and spring turkey reduced from 30 to 20); to reduce hunter quotas on Camp Blanding WMA to accommodate acreage reductions (spring turkey reduced from 65 to 35); and to convert hog hunt quotas on Triple N Ranch WMA from special-opportunity to regular quota and increase the hunter quota from 15 to 50.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST: It is estimated that the proposed action will cost the agency approximately \$664 for administrative preparation and \$27 for legal advertising. No other significant economic impacts are expected.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated regulatory costs, or to provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const.

A HEARING ON THE PROPOSED RULE WILL BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATE AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

TIME AND DATES: 8:30 a.m., each day, March 29-30, 2001
PLACE: Holiday Inn – Capital, 1355 Apalachee Parkway, Tallahassee, Florida

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE AND ECONOMIC STATEMENT IS: James Antista, General Counsel, Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission, 620 South Meridian Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1600

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

68A-15.005 Quota Permits; Antlerless Deer Permits; Special-Opportunity Permits.

(1) No change.

(2) The maximum number of quota and special-opportunity permits to be issued for each wildlife management area, fish management area, or wildlife and environmental area shall be maintained on a list titled "Quota

and special-opportunity permits,” effective ~~April 30, 2000~~ July 1, 2001, incorporated herein by reference and kept by the Commission at its headquarters office and regional offices.

(3) through (4) No change.

Specific Authority Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const. Law Implemented Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const. History—New 8-1-79, Amended 5-19-80, 6-22-80, 12-29-80, 6-4-81, 8-4-81, 6-21-82, 7-29-82, 7-1-83, 7-5-84, 7-1-85, 9-19-85, Formerly 39-15.05, Amended 5-7-86, 6-10-86, 5-10-87, 6-8-87, 10-8-87, 4-13-88, 6-7-88, 7-1-89, 7-1-90, 9-1-90, 7-1-91, 7-2-91, 7-1-92, 8-23-92, 7-1-93, 7-1-94, 3-30-95, 6-20-95, 8-15-95, 4-1-96, 6-27-96, 9-15-96, 10-20-96, 6-1-97, 8-7-97, 11-23-97, 7-1-98, 7-2-98, 8-11-98, 12-28-98, 5-13-99, Formerly 39-15.005, Amended 12-9-99, 4-30-00.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE: Mr. Timothy A. Breault
NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Dr. Allan L. Egbert
DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: January 3, 2001
DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: November 22, 2000

FISH AND WILDLIFE CONSERVATION COMMISSION

Freshwater Fish and Wildlife

RULE TITLE: Specific Regulations for Type I Wildlife
RULE NO.: 68A-15.061

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: Management Areas – Southwest Region
The purposes of the proposed rule changes are to adjust hunting season dates on all regional Wildlife Management Areas (WMAs) to conform with proposed 2001-2002 hunting season dates for the appropriate hunting zones; to add or delete WMAs to reflect changes in the boundaries of administrative regions; to change references to the name of the region; and to make changes in other regulations necessary to improve efficiency in the management of fish and wildlife resources and public use on WMAs.

SUMMARY: Proposed rule changes would adjust all applicable hunting season dates and other references to such dates on WMAs in the region to conform with 2000-2001 hunting season dates for the appropriate hunting zones. Proposed changes would delete references to Chassahowitzka, Croom, and Fisheating Creek WMAs to reflect movement of those WMAs to new administrative regions and change references to the name of the administrative region from South to Southwest. Changes also would establish or revise specific area regulations on WMAs.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST: It is estimated that the proposed action will cost the agency approximately \$1,080 for administrative preparation and \$266 for legal advertising. No other significant economic impacts are expected.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated regulatory costs, or to provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const.

A HEARING ON THE PROPOSED RULE WILL BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATE AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

TIME AND DATES: 8:30 a.m., each day, March 29-30, 2001

PLACE: Holiday Inn – Capital, 1355 Apalachee Parkway, Tallahassee, Florida

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE AND ECONOMIC STATEMENT IS: James Antista, General Counsel, Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission, 620 South Meridian Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1600

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

68A-15.061 Specific Regulations for Type I Wildlife Management Areas – Southwest South Region.

~~(1) Croom Wildlife Management Area~~

~~(a) Open season:~~

~~1. Muzzleloading gun — October 27-29.~~

~~2. General gun — November 11 through December 3.~~

~~3. Small game — December 4 through March 4.~~

~~4. Spring turkey — March 20-22, April 3-5 and April 17-19.~~

~~5. Fox, raccoon and bobcat — December 16 through March 12.~~

~~Hunting is permitted from 5 p.m. Thursday to sunrise Sunday with dogs only. No guns allowed.~~

~~6. Fishing and frogging — Throughout year.~~

~~(b) Legal to take: All legal game, fish, frogs and furbearers. No size or bag limit on wild hogs.~~

~~(c) Camping: Permitted only at designated campsites. A permit issued by the Division of Forestry is required at the Silver Lake, Twin Ponds, Hog Island, River Junction and East Hunt campsites.~~

~~(d) General regulations:~~

~~1. Hunting with dogs is prohibited November 11 — December 3. Hunting with dogs other than bird dogs is prohibited December 4 — December 13, except that dogs may be used for hunting fox, raccoon or bobcat during the fox, raccoon and bobcat season, and dogs with a shoulder height of 15 inches or less may be used to hunt small game during the small game season in the portion of the area south of the Tucker Hill Croom graded road, bounded on the east by Croom Rital Road to its juncture with Interstate 75 and thence bounded by said interstate.~~

~~2. Motorcycles and all terrain vehicles may be operated off roads in Sections 17, 18, 19, 30, 31 and those parts of Sections 7 and 8 lying south of the old railroad right of way, Township 22 South, Range 21 East (Croom Motorcycle area)~~

only. Operation of motorcycles and all-terrain vehicles in this area is permitted throughout the year but all such vehicles shall be permitted by the state Division of Forestry. Vehicles may be operated only on named or numbered roads in that portion of the area lying outside the Croom Motorcycle Area, but such vehicles must be properly licensed under Chapter 320, Florida Statutes, or otherwise legal to operate on public roads. During the general gun, muzzleloading gun and small game seasons, motorcycles or all-terrain vehicles are prohibited on that portion of the area lying outside the Croom Motorcycle Area

3. ~~Horses are prohibited during the general gun and muzzleloading gun seasons. Horses may be ridden only on named or numbered roads or on designated horse trails.~~

4. ~~The possession of firearms is prohibited at all times in Sections 17, 18, 19, 30, 31 and those parts of Sections 7 and 8 lying south of the old railroad right-of-way, Township 22 South, Range 21 East.~~

5. ~~Only tents, trailers or self-propelled camping vehicles may be used for camping.~~

6. ~~During the general gun and muzzleloading gun seasons, all game taken shall be checked at the check station.~~

7. ~~The possession of guns is prohibited on the Withlacoochee State Trail. Hunters shall only use designated crossings to transport guns across the State Trail.~~

~~(1)(2)~~ Green Swamp Wildlife Management Area

(a) Open season:

1. General gun – November ~~10~~ ~~11~~ through January ~~6~~ ~~7~~.

2. Archery – September ~~22~~ ~~23~~ through October ~~21~~ ~~22~~, Fridays, Saturdays and Sundays only.

3. Small game – January ~~12~~ ~~13~~ through February ~~10~~ ~~11~~, Saturdays and Sundays only.

4. Spring turkey – March ~~16~~ ~~17~~ through April ~~21~~ ~~22~~.

5. Fishing and frogging – Permitted during periods in which hunting is allowed; and Saturdays and Sundays from May ~~4~~ ~~5~~ to June ~~16~~ ~~17~~. Fishing and frogging is permitted at all other times provided that access is by foot only.

(b) through (c) No change.

(d) General regulations:

1. through 7. No change.

8. Camps shall be removed by 9 p.m. October ~~21~~ ~~22~~, and by 8 p.m. January ~~6~~ ~~7~~, February ~~10~~ ~~11~~, April ~~21~~ ~~22~~ and June ~~16~~ ~~18~~.

9. No change.

~~(2)(3)~~ Green Swamp Wildlife Management Area – West Unit

(a) Open season:

1. Special-opportunity turkey – March ~~16-19~~ ~~17-20~~ and ~~26-29~~ ~~27-30~~, March ~~30~~ ~~31~~ – April ~~2~~ ~~3~~, ~~9-12~~ ~~10-13~~, and ~~13-16~~ ~~14-17~~.

2. Special-opportunity archery – September ~~22-25~~ ~~23-26~~ and October ~~2-5~~ ~~3-6~~.

3. Special-opportunity general gun – November ~~10-13~~ ~~11-14~~ and ~~17-20~~ ~~18-21~~, and December ~~11-14~~ ~~12-15~~.

4. Special-opportunity hog-still – February ~~8-10~~ ~~9-11~~.

5. Special-opportunity hog-dog – February ~~20-22~~ ~~21-23~~.

6. Small game – January ~~4-6~~ ~~5-7~~ and ~~11-13~~ ~~12-14~~.

7. through 8. No change.

(b) through (d) No change.

~~(3)(4)~~ Fred C. Babcock/Cecil M. Webb Wildlife Management Area

(a) Open season:

1. General gun – October ~~27~~ ~~28~~ through November ~~4~~ ~~5~~.

2. Small game –

a. November ~~10-18~~ ~~11-19~~ and

b. November ~~21~~ ~~22~~ through January ~~13~~ ~~14~~ on Wednesdays, Thursdays, Saturdays, Sundays only and November ~~23~~ ~~24~~.

3. No change.

4. Archery – September ~~8-9~~ ~~9-10~~.

(b) through (c) No change.

(d) General regulations:

1. through 2. No change.

3. No change.

a. October ~~27~~ ~~28~~ through November ~~4~~ ~~5~~, by walking hunters.

b. No change.

c. January ~~26-27~~ ~~27-28~~.

d. No change.

4. No change.

5. Hunting camps may be set up after 5 p.m. October ~~19~~ ~~20~~ and shall be removed by 9 p.m. the last day of the small game season. Camping is permitted from 5 p.m. Friday to 9 p.m. Sunday and on Memorial Day, Independence Day and Labor Day during the remainder of the year.

6. Bird dogs may be trained in designated areas during the bird dog training season, September ~~15~~ ~~16~~ through February ~~10~~ ~~11~~. Dogs shall be caged or leashed in camp areas. Hunting with dogs during the general gun season is prohibited.

7. through 10. No change.

~~(4)(5)~~ Fred C. Babcock/Cecil M. Webb Wildlife Management Area – Yucca Pens Unit

(a) Open season:

1. General gun – October ~~27~~ ~~28~~ through November ~~4~~ ~~5~~.

2. Small game – November ~~10~~ ~~11~~ through January ~~13~~ ~~14~~ on Wednesdays, Thursdays, Saturdays, Sundays only and November ~~23~~ ~~24~~.

3. No change.

(b) through (d) No change.

~~(5)(6)~~ Upper Hillsborough Wildlife Management Area

(a) Open season:

1. Archery – December ~~8-16~~ ~~9-17~~ and January ~~5-13~~ ~~6-14~~, Saturdays and Sundays only.

2. Muzzleloading gun – November ~~10~~ ~~11~~ through December ~~2~~ ~~3~~, Saturdays and Sundays only.

3. Small game – January ~~19~~ ~~13~~ through February ~~3~~ ~~4~~, Saturdays and Sundays only.

4. Spring turkey – March ~~20-21~~ ~~21-22~~, ~~27-28~~ ~~28-29~~, April ~~3-4~~ ~~4-5~~, ~~10-11~~ ~~11-12~~ and ~~17-18~~ ~~18-19~~.

5. No change.

(b) through (d) No change.

~~(6)(7)~~ Arbuckle Wildlife Management Area

(a) Open season:

1. Archery – October ~~13~~ ~~14~~ through November ~~2~~ ~~3~~.

2. Muzzleloading gun – November ~~3-11~~ ~~4-12~~.

3. General gun hog – November ~~17-25~~ ~~18-26~~, Saturdays and Sundays only.

4. Spring turkey – March ~~19-21~~ ~~20-22~~, April ~~2-4~~ ~~3-5~~ and April ~~16-18~~ ~~17-19~~.

5. No change.

(b) through (d) No change.

~~(8)~~ Chassahowitzka Wildlife Management Area

~~(a) Open season:~~

~~1. Archery – September 23 through October 22.~~

~~2. Muzzleloading gun – October 27-29.~~

~~3. General gun – November 11 through January 7.~~

~~4. Duck and coot – Wednesdays, Saturdays and Sundays of the duck and coot season established by Rule 68A-13.003, F.A.C.~~

~~5. Fishing, frogging and other recreational use – Permitted year round.~~

~~(b) Legal to take: All legal game, fish, frogs and furbearers. The taking of turkey, bobcat, mink and otter is prohibited. No size or bag limit on wild hogs.~~

~~(c) Camping: Prohibited.~~

~~(d) General regulations:~~

~~1. Hunting with dogs other than retrievers or bird dogs is prohibited west of the Main grade, on the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service portion of the property and east of the Swamp grade. Dogs with a shoulder height greater than 17 inches are prohibited in that portion of the area lying east of the Main grade and west of the Swamp grade.~~

~~2. Fires are prohibited.~~

~~3. Waterfowl hunting from permanent blinds or structures is prohibited.~~

~~4. Decoys and boats must be removed from the management area daily.~~

~~5. Motor vehicles may be operated only on Indigo Road, Rattlesnake Camp Road and Gopher Road.~~

~~6. All persons shall enter and exit only at designated entrances. Hunters shall check in and out at a check station and check all game taken.~~

~~7. The use of tracked vehicles, motoreycles, or all-terrain vehicles is prohibited.~~

~~(7)(9)~~ Kicco Wildlife Management Area

(a) Open season:

1. Archery – September ~~22~~ ~~23~~ through October ~~21~~ ~~22~~, Saturdays and Sundays only.

2. Muzzleloading gun – October ~~27~~ ~~28~~ through November ~~4~~ ~~5~~, Saturdays and Sundays only.

3. General gun hog – November ~~10~~ ~~11~~ through December ~~9~~ ~~10~~, Saturdays and Sundays only.

4. Small game – December ~~15~~ ~~16~~ through January ~~6~~ ~~7~~.

5. Spring turkey – March ~~16~~ ~~17~~ through April ~~21~~ ~~22~~, Saturdays and Sundays only.

6. No change.

(b) through (d) No change.

~~(8)(10)~~ Hickory Hammock Wildlife Management Area

(a) Open season:

1. Special-opportunity wild hog – September ~~15-16~~ ~~16-17~~ and ~~22-23~~ ~~23-24~~ and January ~~12-13~~ ~~13-14~~.

2. Muzzleloading gun – October ~~27-28~~ ~~28-29~~.

3. General gun – November ~~10-11~~ ~~11-12~~.

4. Small game – November ~~12~~ ~~13~~ through January ~~6~~ ~~7~~.

5. through 7. No change.

8. Spring turkey – March ~~21-23~~ ~~22-24~~ and April ~~11-13~~ ~~12-14~~.

9. No change.

(b) through (d) No change.

~~(9)(11)~~ Walk-in-the-Water Wildlife Management Area

(a) Open Season:

1. Archery – September ~~22~~ ~~23~~ through October ~~7~~ ~~8~~.

2. Muzzleloading gun – October ~~26-28~~ ~~27-29~~.

3. General gun hog – November ~~3-11~~ ~~4-12~~.

4. Small game – November ~~17~~ ~~18~~ through December ~~9~~ ~~10~~ and December ~~22~~ ~~23~~ through January ~~6~~ ~~7~~.

5. No change.

(b) through (d) No change.

~~(10)(12)~~ Hilochee Wildlife Management Area

(a) Open Seasons:

1. No change.

2. Spring turkey – March ~~22-24~~ ~~23-25~~ and April ~~5-7~~ ~~6-8~~.

3. Muzzleloading gun – November ~~2-4~~ ~~3-5~~.

4. General gun hog – December ~~7-9~~ ~~8-10~~, January ~~4-6~~ ~~5-7~~, ~~18-20~~ ~~19-21~~.

5. Small game – February ~~15-17~~ ~~16-18~~.

(b) through (d) No change.

~~(11)(13)~~ Lake Marion Creek Wildlife Management Area

(a) Open Seasons:

1. Archery – September ~~22-24~~ ~~23-25~~ and ~~28-30~~ ~~September 29-October 1~~.

2. Muzzleloading gun – October ~~27-29~~ ~~28-30~~.

3. General gun – November ~~10-12~~ ~~11-13~~ and ~~16-18~~ ~~17-19~~.

4. Small game – December ~~7-9~~ ~~8-10~~ and ~~14-16~~ ~~15-17~~.

5. Spring turkey – March ~~16-18~~ ~~17-19~~, ~~29-31~~ March 30 through April 1, and April ~~12-14~~ ~~13-15~~.

6. No change.

(b) through (d) No change.

~~(14) Fisheating Creek Wildlife Management Area~~

~~(a) Open season:~~

~~1. Archery – September 15-17 and 22-24 west of U.S. Highway 27 only.~~

~~2. Muzzleloading gun – October 13-15 and 20-22 west of U.S. Highway 27 only.~~

~~3. General gun – November 3-5 and 24-26 west of U.S. Highway 27 only.~~

~~4. Spring turkey – March 3-6, 9-12, 16-19, 23-26, and March 30 – April 2 west of U.S. Highway 27 only.~~

~~5. Special opportunity spring turkey – March 3-9, March 17-23 east of U.S. Highway 27 only.~~

~~6. General gun hog – December 9-10, west of U.S. Highway 27 only.~~

~~7. Fishing and frogging – Permitted throughout the year.~~

~~(b) Legal to take: All legal game, fish and furbearers except that turkeys may not be taken during the archery season. The bag limit for antlered deer shall be one per quota hunt permit. During the spring turkey and special opportunity spring turkey seasons, the bag limit for turkey shall be one gobbler (or bearded turkey) per permit. During the general gun hog season, only wild hogs may be taken.~~

~~(c) Camping: Permitted at the Fisheating Creek campground throughout the year at designated campsites only. Primitive camping is permitted throughout the area during periods closed to hunting, and, during periods open to hunting, at designated sites only.~~

~~(d) General regulations:~~

~~1. Entry into or exit from the area at locations other than designated entrances is prohibited.~~

~~2. The use of any vehicle, including but not limited to tracked vehicles, all terrain vehicles, or motorcycles, is prohibited. The use of personal watercraft or horses is prohibited. The use of airboats is prohibited west of the “head of the bushes.” All public use shall be prohibited in areas posted as “closed” so as to afford protection to biologically sensitive resources or sites, protection of archeological or cultural resources, or for public safety reasons.~~

~~3. Hunters shall check in and out at a check station located at the Palmdale campground when entering and exiting the area and shall check all game taken.~~

~~4. Public access, other than by foot, bicycle, or boat, is prohibited. Entry into or exit at locations other than via Fisheating Creek at its intersections with C.R. 731, and at U.S. 27 in Palmdale, and at the Mainstreet access at Palmdale, and at S.R. 78 near Lakeport, is prohibited, except that vehicular access is permitted in the Palmdale campground.~~

~~5. Hunting with dogs is prohibited.~~

~~6. No deer, wild hog or turkey shall be dismembered until checked at a check station.~~

~~7. Only tents, trailers, or self propelled camping vehicles may be used for camping.~~

~~8. Fires other than campfires are prohibited.~~

Proposed Effective Date: July 1, 2001.

Specific Authority Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const. Law Implemented Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const., 375.313 FS. History–New 6-21-82, Amended 7-1-83, 11-17-83, 7-5-84, 10-1-84, 7-1-85, 9-19-85, 5-7-86, 5-10-87, 6-8-87, 10-8-87, 5-1-88, 7-1-89, 7-1-90, 7-1-91, 7-2-91, 7-1-92, 8-23-92, 7-1-93, 7-1-94, 7-1-95, 7-1-96, 9-15-96, 6-1-97, 8-7-97, 7-1-98, 10-20-98, 12-28-98, 7-1-99, Formerly 39-15.061, Amended 12-9-99, 3-30-00, 7-1-00, 7-1-01.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE:

Mr. Timothy A. Breault

NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED

THE PROPOSED RULE: Dr. Allan L. Egbert

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY

HEAD: January 3, 2001

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT

PUBLISHED IN FAW: November 22, 2000

FISH AND WILDLIFE CONSERVATION COMMISSION

Freshwater Fish and Wildlife

RULE TITLE:

RULE NO.:

Specific Regulations for Type I Wildlife

Management Areas – North Central Region 68A-15.062

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purposes of the proposed rule changes are to adjust hunting season dates on all regional Wildlife Management Areas (WMAs) to conform with proposed 2001-2002 hunting season dates for the appropriate hunting zones; to add or delete WMAs to reflect changes in the boundaries of administrative regions; to change references to the name of the region; and to make changes in other regulations necessary to improve efficiency in the management of fish and wildlife resources and public use on WMAs.

SUMMARY: Proposed rule changes would adjust all applicable hunting season dates and other references to such dates on WMAs in the region to conform with 2000-2001 hunting season dates for the appropriate hunting zones. Proposed changes would delete rules for Aucilla, Nassau, Cary and Flint Rock WMAs to reflect transfer of those WMAs to a new administrative region; add rules for Citrus, Flying Eagle, Homosassa, Potts, Chassahowitzka, and Croom WMAs to reflect transfer of those WMAs to this administrative region; and change references to the name of the administrative region from Northeast to North Central. Proposed rule changes would reconfigure the spring turkey season and associated hunting zones on Camp Blanding WMA to allow spring turkey hunting in the still hunt portion of the WMA during the first hunt only and in the north and south dog hunt areas and archery areas during the second hunt only. Proposed changes would permit

camping on Lake Butler WMA at designated campsites along the Florida Trail and permit fires only in fire-rings at these designated campsites.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST: It is estimated that the proposed action will cost the agency approximately \$1,080 for administrative preparation and \$519 for legal advertising. No other significant economic impacts are expected.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated regulatory costs, or to provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const.

A HEARING ON THE PROPOSED RULE WILL BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATE AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

TIME AND DATES: 8:30 a.m., each day, March 29-30, 2001

PLACE: Holiday Inn – Capital, 1355 Apalachee Parkway, Tallahassee, Florida

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE AND ECONOMIC STATEMENT IS: James Antista, General Counsel, Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission, 620 South Meridian Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1600

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

68A-15.062 Specific Regulations for Type I Wildlife Management Areas – ~~Northeast~~ North Central Region.

(1) Camp Blanding Wildlife Management Area

(a) Open season:

1. General gun – November ~~10-11~~ through January ~~6-7~~.

2. Spring turkey – March ~~18-22~~ ~~19-23~~ and April ~~16-20~~ in Spring Turkey Zones A, B, and C, ~~D and E,~~ and April 15-19 in Spring Turkey Zones D, E, and F.

3. Archery – September ~~26-28~~ ~~27-29~~, and October ~~3-5~~ ~~4-6~~, north of State Road 16 and County Road 215 and east of County Road 225 only, and November ~~10-11~~ through January ~~6-7~~ in designated archery area west of County Road 225 and north of Yerkes Road only.

4. Supervised youth – October ~~13-14~~ ~~14-15~~ and October ~~27-28~~ ~~28-29~~, south of State Road 16 only.

5. Muzzleloading gun – October ~~10-12~~ ~~11-13~~ and October ~~17-19~~ ~~18-20~~, north of State Road 16 and County Road 215 only.

6. No change.

7. Trapping – December 1 through January ~~6-7~~, only in portion of area north of State Road 16 and County Road 215 and east of County Road 225.

(b) through (d) No change.

(2) Cypress Creek Wildlife Management Area

(a) Open season:

1. Spring turkey – March ~~16-24~~ ~~17-25~~.

2. Archery – September ~~22-23~~ through October ~~7-8~~.

3. Muzzleloading gun – October ~~26-28~~ ~~27-29~~.

4. through 5. No change.

(b) through (d) No change.

(3) Gulf Hammock Wildlife Management Area

(a) Open season:

1. General gun – November ~~10-11~~ through January ~~6-7~~.

2. Spring turkey – March ~~16-17~~ through April ~~21-22~~.

3. Archery – September ~~22-23~~ through October ~~21-22~~.

4. No change.

(b) Legal to take: All legal game, fish, frogs and furbearers. Wild hogs may not be taken after December ~~4-5~~.

(c) through (d) No change.

(4) Lake Butler Wildlife Management Area

(a) Open season:

1. General gun – November ~~10-11~~ through January ~~6-7~~.

2. Small game – January ~~7-8~~ through March ~~3-4~~ in still hunt areas only.

3. Spring turkey – March ~~16-17~~ through April ~~21-22~~.

4. Archery – September ~~22-23~~ through October ~~21-22~~ in the still hunt area only.

5. through 6. No change.

7. Trapping – January ~~7-8~~ through March 1.

(b) No change.

(c) Camping: Permitted only at designated campsites along the Florida Trail ~~Prohibited.~~

(d) General regulations:

1. No change.

2. Licensed trappers may possess .22 rimfire rifles or pistols from January ~~7-8~~ through March 1.

3. No change.

4. Dogs may be taken into the dog hunting area November ~~10-11~~ and shall be removed by January ~~6-7~~.

5. through 7. No change.

8. Fires are permitted only in fire-rings at designated campsites along the Florida Trail ~~Fires are prohibited on the area.~~

(5) Lochloosa Wildlife Management Area

(a) Open season:

1. General gun – November ~~10-11~~ through January ~~6-7~~.

2. Spring turkey – March ~~16-17~~ through April ~~21-22~~.

3. Archery – September ~~22-23~~ through October ~~21-22~~.

4. Muzzleloading gun – October ~~26-28~~ ~~27-29~~.

5. through 6. No change.

7. Trapping – December 1 through ~~6-7~~ in the still hunt portion of the area only.

(b) through (d) No change.

~~(6) Nassau Wildlife Management Area~~

~~(a) Open season:~~

1. General gun – November 11 through January 7.
 2. Small game – January 8 through March 4.
 3. Spring turkey – March 17 through April 22.
 4. Archery – September 23 through October 22.
 5. Muzzleloading gun – October 27-29.
 6. Fishing and frogging – Throughout year.
 7. Trapping – January 8 through March 1.
- (b) Legal to take: All legal game, fish, frogs and furbearers. Wild hogs may not be taken after November 27.
- (c) Camping: Prohibited.
- (d) General regulations:
1. The possession or use of dogs other than bird dogs and waterfowl retrievers is prohibited during the general gun season.
 2. Vehicles may be operated only on named or numbered roads.
 3. Taking of wildlife by use of a gun on or from the rights of way of U.S. Highway A1A and Interstate 95 is prohibited as provided by Rule 68A-4.008, F.A.C.
 4. Hunting with dogs is prohibited during the archery and muzzleloading gun seasons.
 5. Fires are prohibited.
 6. Vehicles are prohibited on the area from 1.5 hours after sunset to 1.5 hours before sunrise except on Police Lodge Road to Road 93 for access directly to the boat ramps on Boggy Creek. Vehicles may only enter and exit the area at designated locations.
 7. Public access to the boat ramp on Boggy Creek is permitted throughout the year via Police Lodge Road and Road 93. Access to the remainder of the area is permitted only by individuals possessing a valid recreational use permit and only from the Saturday prior to the archery season through the last day of the spring turkey season.
- (6)(7) Osceola Wildlife Management Area
- (a) Open season:
1. General gun – November 10-11 through January 6-7.
 2. Small game – January 7-8 through March 3-4.
 3. Spring turkey – March 16-17 through April 21-22.
 4. Archery – September 22-23 through October 14-15.
 5. Muzzleloading gun – October 19-26-20-27 in the still hunt area only.
 6. Fox, raccoon, opossum and bobcat – August 4-5 through September 25-26 in the dog hunt portion of the area only from sunset to sunrise.
 7. through 8. No change.
 9. Trapping – January 7-8 through March 1.
- (b) through (c) No change.
- (d) General regulations:
1. No change.
 2. Deer dogs may be trained from October 27-28 through November 5-6, except in the still hunt area.

3. through 9. No change.
- (7)(8) Big Bend Wildlife Management Area – Tide Swamp Unit
- (a) Open season:
1. General gun – November 10-11 through January 6-7.
 2. Archery – September 22-23 through October 21-22.
 3. Muzzleloading gun – October 26-28-27-29.
 4. Small game – January 7-8 through March 3-4.
 5. through 7. No change.
 8. Spring turkey – March 16-17 through April 21-22.
 9. Trapping – January 7-8 through March 1.
- (b) through (d) No change.
- (8)(9) Big Bend Wildlife Management Area – Spring Creek Unit
- (a) Open season:
1. General gun – November 10-11 through January 6-7.
 2. Archery – September 22-23 through October 21-22.
 3. Small game – January 7-8 through March 3-4.
 4. Spring turkey – March 16-17 through April 21-22.
 5. Trapping – January 7-8 through March 1.
 6. through 8. No change.
- (b) through (d) No change.
- (9)(10) Big Bend Wildlife Management Area – Hickory Mound Unit
- (a) Open season:
1. General gun – November 10-11 through January 6-7.
 2. Small game – January 7-8 through March 3-4.
 3. Spring turkey – March 16-17 through April 21-22.
 4. Archery – September 22-23 through October 21-22.
 5. through 7. No change.
 8. Trapping – January 7-8 through March 1.
- (b) through (d) No change.
- (10)(11) Big Bend Wildlife Management Area – Jena Unit
- (a) Open season:
1. General gun – November 10-11 through January 6-7.
 2. Spring turkey – March 16-17 through April 21-22.
 3. Small game – January 7-8 through March 3-4.
 4. through 6. No change.
 7. Trapping – January 7-8 through March 1.
- (b) through (c) No change.
- (d) General regulations:
1. No change.
 2. Licensed trappers may possess .22 rimfire rifles or pistols only from January 7-8 through March 1.
 3. through 8. No change.
- (12) Aucilla Wildlife Management Area
- (a) Open season:
1. General gun – November 11 through January 7.
 2. Small game – January 8 through March 4.
 3. Spring turkey – March 17 through April 22.

- 4. Archery—September 23 through October 22.
- 5. Early duck—In the September season established by Rule 68A-13.003, F.A.C.
- 6. Duck and coot—During the duck and coot season established by Rule 68A-13.003, F.A.C.
- 7. Fishing and frogging—Throughout the year except on those portions of the area closed to public access during specified periods. Fishing and frogging in those areas are permitted only when they are open to public access.
- 8. Trapping—January 8 through March 1.
 - (b) Legal to take: All legal game, fish, frogs and furbearers. Wild hogs may be taken only during the archery season and the first 23 days of general gun season. Antlerless deer may not be taken during the archery season.
 - (c) Camping: Prohibited.
 - (d) General regulations:
 - 1. The taking of wild hogs by the use of dogs is prohibited.
 - 2. Hunting with dogs other than bird dogs and waterfowl retrievers is prohibited south of U.S. 98.
 - 3. Hunters entering the area via the Western Sloughs check station must possess a daily hunt permit (available at the check station) and shall check all game taken.
 - 4. Public access is prohibited north of U.S. Highway 98 and west of the Wacissa River, other than during periods when public hunting is allowed, and seven days before each open hunting season except that portion of the area bounded on the west by Firebreak 14, on the east by the Wacissa River, on the north and west by the southern boundary of Section 11, the western boundary of Sections 12 and 1, and the northern boundary of Section 1, Township 3 South, Range 3 East, and on the south by the western and northern boundaries of Section 12, the eastern boundary of Section 1, Township 4 South, Range 3 East, and the northern boundary of Section 6, Township 4 South, Range 4 East, which will be open for public access throughout the year.
 - 5. Vehicles may be operated only on designated roads.
 - 6. During the general gun and small game seasons, hunting as specified by Rule 68A-24.002(2)(b), F.A.C., is permitted.
 - 7. Taking of wildlife by use of a gun on or from the rights-of-way of U.S. 98 is prohibited as provided by Rule 68A-4.008, F.A.C.
 - 8. Fires are prohibited.
 - 9. The use of all terrain vehicles (ATVs) is prohibited.
 - 10. Shotguns are permitted on the area during the early experimental duck season established by Rule 68A-13.003, F.A.C.
 - 11. Hunting with dogs is prohibited during the archery season, except that waterfowl retrievers may be used during the early duck season.
 - 12. On that portion of the area south of U.S. 98, hunting shall be restricted to small game.

(11)(13) No change.

- (12)(14) Raiford Wildlife Management Area
 - (a) Open season:
 - 1. Archery – September 22 23 through October 7 8.
 - 2. Muzzleloading gun – October 26-28 27-29.
 - 3. Archery and muzzleloading gun – November 10-18 11-19.
 - 4. Spring turkey – March 16-24 17-25.
 - 5. No change.
 - (b) through (d) No change.
- (13)(15) Cedar Key Scrub Wildlife Management Area
 - (a) Open season:
 - 1. General gun – November 10-18 11-19.
 - 2. Archery – September 22 23 through October 7 8.
 - 3. Muzzleloading gun – October 26-28 27-29.
 - (b) through (d) No change.
- (16) Cary Wildlife Management Area
 - (a) Open season:
 - 1. Archery—October 14 15, November 4 5 and 18 19, December 9 10 and 23 24.
 - 2. Muzzleloading gun—December 30-31 and January 13-14.
 - 3. Bird dog training—October through January, Wednesdays, Saturdays and Sundays, except during scheduled hunting periods.
 - (b) Legal to take: All legal game except that only wild hogs and antlered deer may be taken during the muzzleloading gun season.
 - (c) Camping: Prohibited.
 - (d) General regulations:
 - 1. Fires are prohibited.
 - 2. Hunting with dogs is prohibited except that bird dogs are permitted during bird dog training season.
 - 3. Vehicles may be operated on designated roads only.
 - 4. The use of all terrain vehicles (ATVs) is prohibited.
 - 5. Crossbows are prohibited.
 - 6. Hunters shall check in and out at a check station when entering and exiting the area and shall check all game taken.
 - 7. On that portion of the area open for hunting horses are allowed only on established roads during periods when hunting is permitted.
 - 8. The possession of firearms other than blank firing pistols is prohibited during bird dog training season.
- (14)(17) Andrews Wildlife Management Area
 - (a) Open season:
 - 1. Archery – September 28-30 29 through October 1 and October 5-7 6-8.
 - 2. Muzzleloading gun – October 26-28 27-29 and November 2-4 3-5.
 - 3. General gun – November 16-18 17-19.
 - 4. Small game – January 4-6 5-7 and 11-13 12-14.

5. Spring turkey – March ~~22-24~~ ~~23-25~~ and April ~~12-14~~ ~~13-15~~.
6. Supervised deer-hog youth hunt – October ~~13-14~~ ~~14-15~~ and ~~20-21~~ ~~21-22~~.
7. No change.
(b) through (d) No change.
~~(15)(18)~~ Big Shoals Wildlife Management Area
(a) Open season:
1. Archery – September ~~24-29~~ ~~25-30~~, October ~~1-6~~ ~~2-7~~ and October ~~8-13~~ ~~9-14~~.
2. Muzzleloading gun – October ~~26-28~~ ~~27-29~~ and November ~~2-4~~ ~~3-5~~.
3. Small game – December ~~17-22~~ ~~18-23~~ and December ~~24-29~~ ~~25-30~~.
4. Spring turkey – March ~~21-23~~ ~~22-24~~ and April ~~11-13~~ ~~12-14~~.
5. No change.
(b) through (d) No change.
~~(16)(19)~~ Twin Rivers Wildlife Management Area
(a) Open season:
1. Archery – September ~~22~~ ~~23~~ through October ~~7~~ ~~8~~.
2. Muzzleloading gun – October ~~26-28~~ ~~27-29~~.
3. General gun – November ~~10-20~~ ~~11-21~~.
4. Small game – December ~~1-23~~ ~~2-24~~.
5. Spring turkey – March ~~22-24~~ ~~23-25~~ and April ~~12-14~~ ~~13-15~~.
6. No change.
(b) through (d) No change.
~~(17)(20)~~ Twin Rivers Wildlife Management Area – Blue Springs Unit
(a) Open season:
Bird Dog Training – October ~~2-30~~ ~~3-26~~, Tuesdays and Thursdays only.
(b) through (c) No change.
~~(18)(21)~~ Jennings Forest Wildlife Management Area
(a) Open season:
1. Archery – September ~~22~~ ~~23~~ through October ~~7~~ ~~8~~.
2. Supervised small game – October ~~13-21~~ ~~14-22~~, east of Black Creek only.
3. Muzzleloading gun – October ~~26-28~~ ~~27-29~~.
4. General gun – November ~~10-25~~ ~~11-26~~.
5. Small game – January ~~11~~ ~~12~~ through February ~~10~~ ~~11~~, Fridays, Saturdays and Sundays only.
6. Spring turkey – March ~~16-19~~ ~~17-20~~ and ~~20-24~~ ~~21-25~~.
7. No change.
(b) through (d) No change.
~~(19)(22)~~ Holton Creek Wildlife Management Area
(a) Open season:
1. Mobility-impaired general gun – September ~~28-30~~ ~~29~~ through October ~~1~~, October ~~12-14~~ ~~13-15~~, October ~~26-28~~ ~~27-29~~ and November ~~2-4~~ ~~3-5~~.

2. Mobility-impaired spring turkey – March ~~22-24~~ ~~23-25~~ and April ~~12-14~~ ~~13-15~~.
3. No change.
(b) through (d) No change.
~~(20)(23)~~ Steinatchee Falls Wildlife Management Area
(a) Open season:
1. Archery – September ~~22~~ ~~23~~ through October ~~7~~ ~~8~~.
2. Muzzleloading gun – October ~~26-28~~ ~~27-29~~.
3. General gun – November ~~10-18~~ ~~11-19~~.
4. Small game – December ~~1-16~~ ~~2-17~~.
5. Spring turkey – March ~~16-31~~ ~~17~~ through April ~~1~~.
6. No change.
(b) through (d) No change.
~~(21)(24)~~ Goethe Wildlife Management Area
(a) Open season:
1. Archery – September ~~22~~ ~~23~~ through October ~~7~~ ~~8~~.
2. Muzzleloading gun – October ~~26-28~~ ~~27-29~~.
3. General gun (still hunt) – November ~~10-13~~ ~~11-14~~.
4. General gun (dog hunt) – November ~~14-18~~ ~~15-19~~.
5. Small game – November ~~24~~ ~~25~~ through December ~~9~~ ~~10~~.
6. Spring turkey – March ~~16-24~~ ~~17-25~~.
7. No change.
(b) through (d) No change.
~~(22)(25)~~ San Pedro Bay Wildlife Management Area
(a) Open season:
1. General gun – November ~~10~~ ~~11~~ through January ~~6~~ ~~7~~.
2. Small game – January ~~7~~ ~~8~~ – March ~~3~~ ~~4~~.
3. Spring turkey – March ~~16~~ ~~17~~ through April ~~21~~ ~~22~~.
4. Archery – September ~~22~~ ~~23~~ through October ~~21~~ ~~22~~.
5. Muzzleloading gun – October ~~26-28~~ ~~27-29~~.
6. through 7. No change.
8. Trapping – January ~~7~~ ~~8~~ through March 1.
(b) through (d) No change.
~~(26)~~ Flint Rock Wildlife Management Area
~~(a) Open season:~~
~~1. General gun – November 11 through January 7.~~
~~2. Small game – January 8 through March 4.~~
~~3. Spring turkey – March 17 through April 22.~~
~~4. Archery – September 23 through October 22.~~
~~5. Early duck – In the September season established by Rule 68A-13.003, F.A.C.~~
~~6. Duck and coot – During the duck and coot season established by Rule 68A-13.003, F.A.C.~~
~~7. Fishing and frogging – Permitted during periods the area is open for access.~~
~~8. Trapping – January 8 through March 1.~~
(b) Legal to take: All legal game, fish, frogs, and furbearers. Wild hogs may be taken only during the archery season and the first 23 days of general gun season.
(c) Camping: Prohibited.

(d) General regulations:

1. Hunting with dogs other than waterfowl retrievers and bird dogs is prohibited.
2. Hunters shall check in and out at a check station when entering and exiting the area and shall check all game taken.
3. Access is permitted only by individuals possessing a valid recreational user permit except as provided by 372.57, F.S., and only during periods open to hunting and 7 days before each open hunting season.
4. Vehicles may be operated only on designated roads, and vehicular access is restricted to designated entrances.
5. Taking of wildlife by use of a gun on or from the right of way of State Road 59 is prohibited as provided by Rule 68A-4.008(4), F.A.C.
6. Fires are prohibited.
7. The use of all terrain vehicles (ATVs) is prohibited.

(23) Citrus Wildlife Management Area

(a) Open season:

1. Modern gun – December 15-16 and January 5-6.
2. Small game – January 7 through March 3.
3. Muzzleloading gun – December 8-9 and December 29-30.
4. Archery – November 10 through December 2.
5. Fishing and frogging – Throughout year.

(b) Legal to take: All legal game (except turkeys), fish, frogs and furbearers. During the muzzleloading gun and modern gun seasons, antlerless deer may be taken by permit only. Antlerless deer may be taken during the first 9 days of the archery season, but only one antlerless deer may be harvested per quota permit or per person exempted from license and stamp requirements by s. 372.57(1) and (6), F.S. No size or bag limit for wild hogs.

(c) Camping: Permitted in designated campsites only.

(d) General regulations:

1. Only bird dogs may be used for hunting during the small game season. Dogs are prohibited at other times except as authorized.
2. The use of two-wheeled or all-terrain vehicles is prohibited.
3. Vehicles may be operated only on named or numbered roads.
4. No deer shall be dismembered or removed until checked at the check station.
5. The use of horses for hunting is prohibited except during the small game season.
6. The possession of guns using other than center-fire cartridges is prohibited during the modern gun season.
7. Hunting quail is prohibited between Trail 16 and State Road 480.
8. Bird dogs may be used during authorized field trials.

9. Bird dogs may be trained in the area between Trail 16 and Trail 20 October 1 through 31. Scheduled bird dog trial events are authorized only in the area between Trail 16 and County Road 480.

10. Only tents, trailers or self-propelled camping vehicles may be used for camping.

11. Taking of wildlife by use of a gun on or from rights-of-way of all paved roads is prohibited as provided by Rule 68A-4.008, F.A.C.

12. Camping equipment may not be taken into the area prior to 14 days before the archery season and shall be removed by 6:00 p.m. six days after the close of the small game season.

13. Persons operating vehicles shall enter and exit only at designated entrances.

14. Horses are restricted to named or numbered roads and designated horse trails.

(24) Flying Eagle Wildlife Management Area

(a) Open season:

1. Archery – September 29 – October 7.
2. Muzzleloading gun – October 26-28.
3. General gun – November 10-18.
4. Small game – November 23-25 and December 14-16.
5. Spring turkey – March 16-19 and 20-24.
6. Early duck – In September, season established by Rule 68A-13.003, F.A.C.
7. Fishing and frogging – Permitted throughout the year.

(b) Legal to take: All legal game, fish, frogs and furbearers (except mink and otter). Antlerless deer may be taken by permit only during the muzzleloading gun and general gun seasons. No size or bag limit on wild hogs.

(c) Camping: Prohibited during periods open for hunting.

(d) General regulations:

1. During periods when the area is closed to hunting, public access other than on foot, bicycle or horseback is prohibited.
2. Hunting with dogs is prohibited except that waterfowl retrievers and bird dogs are allowed during small game and early duck seasons.
3. The possession of centerfire and rimfire rifles is prohibited.
4. Vehicles may be operated only on named or numbered roads and may be parked only at designated parking areas.
5. The use of tracked vehicles, motorcycles or all-terrain vehicles is prohibited. The use of horses is prohibited during periods when hunting is allowed. During periods when the area is closed to hunting, horses may be ridden only on designated roads and marked trails.
6. Hunters shall check in and out at the check station when entering and exiting the area and check all game taken.
7. No deer, wild hog or turkey shall be dismembered until checked at the check station.

8. During the early duck season, shooting hours are from one-half hour before sunrise until 12 noon each day.

(25) Potts Wildlife Management Area

(a) Open season:

1. Spring turkey – March 16-19 and 20-24.

2. Archery – September 22-30.

3. Muzzleloading gun – October 26-28.

4. General gun hog-dog – November 16-18.

5. Small game – December 1-9.

6. Fishing and frogging – Permitted throughout the year.

7. Trapping – Prohibited.

(b) Legal to take: All legal game, wild hogs, fish, and frogs. The bag limit for turkey shall be one gobbler (or bearded turkey) per spring turkey quota hunt permit. No size or bag limit on wild hogs. Only wild hogs may be taken during the general gun hog-dog hunt.

(c) Camping: Camping is permitted at designated campsites during hunting season and at other times by permit from the Southwest Water Management District. Kitchen stoves, refrigerators, and freezers, unless contained in mobile campers are prohibited. Lumber, sheet metal or other building materials is prohibited. Each camper shall assure that their campsite is clean at all times. The altering, defacing, moving, or tampering in any way with official markings of campsites is prohibited.

(d) General regulations:

1. During periods when the area is closed to hunting, public access other than on foot, bicycle or horseback is prohibited unless by permit from the Southwest Florida Water Management District.

2. Vehicles may be operated only on named or numbered roads and may be parked only at designated parking areas. Bicycles may be ridden only on designated trails.

3. The use of tracked vehicles, motorcycles or all-terrain vehicles is prohibited. During periods when the area is closed to hunting, horses may be ridden only on designated roads and designated trails.

4. Hunters shall check in and out at the check station when entering or exiting the area and shall check all game taken.

5. No game shall be dismembered until checked at the check station.

6. Only tents, trailers or self-propelled camping vehicles may be used for camping.

7. The name and address and telephone number of the person responsible for each campsite shall be visibly affixed to the camping shelter.

8. The use of dogs, other than bird dogs and dogs with a shoulder height of 15 inches or less during the small game season, is prohibited except that dogs may be used during the general gun hog-dog season. During the general gun hog-dog season, no more than 3 dogs per quota permit shall be allowed.

9. During the general gun hog-dog season, a permit shall be required for each group of two hunters, and only one gun may be possessed per permit.

(26) Homosassa Wildlife Management Area

(a) Open season:

1. General gun hog – September 6-9 and 13-16.

2. Small game – November 10 through December 2 and December 22 through January 6.

3. Special-opportunity spring turkey – March 16-22 and March 30 through April 5.

4. Fishing and frogging – Permitted throughout the year.

(b) Legal to take: Only wild hogs may be taken during the hog season. There is no bag or size limit restrictions on hogs. All legal small game and furbearers may be taken during the small game season. Wild turkeys may only be taken during the special-opportunity spring turkey season. The bag limit for turkeys shall be one gobbler (or bearded turkey) per special-opportunity permit. Fish and frogs are legal to take throughout the year.

(c) Camping: Prohibited.

(d) General regulations:

1. The use of dogs, other than bird dogs and dogs with a shoulder height of 15 inches or less, is prohibited.

2. Vehicles may be operated only on named or numbered roads. Bicycles may be operated only on named or numbered roads and designated firelines.

3. Vehicles may be parked only in designated parking areas.

4. The use of tracked vehicles, airboats, motorcycles, all-terrain vehicles or horses is prohibited.

5. Small game hunters are required to sign-in and sign-out at game registration boxes and record all game taken.

6. Public access to the area is prohibited during the period from 8:00 pm to 5:00 am.

7. A special-opportunity hunt permit shall be required for every person entering the area during special-opportunity hunts.

8. The possession of centerfire rifles is prohibited.

(27) Croom Wildlife Management Area

(a) Open season:

1. Muzzleloading gun – October 26-28.

2. General gun – November 10 through December 2.

3. Small game – December 3 through March 3.

4. Spring turkey – March 19-21, April 2-4 and April 16-18.

5. Fox, raccoon and bobcat – December 15 through March

11. Hunting is permitted from 5 p.m. Thursday to sunrise Sunday with dogs only. No guns allowed.

6. Fishing and frogging – Throughout year.

(b) Legal to take: All legal game, fish, frogs and furbearers. No size or bag limit on wild hogs.

(c) Camping: Permitted only at designated campsites. A permit issued by the Division of Forestry is required at the Silver Lake, Twin Ponds, Hog Island, River Junction and East Hunt campsites.

(d) General regulations:

1. Hunting with dogs is prohibited November 10 – December 2. Hunting with dogs other than bird dogs is prohibited December 3 – December 12, except that dogs may be used for hunting fox, raccoon or bobcat during the fox, raccoon and bobcat season, and dogs with a shoulder height of 15 inches or less may be used to hunt small game during the small game season in the portion of the area south of the Tucker Hill Croom graded road, bounded on the east by Croom-Rital Road to its juncture with Interstate 75 and thence bounded by said interstate.

2. Motorcycles and all-terrain vehicles may be operated off roads in Sections 17, 18, 19, 30, 31 and those parts of Sections 7 and 8 lying south of the old railroad right-of-way, Township 22 South, Range 21 East (Croom Motorcycle area) only. Operation of motorcycles and all-terrain vehicles in this area is permitted throughout the year but all such vehicles shall be permitted by the state Division of Forestry. Vehicles may be operated only on named or numbered roads in that portion of the area lying outside the Croom Motorcycle Area, but such vehicles must be properly licensed under Chapter 320, Florida Statutes, or otherwise legal to operate on public roads. During the general gun, muzzleloading gun and small game seasons, motorcycles or all-terrain vehicles are prohibited on that portion of the area lying outside the Croom Motorcycle Area.

3. Horses are prohibited during the general gun and muzzleloading gun seasons. Horses may be ridden only on named or numbered roads or on designated horse trails.

4. The possession of firearms is prohibited at all times in Sections 17, 18, 19, 30, 31 and those parts of Sections 7 and 8 lying south of the old railroad right-of-way, Township 22 South, Range 21 East.

5. Only tents, trailers or self-propelled camping vehicles may be used for camping.

6. During the general gun and muzzleloading gun seasons, all game taken shall be checked at the check station.

7. The possession of guns is prohibited on the Withlacoochee State Trail. Hunters shall only use designated crossings to transport guns across the State Trail.

(28) Chassahowitzka Wildlife Management Area

(a) Open season:

1. Archery – September 22 through October 21.

2. Muzzleloading gun – October 26-28.

3. General gun – November 10 through January 6.

4. Duck and coot – Wednesdays, Saturdays and Sundays of the duck and coot season established by Rule 68A-13.003, F.A.C.

5. Fishing, frogging and other recreational use – Permitted year-round.

(b) Legal to take: All legal game, fish, frogs and furbearers. The taking of turkey, bobcat, mink and otter is prohibited. No size or bag limit on wild hogs.

(c) Camping: Prohibited.

(d) General regulations:

1. Hunting with dogs other than retrievers or bird dogs is prohibited west of the Main grade, on the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service portion of the property and east of the Swamp grade. Dogs with a shoulder height greater than 17 inches are prohibited in that portion of the area lying east of the Main grade and west of the Swamp grade.

2. Fires are prohibited.

3. Waterfowl hunting from permanent blinds or structures is prohibited.

4. Decoys and boats must be removed from the management area daily.

5. Motor vehicles may be operated only on Indigo Road, Rattlesnake Camp Road and Gopher Road.

6. All persons shall enter and exit only at designated entrances. Hunters shall check in and out at a check station and check all game taken.

7. The use of tracked vehicles, motorcycles, or all-terrain vehicles is prohibited.

Proposed Effective Date: July 1, 2001.

Specific Authority Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const. Law Implemented Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const., 375.313 FS. History—New 6-21-82, Amended 7-1-83, 11-17-83, 7-5-84, 7-1-85, 2-16-86, 5-7-86, 6-10-86, 11-27-86, 5-10-87, 5-1-88, 6-7-88, 7-1-89, 8-17-89, 7-1-90, 9-1-90, 7-1-91, 7-2-91, 7-1-92, 7-2-92, 8-23-92, 10-22-92, 7-1-93, 7-1-94, 2-9-95, 7-1-95, 7-1-96, 9-15-96, 6-1-97, 7-1-98, 7-2-98, 7-1-99, Formerly 39-15.062, Amended 12-9-99, 7-1-00, 7-1-01.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE:
Mr. Timothy A. Breault

NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Dr. Allan L. Egbert

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: January 3, 2001

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: November 22, 2000

FISH AND WILDLIFE CONSERVATION COMMISSION

Freshwater Fish and Wildlife

RULE TITLE: Specific Regulations for Type I Wildlife

RULE NO.: 68A-15.063

Management Areas – Northwest Region

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purposes of the proposed rule changes are to adjust hunting season dates on all regional Wildlife Management Areas (WMAs) to conform with proposed 2001-2002 hunting season dates for the appropriate hunting zones; to add or delete WMAs to reflect changes in the boundaries of administrative regions; and to make changes in

other regulations necessary to improve efficiency in the management of fish and wildlife resources and public use on WMAs.

SUMMARY: Proposed rule changes would adjust all applicable hunting season dates and other references to such dates on WMAs in the region to conform with 2000-2001 hunting season dates for the appropriate hunting zones. Proposed changes would add rules for Aucilla and Flint Rock WMAs to reflect transfer of those WMAs to this administrative region. Changes also would establish or revise specific area regulations on WMAs as follows:

Flint Rock WMA – the taking of antlered deer would be restricted to those with forked antlers only.

Moore's Pasture WMA – the general gun season would be extended from 48 days to 58 days.

Robert Brent WMA – the taking of antlered deer would be restricted to those with forked antlers only.

Point Washington WMA – taking wildlife by use of a gun would be prohibited on Steel Field Road and Bunker Road.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST: It is estimated that the proposed action will cost the agency approximately \$1,080 for administrative preparation and \$289 for legal advertising. No other significant economic impacts are expected.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated regulatory costs, or to provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const.

A HEARING ON THE PROPOSED RULE WILL BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATE AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

TIME AND DATES: 8:30 a.m., each day, March 29-30, 2001

PLACE: Holiday Inn – Capital, 1355 Apalachee Parkway, Tallahassee, Florida

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE AND ECONOMIC STATEMENT IS: James Antista, General Counsel, Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission, 620 South Meridian Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1600

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

68A-15.063 Specific Regulations for Type I Wildlife Management Areas – Northwest Region.

(1) Apalachee Wildlife Management Area

(a) Open season:

1. General gun – November ~~22-25~~ ~~23-26~~ and December ~~8~~ ~~9~~ through February ~~10~~ ~~11~~ (Mondays, Wednesdays and Fridays closed to hunting in Zones A and B.).

2. Archery – October ~~13~~ ~~14~~ through November ~~11~~ ~~12~~.

3. No change.

4. Muzzleloading gun – November ~~16-18~~ ~~17-19~~.

5. through 7. No change.

8. Quail (Zone A) – December ~~18~~ ~~19~~ through January ~~6~~ ~~7~~.
(b) through (d) No change.

(2) Apalachicola Wildlife Management Area

(a) Open season:

1. General gun – November ~~22-25~~ ~~23-26~~ and December ~~8~~ ~~9~~ through January ~~30~~ ~~31~~.

2. Small game – November ~~10-21~~ ~~11-22~~, November ~~26~~ ~~27~~ through December ~~7~~ ~~8~~ and ~~January 31~~ ~~February 1~~ through March ~~3~~ ~~4~~.

3. Spring turkey – March ~~16~~ ~~17~~ through April ~~21~~ ~~22~~.

4. Archery – October ~~13~~ ~~14~~ through November ~~11~~ ~~12~~.

5. Muzzleloading gun – November ~~16-18~~ ~~17-19~~.

6. Muzzleloading gun and archery – February ~~14-24~~ ~~15-25~~.

7. No change.

8. Fox, raccoon, opossum and bobcat – October 1 through March ~~3~~ ~~4~~ in that portion of the area in Liberty County lying west of State Road 65 and in that portion in Leon County and Wakulla County south of State Road 267 bounded on the east by Forest Roads 313, F.H. 13 and 356, on the south by Forest Roads 357 and 349, on the west by Forest Roads 348 and F.H. 13, 314, 309, and 344. No guns may be used prior to November ~~22~~ ~~23~~.

9. Trapping – ~~January 31~~ ~~February 1~~ through March 1.

10. No change.

(b) Legal to take: All legal game, fish, frogs and furbearers. Bearded turkeys or gobblers may be taken from November ~~22-25~~ ~~23-26~~ and from December ~~8-19~~ ~~9-20~~. Wild hogs may be taken only during the archery, muzzleloading gun, general gun, archery and muzzleloading and small game hunts. No size or bag limits on wild hogs.

(c) No change.

(d) General regulations:

1. No change.

2. Bird dogs may be trained from June 1 through March ~~3~~ ~~4~~.

4. Deer dogs may be trained from October ~~27~~ ~~28~~ through November ~~15~~ ~~16~~ in that portion of the area open to hunting fox, raccoon, opossum and bobcats.

3. No change.

4. During the November ~~10~~ ~~11~~ through March ~~3~~ ~~4~~ period, hunting as specified by Rule 68A-24.002(2)(b), F.A.C. is permitted.

5. through 7. No change.

(3) Apalachicola Wildlife Management Area – Bradwell Unit

(a) Open season:

1. General gun – November ~~22-25~~ ~~23-26~~ and December ~~8-12~~ ~~9-13~~.

2. Archery – October ~~13-28~~ ~~14-29~~.

3. Muzzleloading gun – November ~~16-18~~ ~~17-19~~.

4. Small game – November ~~10-15~~ ~~11-16~~ and ~~19-21~~ ~~20-22~~.
5. Spring turkey – March ~~16-17~~ ~~17-18~~ and March ~~29-31~~ ~~30~~ through ~~April 1~~.
6. through 7. No change.
- (b) through (d) No change.
- (4) Blackwater Wildlife Management Area
- (a) Open season:
 1. General gun – November ~~22-25~~ ~~23-26~~ and December ~~8~~ ~~9~~ through January ~~30~~ ~~31~~.
 2. Small game – November ~~10-21~~ ~~11-22~~, November ~~26~~ ~~27~~ through December ~~7~~ ~~8~~ and ~~January 31~~ ~~February 1~~ through March ~~3~~ ~~4~~.
 3. Spring turkey – March ~~16~~ ~~17~~ through April ~~21~~ ~~22~~.
 4. Archery – October ~~13~~ ~~14~~ through November ~~11~~ ~~12~~.
 5. Muzzleloading gun – November ~~16-18~~ ~~17-19~~, in the still hunt area only (except in the field trial area).
 6. Muzzleloading gun and archery – February ~~14-25~~ ~~15-25~~, in the still hunt area only (except in the field trial area). January ~~18-20~~ ~~19-21~~ in the designated field trial area only.
 7. Fox, raccoon, opossum and bobcat – May 1 through March ~~10~~ ~~11~~, north of State Road 4 (except in the still hunt area).
 8. through 9. No change.
- (b) Legal to take: All legal game, fish, frogs and furbearers. During the January ~~18-20~~ ~~19-21~~ archery/muzzleloading gun season on the field trial portion of the area any deer (daily bag limit one) except spotted fawns may be taken. Feral hogs may be taken during any period when possession of a gun is otherwise authorized with no size or bag limit on wild hogs.
- (c) No change.
- (d) General regulations:
 1. That portion known as the field trial area which is bounded by Coldwater Creek on the northwest, the western boundary of Blackwater State Forest to the west and south, State Road 191 on the southeast, and on a line running west $\frac{3}{4}$ mile from the intersection of State Road 191 and Forest Road 64 (Spanish Trail), then north one mile and then three miles west to Coldwater Creek at a point $\frac{1}{2}$ mile northeast of the Coldwater Recreation Area shall be open to deer hunting only during the archery season before November 1 and during the January ~~18-20~~ ~~19-21~~ archery/muzzleloading gun season and for mourning doves during the first phase of the dove season (Saturdays and Wednesdays only) and the second phase of the dove season (Wednesdays only), and the third phase of the dove season (Wednesdays only) until January 1 on fields posted as open to dove hunting.
 2. through 9. No change.
- (5) Blackwater Wildlife Management Area-Hutton Unit
- (a) Open season:
 1. Archery – October ~~13-21~~ ~~14-22~~.
 2. Muzzleloading gun – November ~~16-18~~ ~~17-19~~.

3. Quail – November ~~10-11~~ ~~11-12~~ and ~~21-22~~ ~~22-23~~; December ~~1-2~~ ~~2-3~~, ~~10-11~~ ~~11-12~~, ~~15-16~~ ~~16-17~~, and ~~24-25~~ ~~25-26~~; and ~~29-30~~ ~~30-31~~.
4. General gun – January ~~12-20~~ ~~13-21~~.
5. Spring turkey – March ~~16-18~~ ~~17-19~~, March ~~29-31~~ ~~30~~ through ~~April 1~~, and April ~~12-14~~ ~~13-15~~.
6. No change.
- (b) through (d) No change.
- (6) Blackwater Wildlife Management Area – Carr Unit
- (a) Open season:
 1. Quail: November ~~10-13~~ ~~11-14~~, ~~15-18~~ ~~16-19~~, ~~22-25~~ ~~23-26~~, November ~~29~~ ~~30~~ through December ~~2~~ ~~3~~, December ~~6-9~~ ~~7-10~~, ~~13-16~~ ~~14-17~~, ~~20-23~~ ~~21-24~~, ~~27-30~~ ~~28-31~~, January ~~3-6~~ ~~4-7~~, ~~10-13~~ ~~11-14~~, ~~17-20~~ ~~18-21~~, ~~24-27~~ ~~25-28~~, January ~~31~~ through February ~~3~~ ~~4~~, ~~7-10~~ ~~8-11~~, ~~14-17~~ ~~15-18~~ and ~~21-24~~ ~~22-25~~.
 - (b) through (d) No change.
 - (7) Edward Ball Wildlife Management Area
 - (a) Open season:
 1. General gun – November ~~22-25~~ ~~23-26~~ and December ~~8~~ ~~9~~ through January ~~30~~ ~~31~~ (Mondays, Tuesdays and Wednesdays closed to hunting after December ~~16~~ ~~17~~ in the dog-hunt area only).
 2. Archery – October ~~13~~ ~~14~~ through November ~~11~~ ~~12~~.
 3. Muzzleloading gun and archery – February ~~14-24~~ ~~15-25~~ (Mondays, Tuesdays and Wednesdays closed to hunting).
 4. through 8. No change.
 - (b) through (d) No change.
 - (8) Joe Budd Wildlife Management Area
 - (a) Open season:
 1. Archery – December ~~7~~ ~~8~~ through January ~~6~~ ~~7~~ (Fridays, Saturdays and Sundays only).
 2. Archery and muzzleloading gun – January ~~11-27~~ ~~12-28~~ (Fridays, Saturdays and Sundays only).
 3. Small game – October ~~6~~ ~~7~~ through December ~~2~~ ~~3~~, Saturdays and Sundays only.
 4. Spring turkey – March ~~16~~ ~~17~~ through April ~~21~~ ~~22~~ (Saturdays and Sundays only).
 5. No change.
 - (b) through (d) No change.
 - (9) Robert Brent Wildlife Management Area
 - (a) Open season:
 1. General gun – November ~~22-25~~ ~~23-26~~ and December ~~8~~ ~~9~~ through January ~~30~~ ~~31~~.
 2. Small game – November ~~10-21~~ ~~11-22~~, November ~~26~~ ~~27~~ through December ~~7~~ ~~8~~ and ~~January 31~~ ~~February 1~~ through March ~~3~~ ~~4~~.
 3. Spring turkey – March ~~16~~ ~~17~~ through April ~~21~~ ~~22~~.
 4. Archery – October ~~13~~ ~~14~~ through November ~~11~~ ~~12~~.
 5. Muzzleloading gun – November ~~16-18~~ ~~17-19~~.
 6. Archery and muzzleloading gun – February ~~14-24~~ ~~15-25~~.

7. through 9. No change.

(b) Legal to take: All legal game, fish, frogs and furbearers. Bearded turkeys or gobblers may be taken from November ~~22-25~~ ~~23-26~~ and from December ~~8-19~~ ~~9-20~~. Taking of antlered deer not having at least one forked antler and having one or more antlers at least 5 inches in length visible above the hairline is prohibited. The forked antler shall have at least two points one inch or greater in length.

(c) through (d) No change.

(10) Bluewater Creek ~~Champion International~~ Wildlife Management Area

(a) Open season:

1. General gun – November ~~22-25~~ ~~23-26~~ and December ~~8~~ ~~9~~ through January ~~30~~ ~~31~~.

2. Small game – February ~~16~~ ~~17~~ through March ~~3~~ ~~4~~, Saturdays and Sundays only.

3. Archery – October ~~13~~ ~~14~~ through November ~~11~~ ~~12~~.

4. Spring turkey – March ~~16~~ ~~17~~ through April ~~21~~ ~~22~~.

5. Archery and muzzleloading gun – January 31 through February 13 ~~1-14~~.

6. Muzzleloading gun – November ~~16-18~~ ~~17-19~~.

7. Fishing and frogging – Prohibited except by permit from International Paper Company ~~Champion International Corporation~~.

(b) through (d) No change.

(11) Point Washington Wildlife Management Area

(a) Open season:

1. General gun – November ~~22-25~~ ~~23-26~~ and December ~~8~~ ~~9~~ through January ~~30~~ ~~31~~.

2. Small game – November ~~10-21~~ ~~11-22~~, November ~~26~~ ~~27~~ through December ~~7~~ ~~8~~ and January 31 ~~February 1~~ through March ~~3~~ ~~4~~.

3. Spring turkey – March ~~16~~ ~~17~~ through April ~~21~~ ~~22~~.

4. Archery – October ~~13~~ ~~14~~ through November ~~11~~ ~~12~~.

5. Muzzleloading gun – November ~~16-18~~ ~~17-19~~ in still hunt areas only.

6. Archery and muzzleloading gun – February ~~14-24~~ ~~15-25~~.

7. through 8. No change.

9. Fox, raccoon, opossum and bobcat – November ~~10~~ ~~11~~ through March ~~3~~ ~~4~~ in that portion of the dog hunt area west of S.R. 79, and March ~~4~~ ~~5~~ through March ~~15~~ ~~16~~ and April ~~22~~ ~~23~~ through July 15 in that portion of the dog hunt area east of S.R. 79.

(b) through (c) No change.

(d) General regulations:

1. through 5. No change.

6. During the November ~~10~~ ~~11~~ through March ~~3~~ ~~4~~ period in all areas where hunting with the use of deer dogs is permitted, hunting as specified by Rule 68A-24.002(2)(b), F.A.C., is permitted.

7. No change.

8. Taking of wildlife by use of a gun on or from rights-of-way of State Roads 79 or 388, County Roads 2300 or 2296, Landfill Road, U.S. 98, Steel Field Road, Bunker Road, starting at its junction with State Road 79 west to its junction with Otter Creek Road, Otter Creek Road starting at its junction with Steel Field Road north to its junction with Otter Creek Bridge Road and Otter Creek Bridge Road is prohibited as provided by Rule 68A-4.008, F.A.C.

9. No change.

(12) Moore's Pasture Wildlife Management Area

(a) Open season:

1. Archery – October ~~13~~ ~~14~~ through November ~~11~~ ~~12~~.

2. Muzzleloading gun – November ~~16-18~~ ~~17-19~~.

3. General gun – November ~~22-25~~ ~~23-26~~ and December ~~8~~ ~~9~~ through January ~~30~~ ~~31~~.

4. Archery and muzzleloading gun – February ~~9-10~~ ~~10-11~~, ~~15-17~~ ~~16-18~~ and February ~~22-24~~ ~~23-25~~.

5. Spring turkey – March ~~16~~ ~~17~~ through April ~~21~~ ~~22~~.

6. through 7. No change.

(b) through (d) No change.

(13) Talquin Wildlife Management Area

(a) Open season:

1. General gun – November ~~23-25~~ ~~24-26~~ and December ~~8~~ ~~9~~ through December ~~30~~ ~~31~~ (Fridays, Saturdays and Sundays only).

2. Small game – January ~~4~~ ~~5~~ through March ~~3~~ ~~4~~ (Fridays, Saturdays and Sundays only).

3. Archery – October ~~13~~ ~~14~~ through November ~~11~~ ~~12~~ (Fridays, Saturdays and Sundays only).

4. Spring turkey – March ~~16~~ ~~17~~ through April ~~21~~ ~~22~~ (Saturdays and Sundays only).

5. through 6. No change.

(b) Legal to take: All legal game, fish and furbearers. Antlerless deer (daily bag one) may be taken December ~~29~~ ~~30~~. No size or bag limit on wild hogs.

(c) No change.

(d) General regulations:

1. through 3. No change.

4. Hunters shall check in and out at the check station on December ~~29~~ ~~30~~ and check all game taken.

5. No change.

(14) Ochlockonee River Wildlife Management Area

(a) Open season:

1. Archery and muzzleloading gun – November ~~23-25~~ ~~24-26~~ and December ~~8~~ ~~9~~ through December ~~30~~ ~~31~~ (Fridays, Saturdays and Sundays only).

2. Small game – January ~~4~~ ~~5~~ through March ~~3~~ ~~4~~ (Fridays, Saturdays and Sundays only).

3. Archery – October ~~13~~ ~~14~~ through November ~~11~~ ~~12~~ (Fridays, Saturdays and Sundays only).

4. Spring turkey – March ~~16~~ ¹⁷ through April ~~21~~ ²² (Saturdays and Sundays only).

5. No change.

(b) through (d) No change.

(15) Tate's Hell Wildlife Management Area

(a) Open season:

1. General gun – November ~~22-25~~ ²³⁻²⁶ and December ~~8~~ ⁹ through January ~~30~~ ³¹.

2. Small game – November ~~10-21~~ ¹¹⁻²², November ~~26~~ ²⁷ through December ~~7~~ ⁸ and ~~January 31~~ ^{February 1} through March ~~3~~ ⁴.

3. Archery – October ~~13~~ ¹⁴ through November ~~11~~ ¹².

4. Muzzleloading gun – November ~~16-18~~ ¹⁷⁻¹⁹.

5. Muzzleloading gun and archery – February ~~14-24~~ ¹⁵⁻²⁵.

6. through 8. No change.

9. Spring turkey – March ~~16~~ ¹⁷ through April ~~21~~ ²².

10. through 11. No change.

(b) Through (c) No change.

(d) General regulations:

1. Deer dogs may be trained from October ~~27~~ ²⁸ through November ~~15~~ ¹⁶.

2. through 5. No change.

(16) Tate's Hell Wildlife Management Area – Womack Creek Unit

(a) Open season:

1. Small game – November ~~10~~ ¹¹ through January ~~30~~ ³¹.

2. General gun still – November ~~22-25~~ ²³⁻²⁶ and December ~~8-16~~ ⁹⁻¹⁷.

3. through 4. No change.

5. Spring turkey – March ~~16-17~~ ¹⁷⁻¹⁸, March ~~23-24~~ ²⁴⁻²⁵, March ~~30-31~~ ^{through April 1} and April ~~6-7~~ ⁷⁻⁸.

6. through 7. No change.

(b) through (d) No change.

(17) Aucilla Wildlife Management Area

(a) Open season:

1. General gun – November 10 through January 6.

2. Small game – January 7 through March 3.

3. Spring turkey – March 16 through April 21.

4. Archery – September 22 through October 21.

5. Early duck – In the September season established by Rule 68A-13.003, F.A.C.

6. Duck and coot – During the duck and coot season established by Rule 68A-13.003, F.A.C.

7. Fishing and frogging – Throughout the year except on those portions of the area closed to public access during specified periods. Fishing and frogging in those areas are permitted only when they are open to public access.

8. Trapping – January 7 through March 1.

(b) Legal to take: All legal game, fish, frogs and furbearers. Wild hogs may be taken only during the archery season and the first 23 days of general gun season. Antlerless deer may not be taken during the archery season.

(c) Camping: Prohibited.

(d) General regulations:

1. The taking of wild hogs by the use of dogs is prohibited.

2. Hunting with dogs other than bird dogs and waterfowl retrievers is prohibited south of U.S. 98.

3. Hunters entering the area via the Western Sloughs check station must possess a daily hunt permit (available at the check station) and shall check all game taken.

4. Public access is prohibited north of U.S. Highway 98 and west of the Wacissa River, other than during periods when public hunting is allowed, and seven days before each open hunting season except that portion of the area bounded on the west by Firebreak 14, on the east by the Wacissa River, on the north and west by the southern boundary of Section 11, the western boundary of Sections 12 and 1, and the northern boundary of Section 1, Township 3 South, Range 3 East, and on the south by the western and northern boundaries of Section 12, the eastern boundary of Section 1, Township 4 South, Range 3 East, and the northern boundary of Section 6, Township 4 South, Range 4 East, which will be open for public access throughout the year.

5. Vehicles may be operated only on designated roads.

6. During the general gun and small game seasons, hunting as specified by Rule 68A-24.002(2)(b), F.A.C., is permitted.

7. Taking of wildlife by use of a gun on or from the rights-of-way of U.S. 98 is prohibited as provided by Rule 68A-4.008, F.A.C.

8. Fires are prohibited.

9. The use of all-terrain vehicles (ATVs) is prohibited.

10. Shotguns are permitted on the area during the early experimental duck season established by Rule 68A-13.003, F.A.C.

11. Hunting with dogs is prohibited during the archery season, except that waterfowl retrievers may be used during the early duck season.

12. On that portion of the area south of U.S. 98, hunting shall be restricted to small game.

(18) Flint Rock Wildlife Management Area

(a) Open season:

1. General gun – November 10 through January 6.

2. Small game – January 7 through March 3.

3. Spring turkey – March 16 through April 21.

4. Archery – September 22 through October 21.

5. Early duck – In the September season established by Rule 68A-13.003, F.A.C.

6. Duck and coot – During the duck and coot season established by Rule 68A-13.003, F.A.C.

7. Fishing and frogging – Permitted during periods the area is open for access.

8. Trapping – January 7 through March 1.

(b) Legal to take: All legal game, fish, frogs, and furbearers. Taking of antlered deer not having at least one forked antler and having one or more antlers at least 5 inches in length visible above the hairline is prohibited. The forked antler shall have at least two points one inch or greater in length. Wild hogs may be taken only during the archery season and the first 23 days of general gun season.

(c) Camping: Prohibited.

(d) General regulations:

1. Hunting with dogs other than waterfowl retrievers and bird dogs is prohibited.

2. Hunters shall check in and out at a check station when entering and exiting the area and shall check all game taken.

3. Access is permitted only by individuals possessing a valid recreational user permit except as provided by s. 372.57, F.S., and only during periods open to hunting and 7 days before each open hunting season.

4. Vehicles may be operated only on designated roads, and vehicular access is restricted to designated entrances.

5. Taking of wildlife by use of a gun on or from the right-of-way of State Road 59 is prohibited as provided by Rule 68A-4.008(4), F.A.C.

6. Fires are prohibited.

7. The use of all-terrain vehicles (ATVs) is prohibited.

Proposed Effective Date: July 1, 2001.

Specific Authority Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const. Law Implemented Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const. History—New 6-21-82, Amended 7-1-83, 7-5-84, 7-1-85, 5-7-86, 5-10-87, 6-8-87, 5-1-88, 7-1-89, 7-1-90, 9-1-90, 9-1-91, 7-1-92, 7-2-92, 7-1-93, 3-1-94, 7-1-94, 7-1-95, 7-2-95, 8-15-95, 7-1-96, 7-2-96, 6-1-97, 12-3-97, 7-1-98, 7-2-98, 8-11-98, 7-1-99, Formerly 39-15.063, Amended 11-17-99, 7-1-00, 7-1-01.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE:
Mr. Timothy A. Breault

NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Dr. Allan L. Egbert

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: January 3, 2001

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: November 22, 2000

FISH AND WILDLIFE CONSERVATION COMMISSION

Freshwater Fish and Wildlife

RULE TITLE: Specific Regulations for Type I Wildlife Management Areas – South Region

RULE NO.: 68A-15.064

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purposes of the proposed rule changes are to adjust hunting season dates on all regional Wildlife Management Areas (WMAs) to conform with proposed 2001-2002 hunting season dates for the appropriate

hunting zones; to add or delete WMAs to reflect changes in the boundaries of administrative regions; to change references to the name of the region; and to make changes in other regulations necessary to improve efficiency in the management of fish and wildlife resources and public use on WMAs.

SUMMARY: Proposed rule changes would adjust all applicable hunting season dates and other references to such dates on WMAs in the region to conform with 2000-2001 hunting season dates for the appropriate hunting zones. Proposed changes would add rules for Fisheating Creek WMA to reflect a transfer of this WMA to this administrative region. Proposed changes would delete rules for Fort Drum WMA to reflect a transfer of this WMA to a new administrative region.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST: It is estimated that the proposed action will cost the agency approximately \$1,080 for administrative preparation and \$162 for legal advertising. No other significant economic impacts are expected.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated regulatory costs, or to provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const.

A HEARING ON THE PROPOSED RULE WILL BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATE AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

TIME AND DATES: 8:30 a.m., each day, March 29-30, 2001

PLACE: Holiday Inn – Capital, 1355 Apalachee Parkway, Tallahassee, Florida

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE AND ECONOMIC STATEMENT IS: James Antista, General Counsel, Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission, 620 South Meridian Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1600

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

68A-15.064 Specific Regulations for Type I Wildlife Management Areas – ~~Everglades~~ South Region.

(1) J.W. Corbett Wildlife Management Area

(a) Open season:

1. General gun – November ~~3~~ 4 through December ~~30~~ 31.

2. Small game – ~~December 31~~ January 1 through February ~~10~~ 11.

3. Spring turkey – March ~~2~~ 3 through April ~~7~~ 8 (Saturdays and Sundays only).

4. Archery – August ~~25~~ 26 through September ~~16~~ 17.

5. Muzzleloading gun – September ~~29~~ 30 through October ~~14~~ 15.

6. Raccoon season – ~~December 31~~ January 1 through February ~~10~~ 11.

7. No change.

(b) through (d) No change.

(2) Holey Land Wildlife Management Area

(a) Open season:

1. General gun – Walk, October ~~20-28~~ 21-29.
 2. General gun – Vehicle, November ~~3-18~~ 4-19 (tracked vehicles and airboats only). Deer hunting by permit only during the general gun-vehicle season.
 3. Archery – August ~~25~~ 26 through September ~~16~~ 17.
 4. Muzzleloading gun – September ~~29~~ 30 through October ~~14~~ 15.
 5. through 6. No change.
- (b) through (e) No change.

(3) Everglades and Francis S. Taylor Wildlife Management Area

(a) Open season:

1. General gun – Walk, October ~~20-28~~ 21-29, Conservation Areas 3A North and 2 only. December 1-31 in that portion of the area between the Old Miami Canal (Mud Canal) and the New Miami Canal in Conservation Area 3A North only.
 2. General gun – Vehicle (airboats and tracked vehicles only), November ~~3-18~~ 4-19, in Conservation Areas 3A North, 3A South, 2, and the Francis S. Taylor Wildlife Management Area by permit only.
 3. Archery – August ~~25~~ 26 through September ~~16~~ 17, Conservation Area 3A North only.
 4. Muzzleloading gun – September ~~29~~ 30 through October ~~14~~ 15, in Conservation Area 3A North only.
 5. through 6. No change.
- (b) through (e) No change.

(4) Rotenberger Wildlife Management Area

(a) Open season:

1. General gun – Walk, October ~~20-28~~ 21-29.
 2. General gun – Vehicle (airboats and tracked vehicles only), November ~~3-18~~ 4-19 by quota permit only.
 3. Archery – August ~~25~~ 26 through September ~~16~~ 17.
 4. Muzzleloading gun – September ~~29~~ 30 through October ~~14~~ 15.
 5. through 6. No change.
- (b) through (d) No change.

(5) Big Cypress Wildlife Management Area

(a) Open season:

1. No change.
2. Small game – The day following the close of general gun season through February ~~3~~ 4.
3. Archery – September ~~1~~ 2 through September 30 ~~October 1~~ in all units, and November ~~10~~ 11 through January 1, except during those years when January 1 falls on a Thursday, Friday or Saturday, in which case the season would close on the following Sunday in the Deep Lake Unit only.

4. Muzzleloading gun – October ~~6-21~~ 7-22, except in the Deep Lake Unit.

5. Spring turkey – March ~~2~~ 3 through April ~~7~~ 8.

6. through 7. No change.

- (b) through (d) No change.

- (6) No change

~~(7) Fort Drum Wildlife Management Area~~

~~(a) Open season:~~

- ~~1. Special opportunity deer – November 11-17.~~
- ~~2. Small game – December 9-24.~~
- ~~3. Special opportunity turkey – March 17-23, March 31 through April 6 and April 14-20.~~
- ~~4. Special opportunity wild hog – September 5-7, 12-14, and 19-21.~~

- ~~5. Fishing – Permitted throughout the year.~~

~~(b) Legal to take: All legal game and fish. One antlered deer per special opportunity deer hunt permit. Antlerless deer (except spotted fawns) may be taken by antlerless deer permit only. Taking of antlered deer not having at least one antler with four or more points is prohibited. No bag or size limit on wild hogs. Taking of wild hogs during the special opportunity turkey hunt is prohibited.~~

~~(c) Camping: Permitted only at designated campsites.~~

~~(d) General Regulations:~~

- ~~1. Hunting with dogs other than bird dogs and retrievers during the small game season is prohibited.~~
- ~~2. Hunters shall enter and exit at Gate 1 only and check in and out at the designated check station when entering or exiting the area.~~
- ~~3. During nonhunting periods, access shall be through designated points only along State Road 60.~~
- ~~4. During periods open to hunting, vehicles may be operated only on named or numbered roads. During the remainder of the year, vehicles may be operated only on Entrance Road.~~

~~5. Persons participating in the special opportunity deer, turkey or wild hog hunts must be in possession of a special opportunity hunt permit.~~

~~6. During special opportunity hunts, only permittees may use tents, trailers or self propelled camping vehicles at designated campsites. During the remainder of the year, only tent camping shall be permitted and only at designated campsites.~~

~~7. The use of tracked vehicles, airboats, motoreycles, or all-terrain vehicles is prohibited.~~

~~8. Horses are permitted only during nonhunting periods and permitted only on designated trails.~~

~~(7)(8) Okaloacoochee Slough Wildlife Management Area~~

~~(a) Open season:~~

- ~~1. Archery – September ~~8-14~~ 9-15 and ~~15-23~~ 16-24.~~
- ~~2. Muzzleloading gun – October ~~13-15~~ 14-16.~~
- ~~3. General gun – October ~~27-30~~ 28-31 and October 31 through November 4 ~~November 1-5~~.~~

4. General gun hog – November 17-23 ~~18-24~~.
5. Spring turkey – March 2-5 ~~3-6~~ and 6-10 ~~7-11~~.
6. through 7. No change.

(b) through (d) No change.

(8) Fisheating Creek Wildlife Management Area

(a) Open season:

1. Archery – September 14-16 and 21-23 west of U.S. Highway 27 only.

2. Muzzleloading gun – October 12-14 and 19-21 west of U.S. Highway 27 only.

3. General gun – November 2-4 and 23-25 west of U.S. Highway 27 only.

4. Spring turkey – March 2-5, 8-11, 15-18, 22-25, and March 29 – April 1 west of U.S. Highway 27 only.

5. Special-opportunity spring turkey – March 2-8, March 16-22 east of U.S. Highway 27 only.

6. General gun hog – December 8-9, west of U.S. Highway 27 only.

7. Fishing and frogging – Permitted throughout the year.

(b) Legal to take: All legal game, fish and furbearers except that turkeys may not be taken during the archery season. The bag limit for antlered deer shall be one per quota hunt permit. During the spring turkey and special-opportunity spring turkey seasons, the bag limit for turkey shall be one gobbler (or bearded turkey) per permit. During the general gun hog season, only wild hogs may be taken.

(c) Camping: Permitted at the Fisheating Creek campground throughout the year at designated campsites only. Primitive camping is permitted throughout the area during periods closed to hunting, and, during periods open to hunting, at designated sites only.

(d) General regulations:

1. Entry into or exit from the area at locations other than designated entrances is prohibited.

2. The use of any vehicle, including but not limited to tracked vehicles, all-terrain vehicles, or motorcycles, is prohibited. The use of personal watercraft or horses is prohibited. The use of airboats is prohibited west of the “head of the bushes.” All public use shall be prohibited in areas posted as “closed” so as to afford protection to biologically sensitive resources or sites, protection of archeological or cultural resources, or for public safety reasons.

3. Hunters shall check in and out at a check station located at the Palmdale campground when entering and exiting the area and shall check all game taken.

4. Public access, other than by foot, bicycle, or boat, is prohibited. Entry into or exit from locations other than via Fisheating Creek at its intersections with C.R. 731, and at U.S. 27 in Palmdale, and at the Mainstreet access at Palmdale, and at S.R. 78 near Lakeport, is prohibited, except that vehicular access is permitted in the Palmdale campground.

5. Hunting with dogs is prohibited.

6. No deer, wild hog or turkey shall be dismembered until checked at a check station.

7. Only tents, trailers, or self propelled camping vehicles may be used for camping.

8. Fires other than campfires are prohibited.

Proposed Effective Date: July 1, 2001.

Specific Authority Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const., 375.313 FS. Law Implemented Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const., 375.313 FS. History—New 6-21-82, Amended 7-1-83, 7-27-83, 9-27-83, 7-5-84, 7-1-85, 5-7-86, 8-5-86, 5-10-87, 8-24-87, 5-1-88, 6-7-88, 7-1-89, 7-1-90, 9-1-90, 7-1-91, 7-1-92, 7-1-93, 7-1-94, 7-1-95, 8-15-95, 7-1-96, 9-15-96, 10-20-96, 6-1-97, 8-7-97, 7-1-98, 7-2-98, 7-1-99, Formerly 39-15.064, Amended 11-17-99, 7-1-00, 7-1-01.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE:

Mr. Timothy A. Breault

NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED

THE PROPOSED RULE: Dr. Allan L. Egbert

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY

HEAD: January 3, 2001

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT

PUBLISHED IN FAW: November 22, 2000

FISH AND WILDLIFE CONSERVATION COMMISSION

Freshwater Fish and Wildlife

RULE TITLE:

Specific Regulations for Type I Wildlife

RULE NO.:

Management Areas – Northeast Region 68A-15.065

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purposes of the proposed rule changes are to adjust hunting season dates on all regional Wildlife Management Areas (WMAs) to conform with proposed 2001-2002 hunting season dates for the appropriate hunting zones; to add or delete WMAs to reflect changes in the boundaries of administrative regions; to change references to the name of the region; and to make changes in other regulations necessary to improve efficiency in the management of fish and wildlife resources and public use on WMAs.

SUMMARY: Proposed rule changes would adjust all applicable hunting season dates and other references to such dates on WMAs in the region to conform with 2000-2001 hunting season dates for the appropriate hunting zones. Proposed changes would delete rules for Citrus, Flying Eagle, Homosassa, and Potts WMAs to reflect transfer of those WMAs to a new administrative region; add rules for Cary, Nassau, and Fort Drum WMAs to reflect transfer of those WMAs to this administrative region; and change references to the name of the administrative region from Central to Northeast. Changes also would establish or revise specific area regulations on WMAs as follows:

Nassau WMA – provide that fishing and frogging is permitted during periods the area is open for hunting or scouting and make technical changes to reflect removal of lands south of US Highway A1A.

Cary WMA – remove size and bag limit on wild hogs.

Lake George WMA – clarify rule language that specifies conditions for public access.

Triple N Ranch WMA – convert the special-opportunity hog hunt to a general gun hog hunt and revise associated rule language accordingly; clarify rule language that authorizes use of horses for hunting during small-game season without restricting such use to roads; and authorize vehicle access for scouting by special-opportunity hunt permittees the Saturday and Sunday prior to any special-opportunity hunt.

Tiger Bay WMA – delete permit requirements and fishing restrictions for Ranch Pond.

Tiger Bay Wildlife Management Area – Rima Ridge Unit – prohibit operation of any boat powered by an internal combustion engine on Scoggin and Indian lakes.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST: It is estimated that the proposed action will cost the agency approximately \$1,080 for administrative preparation and \$522 for legal advertising. No other significant economic impacts are expected.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated regulatory costs, or to provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const.

A HEARING ON THE PROPOSED RULE WILL BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATE AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

TIME AND DATES: 8:30 a.m., each day, March 29-30, 2001

PLACE: Holiday Inn – Capital, 1355 Apalachee Parkway, Tallahassee, Florida

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE AND ECONOMIC STATEMENT IS: James Antista, General Counsel, Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission, 620 South Meridian Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1600

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

68A-15.065 Specific Regulations for Type I Wildlife Management Areas – ~~Northeast Central~~ Region.

(1) Bull Creek Wildlife Management Area

(a) Open season:

1. General gun – November ~~10~~ 11 through January ~~6~~ 7.
2. Small game – January ~~7~~ 8 through March ~~3~~ 4.
3. Spring turkey – March ~~16~~ 17 through April ~~21~~ 22.
4. Archery – September ~~22~~ 23 through October ~~21~~ 22. A special quota permit will be required for the September ~~22-23~~ 23-24 hunt.
5. Muzzleloading gun – October ~~26-28~~ 27-29.
6. through 7. No change.

(b) through (d) No change.

~~(2) Citrus Wildlife Management Area~~

~~(a) Open season:~~

1. Modern gun – December ~~16~~ 17 and January ~~6~~ 7.
2. Small game – January ~~8~~ through March ~~4~~.
3. Muzzleloading gun – December ~~9-10~~ and December ~~30-31~~.
4. Archery – November ~~11~~ through December ~~3~~.
5. Fishing and frogging – Throughout year.

~~(b) Legal to take: All legal game (except turkeys), fish, frogs and furbearers. During the muzzleloading gun and modern gun seasons, antlerless deer may be taken by permit only. Antlerless deer may be taken during the first 9 days of the archery season, but only one antlerless deer may be harvested per quota permit or per person exempted from license and stamp requirements by s. 372.57(1) and (6), F.S. No size or bag limit for wild hogs.~~

~~(c) Camping: Permitted in designated campsites only.~~

~~(d) General regulations:~~

1. ~~Only bird dogs may be used for hunting during the small game season. Dogs are prohibited at other times except as authorized.~~
2. ~~The use of two wheeled or all terrain vehicles is prohibited.~~
3. ~~Vehicles may be operated only on named or numbered roads.~~
4. ~~No deer shall be dismembered or removed until checked at the check station.~~
5. ~~The use of horses for hunting is prohibited except during the small game season.~~
6. ~~The possession of guns using other than center fire cartridges is prohibited during the modern gun season.~~
7. ~~Hunting quail is prohibited between Trail 16 and State Road 480.~~
8. ~~Bird dogs may be used during authorized field trials.~~
9. ~~Bird dogs may be trained in the area between Trail 16 and Trail 20 October 1 through 31. Scheduled bird dog trial events are authorized only in the area between Trail 16 and County Road 480.~~
10. ~~Only tents, trailers or self-propelled camping vehicles may be used for camping.~~
11. ~~Taking of wildlife by use of a gun on or from rights of way of all paved roads is prohibited as provided by Rule 68A-4.008, F.A.C.~~
12. ~~Camping equipment may not be taken into the area prior to 14 days before the archery season and shall be removed by 6:00 p.m. six days after the close of the small game season.~~
13. ~~Persons operating vehicles shall enter and exit only at designated entrances.~~
14. ~~Horses are restricted to named or numbered roads and designated horse trails.~~

~~(2)(3) Miami Corporation Wildlife Management Area~~

~~(a) Open season:~~

1. General gun – November ~~10~~ 11 through January ~~6~~ 7.
2. Small game – January ~~7~~ 8 through March ~~3~~ 4.
3. Spring turkey – March ~~16~~ 17 through April ~~21~~ 22.
4. Archery – September ~~22~~ 23 through October ~~21~~ 22. A special quota permit will be required for the September ~~22-23~~ 23-24 hunt.
5. Muzzleloading gun – October ~~26-28~~ 27-29.
6. through 7. No change.

~~(b) through (d) No change.~~

~~(2) Citrus Wildlife Management Area~~

~~(a) Open season:~~

1. General gun – November ~~10~~ 11 through January ~~6~~ 7.
2. Small game – January ~~7~~ 8 through March ~~3~~ 4.
3. Spring turkey – March ~~16~~ 17 through April ~~21~~ 22.
4. Archery – September ~~22~~ 23 through October ~~21~~ 22. A special quota permit will be required for the September ~~22-23~~ 23-24 hunt.
5. Muzzleloading gun – October ~~26-28~~ 27-29.
6. through 7. No change.

1. General gun – November ~~10~~ ~~11~~ through January ~~6~~ ~~7~~. Hunting is prohibited on Wednesdays and Thursdays, except the first nine days, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day and New Year's Day.

2. Fishing and frogging – November ~~10~~ ~~11~~ through January ~~6~~ ~~7~~ or as authorized by permit from the landowner.

3. Archery – September ~~22~~ ~~23~~ through October ~~21~~ ~~22~~, in the still hunt area, Saturdays and Sundays only.

4. Muzzleloading gun – October ~~26-28~~ ~~27-29~~, only in the still hunt area and north of Maytown Road.

5. Small game – January ~~7-20~~ ~~8-21~~.

(b) through (d) No change.

~~(3)(4)~~ Ft. McCoy Wildlife Management Area

(a) Open season:

1. General gun – November ~~10~~ ~~11~~ through January ~~6~~ ~~7~~.

2. Small game – January ~~7-27~~ ~~8-28~~.

3. Archery – September ~~22~~ ~~23~~ through October ~~21~~ ~~22~~.

4. Muzzleloading gun – October ~~26-28~~ ~~27-29~~.

5. Spring turkey – March ~~16~~ ~~17~~ through April ~~21~~ ~~22~~.

6. No change.

(b) through (d) No change.

~~(4)(5)~~ Georgia – Pacific Wildlife Management Area

(a) Open season:

1. General gun – November ~~10~~ ~~11~~ through January ~~6~~ ~~7~~.

2. Small game – January ~~7~~ ~~8~~ through March ~~3~~ ~~4~~.

3. Spring turkey – March ~~16~~ ~~17~~ through April ~~21~~ ~~22~~.

4. Archery – September ~~22~~ ~~23~~ through October ~~21~~ ~~22~~.

5. No change.

(b) through (d) No change.

~~(5)(6)~~ Ocala Wildlife Management Area

(a) Open season:

1. General gun – November ~~10~~ ~~11~~ through January ~~6~~ ~~7~~.

2. Small game – January ~~7~~ ~~8~~ through March ~~3~~ ~~4~~.

3. Archery – September ~~22~~ ~~23~~ through October ~~21~~ ~~22~~.

4. Muzzleloading gun – October ~~26-28~~ ~~27-29~~, on the Church Lake, Hopkins Prairie and Lake Delancy Management Units only.

5. Fox, bobcat and raccoon – November ~~10~~ ~~11~~ through April ~~14~~ ~~15~~.

6. No change.

7. Spring turkey – March ~~21-24~~ ~~22-25~~, ~~28-31~~ ~~March 31~~ ~~April 1~~, ~~April 4-7~~ ~~5-8~~ and ~~11-14~~ ~~12-15~~, except that portion of the Pipeline Unit south of S.R. 40 and west of S.R. 19.

8. through 9. No change.

(b) Legal to take:

1. No change.

2. Furbearing animals – During the November ~~10~~ ~~11~~ through March 1 period, hunting as specified in Rule 68A-24.002(2)(b), F.A.C., is permitted only in the Pipeline and Church Lake Management Units. Raccoons may also be hunted, with dogs only, from March ~~4~~ ~~5~~ through April ~~14~~ ~~15~~

only in that portion of the Pipeline Management Unit south of S.R. 40, east of C.R. 183 AV, and west of S.R. 19. The hunting of fox and bobcat by the use of dogs only shall be permitted from January ~~7~~ ~~8~~ through April ~~14~~ ~~15~~, only in that portion of the Pipeline Management Unit south of S.R. 40, east of County Road 183 AV, and west of SR 19.

(c) No change.

(d) General regulations:

1. through 7. No change.

8. Dogs may be used to pursue rabbits from January ~~7~~ ~~8~~ through April ~~14~~ ~~15~~ in that portion of the Pipeline Management Unit south of S.R. 40, east of C.R. 183 AV, and west of S.R. 19.

9. No change.

(e) No change.

~~(6)(7)~~ Richloam Wildlife Management Area

(a) Open season:

1. General gun – November ~~10~~ ~~11~~ through January ~~6~~ ~~7~~.

2. Spring turkey – March ~~16~~ ~~17~~ through April ~~21~~ ~~22~~.

3. Archery – September ~~22~~ ~~23~~ through October ~~21~~ ~~22~~.

4. No change.

5. Trapping – January ~~7~~ ~~8~~ through March 1.

(b) through (d) No change.

~~(7)(8)~~ Richloam Wildlife Management Area – Baird Unit

(a) Open season:

1. Archery – September ~~22~~ ~~23~~ through October ~~7~~ ~~8~~.

2. Muzzleloading gun – October ~~26-28~~ ~~27-29~~.

3. General gun – November ~~10-18~~ ~~11-19~~.

4. Spring turkey – March ~~16-18~~ ~~17-19~~, ~~22-24~~ ~~March 23-25~~, and ~~29-31~~ ~~March 30~~ through April 1.

5. Small game – December ~~1-16~~ ~~2-17~~ and January ~~19~~ ~~20~~ through February ~~10~~ ~~11~~.

6. No change.

(b) through (d) No change.

~~(8)(9)~~ Three Lakes Wildlife Management Area

(a) Open season:

1. General gun – November ~~10~~ ~~11~~ through January ~~6~~ ~~7~~.

2. Small game – January ~~7~~ ~~8~~ through March ~~3~~ ~~4~~.

3. Spring turkey – March ~~16~~ ~~17~~ through April ~~21~~ ~~22~~.

4. Archery – September ~~22~~ ~~23~~ through October ~~21~~ ~~22~~.

5. No change.

6. Muzzleloading gun – October ~~26-28~~ ~~27-29~~.

7. General gun for mobility-impaired – November ~~2-4~~ ~~3-5~~.

8. General gun-dog – December ~~6-9~~ ~~7-10~~, ~~20-23~~ ~~21-24~~ and ~~27-30~~ ~~December 28-31~~ in that area between the Florida Turnpike and U.S. 441 only.

9. No change.

(b) through (e) No change.

~~(9)(10)~~ Prairie Lakes Unit, Three Lakes Wildlife Management Area

(a) Open season:

1. Archery – September ~~28-30~~ ~~29~~ through October ~~1~~ and October ~~5-7~~ ~~6-8~~.

2. Muzzleloading gun – October ~~26-28~~ ~~27-29~~.

3. General gun – November ~~16-18~~ ~~17-19~~ and ~~23-25~~ ~~24-26~~.

4. Small game – December ~~8-23~~ ~~9-24~~.

5. Spring turkey – March ~~16-18~~ ~~17-19~~, ~~29-31~~ March ~~30~~ through April ~~1~~ and April ~~12-14~~ ~~13-15~~.

6. No change.

7. General gun hog – November 30 through December 2 ~~December 1-3~~ and January ~~4-6~~ ~~5-7~~.

(b) through (d) No change.

~~(10)(11)~~ Tiger Bay Wildlife Management Area

(a) Open season:

1. General gun – November ~~10~~ ~~11~~ through January ~~6~~ ~~7~~.

2. Archery – September ~~22~~ ~~23~~ through October ~~21~~ ~~22~~.

3. Muzzleloading gun – October ~~26-28~~ ~~27-29~~.

4. Small game – January ~~7~~ ~~8~~ through March ~~3~~ ~~4~~.

5. Spring turkey – March ~~16-18~~ ~~17-19~~, ~~29-31~~ March ~~30~~ through April ~~1~~ and April ~~12-14~~ ~~13-15~~.

6. No change.

(b) No change.

1. No change.

~~2. Ranch Pond: Fishing is prohibited, except by permit issued pursuant to subsection 68A-9.002(1), F.A.C. No person shall take in any one day more than 4 freshwater fish including catfish and fish of the type generally called panfish such as bream, crappie (speckled perch), shellecracker or warmouth in the aggregate. No person shall kill or possess any black bass.~~

(c) through (d) No change.

~~(11)(12)~~ Tiger Bay Wildlife Management Area – Rima Ridge Unit

(a) Open Season:

1. General gun – November ~~10~~ ~~11~~ – ~~18~~ ~~19~~.

2. Archery – September ~~22~~ ~~23~~ through October ~~7~~ ~~8~~.

3. Muzzleloading gun – October ~~26-28~~ ~~27-29~~.

4. Small game – November ~~22~~ ~~23~~ through December ~~30~~ ~~31~~.

5. Spring turkey – March ~~16-18~~ ~~17-19~~, ~~29-31~~ March ~~30~~ through April ~~1~~ and April ~~12-14~~ ~~13-15~~.

6. No change.

~~7.6.~~ Trapping – Trapping is prohibited.

(b) through (c) No change.

(d) General regulations:

1. through 5. No change.

~~6. No person shall operate any boat powered by an internal combustion engine on Scoggin and Indian lakes.~~

~~(12)(13)~~ Relay Wildlife Management Area

(a) Open season:

1. General gun – November ~~10~~ ~~11~~ through January ~~6~~ ~~7~~.

2. Archery – September ~~22~~ ~~23~~ through October ~~21~~ ~~22~~ (Fridays, Saturdays and Sundays only).

3. Muzzleloading gun – October ~~26-28~~ ~~27-29~~.

4. Small game – January ~~7~~ ~~8~~ through March ~~3~~ ~~4~~.

5. Spring turkey – March ~~16~~ ~~17~~ through April ~~21~~ ~~22~~.

6. No change.

(b) through (d) No change.

~~(13)(14)~~ Tosohatchee Wildlife Management Area

(a) Open season:

1. Archery – September ~~27-30~~ ~~28~~ through October ~~1~~ and October ~~4-7~~ ~~5-8~~.

2. Muzzleloading gun – October ~~11-14~~ ~~12-15~~ and ~~18-21~~ ~~19-22~~.

3. Modern gun – November ~~15-18~~ ~~16-19~~ and ~~23-25~~ ~~24-26~~.

4. Spring turkey – March ~~16-18~~ ~~17-19~~, ~~29-31~~ March ~~30~~ through April ~~1~~, and April ~~12-14~~ ~~13-15~~.

5. General gun-hog – January ~~11-17~~ ~~12-18~~ and ~~25-31~~ ~~January 26~~ through February ~~1~~.

(b) through (d) No change.

~~(14)(15)~~ Seminole Ranch Wildlife Management Area

(a) Open season:

1. Archery – October ~~5-7~~ ~~6-8~~ and ~~12-14~~ ~~13-15~~.

2. Muzzleloading gun – October ~~27-28~~ ~~28-29~~ and November ~~3-4~~ ~~4-5~~.

3. Modern gun – November ~~16-18~~ ~~17-19~~.

4. Small game – November ~~24-25~~ ~~25-26~~, December ~~1-2~~ ~~2-3~~ and ~~8-9~~ ~~9-10~~.

5. Spring turkey – March ~~16-18~~ ~~17-19~~, ~~22-24~~ ~~23-25~~ and ~~29-31~~ March ~~30~~ through April ~~1~~.

6. General gun-hog – February ~~9-15~~ ~~10-16~~.

7. No change.

(b) through (d) No change.

~~(15)(16)~~ Jumper Creek Wildlife Management Area

(a) Open season:

1. Archery – September ~~22~~ ~~23~~ through October ~~21~~ ~~22~~.

2. Muzzleloading gun – October ~~26-28~~ ~~27-29~~.

3. General gun – November ~~10~~ ~~11~~ through January ~~6~~ ~~7~~.

4. Small game – January ~~7-27~~ ~~8-28~~.

5. Spring turkey – March ~~16~~ ~~17~~ through April ~~21~~ ~~22~~.

6. No change.

(b) through (d) No change.

~~(16)(17)~~ Rock Springs Run Wildlife Management Area

(a) Open season:

1. Archery – September ~~28-30~~ and ~~29~~ October ~~5-7~~ ~~1~~ and ~~6-8~~.

2. Muzzleloading gun – October ~~12-14~~ ~~13-15~~ and ~~19-21~~ ~~20-22~~.

3. Modern gun – November ~~9-11~~ ~~10-12~~ and ~~16-18~~ ~~17-19~~.

4. Small game – December ~~1-2~~ ~~2-3~~, ~~8-9~~ ~~9-10~~ and January ~~5-6~~ ~~6-7~~.

(b) through (d) No change.

~~(17)(18)~~ Guana River Wildlife Management Area

- (a) Open season:
1. No change.
 2. General gun – November ~~16-18 17-19~~ and ~~23-25 24-26~~.
 3. Muzzleloading gun – October ~~26-28 27-29~~ and November ~~2-4 3-5~~.
 4. Archery – October ~~12-14 13-15~~ and ~~19-21 20-22~~.
 5. Small game – November 30 through December 2 1-3, December 7-9, 8-10 January 4-6 5-7, 11-13 12-14, 18-20 19-21 and 25-27 26-28.
 6. through 7. No change.
- (b) through (e) No change.
- ~~(18)(19)~~ Half Moon Wildlife Management Area
- (a) Open season:
1. Archery – September ~~22-24 23-25~~ and ~~28-30 September 29 – October 1.~~
 2. Muzzleloading gun – October ~~26-28 27-29~~.
 3. General gun – November ~~10-12 11-13~~ and ~~16-18 17-19~~.
 4. Small game – November 30 through December 2 December 1-3, December 7-9 8-10, and 14-16 15-17.
 5. Spring turkey – March ~~22-24 23-25, 29-31 March 30 through April 1~~ and April 5-7 6-8.
 6. No change.
- (b) through (d) No change.
- ~~(19)(20)~~ Caravelle Ranch Wildlife Management Area
- (a) Open season:
1. Archery – September ~~22-30 23 through October 1.~~
 2. Supervised small game – October ~~7-15 8-16~~.
 3. Muzzleloading gun – October ~~26-28 27-29~~.
 4. General gun – November ~~10-18 11-19~~.
 5. No change.
 6. Small game – November ~~22 23~~ through January ~~6 7, Thursdays, Fridays, Saturdays and Sundays only.~~
 7. Spring turkey – March ~~16-19 17-20~~ and ~~20-24 21-25~~.
 8. through 9. No change.
- (b) through (d) No change.
- ~~(20)(21)~~ Lake George Wildlife Management Area
- (a) Open season:
1. Archery – September ~~22 23~~ through October ~~21 22~~.
 2. Muzzleloading gun – October ~~26-28 27-29~~.
 3. General gun – November ~~10-25 11-26~~.
 4. Small game – November ~~26 27~~ through March ~~3 4~~.
 5. Spring turkey – March ~~16-18 17-19, 29-31 March 30 through April 1, and April 12-14 13-15.~~
 6. No change.
- (b) through (d) No change.
- ~~(21)(22)~~ Lake George Wildlife Management Area – Dexter/Mary Farms Unit
- (a) Open season:
1. Small game – November ~~10 11~~ through December ~~2 3~~ and December ~~22 23~~ through January ~~6 7~~.
 2. Special-opportunity turkey – March ~~16-22 17-23, March 30 31~~ – April ~~5 6~~ and ~~13-19 14-20~~.
 3. General gun-hog – January ~~12-15 13-16, 16-21 17-22, 22-27 23-28.~~
 4. through 5. No change.
- (b) through (c) No change.
- (d) General regulations:
1. through 3. No change.
 4. The Bluffton Recreation Area shall be open throughout the year from sunrise to sunset via the St. Johns River Road only. During periods when the Dexter Mary Farms Unit is closed to hunting, vehicle access to areas other than the Bluffton Recreation Area is allowed only by permit from the Division of Forestry. Individuals in possession of a special-opportunity turkey hunt permit shall have vehicular access to the Dexter Mary Farms Unit from sunrise to sunset on the Saturday and Sunday preceding the hunt. During periods when the area is closed to hunting, public access is allowed only to the Bluffton Recreation Area via St. Johns River Road. All other access shall be by permit from the Division of Forestry, except individuals in possession of a special-opportunity turkey hunt permit shall have vehicular access to the area from sunrise to sunset on the Saturday and Sunday preceding the hunt. The Bluffton Recreation Area shall be open for public access only from sunrise to sunset.
 5. through 10. No change.
- (e) No change.
- ~~(22)(23)~~ Seminole Forest Wildlife Management Area
- (a) Open season:
1. Archery – September ~~22-25 23-26~~ and ~~26-30 September 27 through October 1.~~
 2. Muzzleloading gun – October ~~26-28 27-29~~.
 3. General gun – December ~~1-4 2-5~~ and ~~5-9 6-10~~.
 4. Small game – January ~~12-27 13-28, Saturdays and Sundays only.~~
 5. Spring turkey – March ~~16-19 17-20~~ and ~~20-24 21-25~~.
 6. General gun for mobility-impaired – October ~~19-21 20-22~~.
 7. No change.
- (b) through (d) No change.
- ~~(24)~~ Flying Eagle Wildlife Management Area.
- ~~(a) Open season:~~
1. Archery – ~~September 30 – October 8.~~
 2. Muzzleloading gun – ~~October 27-29.~~
 3. General gun – ~~November 11-19.~~
 4. Small game – ~~November 24-26 and December 15-17.~~
 5. Spring turkey – ~~March 17-20 and 21-25.~~
 6. Early duck – ~~In September, season established by Rule 68A-13.003, F.A.C.~~
 7. Fishing and frogging – ~~Permitted throughout the year.~~

~~(b) Legal to take: All legal game, fish, frogs and furbearers (except mink and otter). Antlerless deer may be taken by permit only during the muzzleloading gun and general gun seasons. No size or bag limit on wild hogs.~~

~~(c) Camping: Prohibited during periods open for hunting.~~

~~(d) General regulations:~~

~~1. During periods when the area is closed to hunting, public access other than on foot, bicycle or horseback is prohibited.~~

~~2. Hunting with dogs is prohibited except that waterfowl retrievers and bird dogs are allowed during small game and early duck seasons.~~

~~3. The possession of centerfire and rimfire rifles is prohibited.~~

~~4. Vehicles may be operated only on named or numbered roads and may be parked only at designated parking areas.~~

~~5. The use of tracked vehicles, motorcycles or all terrain vehicles is prohibited. The use of horses is prohibited during periods when hunting is allowed. During periods when the area is closed to hunting, horses may be ridden only on designated roads and marked trails.~~

~~6. Hunters shall check in and out at the check station when entering and exiting the area and check all game taken.~~

~~7. No deer, wild hog or turkey shall be dismembered until checked at the check station.~~

~~8. During the early duck season, shooting hours are from one half hour before sunrise until 12 noon each day.~~

~~(23)(25) Triple N Ranch Wildlife Management Area~~

~~(a) Open seasons:~~

~~1. General gun Special opportunity hog – October 12-14 14-15, 19-21 21-22, and 26-28 October 28-29 and November 4-5.~~

~~2. Special opportunity deer – November 10-16 11-17.~~

~~3. Small game – November 24 25 through January 20 21.~~

~~4. Special opportunity turkey – March 16-22 17-23, March 30 31 – April 5 6 and 13-19 14-20.~~

~~5. through 6. No change.~~

~~(b) Legal to take: Wild hogs during the special opportunity wild hog hunts, with a daily bag of 2, no size limit. One antlered deer may be taken per special opportunity deer hunt permit. Antlerless deer (except spotted fawns) may be taken by antlerless deer permit only. Taking antlered deer not having at least one antler with four or more points is prohibited. All legal small game and furbearers during the small game season. Turkey during the special opportunity turkey hunts. The bag limit for turkey shall be one gobbler (or bearded turkey) per special opportunity turkey hunt permit. Fish and frogs throughout the year.~~

~~(c) No change.~~

~~(d) General regulations:~~

~~1. No change.~~

2. Vehicles or horses may be used only on named and numbered roads except that horses are not restricted to roads during the small game season. Horses are prohibited during periods when hunting is allowed except that hunters may hunt from horseback during the small game season.

3. Horses are prohibited during periods when hunting is allowed except that hunters may hunt from horseback during the small game season.

3. through 5. renumbered 4. through 6. No change.

~~7.~~ Individuals in possession of a special-opportunity turkey hunt permit may shall have vehicle access to the area from sunrise to sunset on the Saturday and Sunday preceding the hunt.

7. through 8. renumbered 8. through 9. No change.

~~(26) Homosassa Wildlife Management Area:~~

~~(a) Open season:~~

~~1. General gun hog – September 7-10 and 14-17.~~

~~2. Small game – November 11 through December 3 and December 23 through January 7.~~

~~3. Special opportunity spring turkey – March 17-23 and March 31 through April 6.~~

~~4. Fishing and frogging – Permitted throughout the year.~~

~~(b) Legal to take: Only wild hogs may be taken during the hog season. There is no bag or size limit restrictions on hogs. All legal small game and furbearers may be taken during the small game season. Wild turkeys may only be taken during the special opportunity spring turkey season. The bag limit for turkeys shall be one gobbler (or bearded turkey) per special opportunity permit. Fish and frogs are legal to take throughout the year.~~

~~(c) Camping: Prohibited.~~

~~(d) General regulations:~~

~~1. The use of dogs, other than bird dogs and dogs with a shoulder height of 15 inches or less, is prohibited.~~

~~2. Vehicles may be operated only on named or numbered roads. Bicycles may be operated only on named or numbered roads and designated firelines.~~

~~3. Vehicles may be parked only in designated parking areas.~~

~~4. The use of tracked vehicles, airboats, motorcycles, all terrain vehicles or horses is prohibited.~~

~~5. Small game hunters are required to sign in and sign out at game registration boxes and record all game taken.~~

~~6. Public access to the area is prohibited during the period from 8:00 pm to 5:00 am.~~

~~7. A special opportunity hunt permit shall be required for every person entering the area during special opportunity hunts.~~

~~8. The possession of centerfire rifles is prohibited.~~

~~(24)(27) Etoniah Creek Wildlife Management Area~~

~~(a) Open season:~~

~~1. Archery – September 22 23 through October 7 8.~~

2. Muzzleloading gun – October ~~26-28~~ 27-29.
3. General gun – November ~~10-18~~ 11-19.
4. No change.
5. Spring turkey – March ~~16-18~~ 17-19, ~~22-24~~ 23-25, March ~~29-31~~ 30 through April 1.
6. No change.

(b) through (d) No change.

~~(25)(28)~~ Little Big Econlockhatchee Wildlife Management Area – Kilbee Unit

(a) Open season:

1. Archery – October ~~5-7~~ 6-8 and ~~12-14~~ 13-15.
2. Muzzleloading gun – November ~~2-4~~ 3-5.
3. General gun – November ~~16-18~~ 17-19.
4. Small game – December ~~8-23~~ 9-24 (Saturdays and Sundays only).
5. No change.

(b) through (c) No change.

~~(26)(29)~~ Lake Panasoffkee Wildlife Management Area

(a) Open season:

1. Special-opportunity turkey – March ~~21-24~~ 22-25, and April ~~2-5~~ 3-6, and April ~~18-21~~ 19-22.
2. Special-opportunity archery – September ~~27-30~~ 28 October 1, October ~~4-7~~ 5-8 and ~~16-19~~ 17-20, November ~~1-4~~ 2-5 and ~~13-16~~ 14-17, November ~~29~~ 30 – December ~~2~~ 3 and ~~11-14~~ 12-15, and January ~~3-6~~ 4-7.

3. Special-opportunity hog-still – February ~~1-3~~ 2-4.
4. Special-opportunity hog-dog – February ~~13-15~~ 14-16.
5. Small game – January ~~18-20~~ 19-21 and ~~25-27~~ 26-28.

6. through 7. No change.

(b) through (d) No change.

~~(30)~~ Potts Wildlife Management Area

(a) Open season:

1. Spring turkey – March 17 through 20 and March 21 through 25.
2. Archery – September 23 through October 1.
3. Muzzleloading gun – October 27-29.
4. General gun hog dog – November 17-19.
5. Small game – December 2-10.
6. Fishing and frogging – Permitted throughout the year.
7. Trapping – Prohibited.

(b) Legal to take: All legal game, wild hogs, fish, and frogs. The bag limit for turkey shall be one gobbler (or bearded turkey) per spring turkey quota hunt permit. No size or bag limit on wild hogs. Only wild hogs may be taken during the general gun hog dog hunt.

(c) Camping: Camping is permitted at designated campsites during hunting season and at other times by permit from the Southwest Water Management District. Kitchen stoves, refrigerators, and freezers, unless contained in mobile campers are prohibited. Lumber, sheet metal or other building materials is prohibited. Each camper shall assure that their

campsite is clean at all times. The alteration, defacing, moving, tampering in any way with official markings of campsites is prohibited.

(d) General regulations:

1. During periods when the area is closed to hunting, public access other than on foot, bicycle or horseback is prohibited unless by permit from the Southwest Florida Water Management District.

2. Vehicles may be operated only on named or numbered roads and may be parked only at designated parking areas. Bicycles may be ridden only on designated trails.

3. The use of tracked vehicles, motorcycles or all terrain vehicles is prohibited. During periods when the area is closed to hunting, horses may be ridden only on designated roads and designated trails.

4. Hunters shall check in and out at the check station when entering or exiting the area and shall check all game taken.

5. No game shall be dismembered until checked at the check station.

6. Only tents, trailers or self-propelled camping vehicles may be used for camping.

7. The name and address and telephone number of the person responsible for each campsite shall be visibly affixed to the camping shelter.

8. The use of dogs, other than bird dogs and dogs with a shoulder height of 15 inches or less during the small game season, is prohibited except that dogs may be used during the general gun hog dog season. During the general gun hog dog season, no more than 3 dogs per quota permit shall be allowed.

9. During the general gun hog dog season, a permit shall be required for each group of two hunters, and only one gun may be possessed per permit.

~~(27)(31)~~ Ross Prairie Wildlife Management Area

(a) Open Season:

1. Supervised small game – October ~~13-19~~ 14-20, November ~~17-23~~ 18-24, December ~~15-21~~ 16-22 and January ~~12-18~~ 13-19.

(b) through (d) No change.

~~(28)(32)~~ Buck Lake Wildlife Management Area

(a) Open season:

1. Archery – September ~~22-30~~ 23 – October 1 and October ~~1-7~~ 2-8.
2. Muzzleloading gun – October ~~26-28~~ 27-29.
3. General gun – November ~~10-13~~ 11-14 and ~~14-18~~ November 15-19.

4. Small Game – December ~~1-16~~ 2-17.

5. Spring turkey – March ~~16-19~~ 17-20 and ~~20-24~~ 21-25.

6. No change.

(b) through (d) No change.

~~(29)~~ Nassau Wildlife Management Area

(a) Open season:

1. General gun – November 10 through January 6.

- 2. Small game – January 7 through March 3.
 - 3. Spring turkey – March 16 through April 21.
 - 4. Archery – September 22 through October 21.
 - 5. Muzzleloading gun – October 26-28.
 - 6. Fishing and frogging – During periods the area is open for hunting or scouting.
 - 7. Trapping – January 7 through March 1.
 - (b) Legal to take: All legal game, fish, frogs and furbearers. Wild hogs may not be taken after November 26.
 - (c) Camping: Prohibited.
 - (d) General regulations:
 - 1. The possession or use of dogs other than bird dogs and waterfowl retrievers is prohibited during the general gun season.
 - 2. Vehicles may be operated only on named or numbered roads.
 - 3. Hunting with dogs is prohibited during the archery and muzzleloading gun seasons.
 - 4. Fires are prohibited.
 - 5. Vehicles are prohibited on the area from 1.5 hours after sunset to 1.5 hours before sunrise. Vehicles may only enter and exit the area at designated locations.
 - 6. Access to the area is permitted only by individuals possessing a valid recreational use permit and only from the Saturday prior to the archery season through the last day of the spring turkey season.
- (30) Cary Wildlife Management Area
- (a) Open season:
 - 1. Archery – October 13-14, November 3-4 and 17-18, December 8-9 and 22-23.
 - 2. Muzzleloading gun – December 29-30 and January 12-13.
 - 3. Bird dog training – October through January, Wednesdays, Saturdays and Sundays, except during scheduled hunting periods.
 - (b) Legal to take: All legal game except that only wild hogs and antlered deer may be taken during the muzzleloading gun season. No size or bag limit on wild hogs.
 - (c) Camping: Prohibited.
 - (d) General regulations:
 - 1. Fires are prohibited.
 - 2. Hunting with dogs is prohibited except that bird dogs are permitted during bird dog training season.
 - 3. Vehicles may be operated on designated roads only.
 - 4. The use of all-terrain vehicles (ATVs) is prohibited.
 - 5. Crossbows are prohibited.
 - 6. Hunters shall check in and out at a check station when entering and exiting the area and shall check all game taken.
 - 7. On that portion of the area open for hunting, horses are allowed only on established roads during periods when hunting is permitted.

- 8. The possession of firearms other than blank-firing pistols is prohibited during bird dog training season.
 - (31) Fort Drum Wildlife Management Area
 - (a) Open season:
 - 1. Special-opportunity deer – November 10-16.
 - 2. Small game – December 8-23.
 - 3. Special-opportunity turkey – March 16-22, March 30 through April 5 and April 13-19.
 - 4. Special-opportunity wild hog – September 4-6, 11-13, and 18-20.
 - 5. Fishing – Permitted throughout the year.
 - (b) Legal to take: All legal game and fish. One antlered deer per special-opportunity deer hunt permit. Antlerless deer (except spotted fawns) may be taken by antlerless deer permit only. Taking of antlered deer not having at least one antler with four or more points is prohibited. No bag or size limit on wild hogs. Taking of wild hogs during the special-opportunity turkey hunt is prohibited.
 - (c) Camping: Permitted only at designated campsites.
 - (d) General Regulations:
 - 1. Hunting with dogs other than bird dogs and retrievers during the small game season is prohibited.
 - 2. Hunters shall enter and exit at Gate 1 only and check in and out at the designated check station when entering or exiting the area.
 - 3. During nonhunting periods, access shall be through designated points only along State Road 60.
 - 4. During periods open to hunting, vehicles may be operated only on named or numbered roads. During the remainder of the year, vehicles may be operated only on Entrance Road.
 - 5. Persons participating in the special-opportunity deer, turkey or wild hog hunts must be in possession of a special-opportunity hunt permit.
 - 6. During special-opportunity hunts, only permittees may use tents, trailers or self-propelled camping vehicles at designated campsites. During the remainder of the year, only tent camping shall be permitted and only at designated campsites.
 - 7. The use of tracked vehicles, airboats, motorcycles, or all-terrain vehicles is prohibited.
 - 8. Horses are permitted only during nonhunting periods and permitted only on designated trails.

(32) This rule shall take effect on July 1, 2001.

Specific Authority Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const. Law Implemented Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const., 375.313 FS. History—New 6-21-82, Amended 6-29-82, 7-1-83, 7-5-84, 10-1-84, 7-1-85, 5-7-86, 5-10-87, 5-1-88, 7-1-89, 12-19-89, 7-1-90, 7-1-91, 7-2-91, 7-2-92, 7-1-93, 7-1-94, 7-1-95, 7-1-96, 9-15-96, 6-1-97, 7-1-98, 7-2-98, 8-11-98, 12-28-98, 7-1-99, Formerly 39-15.065, Amended 12-20-99, 7-1-00, 7-1-01.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE:
Mr. Timothy A. Breault

NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Dr. Allan L. Egbert
 DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: January 3, 2001
 DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: November 22, 2000

FISH AND WILDLIFE CONSERVATION COMMISSION

Freshwater Fish and Wildlife

RULE TITLE: Specific Regulations on Type II Wildlife Management Areas

RULE NO.: 68A-16.005

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose and effect of the proposed rule is to organize Type II Wildlife Management Areas by administrative region; adjust hunting season dates to conform to the 2001-2002 calendar; and to incorporate other changes to allow the agency to more efficiently manage wildlife resources and public use on these areas.

SUMMARY: The proposed rule changes would organize the Type II Wildlife Management Areas by administrative region and would adjust all hunting season dates to conform to the 2001-2002 hunting season dates for the respective zones. Changes would also establish or revise specific area regulations on Type II Wildlife Management Areas as follows: Eglin Air Force Base – the proposed changes would correct the dates of the small game season in Unit 10 and allow retrievers to be used in addition to bird dogs; would add Mondays as a designated hunt day during the first and second phases of the dove season; and would establish fishing regulations for Duck Pond including a daily aggregate bag of 20 panfish and prohibitions on taking or possessing bluegill or redear sunfish less than eight inches in length or black bass less than 16 inches total length. Tyndall Air Force Base – the proposed changes would create a muzzleloading gun season (November 16-18); would prohibit the discharge of a firearm or gun on, upon, or across any road open for public access; would eliminate duplicative regulations; and would expand spring turkey season to include all designated areas.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST: It is estimated that the proposed action will cost the agency approximately \$915 for administrative preparations and \$670 for legal advertising. No other significant economic impacts are expected.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated regulatory costs, or to provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const.

A HEARING ON THE PROPOSED RULE WILL BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATE AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

TIME AND DATES: 8:30 a.m., each day, March 29-30, 2001

PLACE: Holiday Inn – Capital, 1355 Apalachee Parkway, Tallahassee, Florida

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE AND ECONOMIC STATEMENT IS: James Antista, General Counsel, Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission, 620 South Meridian Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1600

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

(Substantial rewording of Rule 68A-16.005 follows. See Florida Administrative Code for present text.)

68A-16.005 Specific Regulations on Type II Wildlife Management Areas.

(1) Southwest Region:

(a) Avon Park Air Force Range – Polk and Highlands counties:

1. Open season:

a. Archery – September 22 through October 21, Friday, Saturday, Sunday, and Monday only.

b. Muzzleloading gun – October 27 through November 4, Friday, Saturday, Sunday, and Monday only.

c. General gun – November 10 through December 30, Friday, Saturday, Sunday, and Monday only and at other times as designated by the U.S. Air Force.

d. Small game – December 31 through March 2, Friday, Saturday, Sunday, and Monday only.

e. Spring turkey – March 16 through April 21, Friday, Saturday, Sunday, and Monday only.

f. Fishing and frogging – During periods when hunting is allowed and at other times as provided by U.S. Air Force regulations.

g. Trapping – Prohibited.

h. Camping – On designated campsites during periods when area is open to hunting and at other times as provided by U.S. Air Force regulations.

2. Legal to take:

a. All legal game, fish, frogs, turtles (except gopher tortoises), and furbearers. All other animals are protected and may not be harassed, injured, killed, or removed from the installation except as specifically authorized by the Natural Resource Manager.

b. Antlerless deer may be taken during the archery season and on October 27, December 8 and 15. Antlered deer may be taken during archery season, muzzleloading gun season, and the first four weekend hunting periods of general gun season.

c. Turkey of either sex may be taken only during the archery season. Turkey may not be taken during the muzzleloading gun or general gun season.

3. General regulations:

a. Hunters may enter the area at noon on Thursday and must exit by 8:00 p.m. on Monday during each hunting period except during the opening weekends of archery, muzzleloading gun, general gun, and spring turkey season when hunters may not enter until noon on Friday. During the closing weekends of the above seasons, hunters must exit by 8:00 p.m. Sunday. During small game season, hunters may enter on the opening day and must exit by 8:00 p.m. Sunday on the closing weekend.

b. Hunters may enter and exit the area only at the main gate and the Frostproof gate.

c. Hunters and individuals accompanying hunters must wear a minimum of 500 square inches of daylight orange material above the waist as an outer garment when in any hunt area during muzzleloading gun, general gun, or small game season. Blaze-orange clothing is not required for hunting waterfowl in Kissimmee and Arbuckle marshes or during the archery or spring turkey season.

d. Persons determined by the U.S. Air Force or Commission personnel to be intoxicated will be required to leave the area and the privilege to enter the area shall be revoked.

e. The discharge of guns is prohibited on, from, or across any public campsite.

f. Loaded, capped, or primed guns are prohibited and ammunition must be physically separated from guns at check stations, public campsites, the Natural Resources office, within 50 feet of Frostproof, Kissimmee, or Van Eeghan roads, while being transported through the Cantonment area (Main Base), or in vehicles on designated roads.

g. Pistols with barrels longer than nine inches are prohibited.

h. Hunting with or possession of dogs is prohibited during the general gun season in designated areas. Hunting with bird dogs or retrievers is permitted throughout the area during the small game season.

i. Each permit holder and his/her guest is allowed to have a combined total of three dogs during any daily hunting period.

j. Rifles other than muzzleloaders are prohibited.

k. Running of dogs at night is prohibited.

l. Vehicles may be operated only on designated roads except bird hunters with bird dogs may hunt from vehicles during the small game season in designated vehicle-bird dog areas.

m. Two- or three-wheeled motor vehicles and airboats are prohibited. Horses are permitted with written permission of the Natural Resources Manager.

n. Vehicles shall not be parked in such a manner as to obstruct roads or firelanes.

o. The use of vehicles is prohibited in the hunt area between 10:00 p.m. and 4:30 a.m. except on Frostproof and Kissimmee roads, or in case of emergency.

p. All hunters must submit an outdoor recreation report prior to leaving the area during any weekend hunting period.

q. Hunt permit-holders, guests, or dependents must display their hunt permits, hunting licenses, and identification, and submit to a vehicle inspection upon request from any Hunt Program employee, U.S. Air Force Security Police Officer, or Wildlife Officer.

r. Hunters shall check all game taken at the Natural Resources office when open.

s. During the general gun season, hunting in the designated dog hunting area is restricted to hunters using dogs. No tree stands may be erected.

t. The possession of a gun is prohibited in the Sandy Point Wildlife Refuge.

u. Entering a closed management unit is prohibited.

(2) North Central Region:

(a) Little River – Suwannee County:

1. Open season:

a. Archery – September 22-24, September 29 through October 1, and October 6-8.

b. Muzzleloading gun – October 26-28.

c. Small game – December 1-5 and 22-26.

d. Fishing – Permitted throughout the year.

e. Trapping – Prohibited.

f. Camping – Permitted by landowner permit.

g. Dog training – Prohibited.

2. Legal to take – Deer and wild hogs. No size or bag limit on wild hogs. Only rabbit and gray squirrel may be taken during small game season.

3. General regulations:

a. Vehicles may be operated only on designated roads.

b. The use of all-terrain vehicles is prohibited.

c. All persons shall enter and exit only at designated points.

d. Hunting with dogs, including leashed dogs, is prohibited.

e. All hunters shall check in and out at designated entrances.

(b) Middle Aucilla – Madison, Taylor, and Jefferson counties:

1. Open season:

a. General gun – November 10 through January 6.

b. Small game – January 7 through March 3.

c. Archery – September 22 through October 21.

d. Muzzleloading gun – October 27 through November 4.

e. Spring turkey – March 16 through April 21.

f. Fishing – Permitted throughout the year.

g. Trapping – Prohibited.

h. Camping – Prohibited.

i. Dog training – Prohibited.

2. Legal to take – All legal game, fish, and furbearers. Antlerless deer may be taken during the archery season only. Turkey may be taken only during the spring turkey season. No size or bag limit on wild hogs.

3. General regulations:

a. Vehicles may be operated only on designated roads.

b. Hunting or possession of wild hogs with dogs is prohibited.

c. The use of all-terrain vehicles is prohibited.

(c) Troy Springs – Lafayette County:

1. Open season:

a. Small game – November 10 through January 6 except on Sundays and only in that portion of the area known as the Adams Tract located northeast of U.S. 27, east and south of County Road 251, and southwest of the Suwannee River.

b. Fishing – Permitted throughout the year.

c. Trapping – Prohibited.

d. Camping – Permitted year-round on Ruth Springs and Walker tracts. Permitted only during periods closed to hunting on the Adams Tract. A written permit from the Suwannee River Water Management District is required for all camping.

2. Legal to take – Rabbit, gray squirrel, and fish only.

3. General regulations:

a. Vehicles may be operated only on named or numbered roads.

b. The use of all-terrain vehicles is prohibited.

c. Hunting with dogs, including leashed dogs, is prohibited.

d. Public access is permitted only through designated access points.

(d) Bayard – Clay County:

1. Open season:

a. Archery – September 22 through October 7 and November 17-25.

b. Muzzleloading gun – October 27 through November 4.

c. Spring turkey – The first three days of the Central Zone season, and the Friday, Saturday, and Sunday of the third and fifth weekends of the Central Zone season.

d. Trapping – Prohibited.

e. Camping – Permitted by hunt permit holders at the designated sites in Area 3 only during periods open to hunting; year-round at designated sites in Area 1 only; and during non-hunting periods at designated campsites in Areas 2 and 3 only.

f. Fishing and frogging – Permitted throughout the year.

2. Legal to take – All legal game, fish, frogs, and furbearers. The bag limit shall be one deer per hunt permit; wild hogs of any size with no bag limit may be taken during any hunt; turkey of either sex during archery season only; quail, gray squirrel, and rabbit.

3. General regulations:

a. Hunting with dogs is prohibited.

b. Vehicles may be operated only on named or numbered roads.

c. Vehicles may be parked only at designated parking areas.

d. The use of tracked vehicles, motorcycles, or all-terrain vehicles is prohibited.

e. During hunting periods, public access is restricted to those individuals with valid hunt permits.

f. All hunters must check in and out at the designated check station and check all game taken.

g. Horses are permitted throughout the year in Area 1 and only during non-hunting periods in Areas 2 and 3.

h. Horses and non-motorized bicycles may be used only on named or numbered roads and designated trails.

i. Vehicular access is permitted on all hunt days plus the weekend and the day before all hunts except spring turkey season when it shall be permitted only on hunt days and the day before each hunt.

j. A hunt permit is not required for fishing or frogging during periods closed to hunting.

k. Hunting shall be permitted only in Areas 2 and 3.

l. Hunt permits are transferable.

m. Only shotguns may be used during the spring turkey season.

n. Vessels may be used to access the area from St. Johns River.

(3) Northwest Region:

(a) Eglin Air Force Base – Santa Rosa, Okaloosa, and Walton counties:

1. Area regulations:

a. The possession or use of a gun is permitted only during established open seasons in which the use of such equipment is authorized or at, or while proceeding to and from authorized Eglin target ranges. Centerfire pistols or other rifles are permitted only at approved target ranges and Units 7 and 11 unless specifically authorized by the Air Base Wing Commander. All rifles and centerfire pistols must be unloaded and encased while in transit to approved target ranges and Units 7 and 11.

b. The possession of loaded, capped or primed guns in designated camping areas is prohibited.

c. The possession of guns in closed areas or the possession of dogs or firearms in special archery areas is prohibited without specific authorization by the Air Base Wing Commander.

d. Persons may not enter any “closed” area without specific authorization from the Air Base Wing Commander.

e. Bird dogs may be trained with the aid of a blank pistol in designated areas during daylight hours.

f. Taking of wildlife by use of a gun on or from the rights-of-way of any paved Eglin road, Range Roads 213, 234, and the portion of Range Road 211 from Highway 85 west to Range Road 610, and all other roads posted as such, is prohibited, as provided by Rule 68A-4.008, F.A.C.

g. Vehicles may be operated only on numbered roads.

h. All persons must check in and out at the designated check station and check all game taken in Units 7 and 11 except during the small game season.

i. The use of all-terrain vehicles is prohibited.

j. All persons hunting quail in Unit 6 shall check in and out at the check station and check all game taken.

k. Motorized vehicles are prohibited in Units 4, 5, 8, 9, 11, and 17, and in Units 1, 2, 3, 7, and 16 except during designated hunts.

l. Driving a metal object into any tree or hunting from a tree in which a metal object has been driven is prohibited.

m. No person shall park any vehicle in a manner which obstructs a road, gate, or firelane.

2. Archery hunts:

a. Open season – October 13 through November 11 in all open, stalk, and archery-only areas.

b. Legal to take – Antlered deer, antlerless deer before November 12 only, gray squirrel, and rabbit. Furbearers after November 30 only.

3. Muzzleloading gun:

a. Open season – November 16-18.

b. Legal to take – Antlered deer, gray squirrel, and rabbit.

4. General gun for mobility-impaired:

a. Open season – February 2-3.

b. Legal to take – All legal game, and antlerless deer.

c. General regulations:

i. Use of all-terrain vehicles is allowed by permit only.

5. General gun hunts:

a. Open season – November 22-25, December 8-30, and January 19 through February 3 in all units except Units 6 and 16; November 22-25 and December 8-30 in Units 6 and 16; and at other times and in areas designated by the Air Base Wing Commander.

b. Legal to take – All legal game and furbearers. Furbearers may be taken after November 30. Antlerless deer may be taken by permit only.

c. General regulations:

i. Possession or use of any dog in any special archery area is prohibited.

ii. Possession or use of any dog other than a bird dog is prohibited in all still-hunt areas.

iii. Dogs may be transported through still-hunt areas on Eglin Road 211 between State Road 85 and Honey Creek and on Eglin Road 211 between Wolf Creek and Range Road 236.

iv. During general gun season, all persons hunting in Unit 16 shall check all game taken.

6. Small game hunt:

a. Open season – December 31 through January 18 in all units except Unit 6 and the area north of Range Road 211, west of State Road 85, and east of State Road 87. November 10 through February 14 only in Unit 6 and the area north of Range Road 211, west of State Road 85, and east of State Road 87.

b. Legal to take – Quail, rabbit, gray squirrel, furbearers, coyote, armadillo, and migratory birds in season.

c. General regulations – Bird dogs and retrievers may be used in designated dog and still-hunt areas. Dogs may be used to take rabbit in Unit 10 from December 31 through January 18.

7. Archery and muzzleloading gun:

a. Open season – February 8-11 and 15-17 except in Units 6 and 16.

b. Legal to take – Antlered deer, gray squirrel, quail, rabbit, and furbearers.

c. General regulations – Only bow and arrow and muzzleloading guns are allowed.

8. Dove season:

a. Open season – First and second phase of the dove season on Mondays, Wednesdays, and Saturdays only. Third phase of the dove season during the general gun season only.

b. General regulations:

i. A daily dove field permit denoting a specific field is required during the first and second phase prior to the general gun season.

9. Spring turkey season:

a. Open season – March 16 through April 21.

b. General regulations – Only shotguns or bow and arrow may be used.

10. Special hunt:

a. Open season – February 9-10.

b. Legal to take – Any deer (except spotted fawns).

11. Trapping:

a. Open season – December 8 through March 1.

b. Legal to take – All legal furbearers.

12. Fox, raccoon, opossum, and bobcat:

a. Open season – May 15 through August 31 with dogs.

b. General regulations:

i. One .22 caliber pistol using .22 short cartridges per hunting party may be used. All other guns are prohibited.

ii. Fox, raccoon, opossum, and bobcat hunting is permitted only in Units 10 and 12.

13. Fishing:

a. Fishing is permitted only from 1 1/2 hours before sunrise to 1 1/2 hours after sunset except during May 1 through September 30 when it is permitted from 1 1/2 hours before sunrise until 10:00 p.m.

b. Trotlines or bush hooks are prohibited in all ponds.

c. Duck Pond: No person shall take in any one day more than 20 panfish in the aggregate. No person shall kill or possess any bluegill or redear sunfish less than eight inches total length. No person shall kill or possess any black bass less than 16 inches total length.

14. Camping: Permitted only at designated campsites.

(b) Lower Escambia – Escambia and Santa Rosa counties:

1. Open season:

a. General gun – November 22-25 and December 8 through January 2 except Parker and Morgan Islands (November 22-25 and December 8-31).

b. Small game – November 10 through December 7 and January 3 through March 3 except Parker and Morgan Islands (November 10-15, November 19 through December 7, and February 1 through March 3).

c. Duck and dove – As established by Rules 68A-13.003 and 68A-13.008, F.A.C.

d. Muzzleloading gun – November 16-18.

e. Archery – October 13 through November 11.

f. Archery and muzzleloading gun – February 14-24 except on Parker and Morgan Islands (January 1-31 and February 14-24).

g. Spring turkey – March 16 through April 21.

h. Fox, raccoon, and bobcat – November 1 through July 31 except during spring turkey season.

i. Fishing and frogging – Permitted throughout the year.

j. Camping – Permitted throughout the year.

2. Legal to take – All legal game, furbearers, fish, and frogs. Antlerless deer (except spotted fawns) may be taken only during the archery season. Turkey may be taken only during the designated spring turkey season. Raccoon may be taken by the use of firearms during the November 1 through March 1 period only.

3. General regulations:

a. Vehicles may not be operated on roads posted as closed.

b. Vehicles may be operated only on graded or maintained roads.

c. Taking hogs by the use of dogs is prohibited.

d. Centerfire rifles are prohibited except during the general gun or spring turkey season.

e. Hunting with dogs other than bird dogs is prohibited during daylight hours November 10-21, November 26 through December 7, and January 3 through March 3; also, November 22-25 and December 8 through January 2 in that portion of the area north of State Road 184, Mineral Springs Road in Santa Rosa County, and Bogia Road in Escambia County.

f. The use or possession of dogs is prohibited on Parker and Morgan Islands except in accordance with Rule 68A-24.002(2)(b), F.A.C., when hunting raccoon.

g. Permanent camping structures are prohibited.

h. Taking of wildlife by use of a gun on or from rights-of-way of State Road 184 and all other paved roads located within the area is prohibited as provided by Rule 68A-4.008, F.A.C.

i. The use of all-terrain vehicles is prohibited.

(c) Tyndall Air Force Base – Bay County:

1. Archery season:

a. Hunting – October 13 through 21 daily and October 22 through November 11 on Wednesdays, Saturdays, Sundays, and federal holidays only.

b. Legal to take – All legal game except turkey and furbearers. Taking of antlered deer not having at least one forked antler and having one or more antlers at least five inches in length visible above the hairline is prohibited. The forked antler shall have at least two points one inch or greater in length.

2. Muzzleloading gun:

a. Hunting – November 16-18 in designated areas.

b. Legal to take – All legal game except turkey. Taking of antlered deer not having at least one forked antler and having one or more antlers at least five inches in length visible above the hairline is prohibited. The forked antler shall have at least two points one inch or greater in length.

3. Special hunt unit:

a. General gun – December 15-16, 29-30, and January 26-27.

b. Legal to take – Antlered or antlerless deer only.

c. Hunters shall possess a special hunt permit while participating in these hunts.

4. General gun:

a. Hunting – November 22-25 and December 8 through February 13 on Saturdays, Sundays, Wednesdays, federal holidays from November 22 through February 13, and daily from December 15 through 30 except Christmas Day. Hunt days are subject to change by order of the Wing Commander.

b. Legal to take – All legal game (except turkey) and furbearers. Taking of antlered deer not having at least one forked antler and having one or more antlers at least five inches in length visible above the hairline is prohibited. The forked antler shall have at least two points one inch or greater in length. Antlerless deer may be taken by permit only.

5. Special hunt:

a. Hunting – November 17-18, December 1-12 and 15-16.

b. Legal to take – Any deer (except spotted fawns).

6. Dove season:

a. First phase – Permitted on designated fields on Saturdays, Sundays, and Wednesdays only.

b. Second and third phases – Permitted in any open area on Saturdays, Sundays, and Wednesdays only.

c. Hunters shall possess a dove hunting permit during the first phase of the dove season and either a dove hunting permit or a general gun permit during the second and third phases.

7. Spring turkey:

a. Hunting – March 16-17, 23-24, 30-31, April 6-7, 13-14, and 20-21.

b. Legal to take – Gobblers or bearded turkey. The bag limit for turkey shall be one gobbler (or bearded turkey) per Tyndall turkey hunting permit.

c. Only shotguns or bow and arrow may be used.

8. Fishing:

a. Fishing is prohibited in all waters posted as closed.

b. The operation of gasoline-powered boats is prohibited on freshwater lakes.

c. Persons fishing on freshwater lakes shall conform to established limits, fishing dates and hours, and possess a valid fishing permit.

d. Trotlines or bush hooks are prohibited.

9. General regulations:

a. The possession or use of any firearms on Tyndall Air Force Base is prohibited during closed seasons and during closed days.

b. Only muzzleloading guns or shotguns are permitted during firearms hunts and during special hunts.

c. Hunting with dogs other than bird dogs is prohibited.

d. Vehicles may be operated only on established roads.

e. Fires are prohibited.

f. Camping is prohibited.

g. Trapping is prohibited.

h. The use or possession of centerfire and rimfire rifles and pistols is prohibited.

i. Taking of wildlife on or from the rights-of-way of any road open to vehicular access is prohibited as provided by Rule 68A-4.008, F.A.C.

j. All hunters shall check in and out at a check station prior to entering or exiting the East and West Units during any open hunting season and shall check all game harvested.

k. Driving a metal object into any tree or hunting from a tree in which a metal object has been driven is prohibited.

l. Hunters hunting south of Sabre Drive are required to park in designated parking areas.

m. During special hunts, hunting is permitted from designated stands only.

(d) Upper Chipola River – Jackson County:

1. Open season:

a. General gun – November 22-25 and December 8 through January 1.

b. Archery – October 13 through November 11.

c. Muzzleloading gun – November 16-18.

d. Small game – November 10-21, November 26 through December 7, and January 2 through March 3.

e. Archery and muzzleloading gun – February 16-17 and 23-24.

f. Spring turkey – March 16 through April 21.

g. Duck and coot – During the duck and coot season as established by Rule 68A-13.003, F.A.C.

h. Dove – During the dove seasons established by Rule 68A-13.008, F.A.C.

i. Camping – Permitted throughout the year.

j. Fishing and frogging – Permitted throughout the year.

k. Trapping – December 1 through March 1.

2. Legal to take – All legal game, fish, frogs, and furbearers. Antlerless deer may be taken only during the archery season. Bearded turkey or gobblers may not be taken during the general gun season.

3. General regulations:

a. Taking or attempting to take deer with the aid of dogs is prohibited.

b. Vehicles shall not be parked in such a manner as to obstruct roads, gates, or firelines.

c. Vehicles may be operated only on graded or maintained roads.

d. The use of all-terrain vehicles is prohibited.

(e) Apalachicola River – Gulf and Liberty counties:

1. Open season:

a. General gun – November 22-25 and December 8 through February 13.

b. Archery – October 13 through November 11.

c. Muzzleloading gun – November 16-18.

d. Small game – November 10-21, November 26 through December 7, and February 14 through March 3.

e. Archery and muzzleloading gun – February 14-24.

f. Spring turkey – March 16 through April 21.

g. Duck and coot – During the duck and coot season as established by Rule 68A-13.003, F.A.C.

h. Dove – During the dove seasons established by Rule 68A-13.008, F.A.C.

i. Camping – Permitted throughout the year.

j. Fishing and frogging – Permitted throughout the year.

k. Trapping – December 1 through March 1 in still hunt areas and February 1 through March 1 in dog hunt areas.

2. Legal to take – All legal game, fish, frogs, and furbearers. Antlerless deer may be taken only during the archery season. During the general gun season, bearded turkey or gobblers may be taken only during the period of November 22-25 and December 8-19.

3. General regulations:

a. Hunting with dogs other than bird dogs is prohibited in designated still hunt areas. Designated still hunt areas are those lands lying east of the Apalachicola River and north and east of the Florida River and Larkins Slough in Liberty County; that area in Gulf County known as Cutoff Island which is bounded on the north by the Chipola Cutoff, on the west and south by the Chipola River, and on the east by the Apalachicola River; and all lands lying west of the Chipola River in Gulf County.

b. Vehicles shall not be parked in such a manner as to obstruct roads, gates, or firelines.

c. Vehicles may be operated only on graded or maintained roads.

d. The use of all-terrain vehicles is prohibited.

(f) Choctawhatchee River – Bay, Walton, Washington, and Holmes counties:

1. Open season:

a. General gun – November 22-25 and December 8 through February 13 except Holmes Creek Unit and East River Island.

b. Archery – October 13 through November 11.

c. Muzzleloading gun – November 16-18.

d. Small game – November 10-21, November 26 through December 7, and February 14 through March 3.

e. Archery and muzzleloading gun – February 14-24, Holmes Creek Unit and East River Island November 22-25 and December 8 through February 24.

f. Spring turkey – March 16 through April 21 only in that portion of the area south of the pipeline right-of-way located up river (north) of Cedar Log Landing (Walton County) and Douglas Ferry Landing (Washington County).

g. Duck and coot – During the duck and coot season as established by Rule 68A-13.003, F.A.C.

h. Dove – During the dove seasons established by Rule 68A-13.008, F.A.C.

i. Camping – Permitted throughout the year.

j. Fishing and frogging – Permitted throughout the year.

k. Trapping – December 1 through March 1 in still hunt areas and February 1 through March 1 in dog hunt areas.

2. Legal to take – All legal game (except turkey shall not be taken in that portion of the area north of the pipeline right-of-way), fish, frogs, and furbearers. During the general gun season, bearded turkey or gobblers may be taken only in the portion of the area south of the pipeline right-of-way during the period of November 22-25 and December 8-19.

3. General regulations:

a. Hunting with dogs other than bird dogs is prohibited in designated still hunt areas. Designated still hunt areas are Holmes Creek Unit (those lands in Washington County lying west of S.R. 79 and east of C.R. 284) and East River Island (those lands in Township 1 North, Ranges 17 and 18 West which are bounded on the south and east by East River and on the west and north by the Choctawhatchee River).

b. Vehicles shall not be parked in such a manner as to obstruct roads, gates, or firelines.

c. Vehicles may be operated only on graded or maintained roads.

d. The use of all-terrain vehicles is prohibited.

(g) Upper Choctawhatchee River – Holmes County:

1. Open season:

a. Archery – October 13 through November 11.

b. Muzzleloading gun – November 16-18.

c. General gun – November 22-25 and December 8 through February 13.

d. Small game – November 10-15, 19-21, November 26 through December 7, and February 25 through March 3.

e. Archery and muzzleloading gun – February 14-24.

f. Fishing and frogging – Permitted throughout the year.

g. Trapping – December 1 through March 1.

h. Duck and dove – As established in Rules 68A-13.003 and 68A-13.008, F.A.C.

i. Camping – Permitted throughout the year.

2. Legal to take – All legal game (except turkey), fish, frogs, and furbearers.

3. General regulations:

a. Hunting with dogs other than bird dogs and retrievers is prohibited.

b. The use of all-terrain vehicles is prohibited.

(h) Yellow River – Santa Rosa County:

1. Open season:

a. Archery – October 13 through November 11.

b. Muzzleloading gun – November 16-18.

c. General gun – November 22-25 and December 8 through February 13.

d. Small game – November 10-15, 19-21, November 26 through December 7, and February 25 through March 3.

e. Archery and muzzleloading gun – February 14-24.

f. Spring turkey – March 16 through April 21.

g. Fishing and frogging – Permitted throughout the year.

h. Trapping – December 1 through March 1.

i. Duck and dove – As established by Rules 68A-13.003 and 68A-13.008, F.A.C.

j. Camping – Permitted throughout the year.

2. Legal to take – All legal game, fish, frogs, and furbearers.

3. General regulations:

a. Hunting with dogs other than bird dogs and retrievers is prohibited.

b. The use of all-terrain vehicles is prohibited.

(i) Econfina Creek – Bay and Washington counties:

1. Open seasons except in the mobility-impaired hunt area:

a. Archery – October 13 through November 11.

b. Muzzleloading gun – November 16-18.

c. General gun – November 22-25 and December 8 through January 30.

d. Archery and muzzleloading gun – February 14-24.

e. Small game – November 10 through March 3.

f. Spring turkey – March 16 through April 21.

g. Raccoon – November 10 through March 15 and April 22 through July 31.

h. Duck and coot – During the duck and coot season as established by Rule 68A-13.003, F.A.C.

- i. Trapping – December 1 through March 1.
- j. Fishing and frogging – Permitted throughout the year.
- k. Camping – Permitted only at designated sites.
- 2. Open seasons in the mobility-impaired area (mobility-impaired hunt area south of S.R. 20 and east of Einfinger Road):
 - a. General gun – November 23-25, January 11-13, 18-20, 25-27, and January 30 through February 1.
 - b. Spring turkey – March 16-17, 22-24, 29-31, April 5-7, 12-14, and 19-21.
 - c. Fishing and frogging – Permitted throughout the year.
- 3. Legal to take – All legal game, fish, frogs, and furbearers. Taking of antlerless deer is prohibited except during archery season and in the mobility-impaired hunt area during general gun for mobility-impaired hunts. In the mobility-impaired hunt area, antlerless deer (bag limit of one per three-day hunt) may be taken only by persons possessing valid mobility-impaired certificates. Turkey may be taken only during archery or spring turkey season.
 - a. In that portion of the area lying south of S.R. 20 and north of S.R. 388, taking fish is prohibited except by permit issued pursuant to Rule 68A-9.002(1), F.A.C. No person shall take in any one day more than four freshwater fish. No person shall kill or possess any black bass.
- 5. General regulations:
 - a. Vehicles may be operated only on named or numbered roads except in the mobility-impaired hunt area by persons possessing mobility-impaired certificates.
 - b. The possession or use of all-terrain vehicles or motorcycles is prohibited except in the mobility-impaired hunt area by persons possessing mobility-impaired certificates.
 - c. The possession or consumption of intoxicating beverages is prohibited.
 - d. Hunting with dogs other than bird dogs or retrievers is prohibited south of S.R. 20, east of Econfina Creek, west of Econfina Road and south of Greenhead Road, and north of Duma Jack Road except that dogs may be used to take raccoons (except in the mobility-impaired hunt area).
 - e. Persons hunting in the mobility-impaired area must possess a valid mobility-impaired certificate and mobility-impaired hunt permit, or a mobility-impaired hunting assistant permit. The mobility-impaired hunting assistant permit shall authorize hunting by the holder and is valid only when the mobility-impaired certificate holder is present on the wildlife management area.
 - f. Taking of wildlife by use of a gun on or from rights-of-way of Strickland Road, Porter Pond Road, Duma Jack/Deadening Road, Econfina Road, Greenhead Road, Hampshire Boulevard, S.R. 20, or C.R. 388 is prohibited.
- (4) Northeast Region:
 - (a) Upper St. Johns River Marsh – Indian River, Brevard, and Osceola counties:

- 1. Open season:
 - a. Archery – September 22 through October 23.
 - b. Muzzleloading gun – October 27 through November 4.
 - c. General gun – November 10 through January 20.
 - d. Small game – January 21 through March 3.
 - e. Spring turkey – March 16 through April 21.
 - f. Trapping – Prohibited.
 - g. Fishing and frogging – Permitted year-round.
 - h. Camping – Permitted in designated campsites only.
 - i. Waterfowl may be hunted in accordance with federal migratory bird regulations.
- 2. Legal to take – All legal game, furbearers, fish, and frogs. Antlerless deer may be taken during the archery season and the period November 17-18. Turkey of either sex may be taken during the archery or muzzleloading gun season. The period of November 10 through January 6 is open for bearded turkey only. No bag or size limits on wild hogs. Wild hogs may be taken during the archery, muzzleloading gun, general gun, and small game season.
 - 3. General regulations:
 - a. Hunt permits are non-transferable.
 - b. Motorized tracked or wheeled vehicles are prohibited on the marsh. Motorized boats are prohibited in those portions of the area posted as “walk-in only.”
 - c. The possession of any firearm containing shells or cartridges or any capped or primed muzzleloading gun is prohibited in or on any public campsite, the Fellsmere Grade, C-54 right-of-way, and all levees.
 - d. The discharge of any gun is prohibited on, from, or across any public campsite.
 - e. Permanent camps are prohibited. Camping by the use of tents, trailers, and self-propelled camping vehicles is permitted at designated campsites only.
 - f. Driving a metal object into any tree or hunting from any tree in which a metal object has been driven is prohibited.
 - g. Taking of wildlife by use of a gun on or from the right-of-way of the Fellsmere Grade is prohibited as provided by Rule 68A-4.008, F.A.C.
 - h. The use or possession of guns is permitted only during periods and in areas open to hunting.
 - i. The possession or use of any device capable of discharging, emitting spray, or introducing any pollutants is prohibited.
 - j. The use of any air-powered boat or outboard motors greater than 10 horsepower is prohibited as posted in the Blue Cypress Water Management Area.
 - k. The possession or use of guns is prohibited in the St. Johns Water Management Area, S.N. Knight West Impoundment, and as posted in the Blue Cypress Water Management Area except for shotguns during the duck and coot season.
 - l. A hunt permit is not required for fishing or frogging.

m. Public access is prohibited from within 1,000 feet of any posted construction site.

n. Hunting with dogs is prohibited except during the small game season. Waterfowl retrievers are permitted during the duck and coot season. Hunting hogs with the aid of dogs is prohibited except during the period January 23-27.

o. Airboats must launch and load from the water at the designated airboat launch area when using the Blue Cypress Water Management Area.

p. Airboats must cross levees at designated airboat crossings.

q. Bush hooks are prohibited.

r. No person shall use an airboat to take wildlife, frogs, or fish, or for other recreational uses on the area unless such airboat is equipped with an orange flag at least 10 inches wide and 12 inches long displayed at a minimum height of 10 feet above the bottom of the vessel.

s. Public access on Levee 74 North is allowed only at designated entrances.

(b) Ralph E. Simmons Memorial – Nassau County:

1. Open season:

a. General gun – November 17-25.

b. Archery – September 22-30.

c. Muzzleloading gun – October 27 through November 4.

d. General gun for mobility-impaired – October 13-16.

e. Small game – December 17-30 and February 2-10.

f. Trapping – Prohibited.

g. Camping – Permitted by hunt permit holders at designated sites during periods open to hunting and at other times by Special District Permit.

h. Spring turkey – The first three days of the Central Zone season, and the Friday, Saturday, and Sunday of the third and fifth weekends of the Central Zone season.

i. Fishing and frogging – Permitted throughout the year.

2. Legal to take – Antlered deer except antlerless deer may be taken during the archery season and general gun for mobility-impaired hunt. The bag limit shall be one antlered and one antlerless deer per hunt permit. Wild hogs of any size with no bag limit, turkey of either sex during archery season only, quail, gray squirrel, and rabbit.

3. General regulations:

a. Hunting with dogs is prohibited except bird dogs may be used during the small game season.

b. Vehicles may be operated only on named or numbered roads except that mobility-impaired hunters may use tracked vehicles, all-terrain vehicles, and horses throughout the area. Mobility-impaired hunters must possess a Water Management District Special Use Permit to use tracked vehicles, all-terrain vehicles, and horses during hunting seasons other than the general gun for mobility-impaired season.

c. Vehicles may be parked only at designated parking areas.

d. Vehicular access is permitted on all hunt days plus the weekend and day before all hunts except spring turkey season when it shall be permitted only on hunt days and the day before each hunt. The use of tracked vehicles, motorcycles, or all-terrain vehicles is prohibited.

e. During hunting periods, public access is restricted to those individuals with valid hunt permits. No more than two non-disabled helpers may accompany a mobility-impaired permit holder. Non-disabled helpers may not hunt or possess firearms during the general gun for mobility-impaired season.

f. All hunters must check in and out at the designated check station and check all game taken.

g. Horses are prohibited during periods open to hunting except when used by mobility-impaired hunters. During periods closed to hunting, horses may be used only on named or numbered roads and designated trails.

h. Non-motorized bicycles may be used only on named or numbered roads and designated trails.

i. A hunt permit is not required for fishing or frogging during periods closed to hunting.

j. Hunt permits are transferable.

(c) Emerald Marsh – Lake County:

1. Open season:

a. Duck and coot:

i. During the September season established by Rule 68A-13.003, F.A.C.

ii. During the first phase of the duck and coot season established by Rule 68A-13.003, F.A.C.

iii. During the first day, last day, and each Wednesday, Saturday, and Sunday of the second phase of the duck and coot season established by Rule 68A-13.003, F.A.C.

b. Fishing and frogging – Permitted throughout the year.

c. Trapping – Prohibited.

d. Camping – Prohibited except by landowner permit.

2. Legal to take – Ducks, coots, snipe, fish, and frogs. Legal shooting hours for ducks, coots, and snipe are from the beginning hour established in Rule 68A-13.003, F.A.C., until 1:00 p.m.

3. General regulations:

a. A hunt permit is not required for fishing or frogging.

b. Hunt permits are transferable.

c. Vehicles are prohibited except at designated locations.

d. Air-powered boats, all-terrain vehicles, tracked vehicles, and motorcycles are prohibited.

e. Guns are prohibited except that shotguns are allowed during periods when hunting is allowed and guns may be used by authorized Nuisance Feral Hog Trappers.

f. Establishment of or hunting from a permanent blind is prohibited.

g. Unleashed dogs are prohibited except that retrievers are allowed during the duck and coot season.

h. Hunting is prohibited within 500 feet of any paved road, pumping facility, or posted construction site.

i. Possession of black bass is prohibited.

j. Possession of cast nets and minnow lift nets is prohibited.

k. Hunting from perimeter levees is prohibited.

(d) Dunns Creek – Putnam County:

1. Open season:

a. Archery – September 22 through October 7 and November 17-25.

b. Muzzleloading gun – October 27 through November 4.

c. Spring turkey – March 16-18, 29-31, and April 12-14.

d. Trapping – Prohibited.

e. Camping – Permitted by hunt permit holders at designated campsites only, during periods open to hunting and at other times by special District permit.

f. Fishing and frogging – Permitted throughout the year.

2. Legal to take – All legal game, fish, frogs, and furbearers. The bag limit shall be one antlered and one antlerless deer per hunt permit. Wild hogs of any size with no bag limit may be taken during any hunt. Turkey of either sex may be taken during the archery season only. Quail, gray squirrel, and rabbit.

3. General regulations:

a. Hunting with dogs is prohibited.

b. Vehicles may be operated only on named or numbered roads.

c. Vehicles may be parked only at designated parking areas.

d. The use of tracked vehicles, motorcycles, or all-terrain vehicles is prohibited.

e. During hunting periods, public access is restricted to those individuals with valid hunt permits.

f. All hunters shall check in and out at the check station and check all game taken.

g. During periods closed to hunting, horses may be used only on named or numbered roads and designated trails.

h. Non-motorized bicycles may be used only on named or numbered roads and designated trails.

i. Vehicular access is permitted on all hunt days plus the weekend and day before all hunts except spring turkey season when it shall be permitted only on hunt days and the day before each hunt.

j. A hunt permit is not required for fishing or frogging during periods closed to hunting.

k. Hunt permits are transferable.

l. Only shotguns may be used during the spring turkey season.

m. Vessels may be used to access the area from Dunns Creek.

Specific Authority Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const. Law Implemented Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const. History–New 8-1-79, Amended 12-3-79, 7-13-80, 8-4-81, 10-15-81, 11-17-81, 8-29-82, 7-27-83, 9-27-83, 8-13-84, 8-21-85, 9-23-85, Formerly 39-16.05, Amended 8-5-86, 8-13-87, 8-18-88, 8-17-89, 8-21-90, 8-22-91, 8-23-92, 9-2-93, 9-15-94, 8-15-95, 9-15-96, 8-7-97, 7-1-98, 8-11-98, 7-1-99, Formerly 39-16.005, Amended 7-1-00,_____.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE:
Mr. Timothy A. Breault

NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Dr. Allan L. Egbert

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: January 2, 2001

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: November 22, 2000

FISH AND WILDLIFE CONSERVATION COMMISSION

Freshwater Fish and Wildlife

RULE TITLE: Specific Regulations for Wildlife and Environmental Areas

RULE NO.: 68A-17.005

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose and effect of the proposed rule is to organize Wildlife and Environmental Areas by administrative region; to adjust hunting season dates to conform to the 2001-2002 calendar; and to incorporate other changes to allow the agency to more efficiently manage wildlife resources and public use on these areas.

SUMMARY: The proposed changes would organize Wildlife and Environmental Areas (WEA) by administrative region and would adjust hunting season dates to conform to the 2001-2002 calendar. Changes would also establish or revise specific area regulations as follows: Split Oak and Hickey Creek Mitigation Parks–the proposed change would prohibit access from 1/2 hour after sunset to 1/2 hour before sunrise. John G. and Susan H. Dupuis Jr. WEA – the proposed change would prohibit dogs except retrievers used during the small game season.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST: It is estimated that the proposed action will cost the agency approximately \$915 for administrative preparation and \$270 for legal advertising. No other significant economic impacts are expected.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated regulatory costs, or to provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const.

A HEARING ON THE PROPOSED RULE WILL BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATE AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

TIME AND DATES: 8:30 a.m., each day, March 29-30, 2001

PLACE: Holiday Inn – Capital, 1355 Apalachee Parkway, Tallahassee, Florida

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE AND ECONOMIC STATEMENT IS: James Antista, General Counsel, Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission, 620 South Meridian Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1600

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

(Substantial rewording of Rule 68A-17.005 follows. See Florida Administrative Code for present text.)

68A-17.005 Specific Regulations for Wildlife and Environmental Areas.

(1) Southwest Region

(a) Little Gator Creek – Pasco County

1. The designated wood stork rookery area is closed to public access.

2. The disturbance or removal of any tree or plant is prohibited.

3. Fishing is permitted on the Withlacoochee River only.

4. Unauthorized public access is prohibited.

5. The possession of dogs or trapping devices is prohibited.

(b) Lake Placid – Highlands County

1. The use of motorized vehicles is prohibited.

2. Horseback riding is allowed by permit only.

(c) Hickey Creek Mitigation Park – Lee County

1. Hunting or possession of guns is prohibited.

2. Unauthorized removal, cutting, or possession of live or dead trees or plants is prohibited.

3. Camping or campfires are prohibited.

4. The possession of dogs, horses, or other pets or livestock is prohibited.

5. Access is restricted to foot traffic only.

6. Access is prohibited from one-half hour after sunset to one-half hour before sunrise.

7. The release of any wildlife on the area is prohibited.

(d) Platt Branch Mitigation Park – Highlands County

1. Hunting or possession of guns is prohibited.

2. Unauthorized removal, cutting, or possession of live or dead trees or plants is prohibited.

3. Camping or campfires are prohibited.

4. The possession of dogs, horses, or other pets or livestock is prohibited.

5. Access is restricted to foot traffic only.

6. The release of any wildlife on the area is prohibited.

(e) Lake Wales Ridge – Highlands County

1. The use of motorized vehicles is prohibited.

2. Horseback riding is allowed by permit only.

(f) Bullfrog Creek Mitigation Park – Hillsborough County

1. The possession of dogs, horses, or other pets or livestock is prohibited.

2. Access is restricted to foot traffic only.

(2) North Central Region

(a) Santa Fe Swamp – Bradford County

1. Open season (hunting prohibited at other times):

a. Archery – September 22 through October 21.

b. Muzzleloading gun – October 26-28.

c. Archery and muzzleloading gun – November 10 through January 6.

d. Spring turkey – March 16 through April 21.

e. Fishing is permitted throughout the year.

2. Legal to take: Wild hogs, gray squirrel, rabbit, and deer with one or more antlers at least five inches in length. Deer (except spotted fawns) and turkey of either sex may be taken during the archery season. Only bearded turkey or gobblers may be taken during the spring turkey season. No size or bag limit on hogs.

3. General regulations:

a. Public access into the area is allowed on Cow Pen Road and Little Santa Fe Lake only.

b. Vehicles may be operated only on Cow Pen Road from the entrance to the designated parking area.

c. Centerfire or rimfire rifles, shotguns, pistols, and crossbows are prohibited.

d. Hunting with dogs is prohibited.

e. Wild hogs may not be transported alive.

(b) Perry Oldenburg Mitigation Park – Hernando County

1. Hunting or possession of firearms is prohibited.

2. Fires are prohibited.

3. Disturbance or removal of any trees or plants is prohibited.

4. Possession of dogs or trapping devices is prohibited.

5. Access shall be restricted to foot traffic only. No motorized vehicles or horseback riding shall be allowed.

6. Camping is prohibited.

(c) Fort White Mitigation Park – Gilchrist County

1. The possession of dogs, horses, or other pets or livestock is prohibited.

2. Access is restricted to foot traffic only.

(d) Chinsegut – Hernando County

1. Unauthorized public access is prohibited on that portion of the area lying east of C.R. 581. Access is permitted by foot traffic only on that portion of the area lying south of the intersection of U.S. 41 and C.R. 581 and west of U.S. 41 known as the Big Pine Tract.

2. Fishing is prohibited.

3. The possession of dogs or trapping devices is prohibited.

(3) Northwest Region

(a) Judges Cave – Jackson County

1. Hunting or possession of guns is prohibited.

2. Unauthorized public access is prohibited.

3. Judges Cave will be closed to entry from March 15 through September 15.

4. Fires are prohibited.

5. The disturbance or removal of any tree or plant is prohibited.

(b) Apalachicola River – Gulf, Franklin, and Liberty counties

1. Hunting shall be allowed only during the open seasons established for migratory birds in Rules 68A-13.003 and 68A-13.008, F.A.C., and during open seasons established for deer, turkey, quail, squirrel, and wild hogs in Rule 68A-13.004, F.A.C., except for the following:

a. Antlerless deer may only be taken during the archery season.

b. Turkeys of either sex may only be taken during the archery and muzzleloading gun seasons.

c. General gun season shall open the fourth Thursday in November and close three days thereafter and reopen the second Saturday in December and close 53 days thereafter.

d. During the first phase of dove seasons established by Rule 68A-13.009, F.A.C., doves may be taken in posted dove fields on Saturdays only.

2. Furbearers may be taken in accordance with the provisions of Rule 68A-24.002, F.A.C., except the use or possession of dogs is prohibited during the spring turkey season.

3. General regulations:

a. Camping is limited to tents and camping vehicles. Kitchen stoves, refrigerators, and freezers, unless contained in mobile campers, lumber, sheet metal, or other building materials is prohibited.

b. Unauthorized removal or cutting of trees or plants is prohibited.

c. No person shall operate a vehicle south of the gate on the Catfish Creek Canal Levee Road.

d. The use of dogs other than bird dogs or retrievers on posted dove fields is prohibited during the first phase of dove season.

e. Persons hunting doves in posted dove fields during the first phase of dove season shall check in and out at the check station when entering and exiting the area and check all doves taken.

f. Persons shall possess a special-opportunity dove hunt permit to hunt in posted dove fields during the first phase of dove season.

g. During the first phase of dove season, hunters are prohibited from entering posted dove fields until one hour before shooting time and shall exit posted dove fields by one hour after sunset.

h. During the first phase of dove season, dove hunters shall hunt from assigned stations in posted dove fields. Hunt station assignments may be transferred at the check station.

i. Fires other than campfires are prohibited.

(c) L. Kirk Edwards – Leon County

1. Open season: gray squirrel – during the open season for gray squirrel established in Rule 68A-13.004, F.A.C.

2. Migratory game birds may be taken during seasons established in Rules 68A-13.003 and 68A-13.008, F.A.C.

(4) South Region

(a) Southern Glades – Dade County

1. Open seasons:

a. Archery – September 8 through October 7.

b. Muzzleloading gun – October 12-14.

c. General gun – October 27 through December 2.

d. Ducks, coots, and snipe – During the seasons established for these species in Rules 68A-13.003 and 68A-13.008, F.A.C.

e. Fishing is permitted throughout the year.

f. Frogging – December 1 through March 1.

2. Legal to take: Deer with one or more antlers at least five inches in length and wild hogs with a shoulder height of 15 inches or more. Ducks, coots, and snipe may be taken during seasons established for these species in Rules 68A-13.003 and 68A-13.008, F.A.C.

3. General regulations:

a. Dogs are prohibited except waterfowl retrievers may be used during the duck, coot, and snipe seasons.

b. The possession of any firearm containing shells or cartridges or capped or primed muzzleloading guns is prohibited on levees, improved roads, and at check stations. The discharge of guns is prohibited on, from, or across any check station, levee, or improved road.

c. Hunting or discharge of any firearm east of the C-109 road, within 500 yards of the Dade Work Camp, or any building or structure is prohibited.

d. Motorized vehicles and boats (including tracked vehicles, all-terrain vehicles, and airboats) are prohibited in the area except that airboats may be used in Units 1 and 4 from December 1 through March 1 and outboard motor boats may be used within canals.

e. Vehicles shall not be parked in such a manner as to obstruct roads, gates, or trails.

(b) John G. and Susan H. Dupuis Jr. – Palm Beach County

1. Open season:

a. Archery – September 8-10, 15-17, and 21-23.

b. Muzzleloading gun – October 6-8, 13-15, and 19-21.

c. General gun – October 27-29 and November 3-5.

d. General gun for mobility-impaired – November 10-11.

e. General gun hog – November 13-15, 20-22, 27-29, and December 4-6. Wild hogs only. No bag or size limit.

f. Spring turkey – March 5-7, 16-18, and 23-25.

g. Small game – December 8 through January 27.

h. Trapping is prohibited.

i. Fishing is permitted when public access is allowed.

j. Frogging is prohibited.

2. Legal to take:

a. Antlered deer with at least one forked antler and having one or more antlers at least five inches in length visible above the hairline. The forked antler shall have at least two points one inch or greater in length. Antlerless deer (except spotted fawns) may be taken during the archery season and by permit only during the muzzleloading gun, general gun, and general gun mobility-impaired seasons. The bag limit for deer shall be one per quota hunt permit. Wild hogs may be taken with no size or bag limit.

b. Spring turkey season – Gobblers or bearded turkeys only. The bag limit for turkey shall be one per quota hunt permit.

c. Small game season – Quail, gray squirrel, rabbit, armadillo, bobcat, raccoon, opossum, coyote, and skunk. Any migratory game bird may be taken during those portions of seasons established for these species in Rules 68A-13.003 and 68A-13.008, F.A.C., that coincide with the small game season.

3. Camping – During the archery, muzzleloading gun, general gun, general gun for mobility-impaired, spring turkey, and general gun hog seasons, no person shall camp on the area except those possessing a current Dupuis quota hunt permit. Camping is permitted only in the campsite adjacent to Gate 3. During the remainder of the year, camping is permitted only at designated primitive sites on hiking trails, the General Use campground on Jim Lake Grade, and at the designated equestrian staging area at Gate 3. Small game hunters shall utilize the General Use campground on Jim Lake Grade or the primitive sites on the hiking trails.

4. General regulations:

a. Unauthorized removal or cutting or live or dead trees or plants is prohibited.

b. Fires are prohibited except at designated areas.

c. Hunting over bait or placing bait or other food for wildlife is prohibited.

d. Hunting or the possession of guns is prohibited in areas posted as closed.

e. The possession or consumption of intoxicating beverages is prohibited.

f. Dogs are prohibited except retrievers during the small game season.

g. Vehicles may be operated only on named roads and designated parking areas except during the general gun for mobility-impaired season when all-terrain vehicles can be used off roads.

h. The use of tracked vehicles, buggies, airboats, motorcycles, or all-terrain vehicles is prohibited except all-terrain vehicles may be used during the general gun for mobility-impaired season.

i. Horses are prohibited during the archery, muzzleloading gun, general gun, general gun for mobility-impaired, spring turkey, and general gun hog seasons. During the remainder of the year horses may be used only on designated equestrian trails and named or numbered roads. The use of horses on all other roads and trails is prohibited. Persons horseback riding on the area shall enter and exit only at Gate 3.

j. During the archery, muzzleloading gun, general gun, general gun for mobility-impaired, spring turkey, and general gun hog seasons, hunters shall check in and out at the check station at Gate 3 and check all game taken. No deer, hog, or turkey may be dismembered until checked at the check station. During the small game season, hunters shall enter and exit the area through Gate 1.

k. During the small game season and periods when the area is closed to hunting, vehicle access is through Gate 1 and hiking access is through Gate 2 by foot only.

l. During the archery, muzzleloading gun, general gun, general gun for mobility-impaired, spring turkey, and general gun hog seasons, no person shall enter or exit the area except through Gate 3 and all such persons shall possess a quota hunt permit for the area.

m. Only tents, trailers, or self-propelled camping vehicles may be used for camping.

n. The designated campsite for hunters is at Gate 3 and may be used by hunters only during the archery, muzzleloading gun, general gun, general gun for mobility-impaired, spring turkey, and general gun hog seasons. Authorized camping equipment may be taken on the area after 8:00 a.m. one day before each three-day hunt of the archery, muzzleloading gun, general gun, general gun hog, general gun for mobility-impaired, and spring turkey seasons. Authorized camping equipment shall be removed from the area before 5:00 p.m. one day following each three-day hunt of the archery, muzzleloading gun, general gun, general gun hog, general gun for mobility-impaired, and spring turkey seasons.

o. Each person hunting during the general gun for mobility-impaired season shall possess quota hunt permit for the hunt.

p. Each hunter participating in the general gun for mobility-impaired season is required to attend a pre-hunt orientation meeting.

q. Mobility-impaired hunters may be accompanied by another person who shall not be required to meet hunting license, permit, or stamp requirements, provided he or she assists the mobility-impaired hunter in a non-hunting capacity.

r. The possession or use of firearms other than shotguns is prohibited during the small game season.

s. The discharge of firearms within 1/4 mile of the hiking trail campsites is prohibited.

(c) CREW – Collier and Lee counties

1. Open season:

a. Archery hog hunt – September 8-16, Corkscrew Marsh Unit only.

b. Muzzleloading gun hog hunt – October 13-21, Corkscrew Marsh Unit only.

c. Trapping is prohibited.

2. Legal to take: Wild hogs (no bag or size limit)

3. Camping: Primitive camping is allowed at designated sites with written authorization from the South Florida Water Management District.

4. General regulations:

a. The use of trailers or recreational vehicles for camping is prohibited.

b. Fires other than campfires at approved campsites are prohibited.

c. Unauthorized removal, cutting, or possession of live or dead trees or plants is prohibited.

d. Dogs are prohibited, except that dogs not normally used for hunting and kept under restraint may be possessed. No person shall allow any dog to pursue or molest wildlife.

e. The use of tracked vehicles, motorcycles, all-terrain vehicles, or vessels, except canoes or kayaks, is prohibited.

f. Vehicles may be operated only on named or numbered roads designated for vehicles.

g. The use or possession of horses is restricted to designated equestrian trails.

h. Persons may enter and exit the area only at designated access points and hunters must check in and out at the designated check station.

i. Persons may not enter the Corkscrew Marsh Unit before sunrise and must exit the area before sunset.

(d) Florida Keys – Monroe County

1. Hunting or possession of firearms or guns is prohibited.

2. Fishing is permitted throughout the year.

3. Camping is prohibited.

4. General regulations:

a. Fires are prohibited.

b. Constructing or erecting a permanent or semi-permanent structure is prohibited.

c. Dogs are prohibited, except that dogs not normally used for hunting and kept under restraint may be possessed. No person shall allow any dog to pursue or molest wildlife.

d. Unauthorized disturbance, detachment, possession, or removal of any plant or animal, dead or alive, is prohibited.

e. Unauthorized planting of trees, shrubs, or other vegetation is prohibited.

f. No person shall place, expose, or distribute any grain or other food for wildlife except as authorized by permit from the Executive Director.

g. No person shall release wildlife or any species on the area.

h. The disturbance or removal of any man-made, cultural, or natural materials or features, or non-renewable resources is prohibited.

i. Vehicles may be operated only on named or numbered roads.

j. No person shall park any vehicle in a manner which obstructs a road, gate, or firelane.

k. Public access is prohibited in areas posted as “Restricted” for protection of threatened or endangered species or environmentally sensitive areas.

l. The use of tracked vehicles, motorcycles, or all-terrain vehicles is prohibited.

m. Vessels may be launched at designated ramps only.

(5) Northeast Region

(a) Brannan Field Mitigation Park – Duval and Clay counties

1. Hunting or possession of firearms is prohibited.

2. Possession of dogs or trapping devices is prohibited.

3. Access shall be restricted to foot traffic only. No motorized vehicles or horseback riding shall be allowed.

(b) Split Oak Forest Mitigation Park – Orange and Osceola counties

1. Hunting or possession of firearms is prohibited.

2. Fires are prohibited.

3. Disturbance or removal of any trees or plants is prohibited.

4. Possession of dogs or trapping devices is prohibited.

5. Access shall be restricted to foot traffic at designated access points or horseback riding which shall be allowed only by permit.

6. Access is prohibited from one-half hour after sunset to one-half hour before sunrise.

7. Camping is prohibited.

8. The release of any wildlife on the area is prohibited.

Specific Authority: Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const. Law Implemented: Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const. History–New 7-1-83, Amended 11-30-83, 7-1-84, 8-21-85, Formerly 39-17.05, Amended 6-1-86, 8-13-87, 8-18-88, 8-17-89, 4-11-90, 7-1-91, 10-31-91, 4-14-92, 4-20-93, 7-1-94, 9-15-94, 3-30-95, 8-15-95, 7-1-96, 4-3-97, 10-28-97, 7-1-98, 8-11-98, 7-1-99, Formerly 39-17.005, Amended 7-1-00,_____.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE:

Mr. Timothy A. Breault

NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED

THE PROPOSED RULE: Dr. Allan L. Egbert

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY

HEAD: January 3, 2001

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT

PUBLISHED IN FAW: November 22, 2000

FISH AND WILDLIFE CONSERVATION COMMISSION

Freshwater Fish and Wildlife

RULE TITLE: Specific Fish Management Area Regulations

RULE NO.: 68A-20.005

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose and effect of the proposed rule is to rename certain Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission administrative regions and adjust specific Fish Management Area rules accordingly in order to conform to the realignment so as to improve administration of activities relating to management of fish and wildlife resources.

SUMMARY: The proposed rule would rename the Northeast Region the North Central Region, rename the Central Region the Northeast Region, rename the South Region the Southwest Region, and rename the Everglades Region the South Region. Proposed amendments would move Duval County FMA's, from the North Central Region to the Northeast Region, and move the Indian River County FMA from the South Region to the Northeast Region to conform to agency regional realignment.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST: It is estimated that the proposed action will cost the agency approximately \$375 for administrative preparation and \$185 for legal advertising. No other significant economic impacts are expected.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated regulatory costs, or to provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const.

A HEARING ON THE PROPOSED RULE WILL BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATE AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

TIME AND DATES: 8:30 a.m., each day, March 29-30, 2001

PLACE: Holiday Inn – Capital, 1355 Apalachee Parkway, Tallahassee, Florida

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE AND ECONOMIC STATEMENT IS: James Antista, General Counsel, Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission, 620 South Meridian Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1600

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

68A-20.005 Specific Fish Management Area Regulations.

(1) No change.

(2) ~~North Central~~ Northeast Region:

(a) through (e) No change.

(f) ~~St. Augustine Road Ponds, St. Augustine Road, North Pond and South Pond – Duval County:~~

~~1. The use of boats propelled by gasoline motors is prohibited.~~

~~2. No person shall kill or possess any black bass less than 16 inches in total length.~~

~~3. No person shall take in any one day more than 20 panfish, in the aggregate.~~

~~4. Swimming, possession of firearms, possession of alcoholic beverages or use of cast nets is prohibited.~~

~~5. Access prohibited from 30 minutes after sunset until 30 minutes before sunrise.~~

~~(g) Oceanway Pond, Duval County:~~

~~1. Swimming, possession of firearms, possession of alcoholic beverages or use of cast nets is prohibited.~~

~~2. The use of boats propelled by gasoline motors is prohibited.~~

~~3. No person shall take in any one day more than 20 panfish, in the aggregate.~~

~~4. No person shall kill or possess any black bass less than 16 inches in total length.~~

~~5. Access prohibited from 30 minutes after sunset until 30 minutes before sunrise.~~

~~(h) Hanna Park Ponds, Duval County:~~

~~1. Possession of firearms, possession of alcoholic beverages or use of cast nets is prohibited.~~

~~2. The use of boats propelled by gasoline motors is prohibited.~~

~~3. No person shall kill or possess any black bass less than 16 inches in total length.~~

~~4. No person shall take in any one day more than 20 panfish, in the aggregate.~~

~~5. Access prohibited from 30 minutes after sunset until 30 minutes before sunrise.~~

~~(i) Pope Duval East Pond – Duval County:~~

~~1. Swimming, possession of firearms, possession of alcoholic beverages or use of cast nets is prohibited.~~

~~2. The use of boats propelled by gasoline motors is prohibited.~~

~~3. No person shall kill or possess any black bass less than 16 inches in total length.~~

~~4. No person shall take in any one day more than 20 panfish, in the aggregate.~~

~~5. Access prohibited from 30 minutes after sunset until 30 minutes before sunrise.~~

~~(j) Pope Duval West Pond, Duval County:~~

~~1. Swimming, possession of firearms, possession of alcoholic beverages or use of cast nets is prohibited.~~

~~2. The use of boats propelled by gasoline motors is prohibited.~~

~~3. No person shall take in any one day more than 20 panfish, in the aggregate.~~

~~4. No person shall kill or possess any black bass less than 16 inches in total length.~~

~~5. Access prohibited from 30 minutes after sunset until 30 minutes before sunrise.~~

~~(k) Bethesda Pond, Duval County:~~

~~1. The use of boats propelled by gasoline motors is prohibited.~~

~~2. No person shall kill or possess any black bass less than 16 inches in total length.~~

~~3. No person shall take in any one day more than 20 panfish, in the aggregate.~~

~~4. Swimming, possession of firearms, possession of alcoholic beverages or use of cast nets is prohibited.~~

~~5. Access prohibited from 30 minutes after sunset until 30 minutes before sunrise.~~

~~(l)(4) No change.~~

~~(m) Huguenot Pond, Duval County:~~

~~1. The use of boats propelled by gasoline motors is prohibited.~~

~~2. No person shall kill or possess any black bass less than 16 inches in total length.~~

~~3. No person shall take in any one day more than 20 panfish, in the aggregate.~~

~~4. Swimming, possession of firearms, possession of alcoholic beverages or use of cast nets is prohibited.~~

~~5. Access prohibited from 30 minutes after sunset until 30 minutes before sunrise.~~

~~(n) Crystal Springs Park — Duval County:~~

~~1. No person between the ages of 16 years and 64 years shall fish unless accompanied by an angler less than 16 years of age; by an angler 65 years of age or older; by angler who has been certified by the U.S. Veterans Administration, U.S. Social Security Administration, by any branch of the U.S. Armed Services, or by a licensed physician in this State to be totally and permanently disabled and has obtained a permanent license issued pursuant to s. 372.561(5)(b), F.S.; or by an angler with proof of acceptance as a client for developmental services by the Department of Children and Family Services.~~

~~2. No person shall kill or possess any black bass less than 16 inches in total length.~~

~~3. No person shall take in any one day more than 20 panfish, in the aggregate.~~

~~4. Swimming, possession of firearms, possession of alcoholic beverages or use of cast nets is prohibited.~~

~~5. The use of boats is prohibited.~~

~~6. Access prohibited from 30 minutes after sunset until 30 minutes before sunrise.~~

~~(o) through (p) renumbered (g) through (h) No change.~~

~~(3) Northeast Central Region:~~

~~(a) through (z) No change.~~

~~(aa) St. Augustine Road Ponds, St. Augustine Road, North Pond and South Pond – Duval County:~~

~~1. The use of boats propelled by a gasoline motor is prohibited.~~

2. No person shall kill or possess any black bass less than 16 inches in total length.

3. No person shall take in any one day more than 20 panfish, in the aggregate.

4. Swimming, possession of firearms, possession of alcoholic beverages or use of cast nets is prohibited.

5. Access prohibited from 30 minutes after sunset until 30 minutes before sunrise.

(bb) Oceanway Pond, Duval County:

1. Swimming, possession of firearms, possession of alcoholic beverages or use of cast nets is prohibited.

2. The use of boats propelled by a gasoline motor is prohibited.

3. No person shall take in any one day more than 20 panfish, in the aggregate.

4. No person shall kill or possess any black bass less than 16 inches in total length.

5. Access prohibited from 30 minutes after sunset until 30 minutes before sunrise.

(cc) Hanna Park Ponds, Duval County:

1. Possession of firearms, possession of alcoholic beverages or use of cast nets is prohibited.

2. The use of boats propelled by a gasoline motor is prohibited.

3. No person shall kill or possess any black bass less than 16 inches in total length.

4. No person shall take in any one day more than 20 panfish, in the aggregate.

5. Access prohibited from 30 minutes after sunset until 30 minutes before sunrise.

(dd) Pope Duval East Pond – Duval County:

1. Swimming, possession of firearms, possession of alcoholic beverages or use of cast nets is prohibited.

2. The use of boats propelled by a gasoline motor is prohibited.

3. No person shall kill or possess any black bass less than 16 inches in total length.

4. No person shall take in any one day more than 20 panfish, in the aggregate.

5. Access prohibited from 30 minutes after sunset until 30 minutes before sunrise.

(ee) Pope Duval West Pond, Duval County:

1. Swimming, possession of firearms, possession of alcoholic beverages or use of cast nets is prohibited.

2. The use of boats propelled by a gasoline motor is prohibited.

3. No person shall take in any one day more than 20 panfish, in the aggregate.

4. No person shall kill or possess any black bass less than 16 inches in total length.

5. Access prohibited from 30 minutes after sunset until 30 minutes before sunrise.

(ff) Bethesda Pond, Duval County:

1. The use of boats propelled by a gasoline motor is prohibited.

2. No person shall kill or possess any black bass less than 16 inches in total length.

3. No person shall take in any one day more than 20 panfish, in the aggregate.

4. Swimming, possession of firearms, possession of alcoholic beverages or use of cast nets is prohibited.

5. Access prohibited from 30 minutes after sunset until 30 minutes before sunrise.

(gg) Huguenot Pond, Duval County:

1. The use of boats propelled by a gasoline motor is prohibited.

2. No person shall kill or possess any black bass less than 16 inches in total length.

3. No person shall take in any one day more than 20 panfish, in the aggregate.

4. Swimming, possession of firearms, possession of alcoholic beverages or use of cast nets is prohibited.

5. Access prohibited from 30 minutes after sunset until 30 minutes before sunrise.

(hh) Crystal Springs Park – Duval County:

1. No person between the ages of 16 years and 64 years shall fish unless accompanied by an angler less than 16 years of age; by an angler 65 years of age or older; by angler who has been certified by the U.S. Veterans Administration, U.S. Social Security Administration, by any branch of the U.S. Armed Services, or by a licensed physician in this State to be totally and permanently disabled and has obtained a permanent license issued pursuant to s. 372.561(5)(b), F.S.; or by an angler with proof of acceptance as a client for developmental services by the Department of Children and Family Services.

2. No person shall kill or possess any black bass less than 16 inches in total length.

3. No person shall take in any one day more than 20 panfish, in the aggregate.

4. Swimming, possession of firearms, possession of alcoholic beverages or use of cast nets is prohibited.

5. The use of boats is prohibited.

6. Access prohibited from 30 minutes after sunset until 30 minutes before sunrise.

(ii) Blue Cypress, Indian River County:

1. No daily bag limit for channel catfish.

2. Trotlines may be used.

(4) Southwest Region:

(a) through (u) No change.

(5) South Everglades Region:

(a) Blue Cypress, Indian River County:

1. No daily bag limit for channel catfish.

2. Trotlines may be used.

(b) through (f) renumbered (a) through (e) No change.

(6) This rule shall become effective on July 1, 2001.

Specific Authority Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const. Law Implemented Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const. History—New 8-1-79, Amended 2-19-80, 5-19-80, 6-4-81, 9-28-81, 6-21-82, 7-1-83, 11-17-83, 7-1-84, 7-1-85, Formerly 39-20.05, Amended 2-27-86, 6-1-86, 5-10-87, 4-13-88, 12-12-88, 7-1-89, 7-1-90, 4-11-91, 7-1-91, 7-1-92, 7-2-92, 8-23-92, 4-20-93, 7-1-94, 8-15-95, 10-23-95, 4-1-96, 2-16-97, 6-1-97, 6-29-97, 1-1-98, 3-24-98, 7-1-98, 11-2-98, Formerly 39-20.005, Amended 4-30-00, 7-1-00, 10-10-00, 4-1-01, 7-1-01.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE:
Mr. Darrell L. Scovell

NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Dr. Allan L. Egbert

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: January 3, 2001

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: January 12, 2001

FISH AND WILDLIFE CONSERVATION COMMISSION

Freshwater Fish and Wildlife

RULE TITLE: General Methods of Taking Freshwater Fish

RULE NO.: 68A-23.002

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose and effect of the proposed rule is to rename certain Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission (FWC) administrative regions and preserve the status quo for use of cast nets in certain counties, which were moved when boundaries for administrative regions were changed due to a realignment.

SUMMARY: The proposed rule would preserve the status quo for use of cast nets to take nongame fish due to changes in FWC regional administrative boundaries by adding language that prohibits use of cast nets in Duval, Indian River, and Nassau counties and adding language that allows use of cast nets in Citrus, Glades, and Hernando counties.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST: It is estimated that the proposed action will cost the agency approximately \$375 for administrative preparation and \$60 for legal advertising. No other significant economic impacts are expected.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated regulatory costs, or to provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const.

A HEARING ON THE PROPOSED RULE WILL BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATE AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

TIME AND DATES: 8:30 a.m., each day, March 29-30, 2001

PLACE: Holiday Inn – Capital, 1355 Apalachee Parkway, Tallahassee, Florida

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE AND ECONOMIC STATEMENT IS: James Antista, General Counsel, Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission, 620 South Meridian Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1600

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

68A-23.002 General Methods of Taking Freshwater Fish. (1) through (2) No change.

(3) Nongame fish may be taken by hook and line, rod and reel or by trotlines, set lines or bush hooks (as specified in Rule 68A-23.004, F.A.C.), or by traps, nets or other devices as specified in Rule 68A-23.003, F.A.C. Nongame fish may be taken for personal use by any person possessing a valid freshwater fishing license by the use of not more than one slat basket or one wire trap, made as specified in Rule 68A-23.003, F.A.C., in those waters where the use of wire traps or slat baskets is permitted for commercial purposes as specified in Rule 68A-23.003(2), F.A.C. Nongame fish may be taken at night by bow and arrow and gigs and during daylight hours by manually operated spears, gigs, snatch hooks, crossbow or bow and arrow from a boat or from shore except at the spillways of the Eureka and Rodman Dams on the Oklawaha River or on the spillway of the Jim Woodruff Dam on the Apalachicola River or in Dade County canals south of the C-4 and east of the L-31N and L-31W canals inclusively. Nongame fish may be taken by the use of cast nets in the Southwest Region, except that possession or use of cast nets in waters adjoining Saddle Creek Fish Management Area, Polk County, confined by Morgan Combee Road, U.S. Highway 92 and Fish Hatchery Road are prohibited. Nongame fish may be taken with cast nets in the Northeast Central Region, except in Duval, Indian River, and Nassau counties or with the exception of those St. Johns River Water Management Areas of Lake County formerly known as Long Farm, S.N. Knight Lisbon Farm (both parcels north and south of the Yale-Griffin canal), S.N. Knight Leesburg Farm, Lowrie Brown Farm, Eustis Muck Farm, and Walker Ranch. Nongame fish may be taken by use of cast nets in Citrus, Glades, and Hernando counties.

(4) through (11) No change. (12) This rule shall become effective on July 1, 2001.

Specific Authority Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const. Law Implemented Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const. History—New 8-1-79, Amended 5-19-80, 6-4-81, 6-21-82, 7-1-84, Formerly 39-23.02, Amended 6-1-86, 4-13-88, 7-1-89, 7-1-90, 4-20-93, 7-1-93, 7-1-94, 7-1-95, 4-1-96, 7-1-98, 4-15-99, Formerly 39-23.002, Amended 7-1-00, 7-1-01.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE: Mr. Darrell L. Scovell
NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Dr. Allan L. Egbert
DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: January 3, 2001

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: January 12, 2001

FISH AND WILDLIFE CONSERVATION COMMISSION

Freshwater Fish and Wildlife

RULE TITLE: Bag Limits, Length Limits, Open Seasons: Freshwater Fish
RULE NO.: 68A-23.005

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose and effect of the proposed rule is to establish a minimum length limit for largemouth bass in order to protect and restore the population in Lake Jackson (Leon County).

SUMMARY: The proposed rule would replace the 15- to 19-inch slot-length limit for largemouth bass in Lake Jackson (Leon County) with an 18-inch minimum length limit.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST: It is estimated that the proposed action will cost the agency approximately \$375 for administrative preparation, \$41 for advertising, and \$200 for signs and brochures.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated regulatory costs, or to provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const.

A HEARING ON THE PROPOSED RULE WILL BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATE AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

TIME AND DATES: 8:30 a.m., each day, March 29-30, 2001
PLACE: Holiday Inn-Capital, 1355 Apalachee Parkway, Tallahassee, Florida

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE AND ECONOMIC STATEMENT IS: James Antista, General Counsel, Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission, 620 South Meridian Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1600

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

68A-23.005 Bag Limits, Length Limits, Open Season: Freshwater Fish.

(1) through (6) No change.

(7) In that portion of the state north and west of the Suwannee River (including in the Suwannee River and in any tributary river, creek or stream of the Suwannee River), bag or length limits are as follows:

(a) through (d) No change.

(e) Lake Jackson proper, including Little Lake Jackson west of Highway 27, Megginis Arm of Lake Jackson north of Interstate 10, and Fords Arm of Lake Jackson west of Meridian

Road: No person shall kill or possess any black bass ~~that is 15 inches or more in total length and less than 18 49 inches in total length.~~

(8) through (9) No change.

(10) This rule shall become effective on July 1, 2001.

Specific Authority Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const. Law Implemented Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const. History—New 8-1-79, Amended 5-19-80, 6-4-81, 6-21-82, 7-1-83, Formerly 39-23.05, Amended 2-27-86, 5-10-87, 3-1-88, 4-13-88, 7-1-89, 4-11-90, 7-1-92, 8-23-92, 4-20-93, 7-1-94, 9-15-94, 4-1-96, 7-1-98, 10-20-98, Formerly 39-23.005, Amended 7-1-00, 7-1-01.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE:
Mr. Darrell L. Scovell

NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Dr. Allan L. Egbert

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: January 3, 2001

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: January 19, 2001

FISH AND WILDLIFE CONSERVATION COMMISSION

Freshwater Fish and Wildlife

RULE TITLE:

RULE NO.:

Introduction of Non-Native Aquatic Species in the Waters of the State; Provisions for Sale and Inspection of Fish for Bait or Propagation Purpose; Diseased Fish

68A-23.008

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose and effect of the proposed rule is to rename certain Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission (FWC) administrative regions and preserve the status quo for possession, culture, and transportation of *Tilapia (Oreochromis) aurea* without permit in certain counties, which were moved when boundaries for administrative regions were changed due to a realignment.

SUMMARY: The proposed rule would preserve the status quo for possession, culture, and transportation of *Tilapia (Oreochromis) aurea* without permit in certain areas, due to changes in FWC regional administrative boundaries by adding language that provides for these activities in Citrus and Hernando counties in the new North Central Region; in all counties of the new Northeast region except Duval and Nassau; and, in the new Southwest Region.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST: It is estimated that the proposed action will cost the agency approximately \$375 for administrative preparation and \$55 for legal advertising. No other significant economic impacts are expected.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated regulatory costs, or to provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const.

A HEARING ON THE PROPOSED RULE WILL BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATE AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

TIME AND DATES: 8:30 a.m., each day, March 29-30, 2001
PLACE: Holiday Inn – Capital, 1355 Apalachee Parkway, Tallahassee, Florida

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE AND ECONOMIC STATEMENT IS: James Antista, General Counsel, Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission, 620 South Meridian Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1600

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

68A-23.008 Introduction of Non-Native Aquatic Species in the Waters of the State; Provisions for Sale and Inspection of Fish for Bait or Propagation Purpose; Diseased Fish.

(1) No change.

(2) Restricted non-native aquatic species:

(a) The following aquatic species or hybrids thereof may be possessed only under permit from the executive director.

1. through 8. No change.

9. Tilapias [*Tilapia (Oreochromis) aurea*, *T. (O.) hornorum*, *T. (O.) mossambica* and *Tilapia (O.) nilotica*]. *T. (O.) aurea* may be possessed, cultured, and transported without permit in the following areas: North Central Region, Citrus and Hernando counties only; Northeast Region, all counties, except Duval and Nassau; Central, South and Southwest Everglades regions.

10. through 13. No change.

(b) through (c) No change.

(3) through (8) No change.

(9) This rule shall become effective on July 1, 2001.

Specific Authority Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const. Law Implemented Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const. History—New 8-1-79, Amended 6-4-81, 6-21-82, 7-1-84, Formerly 39-23.08, Amended 4-13-88, 7-1-89, 10-30-89, 7-1-92, 7-1-94, 4-12-98, Formerly 39-23.008, Amended 10-10-00, 7-1-01.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE:
Mr. Timothy A. Breault

NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Dr. Allan L. Egbert

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: January 3, 2001

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: November 22, 2000

FISH AND WILDLIFE CONSERVATION COMMISSION

Freshwater Fish and Wildlife

RULE TITLE: RULE NO.:

Designation of Candidate Species; 68A-27.0021
 Prohibitions, Permits

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose and effect of the proposed rule is to remove the flatwoods salamander (*Ambystoma cingulatum*) from the Candidate Species list.

SUMMARY: The flatwoods salamander was added to the Candidate Species list at the end of Phase 1 (biological status) of the listing action process to list the salamander as a Species of Special Concern. Phase 2 (management plan) of the listing action process is now being completed and the flatwoods salamander will be added to the Species of Special Concern list, as noticed in another Notice of Proposed Rule, and concurrently removed from the Candidate Species list.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST: It is estimated that the proposed action will cost the agency approximately \$215 for administrative preparation and \$235 for advertising. No other significant economic impacts are expected.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated regulatory costs, or to provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative, must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const.

A HEARING ON THE PROPOSED RULE WILL BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATE AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

TIME AND DATES: 8:30 a.m., each day, March 29-30, 2001
 PLACE: Holiday Inn – Capital, 1355 Apalachee Parkway, Tallahassee, Florida

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE AND ECONOMIC STATEMENT IS: Mr. James Antista, General Counsel, Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission, 620 South Meridian Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1600

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

68A-27.0021 Designation of Candidate Species; Prohibitions, Permits.

(1) through (2) No change.

(3) The following species are hereby declared to be candidate species: none Flatwoods salamander (*Ambystoma cingulatum*).

Specific Authority Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const. Law Implemented Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const. History—New 6-23-99, Formerly 39-27.0021, Amended 4-30-00.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE:
 Mr. Darrell L. Scovell

NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Dr. Allan L. Egbert

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: January 3, 2001

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: January 12, 2001

FISH AND WILDLIFE CONSERVATION COMMISSION

Freshwater Fish and Wildlife

RULE TITLE: RULE NO.:

Designation of Species of Special Concern; 68A-27.005
 Prohibitions; Permits

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose and effect of the proposed rule is to add the flatwoods salamander (*Ambystoma cingulatum*) to Species of Special Concern list and make a technical reorganization of the rule.

SUMMARY: A petition to add the flatwoods salamander to the list of Species of Special Concern was received on September 8, 1999. The Commission approved starting Phase 1 (biological status) of the listing action process at its October 6-8, 1999 meeting. A notice requesting written comments on the biological status of the flatwoods salamander was issued in the October 22, 1999 Florida Administrative Weekly. One comment was received and evaluated. A preliminary biological status report was developed and recommended that the flatwoods salamander be added to the list of Species of Special Concern. The report was sent to a biological review panel of non-Commission scientists in December 1999. A final biological status report was approved on March 1, 2000. The Commission determined at its March 29-31, 2000 meeting that adding the flatwoods salamander to the Species of Special Concern list was warranted, thereby ending Phase 1 and beginning Phase 2 (management plan) of the listing action process. A notice requesting information on the conservation needs of the flatwoods salamander and any economic and social factors that should be considered in its management was issued in the May 12, 2000 Florida Administrative Weekly. No comments were received. A draft management plan for flatwoods salamander was developed, and a notice of the availability of the draft plan that requested information on anticipated regulatory economic and social impacts of the management plan was issued in the October 13, 2000 Florida Administrative Weekly. Eight comments were received and evaluated. A final management plan is now under development. The management plan will recommend prohibiting the direct take of flatwoods salamanders, an action that will be implemented as part of this rulemaking action. The proposed rule is also relocating existing language which describes special categories of Species of Special Concern.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST: It is estimated that the proposed action will cost the agency approximately \$215 for administrative preparation and \$235 for advertising. No other significant economic impacts are expected.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated regulatory costs, or to provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative, must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const.

A HEARING ON THE PROPOSED RULE WILL BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATE AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

TIME AND DATES: 8:30 a.m., each day, March 29-30, 2001

PLACE: Holiday Inn – Capital, 1355 Apalachee Parkway, Tallahassee, Florida

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE AND ECONOMIC STATEMENT IS: Mr. James Antista, General Counsel, Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission, 620 South Meridian Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1600

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

68A-27.005 Designation of Species of Special Concern; Prohibitions; Permits.

(1) No change.

(a) No person shall take, possess, transport, or sell any Species of Special Concern included in this ~~paragraph subsection~~ or parts thereof or their nests or eggs except as authorized by Commission regulations or by permit from the executive director or by statute or regulation of any other state agency, permits being issued upon reasonable conclusion that the permitted activity will not be detrimental to the survival potential of the species.

(b) ~~The following species were listed prior to January 1, 2001, and have been further categorized by the numbers in parentheses under the following criteria: (1) has a significant vulnerability to habitat modification, environmental alteration, human disturbance, or human exploitation which, in the foreseeable future, may result in its becoming a threatened species unless appropriate protective or management techniques are initiated or maintained; (2) may already meet certain criteria for designation as a threatened species but for which conclusive data are limited or lacking; (3) may occupy such an unusually vital or essential ecological niche that should it decline significantly in numbers or distribution other species would be adversely affected to a significant degree; (4) has not sufficiently recovered from past population depletion, and (5) occurs as a population either intentionally introduced or being experimentally managed to attain specific objectives, and the species of special concern prohibitions in Rule 68A-27.002(4)~~

~~shall not apply to species so designated, provided that the intentional killing, attempting to kill, possession or sale of such species is prohibited.~~

~~(b)1. No change.~~

~~(2) through 49. No change.~~

~~(2) No person shall directly take any Flatwoods salamander (*Ambystoma cingulatum*) or parts thereof or their eggs except as authorized by Commission rule or by permit from the executive director. The above listed species have been further categorized by the numbers in parentheses under the following criteria:~~

~~(a) (1) Has a significant vulnerability to habitat modification, environmental alteration, human disturbance, or human exploitation which, in the foreseeable future, may result in its becoming a threatened species unless appropriate protective or management techniques are initiated or maintained.~~

~~(b) (2) May already meet certain criteria for designation as a threatened species but for which conclusive data are limited or lacking.~~

~~(c) (3) May occupy such an unusually vital or essential ecological niche that should it decline significantly in numbers or distribution other species would be adversely affected to a significant degree.~~

~~(d) (4) Has not sufficiently recovered from past population depletion.~~

~~(e) (5) Occurs as a population either intentionally introduced or being experimentally managed to attain specific objectives. The species of special concern prohibitions in Rule 68A-27.002(4) shall not apply to species so designated, provided that the intentional killing, attempting to kill, possession or sale of such species is prohibited.~~

Specific Authority Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const. Law Implemented Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const. History—New 8-1-79, Amended 6-22-80, 6-21-82, 7-1-84, 7-1-85, Formerly 39-27.05, Amended 6-1-86, 5-10-87, 4-27-89, 10-22-92, 5-26-94, 6-23-99, Formerly 39-27.005, Amended _____.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE:
Mr. Timothy A. Breault

NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Dr. Allan L. Egbert

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: January 3, 2001

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: November 22, 2000

FISH AND WILDLIFE CONSERVATION COMMISSION

Marine Fisheries

RULE CHAPTER TITLE: Gear Specifications and Prohibited Gear

RULE TITLE: Diving: Powerheads and Rebreathers, Use to Harvest Fish in State Waters Prohibited; Definition; Spearfishing Marine Species in Fresh Water Prohibited
RULE NO.: 68B-4.012

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose of this rule amendment is to prohibit the spearfishing of any marine species while diving in fresh water. This will clarify that marine species can only be taken by spearfishing in saltwater, eliminating a conflict with fresh water rules that prohibit possession of spear guns in or upon the fresh waters of the state.

SUMMARY: A new subsection (3) is added to Rule 68B-4.012, F.A.C., to prohibit the spearfishing of marine species in fresh water. The rule amendment is proposed to become effective July 1, 2001.

A STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST HAS NOT BEEN PREPARED REGARDING THESE PROPOSED RULES.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated regulatory costs, or to provide a proposal for lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: Article IV, Section 9, Florida Constitution.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: Article IV, Section 9, Florida Constitution.

THE FISH AND WILDLIFE CONSERVATION COMMISSION WILL CONDUCT A PUBLIC RULEMAKING HEARING ON THE PROPOSED RULES AT THE TIME, DATE, AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

TIME AND DATES: 8:30 a.m. – 5:00 p.m. each day, March 29-30, 2001

PLACE: Holiday Inn – Capital, 1355 Apalachee Parkway, Tallahassee, Florida

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 5 calendar days before the workshop/meeting by contacting Andrena Knicely, (850)487-1406. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency by calling (850)488-9542.

All written material received by the Commission within 21 days of the date of publication of this notice shall be made a part of the official record.

Section 286.0105, Florida Statutes, provides that, if a person decides to appeal any decision made by the commission with respect to any matter considered at this hearing, he will need a record of proceedings, and for such purposes, he may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is based.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: James V. Antista, General Counsel, Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission, 620 South Meridian Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1600

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

68B-4.012 Diving: Powerheads and Rebreathers, Use to Harvest Fish in State Waters Prohibited; Definition; Spearfishing Marine Species in Fresh Water Prohibited.

(1) Powerheads

(a) No person shall use any powerhead to harvest any fish in state waters. Powerheads may be possessed while diving in state waters for the purpose of personal protection.

(b) The possession of any fish that has been harvested with a powerhead, aboard a vessel fishing or at rest in state waters, shall constitute a violation of this subsection.

(c) The term "harvest" for purposes of this subsection means the catching or taking of a fish by killing or wounding it, followed by a reduction of such fish to possession.

(d) This subsection shall not be construed to effect the repeal of subsection (5) of Section 370.08, Florida Statutes.

(2) Rebreathers

(a) No person diving in state waters by means of a rebreather shall harvest any marine species. Use of rebreathers for any nonconsumptive purpose is allowed in state waters.

(b) The possession of any fish that has been harvested by a person diving in state waters by means of a rebreather, aboard a vessel fishing or at rest in state waters, shall constitute a violation of this subsection.

(c) The term "harvest" for purposes of this subsection means the catching or taking of a marine species by any means, followed by a reduction of the species to possession, whether or not the species has been killed or wounded.

(3) Spearfishing: No person shall harvest or attempt to harvest any marine species by the use of any hand or mechanically propelled, single or multi-pronged spear or lance, barbed or barbless, while diving in fresh water.

PROPOSED EFFECTIVE DATE: July 1, 2001.

Specific Authority Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const. Law Implemented Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const. History—New 11-26-92, Amended 7-15-96, 1-1-97, Formerly 46-4.012, Amended 7-1-01.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE: Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission, 620 South Meridian Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1600

NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Allan L. Egbert, Ph.D., Executive Director, Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission, 620 South Meridian Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1600

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: January 24, 2001

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: January 26, 2001

FISH AND WILDLIFE CONSERVATION COMMISSION

Marine Fisheries

RULE CHAPTER TITLE: Florida Keys National Marine Sanctuary

RULE TITLES:	RULE NOS.:
Designation of Boundaries of Ecological Reserve, Sanctuary Preservation Areas, and Special-use Area	68B-6.002
Florida Keys National Marine Sanctuary: Prohibited Activities in Specified State Waters	68B-6.003

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose of these rule amendments is to implement a plan of the Florida Keys National Marine Sanctuary to establish a state waters reserve (closure area) near the Dry Tortugas. The rule amendments set up and provide regulations for use of the Tortugas North Ecological Reserve within the Sanctuary. The effect of such a reserve would be to minimize human influences, to provide natural spawning, nursery, and permanent residence areas for the replenishment and genetic protection of marine life, and also to protect and preserve natural assemblages of habitats and species within the closure area. This rulemaking is initiated after a series of joint public hearings throughout South Florida to gather public comment and suggestions regarding the proposed reserve.

SUMMARY: Rule 68B-6.002, F.A.C., is amended to add a new subsection (4) to the rule to describe the boundaries of the Tortugas North Ecological Reserve. Subsection (1) of Rule 68B-6.003, F.A.C., is amended to add the Tortugas North Ecological Reserve to the state waters of the Florida Keys National Marine Sanctuary to which the no-take provisions of the subsection will apply.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST: The proposed rule would prohibit fishing in the state portion of two 151 square nautical mile areas adjacent to Fort Jefferson National Park. The configuration was determined by stakeholders based on the need for a no-take study area in a pristine location and situated to use ocean currents to function as a replenishment area. A study of commercial fishing operations that used the existing special protected areas and no-take zones, comparing them with fishing operations not using those areas determined general increases in net income. The total areas were not of sufficient area to displace effort and affect total fishing income. The rule may affect small businesses by requiring them to shift operation. The rule will affect all fishing businesses. The rule will not affect small cities or counties. The rule will not increase paperwork or reporting requirements. The most significant agency implementation cost is for enforcement.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated regulatory costs, or to provide a proposal for lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: Article IV, Section 9, Florida Constitution.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: Article IV, Section 9, Florida Constitution.

THE FISH AND WILDLIFE CONSERVATION COMMISSION WILL CONDUCT A PUBLIC RULEMAKING HEARING ON THE PROPOSED RULES DURING ITS REGULAR MEETING AT THE TIME, DATE AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

TIME AND DATES: 8:30 a.m. – 5:00 p.m. each day, March 29-30, 2001

PLACE: Holiday Inn – Capital, 1355 Apalachee Parkway, Tallahassee, Florida

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 5 calendar days before the workshop/meeting by contacting Andrena Knicely, (850)487-1406. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency by calling (850)488-9542.

All written material received by the Commission within 21 days of the date of publication of this notice shall be made a part of the official record.

Section 286.0105, Florida Statutes, provides that, if a person decides to appeal any decision made by the commission with respect to any matter considered at this hearing, he will need a record of proceedings, and for such purposes, he may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is based.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: James V. Antista, General Counsel, Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission, 620 South Meridian Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1600

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

68B-6.002 Designation of Boundaries of Ecological Reserve, Sanctuary Preservation Areas, and Special-use Area.

(1) through (3) No change.

(4) TORTUGAS NORTH ECOLOGICAL RESERVE – For purposes of the restrictions specified in Rule 68B-6.003, the Tortugas North Ecological Reserve shall consist of all state waters located within the following geographic boundary coordinates:

Point	Latitude	Longitude
<u>1</u>	<u>24°46.00'N</u>	<u>83°06.00'W</u>
<u>2</u>	<u>24°45.40'N</u>	<u>82°54.00'W</u>
<u>3</u>	<u>24°45.30'N</u>	<u>82°48.00'W</u>
<u>4</u>	<u>24°43.32'N</u>	<u>82°48.00'W</u>
<u>5</u>	<u>24°43.32'N</u>	<u>82°52.00'W</u>
<u>6</u>	<u>24°43.00'N</u>	<u>82°54.00'W</u>
<u>7</u>	<u>24°39.00'N</u>	<u>82°58.00'W</u>
<u>8</u>	<u>24°39.00'N</u>	<u>83°06.00'W</u>

Specific Authority Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const. Law Implemented Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const. History—New 7-1-97, Formerly 46-6.002, Amended _____.

68B-6.003 Florida Keys National Marine Sanctuary: Prohibited Activities in Specified State Waters.

(1) ECOLOGICAL RESERVE AND SANCTUARY PRESERVATION AREAS – The following activities are prohibited within the Western Sambos Ecological Reserve, Tortugas North Ecological Reserve, and the Cheeca Rocks, Eastern Dry Rocks, Hens and Chickens, Newfound Harbor Key, Rock Key, and Sand Key Sanctuary Preservation Areas, described in Rule 68B-6.002:

(a) Possessing, moving, harvesting, removing, taking, damaging, disturbing, breaking, cutting, spearing, or otherwise injuring any coral, marine invertebrate, fish, bottom formation, algae, seagrass or other living or dead organism, including shells, or attempting any of these activities. However, fish, invertebrates, and marine plants may be possessed aboard a vessel in an Ecological Reserve or Sanctuary Preservation Area, provided such vessel is in continuous transit through such reserve or area and such resources are stowed in a cabin, locker, or similar storage area prior to entering and during transit through such reserve or area.

(b) Except as provided in subparagraphs 1. and 2. below, fishing by any means. However, gear capable of harvesting fish may be aboard a vessel in an Ecological Reserve or Sanctuary Preservation Area (other than Sand Key), provided such gear is not available for immediate use when entering and during transit through such Ecological Reserve or Sanctuary Preservation Area. The following fishing activities are allowed as indicated:

1. Catch and release fishing by trolling is allowed in the Sand Key Sanctuary Preservation Area.

2. The harvest of baitfish species (ballyhoo, balao, halfbeaks, or herring only) is allowed in the Sanctuary Preservation Areas specified in Rule 68B-6.002(2), subject to the following conditions:

a. No person shall engage in such harvest except pursuant to a valid permit issued for such purpose by the National Marine Sanctuary Division of the National Ocean Service on behalf of the Florida Keys National Marine Sanctuary.

b. In the Newfound Harbor Key Sanctuary Preservation Area, harvest pursuant to this subparagraph shall only be by means of a cast net with a stretched length (the distance from

the horn at the center of the net, with the net gathered and pulled taut, to the lead line) no greater than 14 feet. In the Cheeca Rocks, Eastern Dry Rocks, Hens and Chickens, Rock Key, and Sand Key Sanctuary Preservation Areas, harvest pursuant to this subparagraph shall only be by means of a cast net or modified lampara net.

c. All bycatch (species other than ballyhoo, balao, halfbeaks, or herring) shall be returned to the water alive.

d. Contact with or disturbance of the seabed is prohibited.

e. Harvest of baitfish in the Sanctuary Preservation Areas specified herein by the use of any gear other than those specifically allowed in this subparagraph is prohibited.

(c) Touching living or dead coral, including but not limited to, standing on a living or dead coral formation.

(d) Except for passage without interruption through the area, for law enforcement purposes, or for purposes of monitoring pursuant to 15 C.F.R. §922.164(d)(2), violating a temporary access restriction imposed by the Director of the Office of Ocean and Coastal Resource Management of the National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration or designee pursuant to 15 C.F.R. §922.164(d)(2).

Specific Authority Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const. Law Implemented Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const. History—New 7-1-97, Amended 11-16-98, 12-2-99, Formerly 46-6.003, Amended _____.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE: Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission, 620 South Meridian Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1600

NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Allan L. Egbert, Ph.D., Executive Director, Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission, 620 South Meridian Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1600

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: January 26, 2001

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: May 12, 2000

FISH AND WILDLIFE CONSERVATION COMMISSION

Marine Fisheries

RULE CHAPTER TITLE: Shrimp

RULE TITLE: RULE NO.:

Northwest Region Food Shrimp Production 68B-31.010
Gear Specifications

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose of this rule amendment is to delete the scheduled expiration of the allowance for the use of skimmer trawls for food shrimp production in a portion of Apalachicola Bay. Studies on the effects of such gear completed thus far indicate that the gear can safely be allowed beyond the scheduled July 1, 2001 sunset date. The effect of this rule amendment will be to allow those food shrimp producers who have been experimenting with skimmer trawls to continue until a final decision is made on the appropriateness of the gear.

SUMMARY: Paragraph (1)(c) of Rule 68B-31.010, F.A.C., is amended to delete the scheduled July 1, 2001 expiration of the allowance for the use of skimmer trawls in food shrimp production in Apalachicola Bay.

A STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST HAS NOT BEEN PREPARED REGARDING THESE PROPOSED RULES.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated regulatory costs, or to provide a proposal for lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: Article IV, Section 9, Florida Constitution.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: Article IV, Section 9, Florida Constitution.

THE FISH AND WILDLIFE CONSERVATION COMMISSION WILL CONDUCT A PUBLIC RULEMAKING HEARING ON THE PROPOSED RULES AT THE TIME, DATE AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

TIME AND DATES: 8:30 a.m. – 5:00 p.m. each day, March 29-30, 2001

PLACE: Holiday Inn – Capital, 1355 Apalachee Parkway, Tallahassee, Florida

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 5 calendar days before the workshop/meeting by contacting Andrena Knicely, (850)487-1406. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency by calling (850)488-9542.

All written material received by the Commission within 21 days of the date of publication of this notice shall be made a part of the official record.

Section 286.0105, Florida Statutes, provides that, if a person decides to appeal any decision made by the commission with respect to any matter considered at this hearing, he will need a record of proceedings, and for such purposes, he may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is based.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: James V. Antista, General Counsel, Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission, 620 South Meridian Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1600

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

68B-31.010 Northwest Region Food Shrimp Production Gear Specifications.

Each person harvesting shrimp in the Northwest Region as a food shrimp producer shall comply with the requirements specified in this rule.

(1) Allowable Gear – No person shall harvest shrimp in the nearshore and inshore Florida waters of the region as a food shrimp producer with any type of gear other than:

(a) A roller frame trawl meeting the following specifications:

1. Neither the upper or lower horizontal beam on a roller frame trawl so used is greater than 16 feet in length.
2. The vertical bars shielding the trawl opening are spaced no further than 3 inches apart.
3. No more than two such trawls, unconnected, shall be towed by a single vessel at any time.
4. The netting of the trawl shall be no larger in mesh area than specified by Rule 68B-31.0035(2).

(b) No more than two unconnected otter trawls, each with a perimeter around the leading edge of the net not greater than 66 feet and a net no larger in mesh area than specified by Rule 68B-31.0035(2). The two otter trawls allowed in the nearshore and inshore Florida waters of this region shall include any try net being towed.

(c) ~~Until July 1, 2001, and~~ Only in the area of the Northwest Region specified herein, no more than two unconnected skimmer trawls meeting the following specifications:

1. The perimeter around the leading edge of any skimmer trawl shall not exceed 56 feet.
2. No more than two skimmer trawls, unconnected other than being attached to the same vessel, shall be deployed from a single vessel at any time.
3. The netting of a skimmer trawl shall be no larger in mesh area than specified by Rule 68B-31.0035(2).

4. No skimmer trawl shall be used to harvest shrimp except in the following described area in Apalachicola Bay in the Northwest Region: All waters of Apalachicola Bay in Franklin County bounded on the north by the John Gorrie Memorial Bridge, on the west by the Apalachicola Shipping Channel to Channel Marker No. 2, on the south by ICWW Channel, and on the east by the Bryant Patton Bridge.

Specific Authority Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const. Law Implemented Art. IV, Sec. 9, Fla. Const. History–New 1-1-92, Amended 1-1-96, 8-17-98, 6-1-99, Formerly 46-31.010, Amended _____.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE: Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission, 620 South Meridian Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1600

NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Allan L. Egbert, Ph.D., Executive Director, Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission, 620 South Meridian Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1600

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: January 26, 2001

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: February 16, 2001

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: January 24, 2001
 DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: January 26, 2001

Section III
Notices of Changes, Corrections and Withdrawals

DEPARTMENT OF STATE

Division of Library and Information Services

RULE NO.: 1B-2.011 RULE TITLE: Library Grant Programs

NOTICE OF WITHDRAWAL

Notice is hereby given that the above rule, as noticed in Vol. 27, No. 4 (January 26, 2001) and Vol. 27, No. 6 (February 9, 2001), Florida Administrative Weekly has been withdrawn.

DEPARTMENT OF INSURANCE

Division of Fire Marshal

RULE NOS.: 4K-1.001 RULE TITLES: Purpose and Scope
 4K-1.002 Application Process
 4K-1.003 Review Process and Reward Criteria
 4K-1.004 Reward Disbursement

NOTICE OF WITHDRAWAL

Notice is hereby given that the above rule(s), as noticed in Vol. 26, No. 23, June 9, 2000, of the Florida Administrative Weekly, have been withdrawn.

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY AFFAIRS

Division of Community Planning

RULE CHAPTER NO.: 9J-5 RULE CHAPTER TITLE: Minimum Criteria for Review of Local Government Comprehensive Plans and Plan Amendments, Evaluation and Appraisal Reports, Land Development Regulations and Determination of Compliance

RULE NO.: 9J-5.004 RULE TITLE: Public Participation

NOTICE OF WITHDRAWAL

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the above rule, as noticed in Vol. 26, No. 42, October 20, 2000, Florida Administrative Weekly has been withdrawn.

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION

Board of Funeral Directors and Embalmers

RULE NO.: 61G8-16.005 RULE TITLE: Reexaminations

NOTICE OF CHANGE

Notice is hereby given that the following changes have been made to the proposed rule in accordance with subparagraph 120.54(3)(d)1., F.S., published in Vol. 26, No. 16, April 21, 2000, issue of the Florida Administrative Weekly. The change is in response to comments received from the staff at the Joint Administrative Procedures Committee.

The rule shall now read as follows:

61G8-16.005 Reexaminations.

Applicants for licensure as embalmers and/or funeral directors who fail to achieve a passing grade on the required examinations may make application to retake the examination failed at the next regularly scheduled examination. Each subsequent application submitted shall be accompanied by the appropriate application fee.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: Sherry Landrum, Executive Director, Board of Funeral Directors and Embalmers, Northwood Centre, 1940 N. Monroe Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0750.

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION

Board of Funeral Directors and Embalmers

RULE NO.: 61G8-17.001 RULE TITLE: Examination Fees for Embalmers and Funeral Directors; Manner of Application

NOTICE OF CHANGE

Notice is hereby given that the following changes have been made to the proposed rule in accordance with subparagraph 120.54(3)(d)1., F.S., published in Vol. 26, No. 6, February 11, 2000, issue of the Florida Administrative Weekly. The change is in response to comments received from the staff at the Joint Administrative Procedures Committee.

The rule shall now read as follows:

Subsections (5) and (6) shall be deleted in their entirety.
 THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: Sherry Landrum, Executive Director, Board of Funeral Directors and Embalmers, Northwood Centre, 1940 N. Monroe Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0750

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION

Board of Funeral Directors and Embalmers

RULE NO.: RULE TITLE:
 61G8-32.004 Confirmation of Completion of
 Courses

NOTICE OF WITHDRAWAL

Notice is hereby given that the above rule as noticed in the April 21, 2000, Vol. 26, No. 16, Florida Administrative Weekly, has been withdrawn.

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION

Board of Professional Engineers

RULE NO.: RULE TITLE:
 61G15-18.011 Definitions

NOTICE OF CHANGE

Pursuant to subparagraph 120.54(3)(d)1., F.S., notice is hereby given that the following changes have been made to the proposed rule, as published in Vol. 26, No. 51, December 22, 2000, issue of the Florida Administrative Weekly. The changes are in response to comments provided by the staff of the Joint Administrative Procedures Committee. Subsection (5) of the proposed rule shall be stricken out to read as follows:

(5) A "registered engineer whose principle practice is civil or structural engineering," as used in the ss. 471.003(3) and 481.229(4), F.S., shall mean an engineer licensed in Florida whose principal practice is civil or structural engineering and who either has a degree in civil or structural engineering, or has successfully completed the principles and practice examination in either discipline.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: Natlie Lowe, Administrator, Board of Professional Engineers, Northwood Centre, 1208 Hays Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32301

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION

Board of Professional Engineers

RULE NO.: RULE TITLE:
 61G15-35.003 Qualification Program for Special
 Inspectors of Threshold
 Buildings

NOTICE OF CHANGE

Pursuant to subparagraph 120.54(3)(d)1., F.S., notice is hereby given that the following changes have been made to the proposed rule, as published in Vol. 27, No. 3, January 19, 2001, issue of the Florida Administrative Weekly. The change is in response to comments provided by the staff of the Joint Administrative Procedures Committee. Subsection (4) shall now read as follows:

(4) Temporary Certification. Professional engineers who have been granted temporary licensure in Florida pursuant to the provisions of Section 471.021, F.S., shall also be granted temporary certification as a Special Inspector provided the criteria set forth in these rules have been met. Such temporary certification shall be limited to work on one specific project in this state for a period not to exceed one year.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: Natlie Lowe, Administrator, Board of Professional Engineers, Northwood Centre, 1208 Hays Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0750

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

Board of Medicine

RULE NO.: RULE TITLE:
 64B8-30.015 Disciplinary Guidelines

NOTICE OF CHANGE

Notice is hereby given that the following change has been made to the proposed rule in accordance with subparagraph 120.54(3)(d)1., F.S., published in Vol. 26, No. 51, of the December 22, 2000, issue of the Florida Administrative Weekly. The change is in response to written comments submitted by the staff of the Joint Administrative Procedures Committee. The change is as follows:

In the first sentence of subsection (4) of the rule, the word "may" shall be changed to "shall."

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: Tanya Williams, Executive Director, Board of Medicine, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C03, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1753

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

Board of Osteopathic Medicine

RULE NO.: RULE TITLE:
 64B15-6.011 Disciplinary Guidelines

NOTICE OF CHANGE

Pursuant to subparagraph 120.54(3)(d)1., F.S., notice is hereby given that the following changes have been made to the proposed rule, as published in Vol. 26, No. 51, December 22, 2000, issue of the Florida Administrative Weekly. The change is in response to comments provided the staff of the Joint Administrative Procedures Committee. The first sentence of subsection (4) of this proposed rule shall now read as follows:

(4) The certification of a Physician Assistant shall be disciplined by the Board when, after due notice and a hearing in accordance with the provisions of this rule, it shall find: that the Physician Assistant has held himself out or permitted another to represent him as a licensed physician.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: William Buckhalt, Executive Director, Board of Osteopathic Medicine/4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C06, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3256

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

Board of Pharmacy

RULE NO.:
64B16-26.401

RULE TITLE:
Requirements for an Internship
Program Sufficient to Qualify an
Applicant for Licensure by
Examination

NOTICE OF CHANGE

Pursuant to subparagraph 120.54(3)(d)1., F.S., notice is hereby given that the following changes have been made to the proposed rule, as published in Vol. 27, No. 4, January 26, 2001, issue of the Florida Administrative Weekly. The changes are in response to comments provided by the staff of the Joint Administrative Procedures Committee. Subsection (7) of the proposed rule shall now read as follows:

(7) The Board approves all internships which are required to obtain the doctor of pharmacy degree from institutions which are accredited as provided by section 465.007(1)(b)1., F.S. Applicants graduating after January 1, 2001 with the doctor of pharmacy degree from such institutions shall be deemed to have met the requirements of this section with documentation of graduation.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: John Taylor, Executive Director, Board of Pharmacy, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C04, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3254

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

Division of Family Health Services

RULE NO.:
64F-12.015

RULE TITLE:
Licensing, Application, Permitting

NOTICE OF CHANGE

Notice is hereby given that the following changes have been made to the proposed rule in accordance with subparagraph 120.54(3)(d)1., F.S., published in Vol. 26, No. 51, December 22, 2000 issue of the Florida Administrative Weekly. The changes are in response to comments received from the staff of the Joint Administrative Procedures Committee. Changes to the application effective dates reflect a revision to the affidavit section to limit the affidavit to swearing or affirming information submitted is true and correct. Two additional questions addressing compliance with chapter 499 and rule chapter 64F-12 and when operations may begin that were included within the affidavit have been moved to the body of the application form DOH Form-1033. Similarly, an additional question regarding ongoing eligibility for permit renewal has been moved from the affidavit to the body of the renewal application form DOH Form-1034. Sections (6)-(9) of this rule shall now read as follows:

(6) MANUFACTURER PERMITS.

(a) No change.

~~(b) A device manufacturer's permit is not required for a company manufacturing custom devices.~~

~~(b)(e)~~ A device manufacturer's permit is required for an establishment that refurbishes medical devices for subsequent sale but is not required when the refurbishing is performed as a service for the owner of the medical device and the device is returned to the owner for further use.

~~(c)(d)~~ Application requirements for manufacturers include:

1. No change.

2. File with the department a completed application for a permit using an original DOH Form 1033, "Application for Permit Under Chapter 499, F.S.," effective MAR01 ~~January 1999~~, which is incorporated by reference herein.

3. through 5. No change.

(7) WHOLESALER PERMITS.

(a) through (c) No change.

(d) Application requirements for Prescription Drug Wholesalers and Compressed Medical Gases Wholesalers include:

1. No change.

2. File with the department a completed application for a permit using an original DOH Form 1033, "Application for Permit Under Chapter 499, F.S.," effective MAR01 ~~January 1999~~, which is incorporated by reference herein.

3. Pay the appropriate fee(s) as required by Rule 64F-12.018.

Comply with all the requirements for permitting provided in Chapter 499, F.S., and this rule chapter.

4. Submission of a "Clearance Letter" issued by a local law enforcement agency that discloses the presence or absence of past felony convictions of the owners, officers, and managers-in-charge for sole proprietorships, partnerships, and closely held corporations for persons applying for a permit as a Prescription Drug Wholesaler and Prescription Drug Wholesaler – Broker Only.

(e) Application requirements for Out-of-State Prescription Drug Wholesalers include:

1. No change.

2. File with the department a completed application for a permit using an original DOH Form 1033, "Application for Permit Under Chapter 499, F.S." effective MAR01 ~~Jan. 1999~~, which is incorporated by reference herein.

3. Submit a photocopy of the resident state's license or permit that authorizes the wholesale distribution of prescription drugs. If the resident state does not require a license or permit for the wholesale distribution activities of the applicant in that state, submit (i) a written confirmation on the letterhead of the resident state agency responsible for regulating prescription drug wholesale distribution in that state that permitting of the applicant establishment is not required by that state and (ii) a statement signed by the applicant that the applicant will comply with all storage, handling, and recordkeeping requirements of the resident state related to the

sale and physical distribution of prescription drugs into Florida, or if none exist in the resident state that the applicant will comply with all storage, handling, and recordkeeping requirements, as set forth in 21 C.F.R. 205.50 (as of 1/1/01) which is incorporated by reference herein, for the sale and physical distribution of prescription drugs into Florida. The Out-of-State Prescription Drug wholesaler application will not be approved until the license or permit status in the resident state is verified.

4. through 5. No change.

(f) Application requirements for Retail Pharmacy Wholesalers include:

1. No change.

2. File with the department a completed application for a permit using an original DOH Form 1033, "Application for Permit Under Chapter 499, F.S.," effective MAR01 January 1999, which is incorporated by reference herein.

3. through 5. No change.

(8) OTHER DISTRIBUTORS. Persons conducting certain distributions of prescription drugs which are not considered wholesale distributions in the state of Florida must obtain a permit from the department prior to initiating that activity. These permits include Complimentary Drug Distributors, all of the designated Restricted Rx Drug Distributor permits as further discussed in rule 64F-12.023, Medical Oxygen Retailers, and Veterinary Legend Drug Retailers.

(a) Application requirements for Complimentary Drug Distributors include:

1. No change.

2. File with the department a completed application for a permit using an original DOH Form 1033, "Application for Permit Under Chapter 499, F.S.," effective MAR01 January 1999, which is incorporated by reference herein.

3. through 5. No change.

(b) Application requirements for Restricted Rx Drug Distributor – Health Care Entity include:

1. No change.

2. File with the department a completed application for a permit using an original DOH Form 1033, "Application for Permit Under Chapter 499, F.S.," effective MAR01 January 1999, which is incorporated by reference herein.

3. through 5. No change.

(c) Application requirements for Restricted Rx Drug Distributor – Charitable Organization include:

1. No change.

2. File with the department a completed application for a permit using an original DOH Form 1033, "Application for Permit Under Chapter 499, F.S.," effective MAR01 January 1999, which is incorporated by reference herein.

3. through 6. No change.

(d) Application requirements for Restricted Rx Drug Distributor – Reverse Distributor or Restricted Rx Drug Distributor – Destruction include:

1. No change.

2. File with the department a completed application for a permit using an original DOH Form 1033, "Application for Permit Under Chapter 499, F.S.," effective MAR01 January 1999, which is incorporated by reference herein.

3. through 4. No change.

(e) Application requirements for Restricted Rx Drug Distributor – Government Programs include:

1. No change.

2. File with the department a completed application for a permit using an original DOH Form 1033, "Application for Permit Under Chapter 499, F.S.," effective MAR01 January 1999, which is incorporated by reference herein.

3. No change.

4. Submit a list of the intended contractors and subcontractors that will receive the entity's prescription drugs under this permit and the permit numbers that authorize them to administer or dispense. Also submit a copy of the provisions of the contract that address the requirements in s. 499.012(1)(a)1.d., F.S.

5. through 6. No change.

(f) Application requirements for a Restricted Rx Drug Distributor – Institutional Research include:

1. Contact the department's Bureau of Pharmacy Services to request an application or download the application from the bureau's web site.

2. File with the department a completed application for a permit using an original DOH Form 1033, "Application for Permit Under Chapter 499, F.S.," effective MAR01, which is incorporated by reference herein.

3. Comply with all the requirements for permitting provided in Chapter 499, F.S., and this rule chapter.

4. Pay the appropriate fee(s) as required by Rule 64F-12.018.

(g) Application requirements for a Veterinary Legend Drug Retailer include:

1. Contact the department's Bureau of Pharmacy Services to request an application or download the application from the bureau's web site.

2. File with the department a completed application for a permit using an original DOH Form 1033, "Application for Permit Under Chapter 499, F.S.," effective MAR01 January 1999, which is incorporated by reference herein.

3. Pay the appropriate fee(s) as required by Rule 64F-12.018.

4. Comply with all the requirements for permitting provided in Chapter 499, F.S., and this rule chapter.

(h)(g) Application requirements for a Medical Oxygen Retailer include:

1. Contact the department's Bureau of Pharmacy Services to request an application or download the application from the bureau's web site.

2. File with the department a completed application for a permit using an original DOH Form 1033, "Application for Permit Under Chapter 499, F.S.," effective MAR01 ~~January 1999~~, which is incorporated by reference to this rule.

3. Pay the appropriate fee(s) as required by Rule 64F-12.018.

4. Comply with all the requirements for permitting provided in Chapter 499, F.S., and these rules.

5. Have an FDA establishment registration number if the establishment will be transfilling medical oxygen.

(9) PERMIT RENEWALS. Submission of a renewal application represents to the department that conditions have not changed with the permitted person which would make the permitted person ineligible to renew the permit.

(a) No change.

(b) An applicant applying to renew a permit which has not expired, been revoked, suspended or otherwise terminated must:

1. file with the department a completed application for a permit using an "Application for Permit Renewal Under Chapter 499, F.S., " DOH Form 1034, effective MAR01 ~~January 1999~~, which is incorporated by reference herein. The permittee should contact the department if the renewal application has not been received at least 30 days prior to the permit's expiration date.

2. through 5. No change.

(c) No change.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: Sandra Stovall, Compliance Officer, Bureau of Pharmacy Services, 2818-A Mahan Drive, Tallahassee, Florida 32308 or (850)487-1257, Ext. 210.

**Section IV
Emergency Rules**

NONE

**Section V
Petitions and Dispositions Regarding Rule
Variance or Waiver**

DEPARTMENT OF LAW ENFORCEMENT

Notice is hereby given that the Officer Professionalism Program, Florida Department of Law Enforcement has received from Stacie Marie Preece on February 5, 2001, a petition for Variance or Waiver of Rule 11B-27.002(3), pursuant to Section 120.542, F.S. Petitioner has requested that

the Department waive the requirement that a person who successfully completes a Florida Basic Recruit Program pursuant to Rule 11B-35, and who is thereafter not employed on or before (4) years of the completion of such training as an officer in the discipline for which training was completed must then complete the training program in section 11B-35.002, F.A.C., demonstrate proficiency in each of the high liability skills, and pass the state officer certification examination.

PURPOSE: Comments on this Petition should be filed with the Office of General Counsel, Florida Department of Law Enforcement, P. O. Box 1489, Tallahassee, Florida 32302, Attention: Assistant General Counsel James D. Martin.

A copy of the Petition may be obtained by contacting Assistant General Counsel James D. Martin at the above address, or by calling (850)410-7676.

WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICTS

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that on January 22, 2001, the South Florida Water Management District (SFWMD) received a petition for waiver from Collier County Board of Commissioners, for utilization of works or land of the SFWMD known as the C-100A, Miami-Dade County. The petition seeks relief from the Rule 40E-6.221(2)(j), Fla. Admin. Code, and the Basis of Review for Use or Occupancy of the Works or Lands of the District Permit Applications within the South Florida Water Management District, incorporated by reference in Rule 40E-6.091(1), Fla. Admin. Code, which requires the applicant to pay a fee to obtain a Right of Way Occupancy Permit.

A copy of the petition may be obtained from Jan Sluth at (561)682-6299 or e-mail at jsluth@sfwmd.gov. The SFWMD will accept comments concerning the petition for 14 days from the date of publication of this notice.

To be considered, comments must be received by the end of business on the 14th day at the South Florida Water Management District, 3301 Gun Club Road, West Palm Beach, FL 33406, Attn: Jan Sluth, Office of Counsel.

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Department of Environmental Protection announces its entry of an Order Granting Variance, as required by Section 120.542(8), Florida Statutes.

NAME OF THE PETITIONER: Nichols Sanitation, Inc.

DATE THE PETITION WAS FILED: December 13, 2000

RULE NUMBER AND NATURE OF THE RULE FROM WHICH THE WAIVER OR VARIANCE IS SOUGHT: Rule 62-701.801(3)(c), Florida Administrative Code, which requires transfer stations to be designed with a leachate control system.

REFERENCE TO THE PLACE AND DATE OF PUBLICATION OF THE NOTICE OF THE PETITION: Florida Administrative Weekly, December 22, 2000, Vol. 26, No. 51.

THE DATE OF THE ORDER APPROVING THE VARIANCE OR WAIVER: January 17, 2001.

THE GENERAL BASIS FOR THE AGENCY DECISION: The Petitioner has demonstrated that allowing it to establish and maintain a ground water monitoring system in lieu of a leachate control system, in accordance with the conditions set forth in the variance approval, is expected to meet the purpose of the underlying statute, and that the Petitioner would suffer an undue hardship if the variance is not granted.

EXPLANATION OF HOW A COPY OF THE ORDER CAN BE OBTAINED: A copy of the Order Granting Variance is available for public inspection during normal business hours, 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday, except legal holidays, at the Department of Environmental Protection, Solid Waste Section, 2600 Blair Stone Road, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2400. Requests for copies or inspections should be made to Mary Jean Yon, Section Administrator at the above address, telephone (850)488-0300, or e-mail to yon_mj@dep.state.fl.us.

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Florida Department of Environmental Protection received on January 29, 2001, a petition from PDG Environmental, Inc. (First Coast Auto Sales), for a waiver pursuant to subsection 376.3071(12)(k)(5), F.S., of certain record keeping requirements under subsection 376.3071(12)(e), F.S., and for an extension of time. The petition has been assigned OGC case number 00-1841 and is for the First Coast Auto Sales site located at 3552 West Beaver Street, Jacksonville, Florida, FDEP Facility #169101527.

Copies may be received from, and written comments submitted to, Department of Environmental Protection, Office of General Counsel, Mail Station 35, 3900 Commonwealth Boulevard, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3000; Attn: Lisa Randolph. Comments must be received no later than 14 days from the date of publication of this notice.

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Florida Department of Environmental Protection received on February 7, 2001, a petition from PDG Environmental, Inc. (Holmes Oil Company), for a waiver pursuant to subsection 376.3071(12)(k)(5), F.S., of certain record keeping requirements under subsection 376.3071(12)(e), F.S. The petition has been assigned OGC case number 00-1842 and is for the Holmes Oil Company, Inc. site located at 400 Angle Road, Fort Pierce, Florida, FDEP Facility #568516137.

Copies may be received from, and written comments submitted to, Department of Environmental Protection, Office of General Counsel, Mail Station 35, 3900 Commonwealth Boulevard, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3000; Attn: Lisa Randolph. Comments must be received no later than 14 days from the date of publication of this notice.

On December 15, 2000, the Department received a request, pursuant to Section 120.542, F.S. (2000), from the United States Air Force, seeking a waiver of the requirement under Rule 62-761.500(4)(e)2., F.A.C., to install secondary containment for the new hydrant loop piping system at MacDill Air Force Base. The petition was assigned OGC case #00-2328. A Notice of Receipt of Petition for Variance/Waiver was published in the December 29, 2000, F.A.W. on January 24, 2001, the petition was granted with conditions including requiring the use of stainless steel pipes, annual pressure tests, weekly release detection tests, and smart pigging the system.

Copies may be obtained from the Department of Environmental Protection, Office of General Counsel, Mail Station 35, 3900 Commonwealth Boulevard, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3000; Attn: Lisa Randolph.

FLORIDA HOUSING FINANCE CORPORATION

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Florida Housing Corporation has received a petition pursuant to section 120.542, Florida Statutes, from Teal Pointe Associates, Ltd., Project: Teal Pointe Apartments Home #93HD-014, for a variance and/or waiver from Rule 67-40.100(8), Florida Administrative Code, which concerns the default on loans and foreclosure on mortgage or security interest under Section 420.5089, Florida Statutes. Comments on this petition should be filed with Beverly B. Brewster, Florida Housing Finance Corporation, 227 North Bronough Street, Suite 5000, Tallahassee, Florida 32301, within 14 days of publication of this notice.

For a copy of the petition, contact Beverly B. Brewster at the above address or telephone (850)488-4197.

**Section VI
Notices of Meetings, Workshops and Public Hearings**

The following state governmental agencies, boards and commissions announce a public meeting to which all persons are invited:

- State Board of Administration
- Department of Veterans' Affairs
- Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles
- Department of Law Enforcement
- Department of Revenue
- Department of Education
- Administration Commission
- Florida Land and Water Adjudicatory Commission
- Board of Trustees of the Internal Improvement Trust Fund
- Department of Environmental Protection

DATE AND TIME: March 13, 2001, 9:00 a.m.

PLACE: Cabinet Meeting Room, Lower Level, The Capitol, Tallahassee, Florida

PURPOSE: Regular scheduled meeting of the Governor and Cabinet

The State Board of Administration will take action on matters duly presented on its agenda, which may include such matters as Executive Director's reports; approval of fiscal sufficiency of state bond issues; approval of sale of local bonds at an interest rate in excess of statutory interest rate limitation; report on investment performance; designation of banks as depositories for state funds; adoption of rules and regulations; investment of state funds pursuant to Chapter 215, F.S.; and consideration of other matters within its authority pursuant to Chapters 215 and 344, F.S., and Section 16 of Article IX of the Florida Constitution of 1885, as continued by subsection 9(c) of Article XII of the Florida Constitution of 1968. The Division of Bond Finance of the State Board of Administration will take action on matters duly presented on its agenda, which will deal with the issuance of State bonds, arbitrage compliance and related matters.

The Department of Veterans' Affairs will take action on matters duly presented on its agenda which may include the administration of the Department as well as actions taken to further the Department's mission of providing assistance to veterans and their dependents, pursuant to Section 292.05, F.S. The Information Resource Commission will take action on matters duly presented on its agenda, which may include administrative procedures matters, adoption of rules, approval of agency plans for the use of information technology resources, adoption of policies for the use of such resources, and other matters under the commission's authority pursuant to law.

The Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles will take action on matters duly presented on its agenda, which may include such matters as approval of agency policies, taking agency action with regard to administrative procedure matters, and considering other matters within its authority pursuant to Florida Statutes.

The Department of Law Enforcement will take action on matters duly presented on its agenda which may include but not be limited to such matters as transfer of agency funds or positions, formulation of Departmental Rules, administrative procedure matters, submittal of reports as required, enter into contracts as authorized and to consider other matters within its authority pursuant to Chapters 20, 23, 120 and 943, F.S.

The Department of Revenue will act on matters duly presented on its agenda which may include approval of rules, legislative concept proposals, contracts over \$100,000, Departmental budgets, taking final action on formal and informal hearings under Chapter 120, F.S., and consideration of other matters within its authority.

The Department of Education will finalize agency action on the business of the Florida Department of Education.

The Administration Commission will take action on matters duly presented on its agenda which may include such matters as to create or transfer agency funds or positions, approve Career Service rules, administrative procedure matters, environmental matters arising under Chapter 380, F.S., comprehensive planning issues pursuant to Section 163.3184, F.S., determine sheriffs' budget matters, and consider other matters within its authority pursuant to Chapters 110, 215 and 216, F.S.

The Florida Land and Water Adjudicatory Commission will take action on matters duly presented on its agenda including appeals of local government development orders in areas of critical state concern or of developments of regional impact under Section 380.07, F.S.; and review of water management matters under Chapter 373, F.S. The Commission will also review Department of Environmental Protection's rules and orders which, prior to July 1, 1993, the Governor and Cabinet, sitting as the head of the Department of Natural Resources, had authority to issue or promulgate.

The Board of Trustees of the Internal Improvement Trust Fund will take action on matters duly presented on its agenda which may include such matters as mineral leases or sales, state or sovereign land leases, sales, exchanges, dedications, and easements, Conservation And Recreation Lands (CARL) and other land purchases; land planning matters and other matters within its authority. Additionally, the Board will take action on matters presented by the Marine Fisheries Commission as set forth in Sections 370.025, 370.026 and 370.027, F.S., and matters pertaining to the Office of Greenways Management, the Office responsible for the management of lands which formerly fell within the Cross Florida Barge Canal project corridor.

The Department of Environmental Protection, while not a Cabinet agency, will present for consideration on its agenda those matters required by law to be reviewed by the Governor and Cabinet and those pertaining to the siting of power plants, electric and natural gas transmission lines and hazardous waste facilities; coastal zone management consistency and standards adopted by the Environmental Regulation Commission.

A copy of any of the above agendas (when applicable) may be obtained by contacting each agency.

Accommodations can be made for persons with disabilities provided several days' notification is received. Please notify the Governor's Cabinet Office, (850)488-5152.

The Governor and Cabinet will proceed through each agenda, item by item, in the order given above.

CABINET AIDES BRIEFING: On the Wednesday of the week prior to the above meeting, there will be a meeting of the aides to the Governor and Cabinet Members at 9:00 a.m., Cabinet Meeting Room, Lower Level, The Capitol,

Tallahassee, Florida. The purpose of this briefing is to review and gather information regarding each agenda to be considered by the Governor and Cabinet.

DEPARTMENT OF STATE

The Board of Trustees of **Historic Pensacola Preservation Board** announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Wednesday, March 14, 2001, 12:00 Noon
PLACE: J. Earle Bowden Building, 120 Church Street, Pensacola, FL 32501

PURPOSE: General business meeting.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by writing: Historic Pensacola Preservation Board, P. O. Box 12866, Pensacola, FL 32576-2866.

Should any person wish to appeal any decision made with respect to any matter considered at the above referenced meeting, he may need to ensure a verbatim recording of the proceedings in order to provide a record for judicial review.

Pursuant to Chapter 286.26, Florida Statutes, any persons with handicaps wishing to attend this meeting should contact the agency at least 48 hours prior to the meeting in order to request any special assistance.

The Board of Directors of **Historic Pensacola, Inc.**, the direct support organization of the Historic Pensacola Preservation Board announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Wednesday, March 14, 2001, immediately following the meeting of the Historic Pensacola Preservation Board which begins at 12:00 Noon

PLACE: J. Earle Bowden Building, 120 Church Street, Pensacola, FL 32501

PURPOSE: General business meeting.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by writing: Historic Pensacola Preservation Board, P. O. Box 12866, Pensacola, Florida 32576-2866.

Should any person wish to appeal any decision made with respect to any matter considered at the above referenced meeting, he may need to ensure a verbatim recording of the proceedings in order to provide a record for judicial review.

Pursuant to Chapter 286.26, Florida Statutes, any person with handicaps wishing to attend this meeting should contact the agency at least 48 hours prior to the meeting in order to request any special assistance.

The **Museum of Florida History Foundation, Inc.** announces a Board of Director's Meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Thursday, March 15, 2001, 4:00 p.m.

Place: R. A. Gray Building, Room 307, 500 S. Bronough Street, Tallahassee, Florida

Purpose: Regularly scheduled meeting.

Pursuant to Chapter 286.26, Florida Statutes, any handicapped person wishing to attend this meeting should contact Penny Lord, (850)922-5299, at least 48 hours prior to the meeting in order to request any special assistance.

The **Department of State, Division of Cultural Affairs**, Florida Arts Council announces public Committee meetings to which all persons are invited.

COMMITTEE: Quarterly Assistance

DATE AND TIME: Wednesday, March 21, 2001, 1:00 p.m. – 2:30 p.m.

PLACE: R. A. Gray Building, Third Floor, Room 307, Tallahassee, Florida

PURPOSE: To discuss any outstanding issues and the upcoming Legislative Session.

COMMITTEE: Governmental Affairs

DATE AND TIME: Wednesday, March 21, 2001, 3:00 p.m. – 5:00 p.m.

PLACE: R. A. Gray Building, Third Floor, Room 307, Tallahassee, Florida

PURPOSE: To discuss, review and make recommendations regarding the applications received for the Quarterly Assistance Grant and Underserved Arts Communities Assistance Programs.

The **Department of State, Division of Cultural Affairs**, Florida Arts Council announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Thursday, March 22, 2000, 9:00 a.m. – 12:00 Noon

PLACE: R. A. Gray Building, Third Floor, Room 307, Tallahassee, Florida

PURPOSE: To discuss, review and make recommendations regarding the Division of Cultural Affairs' programs and grants and to conduct other business as necessary.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by writing: Division of Cultural Affairs, The Capitol, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0250 or by calling Wendy G. Moss, (850)487-2980.

Should any person wish to appeal any decision made with respect to any matter considered at the above-referenced meetings, he/she may need to ensure verbatim recording of the proceeding in order to provide a record for judicial review. The Division of Cultural Affairs will not record these meetings.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in these meetings is asked to advise the agency at least 48 hours before the meeting by contacting Wendy G. Moss, (850)487-2980. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency by calling (850)488-5779.

DEPARTMENT OF LEGAL AFFAIRS

The Legislative Advocacy Committee of the **Florida Commission on the Status of Women** will hold a telephone conference to which all interested persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: March 5, 2001, 10:00 a.m.

PLACE: Please call (850)414-3300 for instructions on participation

PURPOSE To discuss general issues.

If you need an accommodation because of disability in order to participate, please notify FCSW, in writing at least five days in advance at Office of the Attorney General, The Capitol, Tallahassee, FL 32399-1050.

The **Florida Commission on the Status of Women** will hold a meeting to which all interested persons are invited.

DATES AND TIMES: March 12, 2001, 1:00 p.m. – 5:00 p.m.; March 13, 2001, 8:30 a.m. – 1:00 p.m.

PLACE: Turlington Building, Florida Education Center, 325 West Gaines Street, 17th Floor, Room 1706, Tallahassee, FL 32399.

PURPOSE: To discuss general issues.

Please call (850)414-3300 for instructions on participation.

If you need an accommodation because of disability in order to participate, please notify FCSW, in writing at least five days in advance at Office of the Attorney General, The Capitol, Tallahassee, FL 32399-1050.

DEPARTMENT OF BANKING AND FINANCE

The Florida **Board of Funeral and Cemetery Services** announces a public Board Meeting to which all persons are invited to attend.

DATE AND TIME: April 3, 2001, 10:00 a.m. – 5:00 p.m.

PLACE: Hyatt Sarasota, 1000 Boulevard of the Arts, Sarasota, FL 34236-4808, (941)953-1234

PURPOSE: Regular Board Business.

If a person decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at this meeting, the person will need a record of the proceedings, and for such purpose the person may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based.

To obtain further information contact: Gladys Hennen, Administrative Assistant II, Division of Finance, 101 East Gaines St., Fletcher Bldg., Room 624P, Tallahassee, FL 32399-0350, (850)410-9898.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this meeting is asked to advise Gladys Hennen, (850)410-9898, at least 48 hours before the meeting. If you are

hearing or speech impaired, contact Gladys Hennen via the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice), for assistance.

The **Florida Financial Management Information System (FFMIS)**, Coordinating Council announces the following public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Monday, March 5, 2001, 10:00 a.m.

PLACE: Room 301, State Capitol Building, Tallahassee, Florida

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Discussion of issues relating to the Florida Financial Management Information System.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Martin Young, Department of Banking and Finance, Division of Accounting and Auditing, FFMIS Design and Coordination Staff, 101 E. Gaines Street, 434E Fletcher Building, Tallahassee, FL 32399-0350, (850)410-9415, Fax (850)410-9934, e-mail: myoung@mail.dbf.state.fl.us.

DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE AND CONSUMER SERVICES

The **Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services** announces a meeting of the Florida Food and Nutrition Advisory Council.

DATES AND TIMES: March 29, 2001, 8:00 a.m. – 5:00 p.m.; March 30, 2001, 8:00 a.m. – 12:00 Noon

PLACE: Hampton Inn Cocoa Beach, 3425 North Atlantic Avenue, Cocoa Beach, Florida 32931, 1(877)49-Beach or (407)799-4099, Fax (407)799-4991

PURPOSE: To discuss and review the status of food and nutrition programs and initiatives in the State of Florida.

A copy of the agenda can be obtained by contacting: Cathy Quick, 541 E. Tennessee Street, 2nd Floor, Tallahassee, FL 32308.

If special accommodations are needed to attend this meeting because of a disability, please contact: Cathy Quick, (850)487-6694, by March 16, 2001.

The Florida **Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services, Division of Forestry** announces a meeting of the Silviculture Best Management Practices Technical Advisory Committee to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: March 5, 2001, 10:00 a.m.

PLACE: Doyle Conner Building, Eyster Auditorium, 3125 Conner Boulevard, Tallahassee, Florida

PURPOSE: Biennial meeting of the Silviculture Best Management Practices Technical Advisory Committee.

For more information about the meeting, for a copy of the agenda or if special accommodations are needed to attend this meeting because of a disability, please contact: Jeff Vowell, Division of Forestry, 3125 Conner Boulevard, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1650, (850)414-9935.

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

The Florida **Department of Education**, Charter School Review Panel announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Friday, December 2, 2001, 9:00 a.m. – 4:00 p.m. (Central Time)

PLACE: The Office of School Choice and Charter School, 325 W. Gaines Street, Turlington Building, Room 1704, Tallahassee, Florida 32399, (850)414-0780

PURPOSE: Members of the Charter School Review Panel will address: (1) Updates on the projected number of charter schools for the 2001-02 academic year and the effects on caps and capital outlay funding. (2) Briefing on the upcoming legislative session. (3) Status of appeals before the State Board of Education. (4) Proposed Panel development of a best practice manual.

To obtain a copy of the agenda, please call or write: Office of Public School Choice and Charter Schools, 325 West Gaines Street, 522 Turlington Building, Tallahassee, Florida 32399, (850)414-0780 or Suncom 994-0780.

SPECIAL ACCOMMODATIONS: Persons with disabilities who require assistance to participate in this meeting are requested to contact Veronica D. Phillips at the above address or telephone numbers.

The public is invited to a telephone conference call meeting of the Florida **Board of Regents**.

DATE AND TIME: March 9, 2001, 9:00 a.m.

PLACE: Conference Room, 15th Floor, Florida Education Center, Tallahassee, Florida

PURPOSE: To consider legislative issues and updates; and other matters pertaining to the State University System.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by writing: Mary-Anne Bestebreurtje, Corporate Secretary, Florida Board of Regents, 325 West Gaines Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1950.

Persons with disabilities who require assistance to participate in the meeting are requested to notify the Office of Equal Opportunity and Diversity, (850)201-7160 (Voice), (850)201-7164 (TDD), at least 7 days in advance, so that their needs can be accommodated.

The **Gulf Coast Community College**, District Board of Trustees will hold its monthly meeting as follows.

DATE AND TIME: March 8, 2001, 10:00 a.m. (CDT)

PLACE: Gardner Seminar Room

PURPOSE: Regular monthly meeting.

Contact person for the meeting is Dr. Robert L. McSpadden, president.

The Florida Community College System announces the State **Board of Community Colleges**, Legislative Conference Calls to which all persons are invited.

DATES AND TIME: March 9, 2001; March 16, 2001; March 30, 2001; April 6, 2001; April 13, 2001; April 20, 2001; May 18, 2001, 3:00 p.m. – 4:00 p.m., (850)414-1711 or Suncom 994-1711, 60 lines

PLACE: 325 West Gaines Street, Suite 1360, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0400

PURPOSE: To discuss legislative issues and updates.

NOTE: If you need special services to attend the meeting or need additional information, write: Division of Community Colleges, 325 West Gaines Street, Suite 1314, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0400.

The **Department of Education** announces a meeting of the Occupational Access and Opportunity Commission to which all persons are invited and to which all interested individuals are encouraged to attend.

DATE AND TIME: March 5, 2001, 1:30 p.m. – 3:30 p.m.

PLACE: Division of Vocational Rehabilitation Services' Headquarters, Room 360, 2002 Old Saint Augustine Road, Building A, Tallahassee, Florida 32301, (850)488-0059

PURPOSE: To ratify Vocational Rehabilitation Services' Corrective Action Plan and policies as requested by the Rehabilitation Services Administration.

In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, persons needing special accommodations to participate in the meeting should contact V. Virginia Rhoden, (850) 88-0059, Ext 207, three days before the meeting.

The **Department of Education** announces a meeting of the Occupational Access and Opportunity Commission Government/Customer Relations Committee to which all persons are invited and to which all interested individuals are encouraged to attend.

DATE AND TIME: March 6, 2001, 10:00 a.m. – 3:00 p.m.

PLACE: Division of Vocational Rehabilitation Services' Headquarters, Room 360, 2002 Old Saint Augustine Road, Building A, Tallahassee, Florida 32301, (850)488-0059

PURPOSE: To review, add to and approve work done to advance the recognition of the OAO and VRS to the business community and the general population of Florida. To plan for presentation on this work to the full Commission at their next meeting.

In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, persons needing special accommodations to participate in the meeting should contact V. Virginia Rhoden, (850)488-0059, Ext. 207, three days before the meeting.

The Interagency Advisory Committee for the **School Emergency Plans Project** announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE: Wednesday, March 7, 2001, 10:00 a.m. – 3:00 p.m.

PLACE: Florida Department of Education, Turlington Building, 325 West Gaines Street, Room 1706, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0400

PURPOSE: Meeting of the Interagency Advisory Committee for the School Emergency Plans Project. The Interagency Advisory Committee welcomes participation from any interested members of the public.

Any person who desires a copy of the proceedings should arrange to tape the meeting.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this meeting is requested to advise Felicia Elliott, Office of Safe Schools, Emergency Management Program, (850)414-7777, at least five calendar days before the meeting.

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY AFFAIRS

The **Department of Community Affairs** (DCA) announces a hearing to which all interested parties are invited.

DATE AND TIME: March 9, 2001, 9:00 a.m.

PLACE: Florida Department of Community Affairs, 2555 Shumard Oak Boulevard, Sadowski Building, Room 260-N, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2100

PURPOSE: To obtain public comments on the draft of the State of Florida Annual Action Plan for Federal Fiscal Year 2001.

PLAN SUMMARY: The Federal Fiscal Year 2001 Annual Action Plan outlines the manner in which the State of Florida will administer programs funded by the U. S. Department of Housing and Urban Development for the current grant year period. Grant programs included in the Plan are the Florida Small Cities Community Development Block Grant (CDBG), Emergency Shelter Grant (ESG), Home Investment Partnership (HOME) and Housing Opportunities for Persons with Aids (HOPWA). The Plan contains specific elements on the state's method for distributing Federal Fiscal Year 2001 funds to eligible applicants for the programs mentioned above. The Annual Action Plan also contains the amount of funds allocated to each program and the citation for the federal and state rules and regulations that govern the administration of the programs.

ACTION TO BE TAKEN: At this public hearing, the Department will receive comments relating to the draft of the Plan.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by appearing in person at the agency headquarters or by writing or calling: Florida Small Cities CDBG Program, Department of Community Affairs, 2555 Shumard Oak Boulevard, Sadowski Building, Room 250-K, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2100, (850)487-3644 or (850)922-1887. Written comments are encouraged and may be submitted at the hearing or mailed to the address listed above no later than April 25, 2001.

Any person requiring a special accommodation at this hearing because of a disability, physical impairment or English language deficiency should contact the Department of Community Affairs, (850)487-3644, at least five calendar days prior to the hearing. If you are hearing impaired, please contact the Department using the Florida Dual Party Relay System, 1(800)922-8771 (TDD).

The **Department of Community Affairs** (DCA) announces a hearing to which all interested parties are invited.

DATE AND TIME: March 26, 2001, 1:00 p.m.

PLACE: Florida Department of Community Affairs, 2555 Shumard Oak Boulevard, Sadowski Building, Room 260-N, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2100

PURPOSE: To obtain public comments on the State of Florida Annual Action Plan for Federal Fiscal Year 2001.

PLAN SUMMARY: The Federal Fiscal Year 2001 Annual Action Plan outlines the manner in which the State of Florida will administer programs funded by the U. S. Department of Housing and Urban Development for the current grant year period. Grant programs included in the Plan are the Florida Small Cities Community Development Block Grant (CDBG), Emergency Shelter Grant (ESG), Home Investment Partnership (HOME) and Housing Opportunities for Persons with Aids (HOPWA). The Plan contains specific elements on the state's method for distributing Federal Fiscal Year 2001 funds to eligible applicants for the programs mentioned above. The Annual Action Plan also contains the amount of funds allocated to each program and the citation for the federal and state rules and regulations that govern the administration of the programs.

ACTION TO BE TAKEN: At this public hearing, the Department will receive comments relating to the final draft of the State of Florida Annual Action Plan.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by appearing in person at the agency headquarters or by writing or calling: Florida Small Cities CDBG Program, Department of Community Affairs, 2555 Shumard Oak Boulevard, Sadowski Building, Room 250-K, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2100, (850)487-3644 or (850)922-1887. Written comments are encouraged and may be submitted at the hearing or mailed to the address listed above no later than April 25, 2001.

Any person requiring a special accommodation at this hearing because of a disability, physical impairment or English language deficiency should contact the Department of

Community Affairs, (850)487-3644, at least five calendar days prior to the hearing. If you are hearing impaired, please contact the Department using the Florida Dual Party Relay System, 1(800)922-8771 (TDD).

The **Department of Community Affairs** announces a meeting of the State Energy Program (SEP) Clean Fuel Florida Advisory Board (CFF) to which all interested parties are invited.

SEP CFF MEETING

DATE AND TIME: March 15, 2001, 10:00 a.m. – 4:00 p.m.

PLACE: Department of Planning and Environmental Protection, 218 S. W. 1st Avenue, Cypress Room, Ft. Lauderdale, Florida 33301

ACTIONS TO BE TAKEN: The CFF will consider the following items: 1) Demonstration of Miami Beach Electric Transit Bus; 2) Briefing – Energy 2020 Commission: Status Report; 3) Proposed Work Program for Alternative Fuel Plan

APPEAL INFORMATION: If a person decides to appeal any decision of the Department of Community Affairs with respect to any matter considered at this public meeting he or she may need a record or transcript of the proceeding, and for such purposes he or she may need to ensure that a record of the proceeding is made, which record may include testimony and evidence relevant to the appeal.

Anyone who wants a copy of the agenda or additional information on this meeting may write or call: Alexander Mack, Community Program Administrator, Department of Community Affairs, 2255 Shumard Oak Boulevard, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2100, (850)488-2475.

Any person requiring a special accommodation at this meeting because of a disability or physical impairment should contact the SEP, (850)488-2475, at least five calendar days prior to the meeting. If you are hearing impaired, please contact the SEP, (850)488-2475, at least five calendar days prior to the meeting. If you are hearing impaired, please contact the SEP using the Florida Dual Party System, 1(800)955-8770 (Voice) and 1(800)955-8771 (TDD).

The **Florida Communities Trust** announces a public meeting of the Governing Body to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Monday, February 26, 2001, 1:00 p.m.

PLACE: Kelley Training Center, Room 305, Sadowski Building, 2555 Shumard Oak Boulevard, Tallahassee, Florida

PURPOSE: Extend grant contracts for certain funded projects; approve project plans for certain funded projects; other business that the governing board deems necessary.

ACTION TO BE TAKEN: Consideration of above-stated business. To obtain a copy of the agenda, contact the Trust, (850)922-2207.

If any person desires to appeal any decision with respect to any matter considered at the meeting, such person will need a record of the proceeding and may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made to include the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based.

Persons requiring a special accommodation for a disability of physical impairment should contact Florida Communities Trust, (850)922-2207, Suncom 292-2207, at least five days prior to the meeting. If hearing or speech impaired, contact Florida Communities Trust using the Florida Dual Party Relay System, 1(800)955-8770 (Voice) and 1(800)955-8771 (TDD).

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

Notice is hereby given that the Florida **Department of Transportation** will offer the opportunity for a public hearing concerning the proposed jurisdictional roadway transfer of Mildred Avenue, southbound one-way, from Jefferson Street/SR 50A/SR 700/US 98 to Broad Street/SR 45/US 41. The Department has requested the transfer of Mildred Avenue from the City of Brooksville Road System to the State Highway System.

All persons wishing to be heard on this subject are hereby notified to respond in writing to the individual listed below by February 21, 2001. If an interest in this hearing is expressed, the hearing will be held:

DATE AND TIME: February 26, 2001, 6:00 p.m. – 8:00 p.m.

PLACE: Brooksville City Council Chambers, 201 Howell Avenue, Brooksville, Florida

All interested persons may provide written response to: Brian C. Beaty, Florida Department of Transportation, District Seven, 11201 N. McKinley Drive, Tampa, Florida 33612.

The **Florida Transportation Commission** announces public meetings to which all persons are invited:

DATE AND TIME: March 5, 2001, 3:00 p.m. – 5:00 p.m.

PLACE: Department of Transportation, Executive Conference Room, 605 Suwannee Street, Tallahassee, Florida

PURPOSE: Workshop of the Florida Transportation Commission.

DATE AND TIME: March 6, 2001, 8:00 a.m. – 4:00 p.m.

PLACE: Department of Transportation, Auditorium, 605 Suwannee Street, Tallahassee, Florida

PURPOSE: Meeting of the Florida Transportation Commission.

Statewide public hearing on the Department of Transportation Tentative Work Program for fiscal years 2001/2002 through 2005/2006 at which time the Commission will hear comments offered by the public relating to compliance of the Tentative Work Program with all applicable laws and department policies. The Florida Transportation Commission is statutorily prohibited from considering individual construction projects.

Information may be obtained by contacting: Florida Transportation Commission, Room 176, MS #9, 605 Suwannee Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0450, (850)414-4105.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in these meetings are asked to advise the Commission at least 48 hours before the meetings by contacting Cathy Goodman, (850)414-4105.

The Florida **Department of Transportation** announces one public teleconference of the Transportation Outreach Program Advisory Council to which all interested persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: March 7, 2001, 9:30 a.m.

PLACE: Teleconference Only – Transportation Outreach Program Advisory Council. Rooms with a telephone conference hookup will be available at the following locations for anyone who wishes to participate in the teleconference – FDOT Central Office – Haydon Burns Building, 5th Floor, Executive Committee Conference Room, 605 Suwannee Street, Tallahassee; District One – Conference Room C, 801 North Broadway Avenue, Bartow; District Two – Clay Room, Jacksonville Urban Office, 2250 Irene Street, Jacksonville; District Three – Design Conference Room (A & B), 1074 Highway 90, Chipley; District Four – Executive Conference Room, 3400 West Commercial Boulevard, Fort Lauderdale; District Five – Apopka B Room, 133 South Semoran Blvd., Orlando; District Six – Public Transportation Office, 2nd Floor, Conference Room, 602 South Miami Ave., Miami; District Seven – Auditorium, 11202 N. McKinley Drive, Tampa.

PURPOSE: General Business – Teleconference to approve the minutes from the December and January meetings, discuss the proposed recommendation for a Rail/Intermodal Commission from the December 11, 2000, meeting, choose a date for the next meeting in either May or June 2001, and discuss any other necessary business.

A copy of the agenda will be available no later than one week before the teleconference, and may be obtained by writing: Lorenzo Alexander, Manager, Seaport Office, Florida Department of Transportation, MS #68, 605 Suwannee Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0450, by calling (850)414-4500 or by e-mailing lorenzo.alexander@dot.state.fl.us. Additional information about the teleconference or question may also be directed to Mr. Alexander at the contact information given above.

Written or other physical evidence may be offered into evidence by submitting it to Lorenzo Alexander, Manager, Seaport Office, Florida Department of Transportation, MS #68, 605 Suwannee Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0450.

The **Department of Transportation**, District 4 announces a public hearing to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: March 14, 2001, 7:30 p.m.

PLACE: 2300 Virginia Avenue, Ft. Pierce, Florida 34982

PURPOSE: This hearing is being held to afford interested persons the opportunity to express their views concerning the location, conceptual design, social, economic and environmental effects of State Project Number 94504-0000, Financial Project Number 407439-1-21-01, otherwise known as 25th Street (State Road 615) in St. Lucie County, Florida. Project limits are the intersection of Midway Road (CR 712) north to the intersection of Edwards Road (CR 611) in St. Lucie County.

Anyone needing project or public hearing information or special accommodations under the Americans With Disabilities Act of 1990 should write to the address given below or call telephone number (954)677-7898 or local access (954)930-3368, Extension 7898. Special accommodation requests under the Americans With Disabilities Act should be made at least seven days prior to the public hearing.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by writing: Ms. Elizabeth Messer, Project Manager, Florida Department of Transportation, District 4, 3400 West Commercial Boulevard, Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33309-3421.

STATE BOARD OF ADMINISTRATION

NOTICE OF CORRECTION – NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN by the Florida **State Board of Administration** (SBA) of a change in a meeting date of the Florida State Board of Administration regarding the Request for Information for Education Vendors for the Public Employee Optional Retirement Program to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Tuesday, March 6, 2001, 9:00 a.m. – 12:00 Noon

PLACE: Hermitage Room, The Hermitage Centre, 1801 Hermitage Blvd., Tallahassee, Florida

PURPOSE: At this meeting, the education evaluation team will make a final recommendation regarding the candidate or candidates for the education/advice vendor for PEORP. The meeting will also include a discussion of the general business of PEORP. This meeting was originally scheduled for Friday, March 2, 2001.

Anyone wishing further information or a copy of the agenda should contact: Joan Lazar, Defined Contribution Program, P. O. Drawer 13300, Tallahassee, FL 32317-3300 or by e-mail at: lazar_joan@fsba.state.fl.us.

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, anyone needing special accommodation to attend these meetings is requested to call Joan Lazar, (850)413-1492, five days prior to the meeting so that appropriate arrangements can be made.

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN by the **State Board of Administration** of meetings of the Investment Advisory Council (IAC) and the Public Employee Optional Retirement Advisory Committee (PEORPAC), one of which is a joint meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Thursday, March 8, 2001, 10:00 a.m. – 12:00 Noon

PLACE: Hermitage Room, The Hermitage Centre, 1801 Hermitage Blvd., Tallahassee, Florida

PURPOSE: This is a business meeting of the PEORPAC. The advisory committee will discuss the proposed bundled provider selection and evaluation criteria and other business relating to the implementation of the Public Employee Optional Retirement Program.

This meeting will be primarily a telephone conference call. The call-in number for the meeting is: (850)921-5230 or Suncom 291-5230.

DATE AND TIME: Friday, March 16, 2001, 1:30 p.m. – conclusion of the meeting

PLACE: Hermitage Room, The Hermitage Centre, 1801 Hermitage Blvd., Tallahassee, Florida

PURPOSE: This is a joint meeting of the IAC and the PEORPAC. The two groups will discuss the selection of the education/advice vendor(s) and other business relating to the implementation of the Public Employee Optional Retirement Program.

This meeting will be primarily a telephone conference call. The call-in number for the meeting is: (850)410-0967 or Suncom 210-0967.

Anyone wishing further information should contact: Joan Lazar, Defined Contribution Program, P. O. Drawer 13300, Tallahassee, FL 32317-3300.

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, anyone needing special accommodation to attend the meeting is requested to call Joan Lazar, (850)413-1492, five days prior to the meeting so that appropriate arrangements can be made.

The Task Force on **Tobacco-Settlement-Revenue Protection** announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATES AND TIME: Thursday, March 8, 2001; Friday, March 9, 2001, 9:00 a.m. – 12:00 Noon

PLACE: Cabinet Meeting Room, Lower Level, The Capitol, Tallahassee, FL

PURPOSE: The Task Force on Tobacco-Settlement-Revenue Protection will meet to determine the need for and evaluate methods for protecting the State's tobacco settlement from significant loss.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained in writing: State Board of Administration, Attention: Teresa Fitzgerald, 1801 Hermitage Boulevard, Suite 200, Tallahassee, Florida 32308, (850)488-4782.

Accommodations can be made for persons with disabilities provided several days' notification is received. Please notify Teresa Fitzgerald, (850)488-4782.

The Investment Committee of The **Florida Prepaid College Program Board** announces a public hearing to which all interested parties are invited to attend.

DATE AND TIME: Wednesday, March 7, 2001, 9:30 a.m. or soon thereafter

PLACE: 1801 Hermitage Blvd., The Hermitage Room, First Floor, Tallahassee, Florida 32308

PURPOSE: To conduct the regular business of the Investment Committee of the Florida Prepaid College Program Board to which all persons are invited.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by writing: Thomas J. Wallace, Executive Director, Florida Prepaid College Program, 1801 Hermitage Blvd., Suite 210, Tallahassee, Florida 32308 or by calling (850)488-8514.

If any person decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at this meeting, he may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which will include the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is based.

SPECIAL ACCOMMODATION: Any person requiring special accommodations at the meeting because of a disability should fax a written request for same to Thomas J. Wallace, Executive Director, Florida Prepaid College Board, (850)488-3555, no later than five (5) days prior to the meeting.

The **Florida Prepaid College Program Board** announces a public hearing to which all interested parties are invited to attend.

DATE AND TIME: Wednesday, March 7, 2001, 11:00 a.m. or soon thereafter

PLACE: 1801 Hermitage Blvd., The Hermitage Room, First Floor, Tallahassee, Florida 32308

PURPOSE: To conduct the regular business of the Florida Prepaid College Program Board to which all persons are invited.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by writing: Thomas J. Wallace, Executive Director, Florida Prepaid College Program, 1801 Hermitage Blvd., Suite 210, Tallahassee, Florida 32308 or by calling (850)488-8514.

If any person decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at this meeting, he may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which will include the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is based.

SPECIAL ACCOMMODATION: Any person requiring special accommodations at the meeting because of a disability should fax a written request for same to Thomas J. Wallace, Executive Director, Florida Prepaid College Board, (850)488-3555, no later than five (5) days prior to the meeting.

FLORIDA PAROLE COMMISSION

The **Florida Parole Commission** announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Wednesday, March 7, 2001, 9:00 a.m.

PLACE: Florida Parole Commission, 2601 Blairstone Road, Bldg. C, Third Floor, Tallahassee, Florida

PURPOSE: Regularly Scheduled Meeting for all Parole, Conditional Release, Conditional Medical Release and Control Release Matters.

Any person who decides to appeal a decision of the Florida Parole Commission with respect to a matter considered at this meeting may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made. Chapter 80-150, Laws of Florida (1980). A copy of the agenda may be obtained by writing: Florida Parole Commission, 2601 Blairstone Road, Building C, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2450.

In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, persons needing a special accommodation to participate in this proceeding should contact the agency sending the notice not later than two working days prior to the proceeding at the address given on the notice, telephone (850)488-3417.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

The Florida **Public Service Commission** will consider at its Agenda Conference, Docket No. 010110-EI, Application by Gulf Power Company to receive common equity contributions and to issue and sell securities, pursuant to Section 366.04, Florida Statutes, and Chapter 25-8, Florida Administrative Code, during calendar year 2002. The Company seeks PSC approval pursuant to Section 366.04, Florida Statutes, to receive common equity contributions in an amount not to exceed \$300 million and to issue and sell securities in amounts not to exceed \$190 million.

DATE AND TIME: Tuesday, March 6, 2001, 9:30 a.m., although the time at which this item will be heard cannot be determined at this time

PLACE: Commission Hearing Room 148, Betty Easley Conference Center, 4075 Esplanade Way, Tallahassee, Florida 32301

PURPOSE: To take final action in Docket No. 010110-EI.

Any person requiring some accommodation at this hearing because of a physical impairment should call the Division of Records and Reporting, (850)413-6770, at least 48 hours prior

to the hearing. Any person who is hearing or speech impaired should contact the Florida Public Service Commission by using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD).

The Florida **Public Service Commission** announces a prehearing to be held in the following docket, to which all interested persons are invited.

Docket No. 000028-TL – Petition by BellSouth Telecommunications, Inc. for waiver of Rules 25-4.107, 25-4.108 and 25-4.113, FAC., which require provision of basic telecommunications service to certain locations and persons.

DATE AND TIME: March 12, 2001, 9:30 a.m.

PLACE: Commission Hearing Room 152, Betty Easley Conference Center, 4075 Esplanade Way, Tallahassee, Florida

PURPOSE: To consider (1) the simplification of the issues; (2) the identification of the positions of the parties on the issues; (3) the possibility of obtaining admissions of fact and of documents which will avoid unnecessary proof; (4) the identification of the exhibits; (5) the establishment of an order of witnesses; and (6) such other matters as may aid in the disposition of the action.

Any person requiring some accommodation at this prehearing because of a physical impairment should call the Division of Records and Reporting, (850)413-6770, at least 48 hours prior to the prehearing. Any person who is hearing or speech impaired should contact the Commission by using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD).

The Florida **Public Service Commission** announces a prehearing to be held in the following docket, to which all interested persons are invited.

Docket No. 010102-TP – Investigation of proposed updates to the Routing Data Base System (RDBS) and Business Rating Input Database System (BRIDS) affecting the Tampa telecommunications carriers.

DATE AND TIME: March 12, 2001, 9:30 a.m.

PLACE: Commission Hearing Room 148, Betty Easley Conference Center, 4075 Esplanade Way, Tallahassee, Florida

PURPOSE: To consider (1) the simplification of the issues; (2) the identification of the positions of the parties on the issues; (3) the possibility of obtaining admissions of fact and of documents which will avoid unnecessary proof; (4) the identification of the exhibits; (5) the establishment of an order of witnesses; and (6) such other matters as may aid in the disposition of the action.

Any person requiring some accommodation at this prehearing because of a physical impairment should call the Division of Records and Reporting, (850)413-6770, at least 48 hours prior to the prehearing. Any person who is hearing or speech impaired should contact the Commission by using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD).

The Florida **Public Service Commission** announces a prehearing to be held in the following docket, to which all interested persons are invited.

Docket No. 990362-TI – Initiation of show cause proceedings against GTE Communications Corporation (n/k/a Verizon Select Services Inc.) for apparent violation of Rule 25-4.118, FAC., Local, Local Toll or Toll Provider Selection.

DATE AND TIME: March 12, 2001, 3:00 p.m.

PLACE: Commission Hearing Room 152, Betty Easley Conference Center, 4075 Esplanade Way, Tallahassee, Florida

PURPOSE: To consider (1) the simplification of the issues; (2) the identification of the positions of the parties on the issues; (3) the possibility of obtaining admissions of fact and of documents which will avoid unnecessary proof; (4) the identification of the exhibits; (5) the establishment of an order of witnesses; and (6) such other matters as may aid in the disposition of the action.

Any person requiring some accommodation at this prehearing because of a physical impairment should call the Division of Records and Reporting, (850)413-6770, at least 48 hours prior to the prehearing. Any person who is hearing or speech impaired should contact the Commission by using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD).

The Florida **Public Service Commission** announces its regularly scheduled conference to which all interested persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: March 13, 2001, 9:30 a.m.

PLACE: Commission Hearing Room 148, The Betty Easley Conference Center, 4075 Esplanade Way, Tallahassee, Florida

PURPOSE: To consider those matters ready for decision.

LEGAL AUTHORITY AND JURISDICTION: Chapters 120, 350, 364, 366 and 367, F.S.

Persons who may be affected by Commission action on certain items on this agenda for which a hearing has not been held will be allowed to address the Commission concerning those items when taken up for discussion at this conference.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by any person who requests a copy, and pays the reasonable cost of the copy (\$1.00 per copy, Rule 25-22.002, FAC.), by contacting the Division of Records and Reporting, (850)413-6770 or writing: Director, Division of Records and Reporting, Florida Public Service Commission, 2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0870. The agenda and recommendations are also accessible on the PSC Homepage, at <http://www.floridapsc.com> at no charge.

If a person decides to appeal any decisions made by the Commission with respect to any matter considered at this conference, he will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is based.

Any person requiring some accommodation at this conference because of a physical impairment should call the Division of Records and Reporting, (850)413-6770, at least 48 hours prior to the conference. Any person who is hearing or speech impaired should contact the Commission by using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD).

The Florida **Public Service Commission** announces its Internal Affairs Meeting to which all interested persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: March 13, 2001, immediately following the Commission Conference which commences at 9:30 a.m. in Commission Hearing Room 148

PLACE: The Betty Easley Conference Center, 4075 Esplanade Way, Conference Room 140, Tallahassee, Florida

PURPOSE: To discuss and make decisions on matters which affect the operation of the Commission.

A copy of the agenda of the Internal Affairs Meeting may be obtained by contacting: Division of Records and Reporting, Florida Public Service Commission, 2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0870.

Any person requiring some accommodation at this meeting because of a physical impairment should call the Division of Records and Reporting, (850)413-6770, at least 48 hours prior to the meeting. Any person who is hearing or speech impaired should contact the Commission by using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD).

****THIS MEETING IS SUBJECT TO CANCELLATION WITHOUT NOTIFICATION.****

REGIONAL PLANNING COUNCIL

The District I, **Local Emergency Planning Committee** (LEPC) announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: April 25, 2001, 10:00 a.m.

PLACE: The University of West Florida/OWCC Campus in Fort Walton, 1170 Martin Luther King, Jr., Blvd., Ft. Walton Beach, FL 32547 (The meeting room is the Auditorium located on the west (back) side of the campus)

PURPOSE: To conduct general business of the District I, Local Emergency Planning Committee.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Daniel F. Krumel, Executive Director, West Florida Regional Planning Council, P. O. Box 486, Pensacola, Florida 32593-0486.

The **North Central Florida Regional Planning Council** announces the following meetings to which all persons are invited.

MEETING: Joint I-75 Corridor Council and Technical Advisory Committee

DATE AND TIME: March 8, 2001, 7:00 p.m.

PLACE: Best Inn, 3455 S. W. Williston Road, Gainesville, FL 32608

PURPOSE: Develop strategies to improve the visual quality of areas surrounding Interstate 75.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by writing: North Central Florida Regional Planning Council, 2009 N. W. 67th Place, Suite A, Gainesville, Florida 32653-1603.

Any person deciding to appeal any decision of the I-75 Corridor Council with respect to any matter considered at the meeting may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made.

The **Tampa Bay Regional Planning Council** announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited:

DATE AND TIME: Thursday, March 8, 2001, 9:00 a.m. (Please call to confirm date, time and location)

PLACE: Tampa Bay Regional Planning Council, 9455 Koger Blvd., St. Petersburg, FL 33702

PURPOSE: Agency on Bay Management Executive Steering and Subcommittee.

Please note that if a person decides to appeal any decision made by Council with respect to any matter considered at the above cited meeting or hearing, he will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is based.

The **Tampa Bay Regional Planning Council** announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Monday, March 12, 2001, 8:30 a.m. (Please call to confirm date, time and location)

PLACE: Tampa Bay Regional Planning Council, 9455 Koger Boulevard, Suite 219, St. Petersburg, FL 33702

PURPOSE: Executive/Budget Committee.

Please note that if a person decides to appeal any decision made by Council with respect to any matter considered at the above cited meeting or hearing, he will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is based.

The **Tampa Bay Regional Planning Council** announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Monday, March 12, 2001, 10:00 a.m. (Please call to confirm date, time and location)

PLACE: Tampa Bay Regional Planning Council, 9455 Koger Boulevard, Suite 219, St. Petersburg, FL 33702

PURPOSE: Tampa Bay Regional Planning Council.

Please note that if a person decides to appeal any decision made by Council with respect to any matter considered at the above cited meeting or hearing, he will need to ensure that a

verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is based.

The **Tampa Bay Regional Planning Council** announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Monday, March 26, 2001, 9:30 a.m. (Subject to cancellation – please call to confirm date, time and location)

PLACE: Tampa Bay Regional Planning Council, 9455 Koger Blvd., St. Petersburg, FL 33702

PURPOSE: Clearinghouse Review Committee.

Please note that if a person decides to appeal any decision made by Council with respect to any matter considered at the above cited meeting or hearing, he will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is based.

The **Tampa Bay Regional Planning Council** announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Monday, March 26, 2001, 11:30 a.m. (Please call to confirm date, time and location)

PLACE: Tampa Bay Regional Planning Council, 9455 Koger Blvd., St. Petersburg, FL 33702

PURPOSE: Legislative Committee.

Please note that if a person decides to appeal any decision made by Council with respect to any matter considered at the above cited meeting or hearing, he will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is based.

The **Tampa Bay Regional Planning Council** announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Wednesday, March 28, 2001, 10:30 a.m. (Please call to confirm date, time and location)

PLACE: Tampa Bay Regional Planning Council, 9455 Koger Boulevard, Suite 219, St. Petersburg, FL 33702

PURPOSE: Local Emergency Planning Committee, District VIII meeting.

Please note that if a person decides to appeal any decision made by Council with respect to any matter considered at the above cited meeting or hearing, he will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is based.

DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS

Under authority of the Florida Criminal Justice Standards and Training Commission, the Florida **Department of Corrections**, Region XVI, Criminal Justice Standards and Training Trust Fund Training Council announces a public meeting to which all interested persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: March 7, 2001, 10:00 a.m.

PLACE: Florida Department of Corrections, Headquarters Building, 2601 Blair Stone Road, Tallahassee, Florida, 3rd Floor, Room A325, Tallahassee, FL

PURPOSE: This is a regularly scheduled meeting of the Region XVI Training Council of the Florida Criminal Justice Standards and Training Commission. The primary business of the meeting will be to discuss training and budget issues.

A copy of the agenda for the above meeting may be obtained by writing: Florida Department of Corrections, Bureau of Human Resources, Staff Development, 2601 Blair Stone Road, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2500, Attention: Clara Floyd, Room A 333.

DEPARTMENT OF LABOR AND EMPLOYMENT SECURITY

The Florida **Department of Labor and Employment Security**, Workers' Compensation Oversight Board announces a Premiums and Benefits and Fraud and Noncompliance Committee meeting to which the public is invited.

DATE AND TIME: Thursday, March 1, 2001, 9:00 a.m. – 10:00 a.m. (This meeting may extend further if necessary)

PLACE: Fifth Floor, University Club, Florida State University, Tallahassee, Florida

PURPOSE: The purpose is to discuss issues of interest to the committee.

For further information about this telephone conference, contact: Becky Thomas, Suite 100, Marathon Building, 2574 Seagate Drive, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2152, (850)487-2613, two days prior to the date of the meeting.

In the event meeting time and/or place changes, notice of change will be posted on meeting notice bulletin board at 2574 Seagate Drive, Suite 100, Marathon Building, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2152. You may call (850)487-2613.

Persons with a disability or handicap requiring reasonable accommodation should contact Becky Thomas in writing or by telephone at the above address or telephone number at least two business days in advance of the meeting to make appropriate arrangements. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact Becky Thomas using the Florida Dual Party Relay System, 1(800)955-8770 (Voice) and 1(800)955-8771 (TDD).

The Florida **Department of Labor and Employment Security**, Workers' Compensation Oversight Board announces a board meeting to which the public is invited.

DATE AND TIME: Thursday, March 1, 2001, 10:00 a.m.

PLACE: Fifth Floor, University Club, Florida State University, Tallahassee, Florida

PURPOSE: To discuss issues of interest to the Board.

For a copy of the agenda or for further information about this meeting, contact: Carolyn Smith, Suite 100, Marathon Building, 2574 Seagate Drive, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2152, (850)487-2613.

In the event meeting time and/or place changes, notice of change will be posted on meeting notice bulletin board at 2574 Seagate Drive, Suite 100, Marathon Building, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2152. You may call (850)487-2613.

Persons with a disability or handicap requiring reasonable accommodation should contact Becky Thomas in writing or by telephone at the above address or telephone number at least two business days in advance of the meeting to make appropriate arrangements. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact Becky Thomas using the Florida Dual Party Relay System, 1(800)955-8770 (Voice) and 1(800)955-8771 (TDD).

The Florida **Division of Blind Services** announces a public forum to which all interested individuals are invited.

DATE AND TIME: March 3, 2001, 2:00 p.m. – 4:00 p.m.

PLACE: Booth Towers, 633 Lake Dot Circle, Orlando, Florida

PURPOSE: To receive public comment on the performance of the Vocational Rehabilitation Program with regard to the following goals and priorities: 1) Increase Competitive Employment of Significantly and Most Significantly Disabled Individuals; 2) Increase Capacity to Provide Timely Rehabilitation Technology Services; 3) Increase Job Development and Employer Marketing Activities; 4) Increase Outreach to Unserved and Underserved Populations.

All interested parties are invited to attend and provide comment.

If you require a particular accommodation to attend the forum, please contact: DBS District Office, (407)245-0700 or through the Florida Telephone Relay System, 1(800)955-8770 (Voice) or 1(800)955-8771 (TDD).

The Florida **Division of Blind Services** announces a public forum to which all interested individuals are invited.

DATE AND TIME: March 7, 2001, 3:30 p.m. – 6:00 p.m.

PLACE: Leon County Library, 200 West Park Avenue, Tallahassee, Florida

PURPOSE: To receive public comment on the performance of the Vocational Rehabilitation Program with regard to the following goals and priorities: 1) Increase Competitive Employment of Significantly and Most Significantly Disabled Individuals; 2) Increase Capacity to Provide Timely

Rehabilitation Technology Services; 3) Increase Job Development and Employer Marketing Activities; 4) Increase Outreach to Unserved and Underserved Populations.

All interested parties are invited to attend and provide comment.

If you require a particular accommodation to attend the forum, please contact: DBS District Office, (850)488-8400 or through the Florida Telephone Relay System, 1(800)955-8770 (Voice) or 1(800)955-8771 (TDD).

WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICTS

The **Suwannee River Water Management District** announces the following meetings to which all interested persons are invited.

LAND MANAGEMENT REVIEW TEAM

Conservation Area: Grady, Stuart, Hatchbend

DATE AND TIME: March 6, 2001, 9:00 a.m.

PLACE: Branford Town Hall

Conservation Area: Little River

DATE AND TIME: March 15, 2001, 9:00 a.m.

PLACE: Branford Town Hall

Conservation Area: Fort Union, Falmouth

DATE AND TIME: May, 15, 2001, 9:00 a.m.

PLACE: District Headquarters

Conservation Area: Holton Creek

DATE AND TIME: May, 22, 2001, 9:00 a.m.

PLACE: District Headquarters

Conservation Area: Peacock & Charles Spring

DATE AND TIME: July 17, 2001, 9:00 a.m.

PLACE: District Headquarters

Conservation Area: Parener's Branch

DATE AND TIME: July 24, 2001, 9:00 a.m.

PLACE: District Headquarters

PURPOSE: Review Teams will meet to review management plans for conservation areas. Meetings will be held on each conservation area.

For more details on these meetings contact: Gwen Lord, SRWMD, 9225 CR 49, Live Oak, FL 32060, (904)362-1001 or 1(800)226-1066 (Florida only), Fax (904)362-1056.

The **Southwest Florida Water Management District** announces the following public hearing to which all interested persons are invited.

DATES AND TIME: March 27, 2001; may be continued March 28, 2001, 9:00 a.m.

PLACE: Governing Board Room, Southwest Florida Water Management District, 2379 Broad Street, Brooksville, Florida 34604-6899

PURPOSE: The acquisition of certain lands eligible to be considered for funding from the Water Management Lands Trust Fund (Save Our Rivers)/Florida Preservation 2000 Trust Fund which lands are further described as follows:

Part of the Alafia River Corridor project comprised of one parcel referred to as SWF Parcel No. 11-709-125 consisting of approximately 2,500± acres. The parcel is located on both sides of Browning Road, west of State Road 39 in all or parts of Sections 24, 25 and 36, Township 30 South, Range 21 East; and Sections 1, 2 and 3, Township 31 South, Range 21 East; and Sections 34 and 35, Township 30 South, Range 21 East and in all or parts of Section 31, Township 30 South, Range 22 East, all in Hillsborough County, Florida.

Any person deciding to appeal any decision made by the District Governing Board concerning the above-referenced hearing will need a record of the proceedings and for such purpose may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal may be based.

A copy of the agenda or a more specific legal description of the lands proposed for acquisition may be obtained by contacting Fritz H. Musselmann, Land Resources Director, Southwest Florida Water Management District, at the above address.

The District does not discriminate based on disability status. Anyone requiring reasonable accommodations under the ADA should call 1(800)423-1476 (Florida only), Extension 4452, Fax (352)754-6877, TTD only 1(800)231-6103.

The **South Florida Water Management District** and the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers announces a public meeting to which all interested parties are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Wednesday, March 7, 2001, 1:00 p.m. – 4:00 p.m.

PLACE: Clayton Hutcheson Agricultural Services Center, Exhibit Hall B, 559 N. Military Trail, West Palm Beach, Florida

PURPOSE: To solicit comments and discuss the draft Management Plan for Restoration Coordination and Verification (RECOVER), a program element of the Comprehensive Everglades Restoration Plan (CERP).

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by writing: South Florida Water Management District, P. O. Box 24680, West Palm Beach, Florida 33416-4680.

Appeals from any South Florida Water Management District Board decision require a record of the proceedings. Although Governing Board meetings and hearings are normally recorded, affected persons are advised that it may be necessary for them to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, including the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based.

Persons with disabilities who need assistance may contact Tony Burns, District Clerk, (561)682-6206, at least two business days in advance of the meeting to make appropriate arrangements.

For more information, contact: Agnes McLean, SFWMD, Lead Planner, (561)682-6493 or John Ogden, SFWMD, Lead Environmental Scientist, (561)682-6173.

REGIONAL UTILITY AUTHORITIES

The **Peace River/Manasota Regional Water Supply Authority** announces the following public meeting to which all interested parties are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Friday, March 9, 2001, 10:00 a.m.

PLACE: Sarasota County Administration Center, 1660 Ringling Boulevard, Sarasota, FL

PURPOSE: Conduct regular business of the Authority.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by writing: Peace River Manasota Regional Water Supply Authority, 1645 Barber Road, Suite A, Sarasota, Florida 34240.

Although Authority board meetings are normally recorded, affected persons are advised it may be necessary for them to ensure a verbatim record of the meeting is made, including testimony and evidence upon which an appeal is to be based.

Persons with disabilities who need assistance may call (941)316-1776, at least two business days in advance to make appropriate arrangements.

DEPARTMENT OF THE LOTTERY

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN by the **Department of the Lottery** that a meeting of the Florida Lottery Commission is scheduled as follows.

DATE AND TIME: Monday, March 5, 2001, 11:30 a.m.

PLACE: Lottery Central Building, 250 Marriott Drive, Tallahassee, Florida

PURPOSE: Quarterly meeting to discuss issues relating to the Lottery.

One or more of the Commissioners will participate in the meeting via telephone conferencing.

Any person requiring a special accommodation at the meeting because of a disability should call Doug Roberts, (850)487-7777, Ext. 2469 (Voice) or use the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD), at least seven (7) working days prior to the meeting date.

SPACEPORT FLORIDA AUTHORITY

The **Florida Space Research Institute** (FSRI) Board of Directors announces the following two public meetings and invites all interested parties to attend.

MEETING: A Sub-committee of the FSRI Board of Directors

DATE AND TIME: March 14, 2001, 1:00 p.m. – 5:00 p.m.

PLACE: Spaceport Florida Authority, 100 Spaceport Way, Cape Canaveral, FL

PURPOSE: The purpose of this meeting will be to discuss potential changes to the structure and administrative operations of FSRI

MEETING: FSRI Board of Directors

DATE AND TIME: April 2, 2001, 2:00 p.m. – 4:00 p.m.

PLACE: Florida Board of Regents, Florida Education Center, 325 Gaines Street, Room 1724, Tallahassee, Florida

PURPOSE: The purpose of this meeting will be to discuss the status of FSRI programs and potential changes to the structure of FSRI.

These meetings may involve teleconference participation. For agendas or additional information on these meetings, contact: Melissa Glover, (321)452-3418.

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION

The **Department of Business and Professional Regulation** announces a public meeting of the Regulatory Council of Community Association Managers to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Friday, March 2, 2001, 10:30 a.m. or soon thereafter

PLACE: Department of Business and Professional Regulation, Board Conference Room, Northwood Centre, 1940 North Monroe Street, Tallahassee, FL 32399-1040

PURPOSE: To conduct general business of the Council.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by writing: Regulatory Council of Community Association Managers, 1940 North Monroe Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1040 or by calling their office, (850)488-2141.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 48 hours before the meeting by contacting the Regulatory Council of Community Association Managers, (850)488-2141. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency by calling 1(800)955-8771 (TDD).

If any person decides to appeal any decision made with respect to any matter considered at this meeting, they will need a record of the proceedings, and for such purpose they may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record will include the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based.

The **Construction Industry Licensing Board** will hold the following meetings to which all interested parties are invited.

DATES AND TIMES: Wednesday, March 14, 2001, 12:00 Noon; Thursday, March 15, 2001, 8:00 a.m.; Friday, March 16, 2001, 8:00 a.m.

PLACE: Radisson Plaza Hotel Orlando, Orlando, Florida

PURPOSE: Committee, Disciplinary Actions and General Session meetings of the Board.

Any person who decides to appeal any decision made by the board with respect to any matter considered at these meetings may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based.

Additional information and a final agenda may be obtained by writing: Construction Industry Licensing Board, 7960 Arlington Expressway, Suite 300, Jacksonville, Florida 32211-7467.

Any person requiring special accommodations at this meeting because of a disability or physical impairment should contact Cathleen E. O'Dowd, (904)727-3689, at least seven calendar days prior to the meeting. Hearing or speech impaired please use Florida Relay System, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

The Florida **Electrical Contractors' Licensing Board** announces an Official Board and Committee Meeting via Telephone Conference Call to which all interested persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: March 5, 2001, 9:00 a.m. or soon thereafter

PLACE: Meet Me Number: (850)488-8295, (SC) 278-8295, Department of Business and Professional Regulation, Electrical Contractor's Licensing Board, 1940 North Monroe Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0771, (850)488-3109, Fax (850)922-2918

PURPOSE: Official Board Meeting.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by writing: Board Office, 1940 North Monroe Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0771.

If any person decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at this meeting, he/she may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which will include the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based.

For further information, contact: Florida Electrical Contractors' Licensing Board, 1940 North Monroe Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0771.

Any persons requiring special accommodations at this meeting because of a disability or physical impairment should contact Jessica Koon, Electrical Contractors' Licensing Board, at least five calendar days prior to the meeting. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please call Jessica Koon using the Florida Dual Party Relay System, 1(800)955-8770 (Voice) and 1(800)955-8771 (TDD).

The **Board of Professional Engineers** hereby gives notice that it will hold a telephone hearing to which all interested persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: March 5, 2001, 2:00 p.m.

PLACE: 107 W. Gaines Street, Room 324D, or if you wish to participate by telephone, the conference call "meet me" number is (850)921-6545 or Suncom 291-6545, if you wish to participate

PURPOSE: To discuss the proposed rules in Chapter 61G15-32.002-.004, as noticed in Vol. 27, No. 3, January 19, 2001 issue of the Florida Administrative Weekly.

Any person requiring a special accommodation at this telephone conference because of a disability or physical impairment should contact the Board's Administrator at least five calendar days prior to the hearing. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the Board office using the Florida Dual Party Relay System, 1(800)955-8770 (Voice) and 1(800)955-8771 (TDD).

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The **Department of Environmental Protection**, Deputy Secretary for Land and Recreational Services, Office of Coastal and Aquatic Managed Areas, Tampa Bay Aquatic and Buffer Preserves Program announces a meeting open to the public to review and accept comments on the Terra Ceia State Buffer Preserve Draft Management Plan. This will be a joint public meeting/Advisory Committee meeting.

DATE AND TIME: Tuesday, March 6, 2001, 7:00 p.m.

PLACE: Palmetto High School Auditorium, 1200 17th Street, West, Palmetto, Florida 34221

To obtain a copy of the draft management plan, please call (813)744-6100, Extension 325.

Special accommodations for persons with disabling conditions should be requested in writing at least 48 hours in advance.

The **Department of Environmental Protection**, Office of Coastal and Aquatic Managed Areas announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Wednesday, March 14, 2001, 6:00 p.m.

PLACE: St. Johns County Auditorium, Conference Room A, 4020 Lewis Speedway, St. Augustine, Florida 32095

PURPOSE: The twenty member Management Advisory Group (MAG) for the Guana Tolomato Matanzas National Estuarine Research Reserve (GTMNERR) meets regularly on the second Wednesday of the third month of each quarter. The MAG is composed of ten citizens, appointed by the three state legislators with overlapping jurisdictions with the reserve boundaries and ten representatives of the local, state and federal government entities with authority and responsibility in the reserve. They are the St. Johns River Water Management District; the Flagler County Board of County Commission; the St. Johns County Board of County Commission; the National Park Service; the Florida Park Service; the Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission; the Florida Inland Navigation District; the St. Augustine Port, Waterway and

Beach Authority; the City of St. Augustine; and the Town of Marineland. The MAG will work with the Florida Department of Environmental Protection (DEP) to implement the management plan adopted by the Governor and Cabinet for the GTMNERR.

The meeting agenda will include announcement of new appointments, acceptance of the updated MAG Charter and progress reports on a variety of GTMNERR activities including NOAA grants, facilities development, advertisement of Education Coordinator position, Graduate Research Fellowships and the System Wide Monitoring Program.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Mr. Kenneth Berk, GTMNERR, Post Office Box 840069, St. Augustine, Florida 32080-0069, (904)461-4054.

If an accommodation is needed for a disability in order to participate in this activity, please notify Linda Harvey, (850)488-0450, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD), at least seven days prior to the event.

The Florida **Department of Environmental Protection, Division of Recreation and Parks** announces a public workshop to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Tuesday, March 6, 2001, 7:00 p.m. (EST)

PLACE: Lost Lake Golf Club, Meeting Room, 8300 Southeast Fazio Drive, Hobe Sound, Florida 33455

PURPOSE: To receive comments from the public regarding management and land uses for Atlantic Ridge State Park before the development of an initial management plan for the park.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by writing: Florida Department of Environmental Protection, Division of Recreation and Parks, Office of Park Planning, 3900 Commonwealth Boulevard, Mail Station #525, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3000.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 48 hours before the meeting by contacting the Department of Environmental Protection, Division of Recreation and Parks, District 5 Administration, 13798 Southeast Federal Highway, Hobe Sound, Florida 33455. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency by calling 1(800)342-1335.

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

The **Department of Health, Board of Hearing Aid Specialists** announces an official board meeting. Reconsiderations will also be held during the probable cause panel meeting. All interested parties are invited to attend at the address listed below, which is normally open to the public.

DATES AND TIMES: March 15, 2001, Probable Cause Panel meeting, 10:00 a.m.; March 16, 2001, General Business meeting, 9:00 a.m.

PLACE: Probable Cause Panel, Capital Circle Office Complex, Building 4042, Floor 3, Room 310S, Tallahassee, FL 32399; General Board Meeting, Capital Circle Office Complex, Building 4042, Floor 3, Room 301A, Tallahassee, FL 32399

PURPOSE: Board Business and Reconsiderations.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by writing: Sue Foster, Executive Director, Department of Health, Board of Hearing Aid Specialists, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, BIN #C08, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3258.

If any person decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at this meeting, he/she will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be made.

Those who are hearing impaired, using TDD equipment can call the Florida Telephone Relay System, 1(800)955-8771. Persons requiring special accommodations due to disability or physical impairment should contact Sue Foster, (850)245-4474, by March 1, 2001.

The **Board of Chiropractic Medicine**, Probable Cause Panel will hold a duly noticed call meeting, to which all persons are invited to attend.

DATE AND TIME: Friday, March 2, 2001, 8:00 a.m.

PLACE: Omni Hotel, 245 Water Street, Jacksonville, FL 32202, (904)791-4829

PURPOSE: Reconsideration of cases previously heard by the panel.

Any person requiring a special accommodation at this meeting because of a disability or physical impairment should contact the Board of Chiropractic Medicine, (850)245-4444, Ext. 3617, at least 48 hours prior to the meeting. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please call the Board using the Dual Party Relay System, 1(800)955-8770 (Voice) and 1(800)955-8771 (TDD).

If any person decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, he/she will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence from which the appeal is to be issued.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by writing: Sherra Causey, Board of Chiropractic Medicine, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, BIN #C07, Tallahassee, FL 32399-3257.

The Florida **Board of Medicine**, Credentials Committee announces a meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: March 17, 2001, 8:00 a.m. or soon thereafter

PLACE: The Hilton Miami Airport, 5101 Blue Lagoon Drive, Miami, Florida 33126, (305)262-1000

PURPOSE: To conduct general business of the Committee.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by writing: Tanya Williams, Board Director, Medical Quality Assurance, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, BIN #C03, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1753.

Please note that if a person decides to appeal any decision made by the committee with respect to any matter considered at the above cited meeting or hearing, he will need a record of the proceedings, and for such purpose, he may need to insure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based.

Any person requiring a special accommodation at this meeting because of a disability or physical impairment should contact the Florida Board of Medicine, (850)245-4131, at least five (5) calendar days prior to the meeting. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please call the Florida Board of Medicine using the Florida Dual Party Relay System, 1(800)955-8770 (Voice) and 1(800)955-8771 (TDD).

The **Council on Physician Assistants** announces a meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Friday, March 9, 2001, 12:30 p.m. or soon thereafter

PLACE: Tampa Airport Marriott, Tampa International Airport, Tampa, Florida 33607, (813)879-5151

PURPOSE: To conduct general business of the Council.

Any person requiring a special accommodation at this meeting because of a disability or physical impairment should contact the Council on Physician Assistants, (850)245-4131, at least five (5) calendar days prior to the meeting. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please call the Council on Physician Assistants the Florida Dual Party Relay System, 1(800)955-8770 (Voice) and 1(800)955-8771 (TDD).

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by writing: Margaret Anglin, Regulation Administrator, Council on Physician Assistants, Medical Quality Assurance, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, BIN #C03, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3253.

Please note that if a person decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at the above cited meeting or hearing, he will need a record of the proceedings, and for such purpose, may need to insure that a verbatim record or the proceeding is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which is to be based.

The **Department of Health**, Board of Occupational Therapy Practice and the Probable Cause Panel of the **Board of Occupational Therapy** announce meetings to which all persons are invited:

DATE AND TIME: March 26, 2001, 8:00 a.m. (EST) or soon thereafter, Probable Cause Panel; the General Board Meeting will commence immediately following the Probable Cause Panel or soon thereafter

PLACE: The Department of Health, 4042 Bald Cypress Way, Room 301, Tallahassee, FL 32399

PURPOSE: Reconsideration of cases previously heard by the Probable Cause Panel; General Business Meeting; Rules Review.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by writing: Department of Health, Board of Occupational Therapy Practice, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, BIN #C05, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3255 or by calling the board office, (850)245-4373.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/hearing/meeting is asked to advise the department at least 48 hours before the workshop/hearing/meeting by contacting the board office, (850)245-4373. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the department by calling 1(800)955-8770 (Voice) or 1(800)955-8771 (TDD).

Please note that if a person decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at the above-cited meeting or hearing, he/she will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based.

The Florida Probable Cause Panel of the **Board of Osteopathic Medicine** announces a meeting.

DATE AND TIME: Friday, March 9, 2001, 9:00 a.m. or soon thereafter

PLACE: Nova Southeastern University, 3200 S. University Drive, Ft. Lauderdale, FL 33328, (954)262-1746

PURPOSE: To review those cases on which a determination of existence of probable cause has already been made.

A copy of the public portion of the agenda may be obtained by writing: Randolph Collett, Senior Attorney, Agency for Health Care Administration, General Counsel, Palmer Building, P. O. Box 14229, Tallahassee, FL 32317-4229.

NOTE: In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, persons needing a special accommodation to participate in this proceeding should contact the Practitioner Regulation Section no later than seven (7) days prior to the proceeding or meeting at which such special accommodation is required.

The Practitioner Regulation Section may be contacted at P. O. Box 14229, Tallahassee, FL 32317-4229, (850)414-8126, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 via Florida Relay Service.

The **Department of Health, Board of Psychology**, Probable Cause Panel announces a conference call to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: March 27, 2001, 8:00 a.m. or soon thereafter

PLACE: The meet me number may be obtained by contacting Betsey Hines, Regulatory Supervisor, Medical Therapies/Psychology, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, BIN #C05, Tallahassee, FL 32399-3255, (850)245-4372

PURPOSE: Reconsideration of cases previously heard by the Probable Cause Panel.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by writing: Department of Health, Board of Psychology, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, BIN #C05, Tallahassee, FL 32399-3255 or by calling the board office, (850)245-4373.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/hearing/meeting is asked to advise the department at least 48 hours before the workshop/hearing/meeting by contacting the board office, (850)488-0595. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the department by calling 1(800)955-8770 (Voice) or 1(800)955-8771 (TDD). Please note that if a person decides to appeal any decision made by the board with respect to any matter considered at the above-cited meeting or hearing, he/she will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based.

DEPARTMENT OF CHILDREN AND FAMILY SERVICES

The Florida **Department of Children and Family Services** announces the next scheduled conference call meeting of the following workgroup of the Governor's Task Force on Domestic Violence. All interested people are invited to participate.

Court System Subcommittee

DATE AND TIME: February 26, 2001, 10:00 a.m. – 11:30 a.m.

PLACE: Conference Call Number: (850)921-5601, Suncom 291-5601

PURPOSE: Third Report.

To participate in the conference call simply dial the conference call number at the designated time. First, you will hear a tone and then will be connected to the conference call. Please identify yourself once you are connected. If you do not hear any participants' voices, it simply means no one has called in. Stay on the line to allow others to call in and connect. If you have any trouble, call (850)488-1234, and tell the operator the trouble you are experiencing and reference confirmation number 20G0129. This is not a toll-free call.

Further information may be obtained by contacting: Prevention of Domestic and Sexual Violence Section, Florida Department of Children and Family Services, (850)414-8316, Mary Lay or Bonnie M. Flynn, (850)414-8317.

AD10

The **Department of Children and Family Services**, District 2 announces the following public meeting to which all persons are invited.

SUBDISTRICT 2A

Bay, Calhoun, Gulf, Holmes, Jackson, Washington Counties

DATE AND TIME: February 27, 2001, 2:00 p.m. – 4:00 p.m. (Central Time), 3:00 p.m. – 5:00 p.m. (Eastern Time)

PLACE: United Way of Northwest Florida, Conference Room, 518 Mulberry Avenue, Panama City, FL 32402

SUBDISTRICT 2B

Franklin, Gadsden, Jefferson, Leon, Liberty, Madison, Taylor, and Wakulla Counties

DATE AND TIME: February 28, 2001, 2:00 p.m. – 4:00 p.m. (Eastern Time)

PLACE: United Way of the Big Bend, Conference Room, 307 7th Avenue, Tallahassee, FL 32303

PURPOSE: Organizational meeting of the community based care community alliance for District 2.

A copy of the agenda can be obtained by writing: Department of Children and Family Services, 2639 North Monroe Street, Cedars Executive Center, Suite 200A, Tallahassee, Florida 32303, Attention: Ima Brown.

If special accommodations are needed (i.e. assistive listening devices, sign language interpreter, etc.) please contact Ima Brown, (850)488-0569, at least 48 hours in advance of meeting. Persons who are hearing impaired please call 1(800)226-6223, Telecommunication Device for the Deaf.

The **Department of Children and Family Services**, District Ten in conjunction with the community will conduct the following meetings.

The Child Care Sub-Committee announces public meetings to which you are invited to attend.

DATE AND TIME: March 5, 2001, 9:00 a.m. (The March 12 meeting has been cancelled)

PLACE: Family Central, 840 S. W. 81st Avenue, North Lauderdale, Florida 33068

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Issues relating to Child Care.

The Mental Health Standing Committee announces a public meeting to which you are invited to attend.

DATE AND TIME: March 12, 2001, 3:00 p.m.

PLACE: Broward Regional Health Planning Council, Inc., 915 Middle River Drive, Suite 115, Ft. Lauderdale, FL

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Issues relating to mental health clients.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by writing: Scott Silverman, Management Review Specialist, Regional Office, 201 W. Broward Blvd., Suite 403, Ft. Lauderdale, FL 33301.

Anyone requiring a special accommodation to participate in this meeting is requested to advise District Administration, Scott Silverman, at least 5 working days before the meeting, (954)759-5446 or (954)467-4509 (TDD).

The Shared Services Alliance of Okeechobee and the Treasure Coast of the **Department of Children and Family Services**, District 15 announces the following public meeting to which all persons are invited.

Executive Committee

DATES AND TIME: March 7, 14, 21, 28, 2001, 8:30 a.m.

PLACE: Department of Children and Family Services, 337 North 4th Street, Room 327D, Fort Pierce, FL 34950

For more information, please contact: Betty Robinson, CBC Liaison, 337 North 4th Street, Room 327, Fort Pierce, Florida 34950, (561)467-4174

SPECIAL ACCOMMODATION: Any person requiring special accommodation for this meeting because of a disability or physical impairment should contact, Pearlie Clark, ADA Coordinator, (561)467-4184, at least five days prior to the meeting. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the Agency using the Florida Dual Party Relay System, 1(800)955-8770 (Voice) and 1(800)955-8771 (TDD).

The Shared Services Alliance of Okeechobee and the Treasure Coast of the **Department of Children and Family Services**, District 15 announces the following public meeting to which all persons are invited.

FOSTER CARE SUB-COMMITTEE

DATES AND TIME: March 14, 28, 2001, 10:00 a.m.

PLACE: Benton Regional Service Center, 337 North 4th Street, Room 316, Fort Pierce, FL

For more information, please contact: Betty Robinson, CBC Liaison, 337 North 4th Street, Room 327, Fort Pierce, Florida 34950, (561)467-4174.

SPECIAL ACCOMMODATION: Any person requiring special accommodation for this meeting because of a disability or physical impairment should contact, Pearlie Clark, ADA Coordinator, (561)467-4184, at least five days prior to the meeting. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the Agency using the Florida Dual Party Relay System, 1(800)955-8770 (Voice) and 1(800) 955-8771 (TDD).

The **Florida Advocacy Committee**, District 15 announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: March 20, 2001, 9:30 a.m.

PLACE: 337 North 4th Street, Benton Regional Service Center, Room 104, Fort Pierce, FL 34950

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Ellen Higinbotham, FLAC Liaison, (561)467-3042.

SPECIAL ACCOMMODATION: Any person requiring special accommodation for this meeting because of a disability or physical impairment should contact, Pearlie Clark, ADA Coordinator, (561)467-4184, at least five days prior to the meeting. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the Agency using the Florida Dual Party Relay System, 1(800)955-8770 (Voice) and 1(800)955-8771 (TDD).

The Shared Services Alliance of Okeechobee and the Treasure Coast of the **Department of Children and Family Services**, District 15 announces the following public meeting to which all persons are invited.

ALLIANCE MEETING

DATE AND TIME: March 23, 2001, 8:30 a.m.

PLACE: Workforce Development Board, 9350 South U.S. 1, Port St. Lucie, FL

For more information, please contact: Betty Robinson, CBC Liaison, 337 North 4th Street, Room 327, Fort Pierce, Florida 34950, (561)467-4174

SPECIAL ACCOMMODATION: Any person requiring special accommodation for this meeting because of a disability or physical impairment should contact, Pearlie Clark, ADA Coordinator, (561)467-4184, at least five days prior to the meeting. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the Agency using the Florida Dual Party Relay System, 1(800)955-8770 (Voice) and 1(800)955-8771 (TDD).

The Florida **Department of Children and Family Services** announces a meeting of the Marion County Community Alliance to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Wednesday, March 7, 2001, 12:00 Noon

PLACE: Marion County Sheriff's Office, 692 N. W. 30th Ave., Ocala, FL

PURPOSE: To provide participation and governance of community based services, Chapter 20.19(6), F.S.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by writing: Mona Terry, Box 80-O, 1601 W. Gulf-Atlantic Hwy., Wildwood, FL 34785. Persons needing special accommodations to participate in this proceeding should contact the agency no later than five working days prior to the meeting, telephone (352)330-2177.

FLORIDA HOUSING FINANCE CORPORATION

The **Florida Housing Finance Corporation** announces a public workshop and meeting of the Board of Directors to which all interested parties are invited.

Fiscal Committee; Guarantee Committee; Combined Cycle Committee; Multifamily Revenue Bond Committee; Board Meeting

DATE AND TIME: March 8, 2001, 10:30 a.m. – adjourned

PLACE: City Hall Chambers, 891 South Adams St., Tallahassee, FL 32301, (850)891-0000, FHFC Offices (850)488-4197

PURPOSE:

1. Consider, review and take action on matters brought to the Fiscal Committee and to consider recommendations made by the Fiscal Committee to the Board.
2. Consider, review, and take action on matters brought to the Guarantee Committee and to consider recommendations made by the Guarantee Program Committee to the Board.
3. Consider, review and take action on matters brought to the Combined Cycle Committee and to consider recommendations made by the Combined Cycle Committee to the Board.
4. Consider, review, and take action on matters brought to the Multifamily Revenue Bond Committee and to consider recommendations made by the Multifamily Revenue Bond Committee to the Board.
5. Authorize the Corporation Staff to proceed with all actions necessary for the sale of bonds of pending multifamily issues which have satisfied the requirements for funding.
6. Consider financing and acknowledgement resolutions for various multifamily developments, under any multifamily program, including the ranking of developments.
7. Consider appointment of professionals including but not limited to trustee and/or originator/servicer for upcoming and/or past multifamily programs and single-family programs.
8. Consider approval of all bond documents for and terms of all upcoming single-family and multifamily bond sales, including those secured by third-party guarantors, letters-of-credit, insurance or other mechanisms.
9. Consider adopting resolutions authorizing negotiated or competitive sale of bonds on various single-family and multifamily issues.
10. Consider directing Staff to submit summaries of various TEFRA/Public Hearings to the Governor.
11. Consideration of policy issues concerning ongoing and upcoming single-family bond issues including initiation of request for proposals on an emergency basis, and structuring new issues.
12. Consideration of all necessary actions with regard to the Multifamily Bond Program.
13. Consideration of approval of underwriters for inclusion on approved master list and teams.
14. Consideration of all necessary actions with regard to the HOME Rental Program.
15. Consideration of all necessary actions with regard to the HC (Housing Credits) Program.
16. Consideration of all necessary actions with regard to the SAIL (State Apartment Incentive Loan) Program.
17. Consideration of all necessary actions with regard to the SHIP (State Housing Initiatives Partnership) Program.
18. Consideration of all necessary actions with regard to the PLP (Predevelopment Loan) Program.
19. Consideration of all necessary actions with regard to the Home Ownership Programs.
20. Consideration of all necessary actions, for initiating new rules or rule amendments on an emergency or non-emergency basis.
21. Consideration of Appeals from Combined Cycle ranking and grading with entry of final orders.
22. Consideration of workouts or modifications for existing projects funded by the Corporation.
23. Consideration of matters relating to the stated purpose of the Corporation to provide safe and sanitary housing that is affordable for the residents of Florida.
24. Consideration of funding additional reserves for the Guarantee Fund.
25. Consideration of audit issues.
26. Evaluation of Professional and Consultant performance.
27. Such other matters as may be included on the Agenda for the March 8, 2001 Board Workshop and Meeting.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Deanne Coughlin, Board Administrative Liaison, Florida Housing Finance Corporation, 227 North Bronough Street, Suite 5000, Tallahassee, Florida 32301-1329, (850)488-4197.

Any person requiring a special accommodation at this meeting because of a disability or physical impairment should contact Deanne Coughlin, Florida Housing Finance Corporation, (850)488-4197, at least five calendar days prior to the meeting. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the Corporation using the Florida Dual Party Relay System, 1(800)955-8770 (Voice) and 1(800)955-8771 (TDD).

If any person decides to appeal any decision made by the Corporation with respect to any matter considered at this meeting, he or she will need a record of the proceedings, and that, for such purpose he or she may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings be made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based.

The **Florida Housing Finance Corporation** announces a public meeting of the Board of Directors to which all interested parties are invited:

DATE AND TIME: March 9, 2001, 9:00 a.m. – adjournment

PLACE: City Hall Chambers, 891 South Adams St., Tallahassee, FL 32301. (850)891-0000, FHFC Offices: (850)488-4197

PURPOSE: To permit interested parties to make presentations to the Board of Directors' of Florida Housing Finance Corporation. Each presentation will be limited to (10) ten minutes. The scope of any presentation shall be restricted to developments previously funded by Florida Housing Finance Corporation. Please be advised that under Rule 67-48.004

(subsection 22), FAC., "At no time during the Application, scoring and appeal process may Applicants or their representatives contact Board members concerning their own Development or any other Applicants' Development." If an applicant or its representatives does contact a Board member or Staff in violation of this section, the Board shall, upon determination that such contact was deliberate, disqualify such Applicants' Application.

Any person who would like to be placed on the agenda to address or present to the Board of Directors' shall contact: Deanne Coughlin, Board Administrative Liaison, Florida Housing Finance Corporation, 227 North Bronough Street, Suite 5000, Tallahassee, Florida 32301-1329, (850)488-4197.

Any person requiring a special accommodation at this meeting because of a disability or physical impairment should contact Deanne Coughlin, Florida Housing Finance Corporation, (850)488-4197, at least five calendar days prior to the meeting. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the Corporation using the Florida Dual Party Relay System, 1(800)955-8770 (Voice) and 1(800)955-8771 (TDD).

If any person decides to appeal any decision made by the Corporation with respect to any matter considered at this meeting, he or she will need a record of the proceedings, and that, for such purpose he or she may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings be made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based.

NORTHEAST FLORIDA AREA AGENCY ON AGING

The **Northeast Florida Area Agency on Aging** (PSA4) announces a Budget/Finance Committee meeting, and a Board of Directors meeting to which all person are invited.

DATE AND TIMES: February 26, 2001, Budget and Finance Committee, 2:00 p.m.; Board of Directors Meeting, 2:30 p.m.

PLACE: Wolfe Conference Room of Flagler Hospital, St. Augustine, Florida

PURPOSE: General Board business and voting on committee recommendations including funding distribution.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: The Northeast Florida Area Agency on Aging, Inc., 4401 Wesconnett Blvd., 2nd Floor, Jacksonville, FL 32210, (904)777-2106.

FLORIDA PORTS COUNCIL

The **Seaport Environmental Management Committee** announces a public meeting in which all interested persons are invited to participate.

DATE AND TIME: March 5, 2001, 10:00 a.m. – 3:30 p.m.

PLACE: Port Canaveral, Cape Canaveral, Florida

PURPOSE: General Business.

Information on the meeting may be obtained by contacting: Tara Vercellone, Florida Ports Council, 315 South Calhoun Street, Suite 712, Tallahassee, Florida 32301, (850)222-8028.

Any person wishing to appeal any decision made with respect to any matter considered at the above cited meeting will need a record of the proceedings, and for such purpose that person may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based.

In accordance with provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, persons requiring special accommodations to participate in this public meeting should advise Tara Vercellone, (850)222-8028.

FLORIDA HEALTHCARE PURCHASING COOPERATIVE

The **Florida Healthcare Purchasing Cooperative** announces a meeting of the FHPC Board of Directors by Telephone Conference call.

DATE AND TIME: Thursday, March 8, 2001, 9:00 a.m. (Eastern Standard Time)

PLACE: Telephone Conference

PURPOSE: To discuss general business of the Cooperative and schedule a face-to-face meeting.

Call (904)471-2400, for an agenda and phone number.

FIRST FLORIDA GOVERNMENTAL FINANCING COMMISSION

The **First Florida Governmental Financing Commission** announces the following public meetings, where all interested parties are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Friday, March 9, 2001, 11:00 a.m.

PLACE: City Hall, City of St. Petersburg, 175 Fifth Street, North, St. Petersburg, Florida

DATE AND TIME: Friday, March 30, 2001, 11:00 a.m.

PLACE: City Hall, City of St. Petersburg, 175 Fifth Street, North, St. Petersburg, Florida

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Mr. Richard C. Dowdy, Program Administrator, Post Office Box 14923, Tallahassee, FL 32317-4923, (850)878-1874.

ORANGE COUNTY RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

The **Orange County Research and Development Authority** announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: March 14, 2001, 8:00 a.m.

PLACE: Lowndes, Drosdick, Doster, Kantor & Reed, 215 North Eola, Orlando, Florida

PURPOSE: General Business Meeting.

SUNSHINE STATE GOVERNMENTAL FINANCING COMMISSION

The **Sunshine State Governmental Financing Commission** announces a public meeting, where all interested parties are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Friday, March 16, 2001, 11:00 a.m.
PLACE: Palm Beach County Government Center, Thomas McEaddy Conference Room, 12th Floor, 301 North Olive Avenue, West Palm Beach, Florida
PURPOSE: Board of Directors Meeting.
Note: A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Mr. Richard C. Dowdy, Program Administrator, (850)878-1874.

FLORIDA MUNICIPAL INSURANCE TRUST

The **Florida Municipal Insurance Trust**, an interlocal entity created pursuant to Florida Statutes 768.28 and 163.01, announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATES AND TIMES: Friday, March 30, 2001, 9:30 a.m. – 4:00 p.m.; Saturday, March 31, 2001, 9:00 a.m. – 12:00 Noon
PLACE: Casa Monica Hotel, 95 Cordova Street, St. Augustine, Florida 32784, (904)827-1888

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Business meeting of the Board of Trustees.

A copy of the proposed agenda may be obtained by contacting: Linda Struense, Florida League of Cities, Inc., Tallahassee, FL, (850)222-9684.

If any person desires to appeal any decision with respect to any matter considered at the above cited meeting, such person may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made to include the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is based.

**Section VII
Notices of Petitions and Dispositions
Regarding Declaratory Statements**

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY AFFAIRS

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Department of Community Affairs received a request for Declaratory Statement on February 7, 2001, from Wal-Mart Stores, Inc., with regards to the Florida Accessibility Code, Section 2.2. The request asks what government entities are authorized to determine whether a design meets the requirements of Section 2.2, what procedures apply, and whether the use of equivalent facilitation constitutes a waiver from or modification of the Act. It has been assigned the number DCA01-DEC-020.

A copy of the request may be obtained by writing: Paula P. Ford, Department Clerk, Department of Community Affairs, 2555 Shumard Oak Boulevard, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2100.

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Florida Building Commission received a request for Declaratory Statement on February 9, 2001, from Ward Gould, Go-Bolt, Inc., with regards to the requirements of the Standard Building Code for corrosion resistance of uplift resistant hardware. It has been assigned the number DCA01-DEC-022.

A copy of the request may be obtained by writing: Paula P. Ford, Department Clerk, Department of Community Affairs, 2555 Shumard Oak Boulevard, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2100.

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Florida Building Commission received a request for Declaratory Statement on February 9, 2001, from Don T. Scroggs, CEO, Square One Builders, Inc., with regards to the code requirements for permanent truss bracing systems. It has been assigned the number DCA01-DEC-024.

A copy of the request may be obtained by writing: Paula P. Ford, Department Clerk, Department of Community Affairs, 2555 Shumard Oak Boulevard, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2100.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Florida Public Service Commission has received a petition for a declaratory Statement from Florida Water Services Corporation. The petitioner inquires as to whether its proposed interconnect to provide emergency backup water services from its systems in Flagler County to the St. Johns County Utilities constitutes service which transverses county boundaries thereby requiring the Commission to regulate petitioner’s Flagler County systems. DOCKET NO.: 010133-WS.

FISH AND WILDLIFE CONSERVATION COMMISSION

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission received a Petition for Declaratory Statement on January 30, 2001, from David L. Luikart. Petitioner seeks the agency’s opinion as to whether Rule 68B-24.004(3), FAC., prohibits regular spiny lobster (crawfish) recreational harvesters and a single special recreational crawfish license holder from taking and possessing their respective bag limits aboard a single vessel at the same time.

A copy of the petition may be obtained by writing: James V. Antista, General Counsel, Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission, 620 South Meridian Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1600.

**Section VIII
Notices of Petitions and Dispositions
Regarding the Validity of Rules**

Notice of Petition for Administrative Determination has been filed with the Division of Administrative Hearings on the following rules:

NONE

Notice of Disposition of Petition for Administrative Determination have been filed by the Division of Administrative Hearings on the following rules:

NONE

**Section IX
Notices of Petitions and Dispositions
Regarding Non-rule Policy Challenges**

NONE

**Section X
Announcements and Objection Reports of
the Joint Administrative Procedures
Committee**

NONE

**Section XI
Notices Regarding Bids, Proposals and
Purchasing**

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

REQUEST FOR BID

The University of Florida, Purchasing Division will receive sealed bids for the following: 01L-113, W/O 95864, 23KV Electrical Distribution Extension, estimated budget: \$800,000-\$850,000, to be opened March 27, 2001, 1:30 p.m. (Local Time), in Purchasing, Elmore Hall, Radio Road, Gainesville, FL. Scope of work: Installation of new duct banks, manholes, 25 KV medium voltage cables and 25 KV pad

mounted switches. Specifications and Plans will be available in Purchasing, Elmore Hall, Radio Road, Gainesville, FL, (352)392-1331.

A Mandatory Pre-bid Meeting will be held March 6, 2001, 10:00 a.m., in the Physical Plant Division Architecture/Engineering Conference Room, Building 700, Radio Road, Gainesville, FL.

All questions should be directed to: A. J. Sontag, Assistant Director, UF Purchasing, (352)392-1331, Ext. 306.

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITY ACT OF 1991 – If special accommodations are needed in order to attend the Pre-bid or Bid opening, contact Emily J. Hamby, (352)392-1331, Ext. 303, within three (3) days of the event.

NOTICE TO CONSTRUCTION MANAGERS

The University of Florida on and behalf of the Board of Regents, a public corporation of the State of Florida announces that construction management services will be required for the project listed below:

Project No.: BR-135

Project and Location: Accounting Classroom Building, University of Florida, Gainesville, FL

This project consists of the design and construction of a 32,816 GSF facility for the Fisher School of Accounting at the main campus of the University of Florida to provide technologically advanced offices, classrooms, reading and reference rooms and support spaces. The total construction budget is estimated to be approximately \$5,327,000.00. The proposed site is in a heavily trafficked and historically significant area of campus.

The contract for construction management services will consist of two phases. Phase one is pre-construction services, for which the construction manager will be paid a fixed fee. Phase one services include value engineering, constructability analyses, development of a cost model, estimating and the development of a Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP) at either the 50% or 100% Construction Documents design phase. If the GMP is accepted, phase two, the construction phase, will be implemented. In phase two of the contract, the construction manager becomes the single point of responsibility for performance of the construction of the project and shall publicly bid trade contracts, ensuring the inclusion of Minority Business Enterprises (MBEs). Failure to negotiate an acceptable fixed fee for phase one of the contract or to arrive at an acceptable GMP within the time provided in the agreement may result in the termination of the construction manager's contract. Selection of finalists for interviews will be made on the basis of construction manager qualifications, including experience and ability; past experience; bonding capacity; record-keeping/administrative ability, critical path scheduling expertise; cost estimating; cost control ability; quality control capability; qualification of the firm's personnel, staff and consultants; and ability to meet the minority business enterprise participation requirements. Finalists will be

provided with a copy of the building program and the latest documentation prepared by the project architect/engineer, a description of the final interview requirements and a copy of the standard State University System's construction management agreement. The Selection Committee may reject all proposals and stop the selection process at any time. The construction manager shall have no ownership, entrepreneurial or financial affiliation with the selected architect/engineer involved with this project.

Firms desiring to provide construction management services for the project shall submit a letter of application and a completed Board of Regents "Construction Manager Qualifications Supplement." Proposals must not exceed 80 pages, including the Construction Manager Qualifications Supplement and letter of application. Pages must be numbered consecutively. Submittals which do not comply with these requirements or do not include the requested data will not be considered. No submittal material will be returned. All applicants must be licensed to practice as general contractors in the State of Florida at the time of application. Corporations must be registered to operate in the State of Florida by the Department of State, Division of Corporations, at the time of application. As required by Section 287.133, Florida Statutes, a construction management firm may not submit a proposal for this project if it is on the convicted vendor list for a public entity crime committed within the past 36 months. The selected construction management firm must warrant that it will neither utilize the services of, nor contract with, any supplier, subcontractor or consultant in excess of \$15,000.00 in connection with this project for a period of 36 months from the date of their being placed on the convicted vendor list. The Board of Regents Construction Manager Qualifications Supplement forms and the Project Fact Sheet may be obtained by visiting the UF Facilities Planning and Construction website or by contacting:

Marsha Brewton, Office Manager
UF Facilities Planning and Construction
232 Stadium, P. O. Box 115050
Gainesville, FL 32611-5050
Telephone: (352)392-1256
Fax: (352)392-6378
Internet: www.admin.ufl.edu/division/cp OR
www.facilities.ufl.edu/

Five (5) bound copies of the required proposal must be received in the UF Facilities Planning and Construction office by 3:00 p.m. (Local Time), Thursday, April 5, 2001. Facsimile (FAX) submittals are not acceptable and will not be considered.

NOTICE TO PROFESSIONAL CONSULTANTS

The University of Florida for and on behalf of the Board of Regents, a public corporation of the State of Florida announces that Professional Services in the discipline of architecture will be required for the project listed below:

Project No.: BR-135

Project and Location: Accounting Classroom Building, University of Florida, Gainesville, FL

This project consists of the design and construction of a 32,816 GSF facility for the Fisher School of Accounting at the main campus of the University of Florida to provide technologically advanced offices, classrooms, reading and reference rooms and support spaces. The total construction budget is estimated to be approximately \$5,327,000.00. The architect will be expected to participate in the selection of the Construction Manager. The selected firm will provide design, construction documents and construction administration services for the referenced project. Blanket professional liability insurance will be required for this project in the amount of \$500,000.00, and will be provided as a part of Basic Services. The proposed site is in a heavily trafficked and historically significant area of campus.

INSTRUCTIONS

Firms desiring to apply for consideration shall submit a letter of application. The letter of application should have attached:

1. A completed Board of Regents "Professional Qualifications Supplement" using the latest approved version. Applications on any other form will not be considered.
2. A copy of the applicant's current Professional Registration Certificate from the appropriate governing board. An applicant must be properly registered at the time of application to practice its profession in the State of Florida. If the applicant is a corporation, it must be chartered by the Florida Department of State to operate in Florida.

Submit five (5) copies of the above-requested data bound in the order listed. Applications that do not comply with the above instructions may be disqualified. Application materials will not be returned. The plans and specifications for State University System projects are subject to re-use in accordance with the provisions of Section 287.055, Florida Statutes. As required by Section 287.133, Florida Statutes, a consultant may not submit a proposal for this project if it is on the convicted vendor list for a public entity crime committed within the past 36 months. The selected consultant must warrant that it will neither utilize the services of, nor contract with, any supplier, subcontractor, or consultant in excess of \$15,000.00 in connection with this project for a period of 36 months from the date of their being placed on the convicted vendor list. Professional Qualifications Supplement forms and the Project Fact Sheet may be obtained by contacting:

Marsha Brewton, Office Manager
UF Facilities Planning and Construction
232 Stadium, P. O. Box 115050
Gainesville, FL 32611-5050

Telephone: (352)392-1256
 Fax: (352)392-6378
 Internet: www.admin.ufl.edu/division/cp OR
 www.facilities.ufl.edu/

Submittals must be received at the UF Facilities Planning and Construction office by 3:00 p.m. (Local Time), Thursday, April 5, 2001. Facsimile (FAX) submittals are not acceptable and will not be considered.

NOTICE TO PROFESSIONAL CONSULTANTS

The Florida State University, State of Florida announces that Professional Services in the discipline of architecture will be required for the project listed below:

Project No. BR-229
 Project and Location: Montgomery Gym Renovation
 Florida State University
 Tallahassee, Florida

This project provides for the renovation of Montgomery Gymnasium located on the main campus of Florida State University. Montgomery Gym was completed in 1938 and served as the only gymnasium facility on campus until 1958 when Tully Gym was completed. As such it has historical significance to the University. This facility now provides instructional and research space for a variety of academic programs, including Visual Arts and Dance, Physical Education, Human Sciences and Programs in Medical Sciences. The scope of work will perform a complete interior renovation, including replacement of all the mechanical, electrical, plumbing and communication infrastructure. The work will also bring the facility in compliance with all building code, fire code, ADA code and life safety requirements. The building envelope is in need of remedial attention and asbestos materials will be encountered. The selected firm will provide design, construction documents and administration for the referenced project which is budgeted at \$9,785,280 for construction. The project delivery system will be construction management. Blanket professional liability insurance will be required for this project in the amount of \$1,000,000, and will be provided as a part of Basic Services.

INSTRUCTIONS

Firms desiring to apply for consideration shall submit a letter of application.

The letter of application should have attached:

1. A completed Board of Regents "Professional Qualifications Supplement," dated either 2/99 or 9/99. Applications on any other form, or on versions dated prior to 2/99, will not be considered.
2. A copy of the applicant's current Professional Registration Certificate from the appropriate governing board. An applicant must be properly registered at the time of

application to practice its profession in the State of Florida. If the applicant is a corporation, it must be chartered by the Florida Department of State to operate in Florida.

Submit five (5) bound copies of the above requested data bound in the order listed above. Applications which do not comply with the above instructions may be disqualified. Application materials will not be returned.

The plans and specifications for State University System projects are subject to reuse in accordance with the provisions of Section 287.055, Florida Statutes. As required by Section 287.133, Florida Statutes, a consultant may not submit a proposal for this project if it is on the convicted vendor list for a public entity crime committed within the past 36 months. The selected consultant must warrant that it will neither utilize the services of, nor contract with, any supplier, subcontractor, or consultant in excess of \$25,000.00 in connection with this project for a period of 36 months from the date of their being placed on the convicted vendor list.

Professional Qualifications Supplement forms, descriptive project information and selection criteria may be obtained through our website, www.fpc.fsu.edu or by contacting: Lynetta Mills, Facilities Planning and Construction, 109 Mendenhall Maintenance Building A, Florida State University, Tallahassee, Florida 32306-4152, (850)644-2843, (850)644-8351 Facsimile.

For further information on the project, contact Frank Langston, Project Manager, at the address and phone listed above.

Submittals must be received in the above office, by 2:00 p.m. (Local Time), Wednesday, April 4, 2001. Facsimile (FAX) submittals are not acceptable and will not be considered.

NOTICE TO PROFESSIONAL CONSULTANTS

Florida Gulf Coast University, on behalf of the State of Florida, Board of Regents announces that Professional Services in the discipline of architecture will be required for the project listed below:

Project and Location: North Lake Swimming Pool, Fort Myers, Florida

Description of Project

The Swimming pool center will be designed to accommodate 7,000 to 8,000 competitors, fans and families for major state and national events, with seating provided for 4,000. There will be a 50-meter pool, a USS competition score board, PA system and timing system. A tensile fabric structure will cover the pool and seating areas. The proposed Swimming pool will be the second building for physical education, recreation, intramural and inter-collegiate use. The building will include classrooms, offices, swimming and diving pools, physical activity space and multiple locker/shower type of space.

The project will utilize the Construction Management Delivery method. The selected firm will provide design, construction documents and administration for the referenced project. The estimated construction cost is approximately \$3,528,819 and project budget is \$4,515,000.

Instructions:

Firms desiring to apply for consideration shall submit a letter of application.

The letter of application should have attached:

1. A completed Board of Regents "Professional Qualifications Supplement," dated September 1999. Applications on any other form will not be considered.
2. A copy of the applicant's current Professional Registration Certificate from the appropriate governing board. An application must be properly registered at the time of application to practice its profession in the State of Florida. If the applicant is a corporation, it must be chartered by the Florida Department of State to operate in Florida.

Submit five (5) copies of the above requested data bound in the order listed above. Applications which do not comply with the above instructions may be disqualified. Application materials will not be returned. The plans and specifications for State University System projects are subject to reuse in accordance with the provisions of Section 287.055, Florida Statutes. As required by Section 287.133, Florida Statutes, a consultant may not submit a proposal for this project if it is on the convicted vendor list for a public entity crime committed within the past 36 months. The selected consultant must warrant that it will neither utilize the services of, nor contract with, any supplier, subcontract or consultant in excess of \$15,000.00 in connection with this project for a period of 36 months from the date of their being placed on the convicted vendor list.

Professional Qualifications Supplement forms, descriptive project information and selection criteria may be obtained by contacting:

Mr. Jack Fenwick, Director of Facility Planning, 10501 FGCU Blvd., South, Fort Myers, Florida 33965-6565, (941)590-1500, Fax (941)590-1505

Submittals must be received in the Facilities Planning Office, by 3:00 p.m. (Local Time), March 26, 2001. Facsimile (FAX) submittals are not acceptable and will not be considered.

ADVERTISEMENT FOR BIDS

Sealed bids will be received by the Duval County Public Schools, Division of Facilities Services, Room 546, School Board Building, 1701 Prudential Drive, Jacksonville, Florida 32207 for:

PROJECT TITLE: Roof Replacement at Carter G. Woodson Elementary School No. 166; Wall and Roof Repairs at West Riverside

Elementary School No. 12; Roof Replacement at Love Grove Elementary School No. 82

BID NUMBER: M-86580, M-86720, M-86790

SCOPE

OF WORK: Replace all old built-up roofing with new modified roof systems at all three schools and correct water intrusion through the walls at West Riverside Elementary School No. 12.

BIDS: Bids will be received until 2:00 p.m., Tuesday, March 27, 2001, and immediately thereafter publicly opened, read aloud and recorded in Conference Room No. 513D, 5th Floor Facilities, School Board Building, 1701 Prudential Drive, Jacksonville, Florida 32207.

All roofing contractors that are interested in bidding are required to attend a mandatory pre-bid conference to be held on March 15, 2001, 10:00 a.m. (Local Time), Love Grove Elementary School No. 82, 2446 University Boulevard, Jacksonville, Florida 32216. Failure to attend the pre-bid conference shall result in disqualification of that firm's proposal. Attendees will be required to sign an attendance register.

All prime bidders shall be licensed state certified roofing contractors and registered corporations, subcontractors shall be licensed contractors as required by the laws of the State of Florida.

Contract documents for bidding may be obtained at the office of Akel, Logan & Shafer P. A., 110 Riverside Avenue, Jacksonville, Florida 32202-4995. A refundable deposit of seventy-five dollars per set is required.

Duval County School Board point of contact is Dale Hughes, Plant Services, (904)858-6300.

Contract documents for bidding may be examined: Division of Purchasing Services, Duval County Public Schools; F. W. Dodge McGraw Hill Plan Room; Construction Bulletin; Construction Market Data, Inc.; Business Service Center.

MBE
 PARTICIPATION: Minority Business Enterprise
 participation will be required.

STATE BOARD OF ADMINISTRATION

Request for Information

The State Board of Administration (SBA) announces the issuance of a Request for Information for Bundled Providers for the Public Employee Optional Retirement Program (PEORP). The Request for Information will be issued on March 16, 2001, and may be found on the SBA's website at: www.fsba.state.fl.us. All potential respondents are informed that the investment products that they will be proposing for consideration in this process will be screened in accordance with the investment criteria approved by the Trustees of the SBA. The screening process will be conducted by the PEORP Investment Consultant, Callan Associates. All potential investment product offerings must be included in the Callan database no later than March 30, 2001, to be considered. All potential respondents who wish to be considered must contact Callan directly to ensure that their products are included in the database. Contact: Michael Tadlock, tadlock@callan.com, (415)974-5060, Fax (415)512-0524. Inclusion in the Callan database is free. Potential respondents whose products are not in the Callan database by close of business on March 30, 2001, will not have those products considered in this process.

REGIONAL PLANNING COUNCILS

INVITATION TO BID

The Tampa Bay Regional Planning Council (TBRPC) is seeking Sealed Bids for the printing of the seven versions of the Hurricane Evacuation Survival Guide (total 912,000 copies) in two versions (English and Spanish). Print specifications may be obtained from: TBRPC, 9455 Koger Blvd., Suite 219, St. Petersburg, Florida 33702 or by calling (727)570-5151, Ext. 273. Sealed bids will be received by the Council until 4:30 p.m., March 9, 2001. TBRPC reserves the right to reject any and all bids. Dated this 31st day of January 2001.

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

NOTICE OF INVITATION TO BID

BID NO. BDRS 40-00/01

The Department of Environmental Protection, Division of Recreation and Parks, Bureau of Design and Recreation Services is soliciting formal competitive bids for the project listed below:

PROJECT NAME: New ranger residences
 SCOPE OF WORK: The contractor shall provide the necessary labor, supervision, equipment and materials for the removal of one existing mobile home and one shed including all associated work. The construction of two new site built homes, utility connections, waste water connections that consist of a stubb-out 10' from the buildings and all associated site work.

PARK LOCATION: Fort Zachary Taylor
 Historic State Park
 Southard Street on Truman Annex
 Key West, Florida 33041

PROJECT MANAGER: Efrain Prado
 Telephone: (850)488-5372
 Bureau of Design and Recreation Services
 3540 Thomasville Road
 Tallahassee, FL 32308

MINORITY DIVERSITY: The Department of Environmental Protection supports diversity in its Procurement Program and requests that all sub-contracting opportunities afforded by this bid embrace diversity enthusiastically. The award of sub-contracts should the full diversity of the citizens of the State of Florida. The Department will be glad to furnish a list of Minority Owned Firms that could be offered sub-contracting opportunities.

PREQUALIFICATION: When the total bid price including alternates exceeds \$200,000, bidders whose fields are governed by Chapters 399, 489 and 633 of the Florida Statutes for licensure or certification must submit prequalification data of their eligibility to submit bids five (5) calendar days prior to the opening date.

INSTRUCTIONS: Any firm desiring plans and bid specifications for this project may obtain a copy by writing the address or calling the telephone number listed below:

Plans and specifications will be available on: Friday, February 23, 2001 at:

Ft. Zachary Taylor
State Historic Park
P. O. Box 6560
Key West, Florida 33041
Attention: Bob Rahberg
Park Manager
Telephone Number: (305)292-6850
Fax Number: (305)292-6881

ADA REQUIREMENTS: Any person with a qualified disability shall not be denied equal access and effective communication regarding any bid/proposal documents or the attendance at any related meeting or bid/proposal opening. If accommodations are needed because of disability, please contact the Bureau of Design and Recreation Services, (850)488-5372, at least five (5) workdays prior to opening.

BID SUBMITTAL

DUE DATE: No later than 3:30 p.m., Tuesday, March 20, 2001 to the below address:

Florida Department of
Environmental Protection
Bureau of Design and Recreation
Services
3540 Thomasville Road
Tallahassee, Florida 32308

The Department reserves the right to reject any or all bids.
Michael Renard, Contracts Manager, Bureau of Design and Recreation Services.

DEPARTMENT OF CHILDREN AND FAMILY SERVICES

INVITATION TO BID

Proposals are requested from qualified masonry restoration contractors by the Department of Children and Family Services, hereinafter referred to as Owner, for the restoration of:

PROJECT NUMBER: DCF 96204000
PROJECT: RESTORATION OF THE
MT. VERNON ARSENAL
FLORIDA STATE HOSPITAL
CHATTAHOOCHEE, FLORIDA

INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS: The Owner accepts submittals from those firms which are prequalified with the Department of Management Services, Division of Building Construction. Each Bidder whose field is governed by Chapter 399, 455, 489 and 633, Florida Statutes for licensure or certification, must submit prequalification data of their eligibility to submit proposals five (5) calendar days prior to the submittal date. If not previously qualified by the Department of Management Services, Division of Building Construction for the current biennium (July 1 through June 30) of odd number years. Call (850)488-6233, for information on prequalification. Submittals shall also include DMS' Standard Experience Questionnaire and Contractor's Financial Statement, a copy of the mason's current Florida contractor's license and a summary of previous work with photo documentation and references. Previous experience with restoration of intersecting brick barrel vaults or brick barrel vaults is required. The Experience Questionnaire is available by calling (850)413-6776.

PRE-BID MEETING: A mandatory pre-bid meeting will be held at 10:00 a.m. (EST), March 6, 2001 at the site.

BID DATE AND TIME: Sealed bids from contractors will be received on March 13, 2001, until 11:00 a.m. (Local Time), at which time they will be publicly opened and read aloud at the facility. After bid opening, the low bidder must qualify in accordance with Rule 60D-5.004, FAC. A copy of the rule requirements is included in the Instructions to Bidders under Article B-2 "Bidder Qualification Requirements and Procedures."

PROPOSAL: Bids must be submitted in full accordance with the requirements of the drawings, specifications, bidding conditions and contractual conditions, which may be examined and obtained from the Architect/Engineer:

ATELIER ARCHITECTURE ENGINEERING
CONSTRUCTION, INC.
442 W. KENNEDY BLVD., SUITE 320
TAMPA, FLORIDA 33606
TELEPHONE: (813)254-3079

PERFORMANCE BOND AND LABOR AND MATERIAL BOND: A Performance Bond and Labor and Material Payment Bond are required.

CONTRACT AWARD: The bid tabulation and Notice of Award Recommendation will be posted at 11:00 a.m. (Local Time), March 14, 2001, at the facility. In the event that the bid tabulation and Notice of Award Recommendation cannot be posted in this manner, then all bidders will be notified by Certified United States mail, Return Receipt requested. Any

protests of the bid must be made within 72 hours of posting of the results. "Failure to file a protest within the time prescribed in s. 120.53(5), Florida Statutes, shall constitute a waiver of proceedings under Chapter 120, Florida Statutes." If no protest is filed per Section B-21 of the Instructions to Bidders, "Notice and Protest Procedures", the contract will be awarded to the qualified, responsive low bidder in accordance with Rule 60D-5, FAC., by the Owner.

HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY AVIATION AUTHORITY

NOTICE TO RESIGN-BUILD FIRMS

The Hillsborough County Aviation Authority hereby requests, pursuant to the Consultants Competitive Negotiation Act, Florida Statutes 287.055, Letters of Interest from Design-Build firms desiring to render Design-Build Services for the following project at Tampa International Airport, Tampa, Florida:

DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION OF THE RENT-A-CAR FACILITY EXPANSION AT THE LONG TERM PARKING GARAGE AND RELATED WORK

Services to be furnished shall include, but not be limited to, all architectural design and all engineering related to structural, mechanical, plumbing, fire protection, electrical, electronic and information technology systems; architectural/engineering services during construction; construction by a qualified contractor; and related surveys and testing. Professional services will also be required by a licensed engineer specializing in automotive fuel distribution and dispensing systems. A more detailed Scope of Services will be included in the formal Request for Qualifications.

Qualified Design-Build firms desiring consideration for this Project must give written notification in the form of a Letter of Interest to:

William J. Connors, Inc.
 Senior Director of Planning and Design
 Hillsborough County Aviation Authority
 Post Office Box 22287
 Tampa, Florida 33622

Interested parties may inquire as to project descriptions, details and required data submission to William J. Connors, Jr., Senior Director of Planning and Design, (813)870-8704. **ONLY A LETTER EXPRESSING INTEREST IN RECEIVING THE FORMAL REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS IS REQUIRED AT THIS TIME.** Subsequent to receiving Letters of Interest, a Request for Qualifications will be sent to all respondents and adequate response time set forth in that package.

A MANDATORY Pro-Qualification Conference will be held on Tuesday, March 27, 2001, 10:00 a.m. (Local Time), in the Hillsborough County Aviation Authority Board Room, Landside Terminal Building, Third Floor, Blue Side at Tampa International Airport, Tampa, FL. Details of this conference will be included in the Request for Qualifications.

Replies to this Notice must be received at or before 5:00 p.m. (Local Time), Tuesday, March 13, 2001.

Hillsborough County Aviation Authority
 By: /s/ Louis E. Miller
 Louis E. Miller, Executive Director

**Section XII
 Miscellaneous**

DEPARTMENT OF BANKING AND FINANCE

NOTICE OF FILINGS

Notice is hereby given that the Department of Banking and Finance, Division of Banking has received the following application and/or other notices. Comments may be submitted to the Director, Division of Banking, 101 East Gaines Street, Suite 636, Fletcher Building, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0350, for inclusion in the official record without requesting a hearing; however, any person may request a public hearing by filing a petition with the Clerk, Legal Division, Department of Banking and Finance, 101 East Gaines Street, Suite 526, Fletcher Building, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0350, pursuant to provisions specified in Chapter 3C-105.100, Florida Administrative Code. Petition must be received by the Clerk within twenty-one (21) days of publication of this notice (by 5:00 p.m., March 9, 2001):

EXPANDED FIELD OF MEMBERSHIP

Name and Address of Applicant: Fairwinds Credit Union, 3075 North Alafaya Trail, Orlando, Florida 33826

Expansion Includes: The following member organizations: The Department of Finance and Accounting Services (DFAS), office in Orlando, Florida; the U.S. Immigration Authority, office in Orlando, Florida; and the U.S. Customs Department, office in Orlando, Florida.

Received: February 5, 2001

Name and Address of Applicant: First Choice Credit Union, 1055 South Congress Avenue, West Palm Beach, Florida 33406

Expansion Includes: Persons who live or work in the Village of Wellington and persons who live or work in the Village of Royal Palm Beach.

Received: February 7, 2001

Name and Address of Applicant: Florida West Coast Credit Union, 3020 Melbourne Boulevard, Tampa, Florida 33605-1600

Expansion Includes: Employees of St. James the Apostle Catholic Church.

Received: February 7, 2001

DEPARTMENT OF INSURANCE

IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE SECOND JUDICIAL CIRCUIT, IN AND FOR LEON COUNTY, FLORIDA
CASE NO.: 2001-153

In Re: The Receivership of QUEENSWAY CASUALTY INSURANCE COMPANY, a Florida corporation.

NOTICE TO ALL POLICYHOLDERS, CREDITORS AND CLAIMANTS HAVING BUSINESS WITH QUEENSWAY CASUALTY INSURANCE COMPANY.

You are hereby notified that by order of the Circuit Court of the Second Judicial Circuit, in and for Leon County, Florida, entered the 18th day of January, 2001, the Department of Insurance of the State of Florida was appointed as Receiver of QUEENSWAY CASUALTY INSURANCE COMPANY, and was ordered to liquidate the assets located in Florida of said company.

Policyholders, claimants, creditors and other persons in this State having claims against the assets of QUEENSWAY CASUALTY INSURANCE COMPANY, shall present such claims to the Receiver on or before 11:59 p.m., Friday, January 18, 2002, or such claims shall be forever barred.

Requests for forms for the presentation of such claims and inquiries concerning this Receivership should be addressed to: The Division of Rehabilitation and Liquidation of the Florida Department of Insurance, Receiver for QUEENSWAY CASUALTY INSURANCE COMPANY, Post Office Box 10280, Tallahassee, Florida 32302.

DEPARTMENT OF HIGHWAY SAFETY AND MOTOR VEHICLES

Notice of Publication for a New Point Franchise Motor Vehicle Dealer in a County of Less than 300,000 Population

Pursuant to Section 320.642, Florida Statutes, notice is given that Daewoo Motor America, Inc., intends to allow the establishment of Andrew Lippi dba Car Keys, as a dealership for the sale of Daewoo motor vehicles, at 9200 Overseas Highway, Marathon (Monroe County), Florida 33050, on or after February 18, 2001.

The name and address of the dealer operator(s) and principal investor(s) of Andrew Lippi dba Car Keys are: dealer operator: Andrew Lippi, 112 23rd Avenue, Longport, NJ 08403; principal investor(s): Andrew Lippi, 112 23rd Avenue, Longport, NJ 08403.

The notice indicates an intent to establish the new point location in a county of less than 300,000 population, according to the latest population estimates of the University of Florida, Bureau of Economic and Business Research.

Certain dealerships of the same line-make may have standing, pursuant to Section 320.642, Florida Statutes, as amended by Chapter 88-395, Laws of Florida, to file a petition or complaint protesting the application.

Written petitions or complaints must be received by the Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles within 30 days of the date of publication of this notice and must be submitted to: Mr. Ronald D. Reynolds, Administrator, Dealer License Section, Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles, Room A-312, Neil Kirkman Building, 2900 Apalachee Parkway, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0635.

A copy of such petition or complaint must also be sent by US Mail to: Donald Betz, General Manager, Daewoo Motor America, Inc., 1055 West Victoria Street, Compton, CA 90220.

If no petitions or complaints are received within 30 days of the date of publication, a final order will be issued by the Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles approving the establishment of the dealership, subject to the applicant's compliance with the provisions of Chapter 320, Florida Statutes.

Notice of Publication for a New Point Franchise Motor Vehicle Dealer in a County of Less than 300,000 Population

Pursuant to Section 320.642, Florida Statutes, notice is given that Daewoo Motor America, Inc., intends to allow the establishment of Andrew Lippi dba Car Keys, as a dealership for the sale of Daewoo motor vehicles, at 5200 US Highway 1, Key West (Monroe County), Florida, on or after February 18, 2001.

The name and address of the dealer operator(s) and principal investor(s) of Andrew Lippi dba Car Keys, are: dealer operator: Andrew Lippi, 112 23rd Avenue, Longport, NJ 08403; principal investor(s): Andrew Lippi, 112 23rd Avenue, Longport, NJ 08403.

The notice indicates an intent to establish the new point location in a county of less than 300,000 population, according to the latest population estimates of the University of Florida, Bureau of Economic and Business Research.

Certain dealerships of the same line-make may have standing, pursuant to Section 320.642, Florida Statutes, as amended by Chapter 88-395, Laws of Florida, to file a petition or complaint protesting the application.

Written petitions or complaints must be received by the Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles within 30 days of the date of publication of this notice and must be submitted to: Mr. Ronald D. Reynolds, Administrator, Dealer License Section, Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles, Room A-312, Neil Kirkman Building, 2900 Apalachee Parkway, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0635.

A copy of such petition or complaint must also be sent by US Mail to: Donald Betz, General Manager, Daewoo Motor America, Inc., 1055 West Victoria Street, Compton, CA 90220.

If no petitions or complaints are received within 30 days of the date of publication, a final order will be issued by the Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles approving the establishment of the dealership, subject to the applicant's compliance with the provisions of Chapter 320, Florida Statutes.

Notice of Publication for a New Point
Franchise Motor Vehicle Dealer in a County of More
than 300,000 Population

Pursuant to Section 320.642, Florida Statutes, Confederate Motorcycles, Inc., intends to allow the establishment of Proudfoot Motorcycles, Inc., as a dealership for the sale of Confederate motorcycles, at 4601 Fowler Street, Fort Myers (Lee County), Florida 33907, on or after February 13, 2001.

The name and address of the dealer operator(s) and principal investor(s) of Proudfoot Motorcycles, Inc., are: dealer operator: Donn Proudfoot, 4601 Fowler Street, Fort Myers, Florida 33907, principal investor(s): Donn Proudfoot, 4601 Fowler Street, Fort Myers, Florida 33907.

The notice indicates an intent to establish the new point location in a county of more than 300,000 population, according to the latest population estimates of the University of Florida, Bureau of Economic and Business Research.

Certain dealerships of the same line-make may have standing, pursuant to Section 320.642, Florida Statutes to file a petition or complaint protesting the application.

Written petitions or complaints must be received by the Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles within 30 days of the date of publication of this notice and must be submitted to: Mr. Ronald D. Reynolds, Administrator, Dealer License Section, Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles, Room A-312, Neil Kirkman Building, 2900 Apalachee Parkway, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0635.

A copy of such petition or complaint must also be sent by US Mail to: Ms. Pamela S. Miller, Confederate Motorcycles, Inc., 100 Confederate Drive, Abita Springs, LA 70420.

If no petitions or complaints are received within 30 days of the date of publication, a final order will be issued by the Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles approving the establishment of the dealership, subject to the applicant's compliance with the provisions of Chapter 320, Florida Statutes.

Notice of Publication for a New Point
Franchise Motor Vehicle Dealer in a County of More
than 300,000 Population

Pursuant to Section 320.642, Florida Statutes, Confederate Motorcycles, Inc., intends to allow the establishment of Proudfoot Motorcycles, Inc., as a dealership for the sale of Confederate Motorcycles, at 120 East Fairview, Daytona Beach (Volusia County), Florida 32114 on or after February 13, 2001.

The name and address of the dealer operator(s) and principal investor(s) of Proudfoot Motorcycles, Inc., are: dealer operator: Donn Proudfoot, 120 East Fairview, Daytona Beach, Florida 32114; principal investor(s): Donn Proudfoot, 120 East Fairview, Daytona Beach, Florida 32114.

The notice indicates an intent to establish the new point location in a county of more than 300,000 population, according to the latest population estimates of the University of Florida, Bureau of Economic and Business Research.

Certain dealerships of the same line-make may have standing, pursuant to Section 320.642, Florida Statutes to file a petition or complaint protesting the application.

Written petitions or complaints must be received by the Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles within 30 days of the date of publication of this notice and must be submitted to: Mr. Ronald D. Reynolds, Administrator, Dealer License Section, Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles, Room A-312, Neil Kirkman Building, 2900 Apalachee Parkway, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0635.

A copy of such petition or complaint must also be sent by US Mail to: Ms. Pamela S. Miller, Confederate Motorcycles, Inc., 100 Confederate Drive, Abita Springs, LA 70420.

If no petitions or complaints are received within 30 days of the date of publication, a final order will be issued by the Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles approving the establishment of the dealership, subject to the applicant's compliance with the provisions of Chapter 320, Florida Statutes.

SPACEPORT FLORIDA AUTHORITY

The Florida Space Research Institute (FSRI) seeks resumes from qualified individuals to provide short-term and/or on-call support for FSRI technical writing, space research proposal development and academic program administration on a consultancy basis. FSRI will enter into contracts with one or more individuals who will not be considered as employees of FSRI. Contract funding levels will be negotiable. FSRI will make final selections for contracts based on qualifications, capabilities, experience and cost. FSRI reserves the right to reject any and all resumes. Resumes must be received by FSRI

no later than COB March 7, 2001, at the following address: FSRI Support, Mail Stop FSRI, Kennedy Space Center, FL 32899.

AGENCY FOR HEALTH CARE ADMINISTRATION

CERTIFICATE OF NEED

RECEIPT OF EXPEDITED APPLICATIONS

The Agency For Health Care Administration received the following Certificate of Need applications for expedited review:

County: Dade Service District: 11
 Facility/Project: Palmetto General Hospital
 Applicant: Lifemark Hospitals of Florida, Inc.
 Project Description: Convert 16 child/adolescent psych bed to 16 adult psych beds

County: Taylor Service District: 2
 Facility/Project: Doctors' Memorial Hospital, Inc.
 Applicant: Doctors' Memorial Hospital, Inc.
 Project Description: Construct a 48-bed replacement hospital less than one mile from the existing hospital
 AHCA Purchase Order Number S5900I0310.

**CERTIFICATE OF NEED
 EXEMPTIONS**

The Agency For Health Care Administration authorized the following exemptions pursuant to Section 408.036(3), Florida Statutes:

County: Polk District: 6
 ID #: 0000257 Decision: A Issue Date: 2/2/2001
 Facility/Project: Heart of Florida Regional Medical Center
 Applicant: Haines City HMA, Inc.
 Project Description: To add 10 acute care beds
 Proposed Project Cost: \$3,400,000 Equipment Cost:

County: Brevard District: 7
 ID #: 0000258 Decision: A Issue Date: 1/31/2001
 Facility/Project: Palm Bay Community Hospital
 Applicant: Holmes Regional Medical Center, Inc.
 Project Description: Establish an adult inpatient diagnostic cardiac catheterization lab
 Proposed Project Cost: \$1,500,000 Equipment Cost:
 AHCA Purchase Order Number S5900I00310.

**CERTIFICATE OF NEED
 LETTERS OF INTENT**

The Agency For Health Care Administration received and accepted the following letters of intent for the March 14, 2001 application filing date for hospital batching cycle:

County: Escambia District: 1
 Date Filed: February 12, 2001 LOI#: H010201
 Facility/Project: Sacred Heart Hospital

Applicant: Sacred Heart Hospital of Pensacola
 Project Description: Add up to four Level III NICU beds
 County: Hernando District: 3
 Date Filed: February 12, 2001 LOI#: H010202
 Facility/Project: Oak Hill Hospital
 Applicant: HCA Health Services of Florida, Inc.
 Project Description: Establish an adult open heart surgery program
 County: Lake District: 3
 Date Filed: February 9, 2001 LOI#: H010203
 Facility/Project: LifeStream Behavioral Center
 Applicant: LifeStream Behavioral Center, Inc.
 Project Description: To convert up to 10 adult psychiatric and/or adult substance abuse beds to up to 10 child and adolescent psychiatric beds
 County: Marion District: 3
 Date Filed: January 12, 2001 LOI#: H010204
 Facility/Project: Marion-Citrus Mental Health Centers
 Applicant: Marion-Citrus Mental Health Centers, Inc.
 Project Description: Establish up to 41 inpatient adult psychiatric beds
 County: Volusia District: 4
 Date Filed: February 12, 2001 LOI#: H010205
 Facility/Project: Halifax Hospital Medical Center
 Applicant: Halifax Hospital Medical Center
 Project Description: Add 42 adult psychiatric beds at 303 N. Clyde Morris Blvd. through delicensure of 42 adult psychiatric beds at 400 N. Clyde Morris Blvd.
 County: Volusia District: 4
 Date Filed: February 12, 2001 LOI#: H010206
 Facility/Project: Memorial Hospital-Peninsula
 Applicant: Memorial Health Systems, Inc.
 Project Description: Establish up to 25 inpatient adult psychiatric beds through the conversion of up to 25 acute care beds
 County: Volusia District: 4
 Date Filed: February 12, 2001 LOI#: H010207
 Facility/Project: Halifax Hospital Medical Center
 Applicant: Halifax Hospital Medical Center
 Project Description: Add 147 acute care beds at 303 N. Clyde Morris Blvd. through the delicensure of 147 acute care beds at 400 N. Clyde Morris Blvd.
 County: Duval District: 4
 Date Filed: February 12, 2001 LOI#: H010208
 Facility/Project: Community Hospice of Northeast Florida, Inc.
 Applicant: Community Hospice of Northeast Florida, Inc.
 Project Description: Establish up to a 24-bed freestanding inpatient hospice facility
 County: St. Johns District: 4
 Date Filed: February 7, 2001 LOI#: H010209

Facility/Project: Continental Medical of Palm Beach, Inc.
 Applicant: Continental Medical of Palm Beach, Inc.
 Project Description: Establish up to a 40-bed comprehensive medical rehabilitation hospital
 County: Pasco District: 5
 Date Filed: February 12, 2001 LOI#: H010210

Facility/Project: East Pasco Medical Center
 Applicant: East Pasco Medical Center, Inc.
 Project Description: Establish an adult open heart surgery program
 County: Pasco District: 5
 Date Filed: February 12, 2001 LOI#: H010211

Facility/Project: East Pasco Medical Center
 Applicant: East Pasco Medical Center, Inc.
 Project Description: Add up to 36 acute care beds
 County: Hillsborough District: 6
 Date Filed: February 7, 2001 LOI#: H010212

Facility/Project: Continental Medical of Palm Beach, Inc.
 Applicant: Continental Medical of Palm Beach, Inc.
 Project Description: Establish up to a 60-bed comprehensive medical rehabilitation hospital
 County: Hillsborough District: 6
 Date Filed: February 9, 2001 LOI#: H010213

Facility/Project: St. Joseph's Hospital
 Applicant: St. Joseph's Hospital, Inc.
 Project Description: Add up to eight Level III NICU beds
 County: Polk District: 6
 Date Filed: February 12, 2001 LOI#: H010214

Facility/Project: Winter Haven Hospital
 Applicant: Winter Haven Hospital, Inc.
 Project Description: Establish an adult open heart surgery program
 County: Polk District: 6
 Date Filed: February 12, 2001 LOI#: H010215

Facility/Project: Heart of Florida Regional Medical Center
 Applicant: Haines City HMA
 Project Description: Add up to 30 acute care beds
 County: Polk District: 6
 Date Filed: February 12, 2001 LOI#: H010216

Facility/Project: Good Shepherd Hospice of Mid-Florida, Inc.
 Applicant: Good Shepherd Hospice of Mid-Florida, Inc.
 Project Description: Establish up to 12 hospice inpatient beds in an existing residential facility
 County: Polk District: 6
 Date Filed: February 12, 2001 LOI#: H010217

Facility/Project: Vitas of North Florida, Inc.
 Applicant: Vitas of North Florida, Inc.
 Project Description: Establish a hospice program
 County: Seminole District: 7
 Date Filed: February 12, 2001 LOI#: H010218

Facility/Project: Winter Park Pavilion
 Applicant: Adventist Health System/Sunbelt, Inc.
 Project Description: Add 20 adult psychiatric beds at Winter Park Pavilion through the delicensure and transfer of 20 adult psychiatric beds at the Altamonte campus
 County: Orange District: 7
 Date Filed: January 12, 2001 LOI#: H010219

Facility/Project: Orlando Regional Medical Center
 Applicant: Orlando Regional Healthcare System, Inc.
 Project Description: Add five Level II NICU beds
 County: Osceola District: 7
 Date Filed: February 12, 2001 LOI#: H010220

Facility/Project: Osceola Regional Medical Center
 Applicant: Osceola Regional Hospital, Inc.
 Project Description: Add up to five Level II NICU beds
 County: Orange District: 7
 Date Filed: January 12, 2001 LOI#: H010221

Facility/Project: Orlando Regional Medical Center
 Applicant: Orlando Regional Healthcare System, Inc.
 Project Description: Add up to 94 acute care beds
 County: Orange District: 7
 Date Filed: February 12, 2001 LOI#: H010222

Facility/Project: Health Central
 Applicant: West Orange Healthcare District
 Project Description: Add up to 30 acute care beds
 County: Brevard District: 7
 Date Filed: January 12, 2001 LOI#: H010223

Facility/Project: Wuesthoff Brevard Hospice and Pallative Care
 Applicant: Wuesthoff Health Services, Inc.
 Project Description: Establish up to 12 inpatient hospice beds
 County: Orange District: 7
 Date Filed: February 12, 2001 LOI#: H010224

Facility/Project: Vitas Healthcare Corporation of Central Florida
 Applicant: Vitas Healthcare Corporation of Central Florida
 Project Description: Establish an 18-bed inpatient hospice facility
 County: Orange District: 7
 Date Filed: February 12, 2001 LOI#: H010225

Facility/Project: Florida Hospital
 Applicant: Adventist Health System/Sunbelt, Inc.
 Project Description: Establish a pediatric open heart surgery program
 County: Orange District: 7
 Date Filed: February 12, 2001 LOI#: H010226

Facility/Project: Florida Hospital
 Applicant: Adventist Health System/Sunbelt, Inc.
 Project Description: Establish a pediatric cardiac catheterization program

County: Collier District: 8
 Date Filed: February 7, 2001 LOI#: H010227
 Facility/Project: Naples Community Hospital
 Applicant: Naples Community Hospital, Inc.
 Project Description: Add up to 30 comprehensive medical rehabilitation beds

County: Collier District: 8
 Date Filed: February 12, 2001 LOI#: H010228
 Facility/Project: The Willough at Naples
 Applicant: Willough Health Care, Inc.
 Project Description: Establish up to 42 general adult psychiatric beds

County: Lee District: 8
 Date Filed: February 8, 2001 LOI#: H010229
 Facility/Project: Lee Mental Health Center, Inc.
 Applicant: Lee Mental Health Center, Inc.
 Project Description: Establish up to a 60-bed adult psychiatric hospital

County: Sarasota District: 8
 Date Filed: February 7, 2001 LOI#: H010230
 Facility/Project: HealthSouth Rehabilitation Hospital of Sarasota
 Applicant: HealthSouth of Sarasota Limited Partners
 Project Description: Add up to 15 comprehensive medical rehabilitation beds

County: Palm Beach District: 9
 Date Filed: February 12, 2001 LOI#: H010231
 Facility/Project: Bethesda Memorial Hospital
 Applicant: Bethesda Healthcare System, Inc.
 Project Description: Establish an adult open heart surgery program

County: Palm Beach District: 9
 Date Filed: February 12, 2001 LOI#: H010232
 Facility/Project: Boca Raton Community Hospital
 Applicant: Boca Raton Community Hospital, Inc.
 Project Description: Establish an adult open heart surgery program

County: Palm Beach District: 9
 Date Filed: February 8, 2001 LOI#: H010233
 Facility/Project: Good Samaritan Hospital
 Applicant: Good Samaritan Hospital, Inc.
 Project Description: Establish an adult open heart surgery program

County: Indian River District: 9
 Date Filed: February 12, 2001 LOI#: H010234
 Facility/Project: Indian River Memorial Hospital
 Applicant: Indian River Memorial Hospital, Inc.
 Project Description: Establish an adult open heart surgery program

County: Martin District: 9
 Date Filed: February 12, 2001 LOI#: H010235
 Facility/Project: Martin Memorial Medical Center
 Applicant: Martin Memorial Medical Center, Inc.
 Project Description: Establish an adult open heart surgery program

County: Palm Beach District: 9
 Date Filed: February 6, 2001 LOI#: H010236
 Facility/Project: Wellington Regional Medical Center
 Applicant: Wellington Regional Medical Center, Inc.
 Project Description: Add up to 23 acute care beds

County: Indian River District: 9
 Date Filed: February 12, 2001 LOI#: H010237
 Facility/Project: VNA Hospice of Indian River County, Inc.
 Applicant: VNA Hospice of Indian River County, Inc.
 Project Description: Establish up to 12 inpatient hospice beds

County: Broward District: 10
 Date Filed: February 8, 2001 LOI#: H010238
 Facility/Project: Memorial Hospital West
 Applicant: South Broward Hospital District
 Project Description: Establish an adult open heart surgery program

County: Broward District: 10
 Date Filed: February 8, 2001 LOI#: H010239
 Facility/Project: South Broward Hospital District

Applicant: South Broward Hospital District
 Project Description: Establish a new 100-bed acute care hospital
 County: Dade District: 11
 Date Filed: February 8, 2001 LOI#: H010240
 Facility/Project: Baptist Hospital of Miami
 Applicant: Baptist Hospital of Miami, Inc.
 Project Description: Add up to a 10-bed Level II NICU
 County: Dade District: 11
 Date Filed: February 9, 2001 LOI#: H010241
 Facility/Project: Larkin Community Hospital
 Applicant: Larkin Community Hospital, Inc.
 Project Description: Convert 10 acute care beds to 10 adult psychiatric beds
 County: Dade District: 11
 Date Filed: February 9, 2001 LOI#: H010242
 Facility/Project: Palmetto General Hospital
 Applicant: Lifemark Hospitals of Florida, Inc.
 Project Description: Establish an adult open heart surgery program
 County: Dade District: 11
 Date Filed: February 8, 2001 LOI#: H010243
 Facility/Project: Mercy Medical Development, Inc.
 Applicant: Mercy Medical Development, Inc.
 Project Description: Establish up to a new 29-bed long-term care hospital through the conversion of up to 29 acute care beds

County: Dade District: 11
 Date Filed: February 8, 2001 LOI#: H010244
 Facility/Project: South Miami Hospital
 Applicant: South Miami Hospital, Inc.
 Project Description: Establish up to an eight-bed Level III NICU through the conversion of up to eight Level II NICU beds
 If requested within 14 days after notice that an application has been filed, a public hearing may be held at the local level within 21 days after April 18, 2001 the date the application is scheduled to be deemed complete. Tentative dates for hearings will be published on March 30, 2001.
 AHCA Purchase Order Number S5900I003910

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

NOTICE OF RECEIPT OF SUPPLEMENTAL APPLICATION FOR POWER PLANT CERTIFICATION

The Department has received a supplemental application for certification of a power plant pursuant to the Florida Electrical Power Plant Siting Act, Section 403.501 et seq., Florida Statutes, concerning:
 Orlando Utilities Commission, Kissimmee Utility Authority, Florida Municipal Power Agency, and Southern Company-Florida, LLC
 Curtis H. Stanton Energy Center
 Power Plant Siting Supplemental Application No. 81-14SA2
 OGC Case No. 01-0176
 DOAH Case No. 01-0416EPP

The Department is reviewing the application to allow construction and operation of a 633 megawatt (MW) nominal, natural-gas fired electrical power plant at an existing power plant site located at the Curtis H. Stanton Energy Center, 5100 South Alafaya Trail, near Orlando, Florida, in Orange County. A copy of the application for certification is available for review in the office of Hamilton S. Oven, P. E., Administrator, Siting Coordination Office, Department of Environmental Protection, 2600 Blair Stone Road, M.S. 48, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2400, (850)487-0472.

Pursuant to Section 403.507, F.S., and Rule 62-17, FAC., statutory parties to the site certification proceeding should review the application and submit their reports and recommendations.

POINT OF ENTRY

This notice does not serve as a point of entry for any person. However, In the future, a hearing will be announced to address environmental impacts. Non-agency parties to the original certification proceedings may become parties to the supplemental certification proceedings by filing a notice of intent to become a party with the Department within 30 days of the publication of the newspaper notice of filing of the supplemental application published by the applicant pursuant

to Section 62-17.231(2), Florida Administrative Code, or within 38 days of the non-agency's receipt of the application. Any other person who is not a statutory party to the certification proceeding and whose substantial interest is affected and being determined by the proceeding may file a motion to intervene in the proceeding pursuant to Chapter 120, Florida Statutes, and the applicable rules; Section 403.508(4), Florida Statutes; Section 62-17.141(4), Florida Administrative Code; and Section 62-17.231(3), Florida Administrative Code, at least 15 days before the date of the certification hearing. Failure to act within the time frame constitutes a waiver of the right to become a party. Intervention may be granted at the discretion of the designated administrative law judge and upon such conditions as he or she may prescribe any time prior to 15 days before the commencement of the certification hearing. The petition must be filed (received) with the Administrative Law Judge, Division of Administrative Hearings, The Desoto Building, 1230 Apalachee Parkway, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1550 at least 15 days before the date of the certification hearing.

Section XIII
Index to Rules Filed During Preceding Week

**RULES FILED BETWEEN February 5, 2001
 and February 9, 2001**

Rule No.	File Date	Effective Date	Proposed Vol./No.	Amended Vol./No.
----------	-----------	----------------	-------------------	------------------

DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE AND CONSUMER SERVICES

Division of Consumer Services

5J-11.006	2/5/01	2/25/01	26/49	
-----------	--------	---------	-------	--

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

Florida School for the Deaf and the Blind

6D-5.003	2/6/01	2/26/01	26/39	26/52
6D-6.003	2/6/01	2/26/01	26/46	

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY AFFAIRS

Division of Resource Planning and Management

9J-5.001	2/5/01	2/25/01	26/42	
9J-5.002	2/5/01	2/25/01	26/42	
9J-5.003	2/5/01	2/25/01	26/42	
9J-5.004	2/5/01	2/25/01	26/42	26/52
9J-5.005	2/5/01	2/25/01	26/42	
9J-5.0053	2/5/01	2/25/01	26/42	
9J-5.0055	2/5/01	2/25/01	26/42	
9J-5.006	2/5/01	2/25/01	26/42	
9J-5.010	2/5/01	2/25/01	26/42	
9J-5.015	2/5/01	2/25/01	26/42	
9J-5.016	2/5/01	2/25/01	26/42	
9J-5.019	2/5/01	2/25/01	26/42	
9J-28.001	2/9/01	3/1/01	26/42	
9J-28.002	2/9/01	3/1/01	26/42	
9J-28.003	2/9/01	3/1/01	26/42	
9J-28.004	2/9/01	3/1/01	26/42	
9J-28.005	2/9/01	3/1/01	26/42	26/52
9J-28.006	2/9/01	3/1/01	26/42	
9J-28.009	2/9/01	3/1/01	26/42	
9J-28.011	2/9/01	3/1/01	26/42	
9J-28.014	2/9/01	3/1/01	26/42	
9J-28.015	2/9/01	3/1/01	26/42	
9J-28.016	2/9/01	3/1/01	26/42	
9J-28.017	2/9/01	3/1/01	26/42	

Rule No.	File Date	Effective Date	Proposed Vol./No.	Amended Vol./No.
9J-28.018	2/9/01	3/1/01	26/42	
9J-28.019	2/9/01	3/1/01	26/42	
9J-28.020	2/9/01	3/1/01	26/42	
9J-28.021	2/9/01	3/1/01	26/42	
9J-28.022	2/9/01	3/1/01	26/42	
9J-28.023	2/9/01	3/1/01	26/42	

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION

61-11.001	2/5/01	2/25/01	26/41	26/51
61-11.002	2/5/01	2/25/01	26/41	26/51
61-11.004	2/5/01	2/25/01	26/41	26/51
61-11.005	2/5/01	2/25/01	26/41	
61-11.006	2/5/01	2/25/01	26/41	26/51
61-11.007	2/5/01	2/25/01	26/41	
61-11.008	2/5/01	2/25/01	26/41	
61-11.009	2/5/01	2/25/01	26/41	
61-11.010	2/5/01	2/25/01	26/41	26/51
61-11.012	2/5/01	2/25/01	26/41	26/51
61-11.013	2/5/01	2/25/01	26/41	26/51
61-11.014	2/5/01	2/25/01	26/41	
61-11.015	2/5/01	2/25/01	26/41	26/51
61-11.016	2/5/01	2/25/01	26/41	26/51
61-11.017	2/5/01	2/25/01	26/41	26/51
61-11.018	2/5/01	2/25/01	26/41	
61-11.019	2/5/01	2/25/01	26/41	

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

Board of Acupuncture

64B1-4.0015	2/6/01	2/26/01	26/47	
64B1-8.001	2/6/01	2/26/01	26/51	
64B1-8.002	2/6/01	2/26/01	26/51	
64B1-10.001	2/6/01	2/26/01	26/47	

Board of Medicine

64B8-9.009	2/7/01	2/27/01	26/49	
------------	--------	---------	-------	--

FISH AND WILDLIFE CONSERVATION COMMISSION

Freshwater Fish and Wildlife

68A-20.005	2/7/01	4/1/01	26/51	
68A-27.005	2/7/01	2/27/01	26/51	